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VIRGINIA REGISTER

The Virginia Register is an official state publication issued
every other week throughout the year. Indexes are published
quarterly, and the last index of the year is cumulative.

The Virginia Register has several funciions. The full text of alt
regulations, both as proposed and as finally adopted or changed
by amendment are Tequired by law to be published in the
Virginia Register of Regulations.

In addition, the Virginia Register is a source of other

information ahout state government, including all Emergency -

Regulations issued by the Governor, and Execuiive Orders, the
Virginia Tax Bulletin issued periodically by the Department of
Taxation, and notices of all public hearings and open meetings of
state agencies. )

ADOPTION, AMENDMENT, AND REPEAL OF REGULATIONS

An agency wishing to adopt, amend, or repeal regulations must
first publish in the Virginia Register a notice of proposed action;
a basis, purpese, impact and summary statement; a notice giving
the public an opportunity ic comment on the pruposal and the
text of the proposed regulations.

Under the provisions of the Administrative Process Act, the
Registrar has the right to publish a summary, rather than the full
text, of a regulation which is considered to be too lengthy. In
such case, the full text of the regulation will be available for
public inspection at the office of the Registrar and at the offlce
of the promulgating agency.

Following publication of the proposal in the Virginia Register,
sixty days must elapse before the agency may take action on the
proposal.
 During this time, the Governor and the General Assembly will
review the proposed regulations. The Governor will transmit his
comments on the regulations to the Registrar and the agency and
such comments will be published in the Virginia Register.

Upon receipt of the Governor's comment on a proposed
regulation, the agency (i} may adopt the proposed regulation, if
the Governor has no objection to the regulation; (ii) may modify
and adopt the proposed regulation after considering and
incorporating the Governor’s suggestions, or (ili) may adopt the
regulation without changes despite the Governor’s
recommendations for change.

The appropriate standing committee of each bramch of the
General Assembly may meet during the promulgation or finai
adoption process and file an objection with the Virginia Registrar
and the promulgating agency. The objection will be published in
the Virginia Register. Within twenty-one days after receipt by the
agency of a legislative objection, the agency shall file a response
with the Registrar, the objecting legislative Committee, and the
Governor

When final action is taken, the promulgating agency must again
publish the text of the regulation, as -adopted, highlighting and
explaining any substantial changes in the final reguiation. A
thirty-day final adoption period will commence upon publication in
the Virginia Register.

The Governor will review the final regulation during this time
and if he objects, forward his objection fo the Registrar and the
agency. His objection will be published in the Virginia Register. If
the Governor finds that changes made to the proposed regulation

. are substantial, he may suspend the regulatory process for thirty
days and require the agency to solicit additional public comment
on the substantial changes.

A regulation becomes effective at the conclusion of this
thirty-day final adoption period, or at any other later date
specified by the promulgating agency, unless (i) a legislative
objection has been filed, in which eveni the regulation, unless
withdrawn, becomes effective on the date specified, which shall

be after the expiration of the twenty-one day extension period; or
(ii) the Governor exercises his authority to suspend the regulatory
process for solicitation of additional public comment, in Which
event the regulation, unless withdrawn, becomes effective on the
date specified which date shail be after the expiration of the
period for which the Governor has suspended the regulatory
process.

Proposed action on regulations may be withdrawn by thé
promulgating agency at any time befere final action is taken.

EMERGENCY REGULATIONS

If an agency determines that an emergency situation exists, it
then requests the Governor to issue an emergency regulation. The
emergency regulation becomes operative upon its adoption and
filing with the Registrar of Regulations, unless a later date is
specified. Emergency regulations are limited iz time and cannot
exceed a twelve-months duration. The emergency regulations will
be published as quickly as possible in the Virginia Register.

During the time the emergency status is in effect, the agency

" may proceed with the adoption of permanent regulations through

the usgal procedures (See “Adoption, Amendment, and Repeal of
Regulations,” above). If the agency does not choose to adopt the

" regulations, the emergency status ends when the prescribed time

limit expires,
STATEMENT
The foregoing constitutes a generalized statement of - the

procedures to be followed. For specific statutory language, it is
suggested that Article 2 of Chapter 1L1:1 (§§ 96.14:6 through

- 9-6.14:9) of the Code of Virginia be examined carefully.

CITATION T¢ THE VIRGINIA REGISTER

The Virginia Register is cited by volume, issue, page number,
and date. 1:3 VA.R. 75-77 November 12, 1984 refers to Volume 1,
Issue 3, pages 75 through 77 of the Virginia Register issued on
November 12, 1984,

“The Virginia Register of Regulations” (USPS-001831) is
published bi-weekly, except four times in January, April, July and
October for $100 per year by the Virginia Code Commission,
General Assembly Building, Capitol Square, Richmond, Virginia
23218. Telephone (804) 786-3591. Second-Class Postage Rates Paid
at Richmond, Virginia. POSTMASTER: Send address changes to
the Virginia Register of Regulations, $10 Capitol Street, 2nd Floor,
Rickmond, Virginia 23219.

The Virginia Register of Regulations is published pursuant to
Article 7 of Chapter L.1:1 (§ 9-6.142 et seq.) of the Code of
Virginia. Individual copies are avallable for $4 each from the
Registrar of Regulations.

Members of the Virginia Code Commission: Dudley J. Emiek,
Ir., Chairman, J. Sarauel Glasscock, Vice Chairman; Russell ML
Carneal; Joseph V. Gartlan, Jr; John Winge Knewles; Gail 5.
Marshall; E. M. Miller, Ir; Theodore V. Morrison; William F.
Parkersom, Jr; A. L. Philpott.

Staff of the Virginia Register: Joan W. Smith, Registrar of
Regulations; Ann M. Brown, Depuiy Registrar of Regulations.
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For information concerning Proposed Regulations, see information page.

been stricken indicates proposed text for deletion.

Symbel Key
Roman type indicates existing text of regulations. Iy alic type indicates proposed new text. Language which has

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES
(BGARD OF)

Title of Regulation: VR 460-04-8.3. Client Medical
Management Program.

Statutorv Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Coae of Virginia,

Public Hearing Dafe; N/A

Written comments may be submitted until October 12, 1981
(See Calendar of Events section
for additional information)

Sumypary:

This regulatory pacimge replaceé the current
emergency regulation entitled Expansion of the Client
Medical Management Program (VR 460-04-8.3).

Under the Virginia Client Medical Management
Program, DMAS assigns clients who abuse or overuse
services to primary care physicians and designated
pharmacies for case management. The program also
prohibits providers who abuse or provide unnecessary
services from being designated as primary care
providers for recipients in the program.

Revisions to the Client Medical Management
regulations are necessary fo expedite the utilization
review process in order to increase the caseload to
the targeted levels. New criteria that specify utilization
levels which are considered excessive will allow
DMAS’ staff to determine more efficiently the clients’

needs for coordination of medical care. More
recipients of medical assistance will be evaluated for
care coordination. Appropriateness of placement in
care coordination will be ensured by the combined
use of numeric thresholds and DMAS medical staff’s
reviews. :

These regulatory revisions are also necessary lo
support the department in its administrative appeals
process by defining the amount, duration and scope of
certain medically unnecessary services.

The utilization patterns which serve as criteria for
recipient restriction are listed in §§ 2 D and 2 J of
the proposed regulations, There are several changes
from the emergency regulatory package. Numeric
thresholds have been adjusted for several criteria

New criteria (§ 2 D 3, m-n) recommended by health
care providers have been added (o help identify
abusive utilization patterns which are substanijated
upon review by DMAS staff and noncompliant

. behaviors which result in abuse. These would be used

for both initlal review of recipient activity and review
of restricted recipients prior to the end of each
restriction peried fo determine the need for continued
utilization controls.

Experience In completing reviews on restricted
reciplents has shown the need for additional written
criterla to address compliance with DMAS policy and
recommendations of the designated provider(s). In
addition to the changes described above, another new
criterion (§ 2 J 1 d) will allow continued restriction
when restricted recipients have had one or more
changes of designated provider due fo the breakdown
of the recipient/provider relationship. These
breakdowns may result from recipients’ poncompliance
with Client Medical Management policy and
procedures  or noncompliance with recommended
medical care which results in abuse.

The result of frequent provider changes is that the
recipient continues to receive fragmented medical care

. which may increase costs to the department. These

recipients need more time fo practice appropriate
utilization of medical services and demonsirate
compliance.

Currently all recipient restriction periods are for 18
months, '§ 2 E 5 has been added to extend the
restriction period to 24 months when a recipient has
completed a period of enrollment in Client Medical
Management and is subsequently found to have

resumed abusive utilization practices once unrestricted.
A longer restriction is expected fo be more effective
in changing inappropriate utilization patterns by giving
recipients more time to practice compliance. Ii is
expected to also serve as a grealer deterrent fto

" misuse of services.

There have been (wo changes in the emergency
regulations regarding approval of recipient and
provider restrictions. Approval authority for recipient
restriction (§ 2 4) and provider restriction (§ 3 D 4)
has been removed because they were procedural

(D.3, h and 1) using stafistical data available through =~ VR 460-04-8.3. Client Medical Management Program.

the Surveillance and Utilization - Review Subsystem

(SURS) of the Medicaid Management Information § 1. Definitions.

~ System.
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Proposed Regulations

The following words and terms, when used in these
regulations, shall have the following meanings unless the
context clearly indicates otherwise:

“APA” means the Administrative Process Act established
by Chapter 1.1:1 (§ 9-6.14:1 et seq.) of Title 8 of the Code
of Virginia.

“Abuse by recipients” means & pattern of praectice by &
provider o a pattern of health care ufilization by &
reeipient recipienfs which is inconsistent with sound fiscal
; busimess; or medical practices and resulis in unnecessary
costs to ihe Virginia Medicaid program ; or in
reimbursement for a level of utilization or pattern of
services that are- noi medically necessary or that fail o

meet professionally recognized stendards for health eare .

“Abuse by providers” means practices which are
inconsistent with sound fiscal, business, or medical
practices and. resuft in unnecessary costs to the Virginia
Medicaid Program or in reimbursement for a level of
utilization or paffern of services that is not medically
necessary.

“Card-sharing” weans the infentional sharing of a
recipient eligibility card for use by someone other than
the recipient for whom it was issued, or a pattern ‘of
repeated unauthorized use of a recipient eligibility card by
one or more persons other than the recipient for whom it
was isgued due to the failure of the recipient fo safeguard
the card.

“Client Medical Management Program for recipients”
means the recipienfs’ utilization control program designed
to promote Iimproved and cost efficient medical
management of essential health care for
nopinstitutionalized recipients through restriction to one
primary care provider and one pharmacy. Referrals may
nof be made to providers resiricted through the Client
Medical Management Program, nor may restricted
providers serve as covering providers. .

“Client Medical Management Program for providers”
means the providers’ utilization conirol program designed
to complement the recipient uvtilization conirol program in
promoting improved and cost efficient medical
managemeni of essential health care. Restricted providers
may not serve as designated providers for restricted
recipients. Restricted providers may not serve as referral
or covering providers for restricled recipients.

YCede of Federgl Repilghions” er “CER” mesns thet
codifiestion of the geners) ond permonept eules published
m%heFedePa%Registerbythee*ee&&vedeﬁ&E&mmsaﬂd
agencies of the federal government:

“Contraindicated medical care” means treatment which
is medically improper or undesirable and which resulfs in
duplicative or eéxcessive ultilization of services.

“Contraindicated use of drugs” means the concomitant

use of two or more drugs whose combined pharmacoiof,
action produces an Uundesirable therapeutic effect or
induces an adverse effect by the extended use of a drug
with a known potential to produce this effect.

“Covering provider” means a provider designated by the
primary provider to render health care services In fhe

“feinporary absence of the primary provider.

“DMAS” means the Department of Medical Assistance
Services.

“Designated provider” means the provider who agrees io
be the primary health care provider or designated
pharmacy from whom the restricted recipient must first
attempt fo seek health care services.

“Diagnostic category” means the broad classification of
diseases and injuries found in the International
Classification of Diseases, 8th Revision, Clinical
Modification (ICD-9-CM) which is commonly used by
providers in billing for medical services.

“Drug " means a subsiance or medication infended for
use In the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, (reatment or
prevention of disease as defined by the Virginia Drug

Control Act (§ 54.1-524.2 et seq. of the Code of Virginia).

“Duplicative medical car¢” means two or more
practitioners concurrently treat the same or simila~
medical problems or conditions falling into the sarn
diagnostic category, excluding confirmation for diagnosi..
evaluation, or assessment.

“Duplicative medications” means more than one
prescription of the same drug or more than one drug in
the same therapeufic class or with similar pharmacologic
actions.

“Emergency hospital services” means services that are
necessary to prevent the death or serious impairment of
the healith of the recipient. The threat to the life or health
of the recipient necessitates the use of the most accessibie
hospital available that is equipped to furnish the services.

“Excessive medical care” means obtaining greater than
necessary services such that health risks to the recipient
or unnecessary costs to the Virginia Medicaid Program
may ensue from the accumulation of services or obiaining
duplicative services.

“Excessive medications” means oblaining medication in
excess of generally acceptable maximum therapeutic
dosage regimens or obtaining duplicative medication from
more than one practitioner.

“Fraud’” means an intentional deception or
misrepresentation made by a person wiith the knowledge
that the deception could result in some unauthorized
benefit to himself or some other person. It includes any
act that constitutes fraud under applicable federal or siat

Virginia Register of Regulations
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Aws.

“Health care” means any covered services, including
equipment or supplies, provided by any individual,
organization, or entity that participates in the Virgm!a
Medical Assistance Program.

M%mmmm
that unit of the federal Department of Health and Humesn
Services which administers the Medicare and Medienid

“Medical emergency” means a situation in which a
delay in obtalning ireatment may cause death or lasting

.injury or harm ie serious impairment of the health of the

‘ecipient.

“Medical management of essential health care” means a
case management approach to health care in which the
designated primary physician has responsibility for
assessing the needs of the patient and making referrals (o
other physicians and clinics as needed. The designated
pharmacy has responsibility for monitoring the drug
regimen of the patient. Ceoordination of medical services
promotes confinuity of care and cost efficiency.

Medre&Hyneeessaﬂ—meaﬂsneeess&Fyfeft-he
maintenanee; improvement; or protection of health; of
lessening of illness; disability; or paim:

end Disebled enacted by Cengress in 1066 as HHe XV

of the Secial Securiy Aek

“Noncompliance” means failing fo follow Client Medical
Management Program procedures, or a pattern of
utilization which is inconsistent with sound fiscal or
medical practices. Noncompliance includes, but is not
limited fo, failure lo follow a recommended freatment plan
or drug regimen; failure to disclose to a provider any
treatment or services provided by another provider; or
requests for medical services or medications which are not
medically necessary.

“Not medically necessary” means an Item or service
which is not consistent with the diagnosis or treatment of

the patlent's condition or an item or service which is
‘duplicative, contraindicated, or exceaswe, or results in a

pattern of abuse.

“Patfern”  means an identifiable series of evenis or
activities resulting In abuse ,

“Practitioner” means a health care provider licensed,
registered, or otherwise permitted by law to distribute,
dispense, prescribe and administer drugs or otherwise treat
medical conditions.

“Provider” means the individual or facility registered,
licensed, or certified, as appropriate, and enrolled by
DMAS to render services to Medicaid recipients eligible
for services,

“Psychotropic drugs” means drugs which alter the
mental state. Such drugs include, but are not limited fo,
morphine, barbiturates, hypnotics, antianxiely agents,
antidepressants, and antipsychotics.

“Recipient” meaps the individual who is eligible, under
Title XIX of the Social Security Act, to receive Medicaid
covered services,

“Recipient eligibility card” means the document issued
to each Medicaid family unit, listing names and Medicaid
numbers of all eligible individuals within the family unit.

“Restriction” means an administrative action imposed on
a recipient which limits access to specific types of medieal
epre and health care services through a designated
primary previderés) provider or an administrative action
imposed on a provider to prohibit participation as a
designated primary provider , referral, or covering
provider Tor restricted recipients.

“Social Security Act” means the the Act, enacted by the
T4th Congress on August 14, 1935, which provides for the
general welfare by esiablishing a system of federal old
age benefits, and by enabling the several states to make
more adequate provisions for aged persons, blind persons,
dependent and crippled children, maternal and child
welfare, public health, and the administration of their
unemployment compensation laws.

"‘State Plan for Medical Assistance” or “the Plan” means

the document listing the covered groups, covered services
- and their

limitations, and provider reimbursement
methodologies as provided for under Title XIX of the
Social Security Act. '

“Surveillance and Ultilization Review Subsystem (SURS)”
means a computer subsystem of the Medicaid Management
Information System (MMIS) which collects ¢laims data and
computes statistical profiles of recipient and provider

. activity and compares them with that of their particular

peer group.

"Tberapeutié class” means a group of drugs with similar
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pharmacologic actions and uses.

“[itifization control” means the control of covered health
care services to assure the use of cost efficient, medically
necessary &aé or appropriate services. :

§ 2 Authesity Client Medical Management Program for
recipients .

A, Federad regulations at 42 CER 45632 require the
Medicnid ageney {6 implement & stelewide surveillanee
and uHlization cemtrel pregram: Purpose.

The Client Medical Management Program is a utilization
control program - designed to promgete improved and cost
efficient medical management of essential health care,

B. Authority.

1. Federal regulations at 42 CFR § 456.3 require the
Medicaid agency to Implement a statewide surveillance
and utilization control program.

B- 2. Federal regulations ai 42 CFR § 431.54 (e) allow
states to restrict recipients to desipnated providers
when ihe recipienis have utilized services at a
frequency or amount that is not medically necessary
in accordance with utilization guidelines established by
the state.

&: Feders! regulations at 42 CFR 43154 & aeHow staies
te - P : cinating in the Medienid
program i the agemey finds that the provider of items or
serviecs under the Siate Plan bes provided Hems eor
seirdees ot & frequeney oF amount not medicaly neeessary
stabe; oF kes provided Hems or serviees of a quality thet
de net meet professienally recognized Sinnderds of healh
eRPE: :

B DBMAS shell not impose restrictions which weuld
result in denying reclpients reusomable aeccess to Medieaid
semeesef&deg&mte&ueﬂt—ynme}u&mgemgeﬂeysemees
{42 CER 43154 54

3. Federal regulations at 42 CFR §§ 45515 through
455.16 require the Medicaid agency to conduct
investigations of abuse by recipienis and allow
sanctions fo be applied.

§ & C Identification of Client Medical Management
Program participanis,

A DMAS identifies shall identify recipients for review
from computerized execeptien reports such as but nof
limited to ¢ Recipient SURS } or by referrals from
agencies, health care professionals, or other individuals fer
snspected  utilizatien of unnecessery or inappropriste
mediopt serdees .

B DMAS identifies providers for review ihreugh

£ 4 D. Parteipant Recipienf evaluation for restriction.

A: 1. DMAS shall review recipients aad prowiders to
determine if services are being uiilized er previded al
a frequency or amount that is results in a2 level of
uiilization or a paifern of services which Is not
medically necessary. Evaluation of utilization patierns
for beth recipients amd providess can include but is
not limited to review by the depariment siaff of
dispneses; medical records or computerized reports
generated by fthe departmeni reflecting claims
submifted for physician visits, drugs/prescriptions,
outpatient and emergeacy room visits, lab agd
diagnostic procedures, hospital admissions, and
referrals ; and procedures pet usually performed by
primary bhealih eare providers .

2. Recipienls demonstrating unreascnable palterns of
utilization or exceeding reasonable levels of utilization
shall be reviewed for restriction.

B: 3. DMAS shell recominend may resfrict recipients
for restrietion if & pattern of one or more of the
feHowing eenditiens paiferns or levels of utilizafion,
including but not limited to the following, is identified:

a. Exceeding 200% of the maximum tizerapeuth
dosage of the same drug or multipie drugs in the
same therapeutic class for a period exceeding four
weeks,

b. Two occurrences of having prescriptions for the
same drugs filled two or more iimes on the same or
the subsequent day.

c. Utilizing services from three or more prescribers
and three or more dispensing pharmacies in a
three-month period.

d. Receiving more than 24 prescriptions in a
three-month period.

e. Receiving more than 12 psychotropic prescriptions
or moreé than 12 analgesic prescriptions or more
than 12 prescriptions for conirolled drugs with
potential for abuse in a three-mnonih period.

f. Exceeding the maximum therapeutic dosage of
the same drug or multiple drugs in the same
therapeutic class for a period exceeding four weeks
and being prescribed by two or more praciitioners,

£ Receiving two or more drugs, duplicative in
nature or potenfially addictive (even within
acceptable therapeutic levels), dispensed by more
than gne pharmacy or prescribed by more than on
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practitioner for a period exceed four weeks.

h. Utilizing three or more different physicians of the
same lype or specially in a three-month period for
treatment of the same or similar conditions.

i Two or more occurrences of seeing (wo or more
Dhysicians of the same (type or specialty on the
same or Subsequent day for the same or similar
diagnosis,

L. j. Duplicative er , excessive , or contraindicated
utilization of medications, medical supplies, or
appliances dispensed by more than one pharmacy or
prescribed by more than one practitioner for the
time period specified.

2- k. Duplicative ex , excessive , or coniraindicated
utilization of medical visits, procedures, or diagnostic
tests from more than one praciitioner for the time
period specified.

3 1 Ernergency room use {of ROBCMErEERey enfe:
Use of emergency hospital services for three or
more emergency room visits for nonemergency care
during a three-month period.

m. One or more providers recommends restriction
for medical management because the recipient has
demonstrated abusive utilization practices.

n. A pattern of noncompliance which is inconsistent
with sound fiscal or medical practices and results in
abuse. Noncompliance is characterized by, buf not
limited fto:

(1) Failure to disclose fo a provider any treatment
or services provided by another provider; or

(2) Failure to follow a drug regimen or other
recommended treatment; or

(3) Requests for medical services or medications
which are not medically necessary,

4 0. Use of preauthorized transportation services
with no corresponding medical services.

B p. One or more documented occurrences of
recipient a recipient’s use of recipient the eligibility
card to obtain drugs under false pretenses, which
includes, bui is not limited to the purchase or
attempt to purchase drugs em via a forged or
aliered prescription.

& ¢ One or more documented occurrences of
card-sharing,

Z r. One or more documented occurréences of
alteration of the recipient eligibility card.

GM%WWMM#&

patiern for ome or more of the taﬂemﬂgee&dfmnsas
identified:

L VisHs billed ol a frequeney o level execeding thet
whieh is medically neeessary;

%Q&agmsﬁe&sﬁbiﬂedmmefwhatis
medically peecessary

& Billed diagnestie tesls which are worelated o the
diagresis;

4 Medieations and preseriptions in exeess of
recommended desages:

5 Mediestions and preseriptions unrelated o the
dingnesis;

B- DMAS shall recommend providers for restriefion if
the providers leense to praciiee has been revolked oF
jod in Virginia by the iate & . .

E: The Dircetor of the Medieal Support Seekion oF his
desngneesh&ﬂfeﬂewaadaﬂpfeveerdﬁ&pwmtbe
reeommendetions for recipient or provider resirietion:

Emmmmmm

L Reeisi have mi L their - Seibili
eards by alieration or eard shering; of beth; oF

2: Reecipients have oblained drugs uader Jalse
pretenses:

. & & E. Recipient restriction procedures.

A: 1. DMAS shall advise affected recipients by written
notice of the proposed restriction under the Client
Medical Management Program. Written notice shall
include an explanation of restriction procedures and
the recipient’s right to appeal the proposed action,

B: 2. The recipient shall have 30 ecalender devs the
opportunify to select designated providers . If a

" recipient fails to respond by the date specified in the
restriction notice, DMAS shall select designated
providers.

& 3. The reeipient shall have 30 epleadar days from
the date of the nolification to appest the propesed
restrieion: DMAS shall not implement restriction if a
timely valid appeal is noted. (See § 182 § 2 K )

P: 4 DMAS shall restrict recipients to their designated
providers for 18 months .

5. A recipient who has completed -a period of
enrollment in the Client Medical Managemen! Program
and who is subsequently found, through the procedures
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specitied in § 2 D of this regulation, fo have resumed
abusive practices during the unrestricted period, shall
again be restricted for 24 months.

§ & F. Eligible providers.

# 1. A designafed health care provider must be a
physician enrolled as an individual practitioner
unresiricted by ke Bepaftmeﬁt of Medicnl Assistanee
Serviess DRMAS .

B:. 2. A designated pharmacy provider must be a
pharmacy enrclled as a community pharmacy
unresiricted by the Depariment of Medical Assisiance
Sepwicss DMAS .

€ 3. Resieicted recipieris shalt hove reasonable seeess
to il essendel medical services Other provider types
such a9 elinies or ambuletery care centers may be
egtablished as designeled previders as nceded but only
#ith the approvel of DMAS: Providers restricted
through the Client Medical Management Program may

pot serve as designated providers, may not provide

services through referral, and may not serve as
covering providers for resfricted recipienis,

4. Physicians with practices limited to the delivery of
emergency roomn Services may not serve as des:gnated
primary providers.

5. Restricted recipients shall have reasonable access lo
all essential medical services. Other provider [ypes
such as clinics or ambulafory care centers may be
established as designated providers as needed but only
with the approval of DMAS.

& ¥ G. Provider reimbursement for covered services.

4z 1. DMAS shall reimburse for covered oufpatient
medical, pharmaceutical, and physician services only
when they are provided by the designated providers,
or by physicians seen on referral from the primary
health care provider, or in a medical emergency.
Prescriptions may be filled by a nondesignated
pharmacy only in emergency situations when the
designated pharmacy i closed, or when the designated
pharmacy does not stock or i unable ip obtain the
drug in a tmely manner .

B: 2 DMAS shall require a written referral from the
primary bealth care provider for payment of covered
outpgtient services by nondesignated practitioners
unless there is a medical emergency requiring
immediate treatment.

§ & H. Recipient eligibility cards.

DMAS shall provide an individual recipient eligibility

card listing the recipient’s designated primary care
providers for each restricted recipient .

$ 8- I Changes in designated providers.

A- 1. DMAS must give prior authorization 1o all
changes of designated providers.

B: 2. The recipient or the designéted provider may
initiate requests for change for the following reasons:

1 a. Relocation of the recipient or provider.

2. b. Inability of the provider o meet the rouline
health needs of the recipient.

3 c¢. Breakdown of the. recipient/provider
relationship.

€ 3. If the designated provider initiates the request
and the recipient does not seleci a new provider by
established deadlines, DMAS shail select a provider,
subject to concurrence from the provider,

B: 4 If DMAS denies the recipient’s request, the
recipient is shall be notified in writing and given the
right to appeal ihe decision. (See § B3 § 2 K )

§ 18- J. Review of recipient restriction status.

4A; 1. DMAS shali review a recipient’s utilization prior
to the end of the resiriction peripd to defermine
restriction termination or continuation. (See § 4 § 2 D
.) DMAS shail extend utilization contro! restrictions fo
18 months if & patiern for eme or more any of the
following conditions is identified:

+. a. The recipient’s utilization patterns include one
or more conditions listed in § 4B § 2D 3,

2: b. The recipient has not complied with Client
Medical Managemen{ Program procedures resulting
in services or medications received from one or
more nondesignated providers withowt a wrilten
referral or in ihe absence of a medical emergency,

% ¢ One or more of the designated providers
recommends continued restriction siatus because the
recipient has demonstrated noncompliant behavior
which i8 being controlled by Client Medical
Management Program restrictions.

d. Any changes of designated provider due {o the
breakdown of the recipient/provider relationship as
a result of the recipient’s noncompliance,

B: 2. DMAS shall notify the recipient and designated

- peevider(sy provider in writing of the review decigion.

If restrictions are continued, writiea notice shall
include the recipient’s right te appeal the proposed
action. See § 13 § 2K .)

€& 3 DMAS shall not implement ike continued
recipient restriciion if a Hely valid appeal is nofed. -
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A DMAS shall adwise alleeted providers by wrillen
. netiee of the propesed resirieton under the Client Medieal
Moanagement Peegrewn. Writien notiee shell include am
explanetion of the besis fer the deecisiem; request for
additionad doeuymeniation; ¥ any ond nelificotion of the
providers right to appeal the propesed acten:

B: The previder chail have 30 calendar days irom the
dote of notification to appeal the propesed restrieHem -
Appeels shatl be held in accordamee wth § 9-634 et
seq: of the Cede of Virgine firginie Administrative
Process Aol

Bmmmmmm&a
timely appeet is noted:

§ 13- Rewview of Provider Resteictsn stalus:

A DMAS shall review a restrieled providerls elaims
histery reccrd prior to the end of the restrictien peried to
determine restrietion fermination or continuetlon {see § &=
DPMAS shall ewend previder resiviction for 18 months ia
one oF more of the follewing sitwations:

2 Yhere the practices whieh led to  resirictien
eontinus:

B: In ecases where the provider hes submitied en
insufficlont number of elaims during the restriction peried
to ensble DMAS i{o cenduct e claims histexy review, DMAS
shell combinue resiriction undl a reviewable sir-months
claims histery is available for evaluaton:

€ ¥ BMAS rencws resiricten fsHowing the review; the

provider skall be notified of the egeneys preposed action;
the basis for the action; and oppeol Hehis: (See § ¥

B H the provider continues a pattern of medieally

uAneeessary services; DMAS mey maoke & referrel o the
apprepriate peer review greup er regulatery agemey fer
recommendation of action; of both:

§ 13- K. Recipient appeals.

A: 1. Restdeled providers and Recipients shall have
the right to appeal the epplicatien of the utilization
centrel eriteria used io determine thelr restricHen any
adverse action taken by DMAS under these regulations

B: Provider appeals shall be held pursuent to the
provisiens eof § 0-6:14Y et seqr of the Code of Virginia

& 2. Recipient appeals shall be held pursuant to the
provisions of 42 CER 431200 end the Simie Plan for
Medieal Assistance VR 460-04-8.7, Client Appeals .

§ 3. Client Medical Management Program for providers,
A. Purpose,

The Clienf Medical Management Program is a utilization
contrp! program designed fo promote Improved and cost
efficient medical management of essential health care,

B. Aunthority.

1. Federal regulations at 42 CFR § 456.3 require the
Medicaid agency to implement a statewide surveillance
and utilization control program.

2. Federal reguiations at 42 CFR § 431.54 () allow
states to restrict providers’ participation in the
Medicaid program if the agency finds that the
provider of items or services under the State Plan has
provided items or services at a frequency or amount
not medically necessary in accordance with utilization
guidelines established by the state, or has provided
items or. services of a quality that do not meet
professionally recognized standards of health care.

C. Identification of Client Medical Management Program
participants.

DMAS shall identify providers for review through
computerized reports such as but not limited to Provider
SURS or by referrals from agencies, health care
professionals, or other individuals. .

D. Provider evaluation for restriction.

1. DMAS shall review providers to determine if health
care services are being provided at a frequency or
amount that is not medically necessary or that are not
of a qualily to meet professionally recognized
standards of health care.  Evaluation of ulilization
patterns can include but is not limited to review hy
the department staff of medical records or
computerized reports generated by the department
reflecting claims submitted for physician visits,
drugs/prescriptions, - otlpatient and emergency room
visits, lab or diagnostic procedures, hospital
admissiens, and referrais.

2. DMAS may restrict providers if any of the following
conditions is identified:

a. Visits billed at a frequency or level exceedmg
that which is medically necessary;

b. Diagnostic tests billed In excess of what is
medically necessary;

¢. Diagnostic tests billed which are unrelated to fhe
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diagnosis; ' . 1. Providers shall have the right to appeal an,
' adverse action taken by the department under these
d. Medications prescribed or prescriptions dispensed regulations.

in excess of recommended dosages;

2. Provider appeals shall be held pursuant fto the
e. Medications prescribed or prescriptions d:spensed provisions of § 9-6.14:11 et seq. of the Code of Virginia
unrelated to the diagnosis, (Administrative Process Act).

£ If ihe provider's license lo practice in any state -
has been revoked or suspended.

E. Provider resiriction procedures.

I, DMAS shall advise affected providers by writlen
notice of the proposed restriction under the Client
Medical Management Program. Wrilten notice shall
inciude an explanation of the basis for the decision,
request for additional documentation, if any, and
nofification of the provider's right to appeal the
proposed action.

2, DMAS shall restrict providers from being the
designated provider, a referral provider, or a covering
provider, for recipienls in the Client Medical
Management Program for 18 months,

3. DMAS shall not implement prowder restriction if a
valid appeal is noted.

F. Review of provider restriction status. .

I. DMAS shall review a restricted provider's claims
history record prior fo the end of the restriction
period to determine restriction termination or
continuation (See § 3 D). DMAS shall extend provider
restriction for 18 months in one or more of the
following situations:

a. Where abuse by the provider is identified.

b. Where the practices which led to restriction
continue.

2. In cases where the provider has submitted an
insufficient number of claims during the resiriction
period to enable DMAS to conduct a claims history
review, DMAS shall continie restriction until a
reviewable six-months claims history is available for
evaluation.

3. If DMAS renews restriction following the review,
the provider shall be notified of the agency’s proposed
action, the basis for the action, and appeal rights. (See
§ 3 E).

4. If the provider continues a pattern of inappropriate
health care services, DMAS may make a referral to
the appropriale peer review group or regulatory
agency for recominendation or action.

G. Provider appeals.
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DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES

CLIENT MEDICAL HANACFMERYT PROGRAM

PRACLITIONER REFERRAL FORM
Recipient's Name: DMASH:
Referred to: Date:

Purpose of Referral (check ome):

 Physician covering in abeence of primary health care provider for (specify
period of absence for wp to %) days)

See one time only for

See as needed for opn-going treatment of

(Referral for on—going treatment must be remewed at 90 day intervals.)

This recipient is restricted to me as his/her primary health care provider.
Please refer to the billing chapter in your HMedicaid Provider Manual for billing
informstion. Thig form must bhe part of your wedical recoxd. For geimbursewent, a

opy sust I

If you wigh to refer this patient to another source who will be billing Medicaid,

you must obtain another referral form for that physician from me.

These referral provisions do mot apply while the recipient is an inpatient in a
hospital.

Signature of Primary Health Care Provider

Neme of Primary Health Care Provider

Provider I1D#:

Address:

Telephone #: ( )]

(Ingtructions on Back)

Referral Physician's Copy

IRSTRUCTIONS

The primary health care provider whose name and Medicaid identification number appear
on the restricted recipient's eiigibility card completes the form.

NOTE: If the recipiert i restricted te a clinie, the clinic physician serving as
the primary physician completes and gigns the form. The clinic name and numbar
are listed under the physician's signature.

The Referral Physician's Copy is railed to the referral physician or given to the
recipient to take to the appointment with the referral physician.

The Recipient's Copy is given te the recipienk, The recipient should show the copy to
the degignated pharmacist when filling a prescription from the referral physiciam.

The Primary Health Care Provider's Copy is retained in the recipient's record in the
office of the primary health care provider.
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RECIPIENT: ) TeASE:

I. Are you aware of the total medication utilization by this patient as indicated
on the enclosed drug chart? yes - no

II. Please tist the medications prescribed by you, giving the prescription erder
and related diagunosis, OR submit copiée of your medical records for the review
periad, . .

HMEDICATION and
{including dose and frequency)

BELATED DIAGNOSIS

III. Are you aware of this patiemt baing tzeated by any other physieclan?
T yes no
If yes, please iist:

IV. In your opinion, does this patient need to be restricted to one primary
physician and pharmacy? yes ne

V. Additiopal Commentg:

PLFASE RETURN THE FGEM TO:

RECIPIENT MONITORING UNIT

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES
600 FAST BROAD} STREET

SUITE 1300

RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 23219 DATE

PRESCRIBER'S SIGNATURE

PRESCRIBER'S NAME

‘BECIFIFNT NAME: DHASE:

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISIANCE SERVICES
ERCIPIENT/PEIMARY FROVIDER AGREEMENT

FEYSICIAN

BATE;:

I. My choice for primary physician is given below. I understand that Medicaid will
pay for covered outpatient physician services provided by my primary physician.
Other physiciana will be paid only when my primary physician makes & medical
referral or is unable to provide services in a medical emergency requiring
immediste treatment.

RECIPIENT SIGNATURE: DATE!

TELEPEONE NUMBER: ( )]

II. PRINT RAME AND ADDRESS OF PEYSICIAN:

I mgree to undertake primary health care and make appropriate referrals to specialists
for the recipient named above. :

PHFSICIAN'S SIGHATURE: DATE:
TELEPH(NE NUMBER: ( )

PHYSICIAN'S MEDICAID ID#:

" (Uge number preprinted om the invoice)

MAIL TO!
RECTIPYENT MONITORING UNIT
DEPARTMENT OF MEDICGAI ASSISTANCE SERVICGES
600 EAST BROAD STREET
SUITE 1300
RICHMCND, VIBGINIA 23219
INSTROCTIONS
1. You must sign the form in Section I. If the form is for a chiid, the parent or
guardian must sign.
2, The physi'cian you select must be a enrolled as an individual physician with

Medicaid and bill on a Practitioner Invoice using his/her own Medicaid provider
number. The physician can tell you if these requirements are met. Any questions
can be directed to the Recipient Monitoring Unit in Richmond, {(804) 786-6548.

.

3. 1f the physician agrees to be your primary physician, ask him/her to sign and
date the form and write in the Medicaid provider uumber.

4. Be sure the physician's name and the office address are ERINTIED clearly in
Section II. .

5, When Sections I and IT are completed, return the form to our cffice in the
enclosed postage paid envelope.
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DEPARTMENT (¥ MEDICAI. ASSISTANCE SERVICES
BECIPIENT/PRIMARY PROVIDER ACREEMENE

PEYSTICIAN CHANGE

DATE:

BECTPIENT HAME: N DMASE:
I, My choice for primary physician is given below., I understand that Medicaid will

pay for covered outpatient physician services provided by my primary physician.
Other physicians will be paid only when my primary physician makes a medical
referral or is unable to provide services in 2 medical emergency requiring
immediate treatment.

RECIPIENT SIGNATURE: DATE:

£ )

II. FPRINT NAME AND ADDRESS OF PHYSICTAN:

TRLEPHONE NUMBI

1 ggree to undertake primary health care and make apprapriate referrals to spscialists
for the recipient named above.

PEYSICIAN'S SIGNATURE: RATE:

TELEPHONE NUMBER: - ( }

PHYSICIAN'S MEDECAID IDE:
(Use number preprinted on the invoice)

MAIL TO: .

RECIPIENT MONITORING GNIT
DEFARTHENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTARCE SERVICES
600 EAST BROAD SIREET
SUITE 1300
RICHMCND, VIRGINIA 23219

INSTRUCTIONS

1. You must sign the form in Sectiorn I, If the form is for a child, the parer-. or
guardian must sign. :

2. The physician you select must be a enrolled as an individual physician with
Medicaid and bBill on a FPractitioner Invoice using his/her own Medicaid provider
number. The physician can tell you iIf these requirements are met. Any questions
can be directed to the Recipient Monitoring Umit ip Richmond, (804) 786~-6543.

3. If the physician agrees to be your primary physician, ask him/ber to sign aad
date the form snd write in the Medicaid provider pumber. The change will pe
effective on the date the form is signed.

4, Ee sure the physician's name and the offlce address are PRINTED clearly in
Section IT.
5. When Sections I and TI are completed, returm the form to our gifice in the

encloged postage paid envelope.

- PHARMACY BEPRESENTATIVE'S STGNATUEE:

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES
BECIPIENT/PRIMARY FROVIDER ACGEEEMENT

PEARMACY

DATE:

RECIPIENT NAME: RIASH:

L. My choice for designated pharmacy is given below. I understand that Medicaid will
pay forlcovered outpatient pharmacy services from my designated pharmacy. Other
pharmacies will be paid only when my designated pharmacy does nok stock gr cannot
supply medications in a medical ewergency requiring immediate treatmeat.

RECIPIENT STQMATURE: DATE;

TELEPHGNE NUMBER: { )

II. PRINT HAME AND AUDRESS OF PHARMACY:

I agree to moniter the drug utilization and provide all outpatient

P harmaceuti
for the recipient named abgve. P eutical needs

PHARMACY "5 MEDICAID ITH#:
(Use mmirer proprinted onm the imvoice)

MAIL TO3

RECTPIENT MONITORIKG UNIT
DEPARTMENYT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES
600 EAST BROAD STREET
SUITE 1300
RICEHOKD, VIRGINIA 23219

INSTRECTIONG

1. You must <ign the form in Section I.

If the ferm is for a child
guardian must eign. » the parenc ot

2. Thevgharmacy you select must be a Medicaid provider that bills on the Daily Drug
Claim Ledger. The vpharmacist can tel] you If the phammacy mests these

requirements. Any questions can be directed to the Recipi : N . N
Richmond, (804) 786-5548. © Recipient tionitoring init in

3. If the pharmacist agrees to be your designated provider,

'
i N ask bim/her to =i d
date the form and write it the phariapy's Medicaid provid B -

el number.
Ba sure the name and address gf the Pharmacy is PRINTED clearly in Sectiom IT.

3. When Sections I and Il are completed

+ Teturn the form to our office in the
enclosed postage paid envelope.
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DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES
RECIPIENT/PRTMARY PROVIDKR AGREEMFNT

PHARMACY CHANGE

DATE:

RECYPEENT NAME: TeASE:

I. My cholce for designated pharmacy is given below. I understand that Medicaid will
pay for covered outpatient phammacy services from my designated pharmacy. Other
pharmacies will be paid ocnly when my designated pharmacy does not stock or cannoct
supply. medicatione in a medical emergency requiring immediate treatment.

KECIPIENT SICRATURE: DATE:

TELEPHONE RIMBER: ( )]

II. FRINT KAME AND ADDRESS OF PHARMACY:

1 agree to monitor the drug utilization and provide all outpatient pharmaceutical needs
for the recipient pamed above.

PHARMACY REPRESENTATIVE'S SIGNATURE: DATE:
PHARMACY*S MEDICAID IDE: TELEPRONE NUMBER: { )
(Use oumber prepripted om the iavoice)

MAIL TO:

RECIPIENT MONITORTNG UNIT
DEFARTHENT OF MEDICAL ASSISIANCE SERVICES
500 EAST RROAD STREET
SUITE 1200
RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 23219

JINSTRUCTIONS

1. You must sign the form in Section I. If the form is for & child, the parent or
guardian must sigu.

2. The pharmacy you select must be a Medicaid provider that bills on the Daily Drug
Claim Ledger. The pharmacist can teil you if the pharmacy meets these
requirements. Any questiens can be directed to the Recipient Monjitoring Unit in
Hichmend, (804) 786-6548. 1

3. If the pharmacist agrees to be your degignated provider, ask him/her to sign snd
date the form amd write in the pharmacy's Medicaid provider number. The change
will be effective on the date the form is signed.

' Be sure the name and address of the pharmacy is PRINTED clearly in Section II.

5. When Sections I and II are completed, return the form te our office in the
enclosed postage peid envelope.

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISIANCE.SEKVICES

RECIPIENT/PRIMARY PROVIDER AGCREEMENT

DATE:

RECIPIENT NAME: HASE:

I. My choices for primary physician and pharmacy are given below.

: . I underst hat
Medicaid will pay for covered out Jnderstand tha

patient physici. an ha i i

by the providers listed below. Dther-pphyygic;l:ns vdli.i;l l’-‘::l:];gi:l'\’::f; Tl-:e:m;:
primary physician mekes a medical referral or is unable to provide services in a
medical emergency requiring immediate treatment, Other pharmacies will he paid
only when my designated pharmacy does not stock or cannot supply medications in a
medical emergency requiring immediate treatment.

RECIPIENT SIGNATURK: DATE:

TELEPBONE NUMBER: | )

II. FRINT NAME AND ADDRESS OF PRIMARY PHYSIGIAN:

I agree to undertake primary health care and make

! apprapriate referrals to ialj
for the recipient named above. ? ’ specinliste

PHYSICIAN'S SIGNATURK: DATE:

TELEPHONE NUMBER: £ 3 .

PHYSICIAN'S MEDICAID In¥;
{Use number preprinted ou the invoice)

IIT. FRINT MAME AND ADDRESS OF PHARMACY:

I mgree to monitor the drug utilization

and provide all putpatient harmaceutiec
for the recipient named above. i =l peeds

PHARMACY REPRESENTATIVE'S SIGNATURE: DATE:

PHARMACY'S MEDICAID ID#: . TELEPHONE NUMBER: { )
(Use mwmber prepriated on the invoice)

MAIL TO:

RECIPIENT MGNITORING INIT
DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES
600 EAST BROAD STREET
SUTTE 1300
RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 23219

JHSTRUCIIONS ON REVERSE SIDE
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DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SEBVICES
RECIPIENT/PRIMARY PROVIDER AGRERMENT

INGTRUCTIONS

1 You must sigm the form ia Bection I. If the form is for a child, the parent ¢r
guardian must gign. ’

2. The physician you select must be enrclled as an individuail pflysicia;:x with Medicaid
and bill oo & Practitionmer Invoice using his/her own Medicaid pruV).def nuwber. ‘l't.m
pharmacy you select must be a Medicaid provider that‘bills on r.he_Da:.].y Drug Claim
Ledger. The physician and pharmacist can tell you_lf Fhese }'equ:.ren?ents are met.
Any questions can be directed to the Recipient Monitoring Unit in Richmond, (804}

7B6-6548.

i i k them to sign and date the
. If they agree to be your primary care providers, as 3 I :
2 form aid gwr:i,te ju their Medicaid provider nuombers in the appropriate Sections (II
and 1II).

4. Be sure their names and addresses are ERINTEDR clearly in the appropriate section.

%, When Sections I, II, and III are complete, return the ferm to our office in the
enclosed postage paid envelope.

PLEASE RETURN THE FORM 10:

RECIPTENT MONITCRING TUNIT
DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES
600 EAST BROAD STREET
SOITE 1300
RICEMOND, VIRGINIA  2321%

DEFARTMENT OF MEDIGAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES
RECIPIENT/FRIMARY PROVIDER AGREEMENT

FROVIDER CHANGES

DATE:

BECTPIENT NAHE: THMASH:

I. My choices for primary physicisn and pharmacy are given below. I understand that
Medicaid will pay for covered outpatient physician ard pharmacy services provided
by the providers listed below. Other physicians wil! be paid only when my
primary physician makes a medical referral or is unable to provide services in a
medical emergency requiring jmmediate treatment. Other pharmacies will be paid
only when my designated pharmacy does mot stock or cannot supply medications in a
medical emergency requiring immediate treatment.

RECIPIENT SIGNATURE: DATE:

TELEFEQONE NUMBEE: { )

I1. TPRINT NAME AND ADDRESS OF PRIMARY PHYSICIAN:

1 agree to undertake primary health care and make appropriate referrals to specialists
fer the recipient named above.

PHISICIAN'S SIGNATUEE: DATK:

PHYSICLAN'S MEDICATD ITH:

TELEPRECGNE NUMBEB: ( )]
{Use pumber prepripted on the invoice)

III. PRINT NAME AND ADDRESS OF PHARMACY:

I agree to monitor the drug utilization and provide all outpatient pharmaceutical needs
for the recipient named above.

FHARMACY REFPEESENTATIVE'S SIGNATURE: DATE:
PHARMACY 'S MEDICAID IDF: TELEPHONE NOMBER: [ )]

{Ute nuwber preprinted on the invoice) +
MAIL TO:

RECIPIENT MONITDRING UNIT
DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTARCE SERVICES
600 EAST BROAD STREET
SUITE 1300
RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 23219

JTHSTRUCTIONS 0N BEVFRSE SIDE
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DEPARTMENT DF MEDICAL ASSESTANCE SERVICES
BECIYIENT/PETMARY PROVIDER AGEEEMENT
PROYIDER CHANGES

IHSTRUCTIONS

1, You must sign the form in Section I. If the form is for a child, the pareant or
guardian must sign.

2. The physician you select must be enrolled as an individual physician with Medicaid
and bill on a Practitioner Invoice using his/her own Medieaid provider number. The
pharmacy you select must be a Medicaid provider that bills on the Dzily Drug Claim
Ledger. The physician and pharmacist can tell you if these requirements are met.
Any quegtiong can be directed to the Recipient Monitsoring Unit in Richmond, (804)
786-654L8.

3. If they agree to be yeur primary care providers, ask them to sign and date the
form =nd write im their Medicaid provider numbers in the appropriate Sectioms (II
snd III}. The changes will be effective cn the date(s) the form was signed.

4. Be sure their names and addresses ere PRINIED clearly In the appropriate section.

5. When Sections I, II, and III are complete, return the form te our office in the
enclosed postage paid envelope.

PLEASE EXTURN THE FORM TO:

RECTPIENT MONITORING TINIYT
DEPARTMENT (F MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES
600 BEAST BRQAD STREET
SUITE 1300
RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 23219

NAME:

DEPARTHENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES

QUESTIONMAIRE

IRiash:

TELEFHONE # WHERE RERCIPIENT CAN BE RRACRAED: { )]

1. What does the recipient indicate are specific medical probiems?

2. What drugs is the recipient currently taking, and why?

3. Explain why the recipient is using more than goe physician.

-

Explain why the recipient ig using more than one pharmacy.

5. Explain why the recipient is using the emergency roem

(SEE REVERSE SIDE)
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10.

1t.

1z.

Page 2
i -am?
Does the recipient appear to understand the Client Medical Management Progt:

i rima:
Which pharmacy and physician does the reciplent plan to desxgl;natef_uvfdr:: gouti;i-
physician is usualiy a Geperal Practiticner led Id”teml:::l‘::r:c: :?he e it e
i ed,
ical care and refers to specialists as nee . ot
:::111: the Recipient/Primary Provider Agreesent with the required siguaturee)

What is your general impresgion of the home situation?

Is there pomeone in or outside the home who assists the recipient with daily
living skills?

Can the recipient read and write?
Is this an active service casel

Please list names and Medicaid numbers for other recipients residiog at the same
address. .

Please return form to:

Interviewer's Name

g RECIPIENT MONITORING UONIT
! DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES

Telephone 600 EAST BROAD STRRET

SUITE 1300

RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 23219

T

Agency .
Date
4/B9

RECIPIENT

During the review period of

1.

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES

DRAFT

PROFILE OF RECIPTIENT'S UTILIZATION

NAME : DHASH

» We found that the recipient:
(SEE TTEMS THAT ARE CKCEED)

Used - Physicians/groups of physicians.

e Used physicians/physician groups for routine care.

Used more than one physician of the same provider type:

Used pharmacies.
Used multiple pharmacieg consistently.

___ Used one pharmacy pr.lfmarily { ) and
other pharmacies occagionally,

Received services of the same type from two or more physicians and/or
pharmacies.

Treatment by physiciane For same diagnosis.,

Duplicative medical vigits, Iab/diagnostic procedures,

Used more than ome rharmacy or more than gne prescriber to receive
drugs duplicative in pature or potentially addictive.

"Excessively used medications.

Received large quantities of ¢

pecific drugs from one or tiore
prescribers., Drug Classifications;

_——

Different prescribers writ
of .total drug utilization,

ing for same types pf drugs are unaware
Drug. classificationa:

——

Obtained prescriptions at a frequency or amount that does not
comply with prescribers's directions. (ex: refilling prescriptions
early). Drug classifications: 4

Fhysician reports that strict controls for prescribing medications
are necessary due to recipient requesting specific medications,

(SEE REVERSE SIDE)
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*%PLEASE EXPLAIN TG THE RECIPIENT why using multiple physicisns and
pharmacies is not in the recipient's best interest. Mixing
prescriptions from a a number of prescribere can be detrimental to the
recipient's health and gserves ng therapeutic purpose. Using one
primary physician allows the physician to follow the recipient's
medical progress end provides coatinuity of care. Using one pharmacy
aliows the pharwacist te monitor the recipient's drug regimen and work
with the physician if complicationg should develap.

5. Made _____  wisits te ___ hompital(s). Based on Medicaid
eriteria for treatment in the emergency room, vigits were
cunsidered non—emergency.

#%PLEASE EXPLAIN TO THE RECIPIENT that a hospital emergency room i= to
be used pnly when the threat to the life or health of the recipient
nacessitates the wuse of the most accessible hospital facility
available that iz equipped to furnish the services. Once restricted
to a primery physiciarn, reimbursement for emergency room services is
conditicnal upon the review of the neceseary documentation supporting
the need for emergency services. If Medicaid determines that the
recipient used the emergency room for treatment which could have been
provided in a physiclan’s office, Medicaid will not pay for the visits
and the hospital can bill the recipient.

The recipient is expected to make an appointment with the primary
physician for routire, non-emergency care. If the primary physician
is not available, the recipient ig expected to gee the physician whe
is covering, usually an asscciate sharing the office.

6. Use of pre-authorized transportation services onm dates for which no
corresponding medical sezrvices can be verified.

A*PLEASE EXFLAIN TO TEE RECIPTENT that Medicaid transportation can be
used oply for services covered by Madicaid.

ADD

"IONAL COMMENTS:

.
If you have any questions regarding this information, please call
s Recipient Monitering Unit,
Department of Medical Assistance Services, at (804) 786-6548.

BRECTPIENT:

II.

BEVIFH PERIOD;

W

DEPARTIENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES

MI

—_— . IasE.

—_—
I. Please }ist the maintenance drugs and an:
prescription order and related diagnogis

¥y controlled subgtances, giving the
.

mﬁ&m and EETATER DIAGNOSIS
(Including prescription arder)

5, :

7. i

8. '
-

If a drug chart
Department is
utilization?

Have you had to implement strict ceatrol
behaviors during the last 0 meaths?  (ex:

yes

Bas the recipient demonstrated non-compliance in tak
the last 10 monthe? {ex: astbmatic patient not

dilators)

Comment s :

giving weekly quantities for each medication covered by the
enclosed for your revie¥, are you aware of the total drug
yes no

g of nedications due to drug seeking
requesting early refills)

—_—— no

ing maintenance drugs during
using prescribed bronchial
yes no :

suone[ngoy pasodod
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II1I. Have you referred this parieat to any other physicisn{e}? (NOTE: other
physicians treating this recipient for non—emergency mediecal problema will only
be paid with a referral from the primary health care provider.}

yes no :

I1f yes, pleage list physician(s) name, date(s) of referral and related diagnoais.

Has the recipient requested unmecessary medical services (referrals or procedures}
during the last 12 months? Yes - oo

I¥. A Medicaid recipient's use of an emergency room for routinge mediecal care is
considered abuse of the Department of Medical Assistance Services. We have
requested copies of this recipient's visits on
to determine the basie for the utilizarion.

Are you aware of these visits? _____ yes no

If -you referred the recipient to the Emergency Room, please specify dates:

V. Do yYou recommend renewing this recipient’s restriction status?
yes — no

Commenta:

FLEASE REITEN TO:

Recipient Momitoring Unit

Department of Medical Assistance Services PEYSICIAN'S SIGNATURE
600 East Broad Street
Suite 1300 PHYSICIAN'S NAME

Ricbmond, Virginia 23219 1
DATE
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Proposed Regulations

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES (BOARD OF)
AND CHILD DAY-CARE COUNCIL

Title of Repulation: VR 615-3¢-81, VR 175-03-01. General
Procedures and Information for Licensure.

Statutory Authority; §8 63.1-174 and 63.1-202 of the Code of
Virginia.

Public Hearing Dates:
September 16, 1981 - 3:30 p.m.
September 17, 1991 - 3:00 p.m.
September 19, 1991 - 3:90 p.m.
(See Calendar of Events section
for additional infermation)

Summary:

This regulation coniains the requirements and
procedures that licensees and staff of the Department
of Social Services must follow during the licensing
process. The licensed facilities affected by this
regulation are as follows: (i) adult day care centers;
(i} homes for adults; (iii} child placing agencies; (iv)
child caring institutions; (v) independenf foster homes;
(vi) child day caré homes; (vii} family day care
homes; and (viii} family day care systems,

The following areas are addressed in fhe regulation:
(i) licensing standards; (if) the Ilicense; "(iii) the
Hcensing process; (iv) allowable variance; (v) informal
appeal process; (vi) complaint investigation; and (vii)

sanctions,
VR 615—30-0?, VR 175-03-01. General Procedures and
Information for Licensure.
PART L
INTRODUCTION.

§ L1, Definitions.

The following words and lterms, when used in these
regulations, shall have the following meaning unless the
context clearly indicates otherwise:

“Allegation” means an accusation that a facility which is
subject to licensure is aperaﬂng without a license.

“Allowable variance” means (i) per:mssmn to meet the
intent of ag standard by some means other than as
gpecified by the sfandard, or (i) (he suspension of
enforcement of a particular standard or portion of the
standard for a stated time period.

“Applicant” means the person, corporation, partnership,
association - or public agency which has applied for a
license.

“Board” means the Stafe Board of focial Services.

“Commissioner” means the Commissioner of ihe
Department of Social Services.

“Complaint” means an accusation that a licensed facility
is not in compliance with licensing standards or law.

“Conditicnal license” means a license which may be
issued to a new facilily to operate in order fo permit the
applicant to demonsirate compliance with specified
standards.

“Council” means the Child Day-Care Council

“Denial” means the act of refusing to grant a license
after receipt of an original or renewal application.

“Department” means the Department of Social Services.

“Early compliance” means replacement of a provisional
or conditional license with a regular license.

“Functional design” means the design features of
building and grounds not regulated by the Building Cade,
necessary for particular activities and operations of a
facility subject fto licensure by the Deparfment of Social
Services.

“Licensee” means the person, corporation, partnership,
association or public agency lo whom a license Is issued
and who is legally responsible for compliance with the
regufations and statufory requiremenis related o tfn
factiity. -

“Provisional license” means a license which may be
issued upon expiration of a regular license when the
licensee Is temporarily unable fo comply with all the
reguirements of the standards.

“Regular license” means a license which is issued for 12
months or more as provided in Chapiers 8 and 10 of Title
63.1 of the Code of Virginia fe a facililty defermined to be
in substantial compliance with applicable standards and
regulations, The actual duration of the licensure period is
stated on the license.

PART L. PART II.
LICENSING STANDARDS.

4 &k § 2.1 Through the administration of the licensing
program, the Department of Social Services assumes
respongsibility to ensure that licensed facilities and agencies
provide children and aduits with at least a minimum level
of care in accordance with standards prescribed by the
State Board of Social Services and Child Day-Care Council.
The department also has the responsibility to investigate
accusations that a facility/agency subject to licensure is
operating without a license. The Virginia Code requires the -
State Board of Social Services to adopt standards and
regulations for the licensure of the following categories of
facitities/agencies;

Virginia Register of Regulations
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+ 1. Adult day care centers
2. Homes for adulis
3. Child placing agencies
4. Child caring institutions
5. Independent foster homes
8. Group family day care ho_mes
7. Family day care systems.

The Virginia Code requires the Child Day-Care Council
to adopt standards and regulations for the licensure of
child care centers , inciuding those centers operating as
child day-care camps, preschools and nursery schoo]s and
before and after school day-care programs .

§ 2 § 2.2 The State Board of Social Services or the
Child Day-Care Council has adopied a set of standards for
each category listed above except for child eare eceniers
sterdards The definition of each category and
requirements for licensure are centained in each set of
standards.

4 &3 § 2.3. Standards development/revision process.

JA. In developing or revising standards for licensed

.acilities/agencies, the Department of Social Services,
acting as agent for the State Board of Social Services and
Child Day-Care Council, adheres to the requirements of the
Administrative Process Act (§ 9-6.14:1 of the Code of
Virginia) and the public participation process.

B. The department solicits input from licensees,
associations of licensees, experts in related fields, ard
advocacy organizations , consumers and the general public
in the development or revision of licensing standards
through informal and formal comment periods and public
hearings. .

C. The department is committed to conducting periodic
reviews and, when necessary, comprehensive revisions of
each set of standards to assure that its standards continue
to protect vulnerable children and adulis in out-of-home
care while considering the interests of both providers and
consumers of care.

PART Ik PART IIIL
THE LICENSE.

§ 23 § 3.1 A license to operate a facility or agency is
issued to a specific person or organization to provide
out-of-home care to children or adults. An organization
may be a partnership, association, or corporation , or
Ppublic entity .

22§ 3.2 A license is not transferable When there is a

change in the ownership or location of the facility/agency

to which the license has been issued.

EXCEPTION: Licenses issued for child placing agencies
and family day care systems .are {ransferable when
agencies change location.

& 23 § 33 The depariment may issue a conditional
license to a new faciiity/agency in order to permit the
applicant to - demonsirate compliance with specified
standards. A conditional license may be effective for any
period not to exceed SiXx consecutive months. When this
period expires, the facility/agency must substantially meet
the standards or be denied a license. Conditional licenses
may be used only for new facilities/agencies.

EXCEPTION: With the approval of the appropriate fire
marshal, a second conditional license may be issued to a
licensee fo permit the licensee additiona!l time o comply
with fire safety standards when the licensee has purchased
an existing licensed facility for adulis.

§2—4—ﬁnaanuai#eenseisiss&edwhea%he&eﬁ#iﬁes—
sefv-te-es— _facilities; and the applieents finaneiat

‘Siate Beard of Social Serviees of ithe Child DPayCare

Counell and any edditienal reguirements thet mey be
specified by the Wirginie Code: The annunl Yeemse is
effective for 12 menthy upless it is revoked or surrendered
prior te the expiration date:

§ 3.4. A regular license is jssued for 12 months or more
as provided in Chapters 9 and 10 of Title 631 of the Code
of Virginia fo a facility determined to be in substantial
compliance with applicable standards and regulations. The
actual duration of the licensure period is stated on the
license.

§ 25 § 3.5. When an enaual a regular license expires and
the applicant is temporarily unable to comply with the
requirements of fhe standards, the department may issue a
provisicnal license for any period not fto exceed six
months. A provisional license shall not be issued to a
facility/agency which holds a conditional license. When 2
period of siz consecutive months of a provisional license
expires, the facility/agency must substantially meet the
standards and requirements or be denied a license,

EXCEPTION: With the approval of the appropriate fire
marshal, a second provisional license may be issued to a
facility for adults ic permit the licensee additional time to
comply with fire safety standards.

§ Z6: § 3.6 Terms of the license.

A. A facility/agency shall operate within the terms of its

- license.

B. The terms of any license include:
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1. The operating name of the facility/agency;

2. The name of the individual, partaership, aséociation,
er corporation , or public entity sponsoring the
facility /agency,

3. The physical location of the facility/agency,;

4. The maximum number of chlldren/adults who may
be in care ai any timne;

5. The period of time for which the license is
. effective; and

6. For child care 'facilities/agenc'ies, the age range of
children for whom care may be provided.

C. The terms of a license may inciude other limifations
which the department may prescribe within the context of
the standards for any facility/agency.

" D. The provisional license cites the standards with which
the licensee is not in compliance,

E. The conditional license cites the standards with which
the licensee must demonstrate compliance when operation
begins, and aiso any standards with which the licensee is
not in compliance.

F. Prior to changes in operafion which would affect the
terms of the licemse, the licensee gshall secure a
modification to the terms of the Hcense from the
department. (See § 38 § 4.8 )

PART I PART IV.
THE LICENSING PROCESS.

§ &% § 4.1. Preapplication consultation.

Upon request, the deparitment’s licensing representative
will provide consultation to any person(s) seeking
information about obtaining a license. The purpose of such
consultatmn is:

1. To explam standards and the'-licensing process;

2. To help the potential applicant explore the
operational demands of a licensed facility/agency;

3. To provide assistance in locating other sources of
information; .

4, To alert the potential gpplicant fo the value of
assessing the need for a facility/agency in the area to
be served,;

5. To review the potential applicant’s proposed
program plans, forms, etc., as they relate to standards;
and

6. To alert the potential applicant regarding the need

to meet other siate and local ordinances, such &
health, fire and building codes, where applicable.

§ &2 § 4.2. The initial appiication.

A. Upon request, the Virginia Department of Social
Services will provide an application form for a license to
operate a facility/agency. The location, {elephone number
and areas served by each office, ceniral and regional, are
provided in Attachment I of this document.

B. The depariment shall consider an applicaiion
complete when the application fee and all the required
information is submiited in the form required by the
department. The schedule of fees for licenses is provided
in Aitachment I of this document. If the department finds
the application incomplete, the applicant will be notified
within 15 days of receipt of the incomplete application.

C. The applicani shall compiete and submit {he
application fo the department at least 60 days prior to a
planned opening date to allow the depariment time to act
on the application.

D. The applicant may at amy Hme withdraw a request
for a license,

§ 3 § 4.3 Applicatiens o wespeehve applications for the
issuanee of & new or changed Use Group certifieaie of
ocetpaney. Approval of functional design features. :

A valid certificate of occupancy is one prerequisite for
licensure, When an gapplication is for licensure of a
building which has not previously been used for the type
of license or Use Group being sought, or when renovations
are made in the building, the depariment must approve
functional design features of the building in accordance
with applicable department regulations. Functienal design
refers to desiga i‘-&aeheas of budding and gr-euﬁds #ot

by the Depariment of Secial Serviees: The procedures are
as follows:

1. Prior to beginning construction or renovation, the
applicant or prospective eperater applicant shall
submit t¢ the department floor plans drawn te sesie
which clearly indicate the use of space and other
plans for compliance with ali requirements for the
building, use of space, and bathroom facilities
contained in the applicable regulations.

{(NOTE: Prospective operaters applicanis are urged to
present their plans for compliance with departmental
regulations to the department as early as possible and
before entering into coniracts in order to assure that
the building can be preapproved as meeting the
department’s regulations. Architects, comiractors, or
building officials may not be thoroughly familiar with
these additional requirements, and cosily errors can
be avoided through early review by the depariment
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.~ The plan for structures must & drawing te seale but
does net need o be en archieectural drawing clearly
. indicate the yse of space .}

2. The department will notily the applicant or
prospective eperator applicant within five 10 working
days of receipt il the plans tc comply are incomplete,
identifying the information still needed before the
request can be considered complete.

3. When a complete plan is recejved, the department
will issue a Preliminary Approval Statement or a
letter indicating disapproval of the plan and the
reasons for.disapproval,

(NOTE: A Preliminary Approval Statement does not
imply that the department will approve the application
for licensure since other factors will affect issuance
decisions.)

4, All Preliminary Approval Statements are conditional
upon there being no change in the proposal or the
circumstances affecting them and upon approval of all
required fire, health, or building officials.

5. The department will forward a copy of the
Preliminary Approval Statement to the appropriate
building official.

6. After construction or renovation, Depariment of
Social Services staff will make an on-ite inspection to
evaluate compliance - with the functional design
requirements of the applicable regulations. Findings of
this on-site inspection will be forwarded to the
applicant and the local building official.

§ &4 § 4.4 The investigation.

A, Inspectiens - and

reports of
agencies/departments. '

other

EXCEPTION: Section 34 4.4 A does not apply to child
placing agencies or family day care sysiems.

1 When the initial epplication i¢ reeeived; and at least
-&mﬂiythem&ftepthedep&ﬁmen&w&kas&pp}m&b}&
reguest the loeal health deporiment to provide an

inspection and report eof the eoavirommenial health
conditions of the foecility This will include & reguest
for approvel eof the waler supphby sewage dispesal

 investigation of the character,

# When the initiel application is reeeived; and at least
annually thereafter; the depertment wilk as epphiesble;
reguest an inspection and report of the fire sofely
eonditions of the faeility from the leeol fire officinl or

& When opplicable; & copy efey&eemmﬁe'et
Geatpaﬁeymfeq&ife&asmdiea&eﬂefmeappmmei
the Jecel building offieiak

1. All buildings sbau be inspected and approved by
the local building official when required. This
approval shall be documented by a Certificate of Use
and Occupancy indicating thai the building is classified
for its proposed licensed purpose.

2. At the time of the initial application and at least
annually thereafter, the building(s) shall be inspected
by state fire officials or local fire authorities, as
applicable, whose inspection shail determine
compliance with the Virginia Stlatewide Fire
Prevention Cede.

The initial application packef and subsequent renewal
packets will include the Fire Inspection Reporf Form
and instructions.

3. At the time of the initial application and al least
annually thereafter, the building shall be inspected by
state or local healih authorities whose inspection and
approval shall include general sanitation, waier supply
sewage disposal systems, food service operations, and
swimming pools.

The initia! application packet and subsequent renewal
packets will include the Report of Environmental
Health Inspection form and instructions.

B. The department’s representative shall make an on-site
ingpection of the proposed facility/agency and an
investigation . of the proposed services, as well as an
reputation and financial
responsibility of the applicant. Compliance with all
standards will be determined by the Department of Social

Services.

The licensee Is responsible for correcting any areas of
noncompliance found during any on-site inspection.

C. The department's represeatative may inspeet
applicant/licensee shall make available to the department’s
representative ihe facility’s/agency’s books and records;
and interview s the facility’s/agency’s agents, employees,
residents/participants, and any person under its custody,
control, direciion, or supervision.

D. After the on-site inspection the licensing
representative shall discuss the findings of the investigation
with the administrator/licensee, As applicable, the
applicant shall submit an acceptable plan for correcting
any areas of noncompliance following these discussions.
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E. During the inspecHon eor afterwerds Al any tme
during the Investigation , an applicant/licensee may
reguest an allowable variance to any Sstandard which
.creates a spetial hardship. (See Part F¢ V . Allowable
Variance.) '

§ &5 § 4.5. Nofice to the applicant of issuance or denial
of a license.

A, When the investigation is completed, the depariment
shall notify the applicant in writing of iis decision
regarding the issuance of a conditional or provisional
llcense .

B. When the decision is to issue a condifional or
provisional license, a letter accompanying the license shall
cite any areas of noncompliance with standards or areas
where compliance cannot be determined, as well as any

limitations on the license. The lefter may also contain

recommendations which are epéieﬂ&} and affefed for the
- licensee’s consideration,

€. When the department intends to deny the licenge, the
department shall send a letfer stating the reasons for this
action and the applicant’s right (o an administrative
hearing. (See Part ¥ VIT )

§ &6 § 4.6. Determination of continued complianc'e (
renewal and monitoring visils).

In order %o determine continued compliance with
standards “during the effective dates of the license, the
department’s licensing - representative shall make
announced and unannounced visits to the facmty/agency
during the hours of its operation. Siete law reguires &t
least ome unonmcureed Vst per ¥ear {See Subscetier B of
§ 631318 of the Cede of Virginin): The depavimentsy
rFepresentative mey else make such wislls te any
homes/incilitics thaet are epproved by the liceasee for the
placement oF eare of children as ome of the Heensed
services of the apemey The licensee is responsible for
correcting any areas of noncompliance found during
renewal or monitoring visits.

A. All licensed child care facilifies are inspected not less
than iwice annually, At least one unannounced inspection
of each licensed. facilily shall be made each year.

B. At least two inspections of each licensed adult care
facility shall be made each year and in every insfance the
annual repewal inspection made by the commissioner or
his gufhorized agenis shall be unannounced. The
commissioner may authorize such other announced or
unannounced inspections as he considers appropriate.

C. The depariment’s representalive may also make such
visits to any homes/facilities that are approved by the
licensee for the placement or care of children as one of
the licensed services of the agency.

NOTE: When necessary o respond fo excessive

workloads or to give priority to higher risk situations, th-
department may use its discretion fo increase or decrease
the frequency of announced and unannounced Visits made
to licensed facilifies during the year.

§ 3 § 4.7, Problem-solving conferences.

Licensing staff may initiate a request for problem-selving
conferences with applicants or Ilicensees when the need
arises.

§ 38 § 4.8. Modification.

A. The licensee may request a modification of the terms
of a license at any time during the period of the license.
The request must be submiited in writing to the
department’s representative.

The department will evaluate written information about
any planned changes in operation which would affect
either the terms of the license or the continuing eligibility
for a license. A licensing representafive may visit the
facility during the process of evaluating a proposed
meodification.

Examples of such changes are: changes in the aumber
of children/adults to be served, staff responsibilities,
availability and use of the physical plant, and changes in
program focus or needs of the population to be served.

B. If a modification can be granted under the standard
the department shall respond with & trensmittal letter and
in writing with the modified license. In the event thai a
new application is needed, the licensee shall receive
written notification of such. When the modificatior cannot
be granted, the licensee shall also be advised by letter.

§ &8 § 49 Early compliance {replacement of @
Wﬁmeﬂa}weendmeﬂa%heeﬂsewaﬂaranamua{heeme}

A. A provisional or conditional! license may be voided
and & amsuel & regular license issued when all of the
following conditions exist:

1. The facility/agency complies with all standards
listed om the face of the provisional or conditional
license weli in advance of the expiration date of the
provisional or conditional license, and the
facility/agency is in substaniial compliance with all
other standards.

2. Compliance has been verified by an onsite
observation by the department’s licensing
representative or, when applicable, by writien
evidence provided by the licensee.

3. All other terms of the licensé remain the same.

B. The licensee shall make a written request to the
licensing representative for repiacement of a provisional or

- conditional license with es easnual a regular license,
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/C. When the request is approved by the depariment, the
effective date of the new annual license shall be the same
a8 t{he beginning date of the voided license.

When the request is not approved, the reasons for this
action shall be confirmed to the licensee in writing.

B, Early cﬁmpliance shali not be considered once a
renewal application has been filed by the facility/agency.

§ %140 § 4.10. Renewal process.

A. The Department of Social Services. shall send an
application for renewal of the license fo the licensee 120
days prior to the expiration date of the current license.

B. The licensee shall submit the completed application
form along with any required attachments and the
application fee 80 deys prior to the expiration. of the
current license. It is the applicant’s responsibility to
complete and return the application 60 deys prior to the
expiration of the current license to assure timely
processing. Should a current license expire before a new
license is issued, the current license shall remain in eifect
provided that the completed application was filed within
the afsrementioned 80 days and a decision for licensure is
pending.

C. The depariment shall follow the procedure for

investigation and notice to the applicant previously outlined.

j 8§ &4 and 35 4.4, 4.5, and 4.6,
PART B5 PART V.
ALLOWABLE VARIANCE.,

§ 41 An alleweble verianee may be: () permissien o
meet the intent of a standard by seme means other than
a8 speetfied by the standard; G the suspenmsion eof
enforeement of & partiewlar stenderd er pertion of the
stenderd for o stated Hme peried:

8 42 § 51 . Allowable variances are used for one or
more of the following:

1. To allow the department some degree of flexibility
in the enforcement of requirements, given the rapid

and ever changing nature of programs and their

unigque settings;

2. To allow for greater development of innovative and
pilst programs, which were not anticipated in the
regulations; and

3. To promote equity across all programs by allowing
for variable compliance methods when a regulation
places special hardship on a particular facility.

§ 42 § 5.2 Conditions for initiating a request.

A licensee/applicant may request an allowable variance
- when he believes that the existing regulations pose a

special hardship and when he believes thai either am
alternative method of compliance with the imient of the
regulation which is causing the hardship, or the actual
suspension of all or pari of thai regulation, would neither
endanger the safety or well-being of persons in care nor
create a violation of statutes or of the requirements of
anether regulatory agency.

$ 44 § 5.3 Process.

A. Consideration of an allowable variance is initiated
when g written request to the issuing office is received
from the applicant/licensee. The department’s licepsing
representative may provide consultation 1{c the
applicant/licensee in the development of the written
request and througheut the allowable variance process.

1. The licensee/applicant shall make a wrillen request
for an aliowable variance which describes the special
hardship(s) to the existing program or {0 a planned
innovative/pilot program caused by the enforcement of
the regquirement(s).

2. When possible, the licensee/applicant shall propose
alternatives to meet the purpose of the requirement
which will ensure the protection and well-being of
persons in care,

3. The licensee/applicant should obtain, when
requested by the department, the opinions of
professionals in the field or documented research, or
both, that the proposed activities, facilities, or
equipment are not injuricus to persons in care,

4, The department can authorize sllowable variances
only io its own licensing standards, not to regulations
of another agency or to any requirement in federal,
state, or local laws.

B. The department’s representative shall notily the
petitioning applicant/licensee of the receipt of his request
for an allowable variance and send a recommendation to
the person delegated decision-making authority by the
depariment.

€ Deeigion autherity for approvel of denisl of a request
for en ofloweble wvariapee shall be defired by the
eommiasioner through & formal delegatien of sutherity for
licensing aetiens: The decision is transmitted in writing to
the petitioning applicant/licensee with a copy to the
department’s licensing representative.

B: C. Approval.

1. The designated authority may attach conditions io
the granting of the allowable variance in order fo
protect persons in care.

2. Allowable variances are condifional upon thers
being no change in the circumstances which were the
hasis for the approval. Any allowsabie variance may be
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rescinded or modified if conditions change; additional
information becomes known Which alters the basis for
the original decision; the applicant/licensee fails to
meet any conditions aitached tc the allowable
variance; or results of the allowable variance
jeopardize the safety, comfort, or well-being of persons
in care,

3. Allowable wvariances expire automatically when -

there is a change in the facility’s location or a change
in the sponsorship of the facility/agency.

EXCEPTION: Allowable variances issued to chiid
placing agencies and family day care systems are
transferable when agencies change location.

4. The depariment’s licensing representative  shall
review each allowable variance at least annually. At
- minimum, this review shali address the impact if the
allowable variance on personms in care, adherénce to
any conditions attached, and the continuing need for
the allowable variance.

E. D. Denial.

1. When the decisien is to demy a request for an
allowable variance, the reason(s) shall be provided in
writing io the applicant/licensee.

2. When a request for an aliowable variance is denied,
it may be reconsidered if the applicant/licensee
supmits another written request and provides new or
additional supporting information.

3. When a reguest for an allewable variance is denied
by the designated decision-maker and if the petitioner
believes that decision was unreasonable, arbitrary, or
capricious, the petitioner may request a desk review
of that decision. The following shall apply when a
desk review is requested:

a. The petitioner shall request this desk review, in
wriling, within 15 days of the deaigls issuance of
the -denial and shall include such information as
necessary to explain ihe belief that the decision was
unreasonable, arbitrary or capricious.

b. The desk review shall be conducted by the
person who  supervises the - designated
" decision-maker, uniess a different person has been
assigned desk review responsibilily im accordance
with the commissioner’s formal delegation of
authority.

¢. The decision eof the reviewer shail be reported in
writing o the petitioner within 30 days of receiving
a coraplete request for a desk review.

d. The reviewer's decision shali be final and not
appealable.

-article.

¥ E. When an allowable variance is denied, expires, 0.,
is rescinded, routine enforcement of the standard or
portion of the standard shall be resumed.

G: F. The applicani/licensee may at. any time withdraw
a request for an allowable variance.

PART 3. PART VI
INFGRMAL APPEAL PROCESS.

§ 5% § 61, When an applicani/licensee has concerns
about licensing procedures, inferpretation of standards, or
the actions of licensing personnel that cannot be resolved
satisfactorily in discussion with the assigned licemsing
represenfative, the informal appeal steps cutlined iz Part
¥ below are available,

§ B:2- § 6.2 The applicant/licensee may request either a
desk review by, or a meeting with, the assigned licensing
representative’s immediate supervisor,

A, If the request stems from g desire to contest the
findings or conclusions of an inspection, the following
procedures shall apply:

1. The applicant/licensee shall make the request
within 15 days of receiving the compliance plan.

2. The request shall specify the contested finding or
conclusion and shall specify whether a desk review or
conference is being requested. ‘

3. The request shall include the applicant’s/licensee’s
reasons or other evidence supporting the request for a
review or a conference.

B. The first step informal desk review or conference
will be held at the supervisor’s office unless the supervisor
designates a different location. The following procedures
shali apply:

1. The supervisor shall report the findings of a desk
review in writing within 10 days of receiving the
request and supporting materials or shall hold the
requested conference within 30 days of receipt of such
request and materials.

2. When the request was is for a conference, the
supervisor shall, within 10 days foliowing the
conference, confirm to the applicant/licensee in
writing the results of the conference and any
stbsequent decisions made by the supervisor.

§ b2 § 63 If after the first step review, the
applicant/licensee believes that the laws, regulations, or
departmental policies have heen applied or inferpreted in
a manner that was unreasonable, arbitrary or capricious,
he may request a second step review by program
supervisory personnel as assigned by the Director of
Licensing Programs according to the provisions of this
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A, A second step informal review shall not be requested
(0 challenge the content of an established law, regulation,
or policy. However, the application of a law, regulation, or
policy may be challenged.

B, When second step informal appeals are made, the
request must be in writing and must specify whether the
applicani/licensee is requesting a desk review or a
conference Conferenices shall be held in the region 5

digtriet office; or in Richmond as designated
by the director; the designated location shail be as close
to the operation as possible.

C. The second informal step appeal request shall:

1. Be made within 15 days of the date of the first
step response;

2. Specify the reason for requesting the second step
informal rveview and include such information,
explanation, or additional materials as necessary to
support the applicant's/licensee’s belief that the
decision reached at the first step was unreasonable,
arbitrary or capricious; and

3. Include a copy of relevant materials and
correspondence developed at the first step of the
informal appeal process.

D. Within 30 days of receipt of this request, the
" irector’s office shall respond in writing or schedule the

' onference.

E. When the request was for a conference, the
designated program management siaff shall, within 10 days
following the conference, confirm to the applicant/ilicensee
in writing the resulis of ihe conference and any
subsequent decisions made by program management staff.

§ B4 § 6.4 Nothing in this article shall prohibit the
Depariment of Social Services from eXercising its
responsibility and authority to enforce the disputed
regulation during the informal appeal process, including
proceeding directly to denial or revocation of a license, or
recornmending petitions for injunction when, in the
judgment of the Director, Division of Licensing Programs,
there is sufficient risk to persons in care to do so whether
or not the steps available in the informal appeal process
have been exhausted.

PART Vi PART VIL
COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION.,

&k §TL ﬁeempre&aee&sa&eﬂtmteheemed
fneiityfageney is nst in complonce with the heeﬂsmg
standards o stotute oF an accusation

childrenfadults in the eare of a leensed —f&eihtﬁageﬂey
are being abused; negleeted; or emplolied: Complaints may
be received in written or oral form and may be
anonymous. The depariment maintains a parental hot line

.- to respond to complaints regarding child care facilities.

§ &2 § 72 The department has the responsibility to
investigate ‘any complaints regarding alleged vielations of
the standards or staiute angd complaints of the abuse and
neglect of persons in care.

¢ &3 Whenever leensing stelf become aware of e
suspeet adulifehild abuse; megleet, or exploiatier in o
faelibriageney; the lsesl department of socind serviess, I
the locality of the licemsed facility/egeney; shall bhe
potified immediately-

Wheﬂst&ﬁeﬁtheleea}eeﬁamﬂem%seem{sewmes

%eﬁabase-ﬂegieetwexp&e&a&e&h&seeeaﬁedwﬁhm
applieable law and pelicies while the licensing
represestative  determines whether o not the
W&ge&eyhaswﬁa%eémeheeﬂsmgs%&ﬂ&am@ef

§ 64 § 7.3 When the Investigation is completed, the
licensee shall be notified of the findings of the
investigation. Any necessary corrective action will be
identified.

§ 7.4. The licensee is responsible for correcting any areas
of noncompliance found during a complaint investigation.

PART VI
REVOCATION AND DENIAL:

§ L Revocation is the aet of wilthdrawing permission to
operate dusing the cffective dates of the Heense: Deniat is
the aect of refusing to grant o Heense afier receipt of an
original oF renewal application: Fhe process for rovoesten
or denial is the spme:

$ 73 The following reessens mey be considered by the
Aepariment for reveeation or denial

I Failure to demonsirate of meintain complence with
the applieable stondards eF for wviolpliens of the
provisiens of the Cede of Virginia:

%Pm&mgmdmgerabetﬂegt&eeems&mﬂ&
. ey illegal act in the Heensed faciity/egenew

3. Eageging in conduct of practices which are in
vielation of statwles and slondards related io abuse;
negleet or expleiiation of children/odulls; er

+Bewa%mgs*gmﬁee&ﬂy#emt—hemgmmersemees
for which a lcense was issued without obtaining prier
wn&enapmwa’:#emtheéep&r&mem—efm}wete
eorreet sueh devigtions within aspeemed&meap
both:
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§ & Proeess:

#= The appH
éep&ﬁmeﬁt—smteﬁttedenyeffevekeaheense@m
notlee shell deseribe the reasems for the reveegtion oF
denial

B Upon Eeeefpt ef the netice of indent te revelke or
denss the applicas ensee has the right to appes! the
demmaeeeﬁa&eewﬁh&eﬁ&mmstmﬁlepmeessm
%§ 9-&-}4—1- of the GCede of Virpinia): The pfeeed&refer
reguesting oo administrative heering shall be outlined in
H&eﬂe&ee»

e%ﬁéheewmeﬂﬁphe&ﬂﬁheeﬁseedeesaﬁfequoﬁ

b5 oporats or shall modify. tho operation sich that it i A5
lenger subject to Heensure:

B ¥ o focility/egency continues o operate in wiolation
ef the stolute efler e dule the revecnten/deninl is final;

ot shell inikate appropriate legal action:
§ Tk Appeais:
i H && sdminisirative beoring is  reguesied; the
hasﬂaefighttebefepfese&e&by

a%%he

B. The hepsing shall be cenducted by en individusl
W%%m&mmﬁmmwdmmw
reazing officers; which is meintained by the Supreme
Geuﬁeﬁ&rgm&—

G@ﬁ@e'tﬁehe&fmgaseemp}eted-t-hehe&mgeiﬂeef
Ms&bmw&ﬁeﬂﬁameﬂaet&ﬁdeaﬂemﬁseim

H&eheeﬂs&me&me#mmwhwhepefaﬁoﬂisteeease
shall be lnclided im the final evder The Heenmsee Ay
gopeal this deecision to the appropeiste Cireuit Court umdesr
the provisiems of §§ 631156 and 631213 of the Code of
Virainie,

PART VIIL
SANCTIONS.

§ 81 The commissioner of the Department of 3Secial
Services may impose such sanctions or fake such acfions
as are gppropriate for violation of any of the standards or
statute or abuse/neglect of persons in care. Such sanctions
inciude administrative sanctions and the imposition of civil
penally or appoiniment of receivership.

& 8.2. Administraiive sanctions,

heering the fpecilitv/agency shall cease

The following are administrative sanctions which may b
imposed against a licensed facility:

1. Reducing the capacily of any adult care facility;

2. Restricting or prohibiting new admissions fe any
adult care facility;

3. Denying renewal of the license of any licensed
facility; and

4. Revoking the current license of any IlLicensed
facility.

§ 8.3 Civil penally or appoinfment or receivership.

In addition to the adminisirative sanctions listed in § 8.2
of these reguiations the commissioner may:

1. Petition the circuyit court or the city or couniy in
which the facilify is located fo impose a civil penally
against any adult care facility; or

2. Petition the circuit court for fhe city or county in
which the facility is Iocated to appoint a receiver for
any adult care facility.

§ 84, The following reasons may be considered by the
department for the imposition of administrative sanctions
or the impagition of civil penalties.

1. Failure to demonsirate or mainfain compliance with
the applicable standards or for the violations of the
provisions of the Code of Virginia;

2. Permitting, aiding, or abefiting the commission of
any illegal act in the licensed facility/agency;

3. Engaging in comduct or practices which are in
violation of statutes and standards relating fo abuse,
neglect, or exploitation of children/adults; or

4. Deviating significanily from the program or services
for which a license was Issued without obfaining prior
writien approval from the department, or failure fo
correct such deviations within a specified time.

§ 8.5. Process.

A. The applicani/licensee will receive a potice of the
department’s inteni to impose an adminisfrafive sanction.
This notice shall describe the reasomns for the imposition of
the adminisirative sanction.

B. Upon receipt of the notice to impose an
administrative sanction, the applicant/licensee has the right
to appeal the decision in accordance with the
Administrative Process Act (§ §-6.14:1 of the Code of
Virginia). The procedures for requesling an administrative
hearing shall be outlined In the notice. All appeals from
notice of imposition of adminisirative sanctions shall b
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2ceived ih writing from the applicant/lcensee within 15
days of the dafe of receipt of the notice.

C. In the event the applicani/licensee does not request
an administrative hearing within 15 days, (he
facility/agency must modify the operation such that it
meels the requiremenis of the jmposed sanction(s).

D. If the facilify/agency coniinues fo operate in violation
of the imposed sanclion(s) affer the date the sanction(s)
was o have been mel, (the department shall initiate
appropriate administrative/legal action.

E, In requesting the imposition of & civil penalty for any
vielation, the department will recommend that the penalty
not exceed the lesser of $5.00 per licensed capacity or
$250 per day for each day the adult care facility is in
viplation, beginning on the date the facility was first
notified of the violation. The date of notification under this
sanction shall be deemed to be the date of receipt by the
facility of written notice of the alleged violation, This
notice shall inclhide specifics of the violation charged and
it shall be hand delivered or sent by overnight express
mail or by registered or certified mail, return receipt
requested,

F. Upon f{iling of a petition for appointment of a
recelver, the cowrt shall hold a hearing, at which time the
department and the licensee of the adulf care facillly may
~ participate and present evidence.

7 8.6. Appeals.

A. If an administrative hearing is requested, the
applicant/licensee has the right fo be represented by
counsel at the hearing.

B. The hearing shail be conducted by an individual
appointed from a roster of atterneys, approved to serve as
hearing officers, which Is mainfained by the Supreme
Court of Virginia.

. Once the hearing is completed, the hearing officer
shall submit written findings of fact and conclusion of law
and recommendations {to the commissioner of the
Department of Social Services,

D. The commissioner may (i) authorize the imposition of
the sanction(s), (ii} authorize the imposition of a less
severe sanction(s); or (iii) authorize the negation of the
intent to impose a sanction(s) in the final order.

If the commissioner authorized the imposition of the
sanction(s), the {time frame in which the facility must
conform to the requirements of the sanction(s) shall be
included in the final order. The applicani/licensee may
appeal this decision to the appropriate circuit court under
the provisions of § 63.1-312 of the Code of Virginia.

E. If the applicant/licensee wishes fo appeal (he

“‘mposition of a civil penally or the appointment of a

recelver, such appeal must be made to the appropriate
court in the city or counly where the facility is located.

ATTACHMENT I

An application form to operate a child placing agency may
be cbiained from the following office:

Division of Licensing Programs
Department of Social Services
8007 Discovery Drive
Richmond, Virginia 23229
Telephone: (804) 662-9025

An application form to operate a licensed facility,
excluding a child placing agency, may be obtained from
the following offices:

OFFICE

Abingdon Out Station

19¢ Pation Street
Abingdon, VA 24210
Telephone; (703) 628-5171

AREA SERVED

Serving Counties of: Bland, Buchanan, Carroll, Dickenson,
Grayson, Lee, Patrick, Russell, Scott, Smyth, Tazewell,
Washington, Wise, Wythe

Serving Cities of; Bristol, Galax, Norton
OFFICE

Central Regional Office

Wythe Building, Suite 300
1604 Sania Rosa Road
Richmend, VA 23229-5008
Telephone: (804) 662-9743

AREA SERVED

Serving Counties of: Amelia, Brunswick, Buckingham,
Charles City, Charlotte, Chesterfield, Cumberiand,
Dinwiddie, Essex, Fluvanna, Goochland, Halifax, Hanover,
Henrico, King and Queen, King William, Lancaster, Louisa,
Lunenburg, Mecklenburg, New Kenf, Northumberland,
Nottoway, Powhatan, Prince Edward, Prince George,
Richmond, Westmoreland

-Serving Cities of: Colonial Heights, Hopewell Petersburg,

Richmond, Scuth Boston
OFFICE

Eastern Regional Office
Pembreke Office Park
Pembroke IV Office Building
Suite 300
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Virginia Beach, VA 23462-5496
Telephone: (804) 473-2100

Serving' Counties of: Accomack, Gloucester, Greenville, Isle
of Wight, James City, Mathews, Middiesex, Northampton,
Southampton, Surry, Sussex, York

Serving Cities of: Chesapeake, Emporia, Franklin, Hampion,
Newport News, Norfolk, Portsmouth, Suffolk, Virginia
Beach, Wiitiamsburg

OFFICE

Fairfax Out Station

Se.rving Counties of: Arlington, Loudoun, Fairfax
Serving Cities of: Alexandria, Fairfax, Falls Ch.urch
OFFICE

Northern Regionat Office

Serving Counties of: Caroline, Culpeper, Fauquier, King
George, Prince William, Rappahannock, Spotsylvania,
Stafford '

Serving Cities of: Fredericksburg, Manassas, Manassas Park
- OFFICE

Piedmont Regional Office
Commonwezlth of Virginia Building
210 Church Avenue, S.W., Suite 100
Roanoke, VA 24011-1779 :
Telephone: {703) 982-7920

Serving Counties of. Alleghany, Amherst, Appomattox, Bath,
Bedford, Botetourt, Campbell, Craig, Floyd, Franklin, Giles,
Henry, Montgomery, Neison, Pitisylvania, Pulaski, Roanoke,
Rockbridge :

Serving Cities of: Bedford, Buema Vista, Clifton Forge,
Covingion, Danville, Lexington, Lynchburg, Martinsville,
Radford, Roanoke, Salem i .

OFFICE

Verona Out Station

Post Office Box 350
Verona, VA 24482-0350
Telephone: (733) 332-8900

Serving Counties of: Albemarle, Augusta, Clarke, Frederick,
Greene, Highland, Madison, Orange, Page, Rockingham,
Shenandoah, Staunion, Warren

' Serving Cities of: Charlottesville, Harrisonburg, Wayneshoro,
Winchester. .

ATTACHMENT II ¢
SCHEDULE OF FEES

These fees are adopted under the sole authority of the
State Board of Social Services (§§ 63.1-174.01 and
63.1-196.5). The fee scheduie was revised under the
authority of the Board, effective July 1, 1991.

The regulation, entitled “Fee Requirements for Processing
Applications,” follows:

By act of the General Assembly and effective
February 1, 1984, the Department of Social Services is
authorized to charge fees for processing applications
for licenses. (§§ 63.1-174.01 and 63.1-186.5 of the Code
of Virginia).

Fees will be charged to precess all new or renewal
applications for facilities or agencies for adulis or
children subject to licensure soiely by the Department
of Social Services; however, no fee will be charged io
process a renewal application for an annual license
directly following the issuance of a conditional license.

Applicants shall use the following schedule of fees to
determine the correct fee fo pay for processing all

applications.
Scheduie of Fees

Capacity 1 - 12 ..... e e, $1

Capacity 13 - 25 ... .o e $3.
Capacity 26 - 50 ...t §70
Capacity 51 - 75 ... . i e $105
Capacity 76 - 200 ....cvvviiiiireriiieiriiriiennnns $140
Capacity 201 & UD - vvviviiiii v $200
Family Day Care Systems ............... $ 70 (flat fee)

Child Placing Agencies ................. $ 70 (flat fee)
The fee shall be mailed with the application for a license.
No application for & license will be deemed compiete
unless it is accompanied by the correct fee.

The fee shali be paid by persenal check, money order, or
certified check, made payable to “Treasurer of Virginia.”

A fee that is incorrect in amount or is made payable
other than to the Treasurer of Virginia will be returned io
an applicant. Otherwise, no fee will be returned or
refunded for amy reason. ‘

BOARD FOR WATERWORKS AND WASTEWATER
WORKS OPERATORS

Title of Regulation: VR €75-01-¢2. Beard for Waterworks

"and Wastewaier Works Operators Regulations.

Statutory Authority; §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-201 of the Code of
Virginia.
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blic Hearing Date: September 26, 1991 - 10 am,
(See Calendar of Events section
for additional information)

Summary:

The proposed amended regulations apply io
approximately 4,000 licensed operaiors and interested
parties who practice in the Commonwealth. These
regulations are the result of implementing the
regulatory review process which indicaied a need to
amend the current regulations. The regulations have
been reorganized to previde clarity in the licensing
procedure, Including addition of a new class of
walerworks; clarification of requirements for operator
experience and education; and addition of criteria for
approval of specialized lraining courses.

VR §7501-02, Board for Waterworks and Wastewater
Works Operators Regulations.

PART L
DEFINITIONS, LICENSING AND CLASSIFICATION
REQUIREMENTS.

§ 1.1. Definitions.

The following words and terms, when used in these
regulations, shall have the following meaning unless the
context clearly indicates otherwise:
“Board” means the Board for Waterworks and
Wastewaier Works Operators.

“Category” means the two divisions of waterworks and
wastewater works and operators’ licenses, one  being
waterworks and the second being wastewater works.

“Classification” means the four divisions of each
category of waterworks and wastewater works and
operators’ licenses ; Classifiention *I* representing the
Class “I” represents the highest classification .

“Licensure” means a method of regulation whereby the
Commonwealth, through the issuance of a license,
authorizes a person possessing the character and minimum
skills to engage in the practice of a profession or
occupation which is unlawful o practice withcut a license.

“Operator” means any individual employed or appointed
by any owner, and who is designated by such-owner o be
the person in responsibie charge, such as a supervisor, a
shift operator, or a substitute in charge, and whose duties
include testing or evaloation (o conirol waterworks or
wastewater works operations. Not included in this
definition are superintendents or directors of public works,
city engineers, or other municipal or industrial officials
whose duties do not include the actual operation or direct
supervision of waterworks or wastewater works,

“Operator-in-fraining” means an individual employed by
an owner to work under the direct supervision and
direction of an operator holding a valid license in the
proper category and classification for the purpose of
gaining experience and Knowledge in the duties and
responsibilities of an operator of a waterworks or
wastewater works, An  operatordn-training is not an
operator,

“Owner” means the Commonwealth of Virginia, or any
political subdivision thereof, any public or private
institution, corporation, association, firm or company
organized or existing under the laws of this Commonwealth
or of any other state or nation, or any person or group of
persons acting individually or as a group, who own,
manage, or maintain waterworks or wastewater works.

“Person” megns any individual, group of individuals, a
corporation, a partnership, a business trust, an association
or other similar legal entity engaged in operating
waterworks or wastewater works.

“Responsible charge” means designation by the owner of
any individual to have duty and authority to operate or
modify the operation of waterworks or wastewater works
Processes |

“Wastewater works” means each system of (i) sewerage
systems or sewage treatment works serving more than 400
persons, as set forth in § 62.1-44.18 of the Code of
Virginia; (ii) sewerage sysiems or sewage treaiment works
serving fewer than 400 persons, as set forth in § 62.144.18
of the Code of Virginia, if so certified by the State Water
Control Board; and (iil) facilities for discharge to sfate
waters of industrial wastes or other wastes, if certified by
the State Water Control Board.

“Waterworks” wmeans each system of structures and
appliances used in connection with the colliection, storage,
purification, and treatment of water for drinking or
domestic use and the distribution thereof to the public,
except distribution piping. Systems serving fewer than 400
persons shall not be considered to be a waterworks unless
certified by the Depariment of Health to be such.

§ L2. License required.

To serve as an operator of a waterworks or wastewater
works, it shall be necessary to hold a valid license issued
by the board of a classification equal to or greater than
the classification of the waterworks or wastewater works
and in the appropriate category.

§ 1.3. License renewal required.

A, Licenses for waterworks operators shall egpire on the
last day of February of each cdd-numbered year. Licenses
for wastewater works operators shall expire on the last
day of February of each even-numbered year., The
Department of Commerce shall mail a renewal notice to
the licensee ouilining the procedures for renewal. Failure
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to receive this notice shall not relieve the licensee of the
obligation to renew,

B. Each licensee applying for renewal shall return the
renewal notice and fee established in § 1.4 of these
reguiations to the Department of Commerce prior fo the
expiration date shown on the license. If the licensee fails
to receive the remewal notice, a copy of the expired
license may be submitted with the required fee.

C. If the operator fails to renew the license within 30
days after the expiration date on the license, a penalty fee
as established in § 1.4 of these regulations shall be
required, in addition to the renewal fee.

D. Any operatdr failing to renew within one year of the

expiration date on the license must apply for a new’

license by examination in accordance with Pari II of these
regulations. Such an individual shall be deemed to be
sligible io sit for the same category and class of license
as the expired license.

E. Limited waterworks operator licemses, issued under
the authority of § 4.02.2 of the Rules and Regulations of
the State Board for Certification of Operators of Water and
Wastewater Works (effecilve March 1, 1977), expiring on
February 28, 1993, will noi be renewed. Limited
wastewater works operator licenses, issued under the
authority of § 4.022 of the Rules and Regulations of the
State Board for Certification of Operaiors of Water and
Wastewater Works (effective March 1, 1977), expiring on
February 28, 1994, will not be renewed. A holder of a

. limited  license shail be  deemed to have met the
experience and education requirements of these regulations.

and shall be eligible fto sit for an examination upon
application in the same category and in the same or lower
classificaiion as the Hmited license currently held.
§ 1.4. Fees.

# Fees are noarefundable and shall not be prorated.

i The following fees shall apply:

wr 1. Application for licensure by examination

or by reciproeity . ... .......... e $ 65.
- 2. Application for reexamination . .........,. $ 45.
e 3. Renewel of license .. .............. ... § 85,

g 4. Penalty for failure to renew license
within 30 days of expiration- . ............. $ 55.

§ L5 Waterworks.
A. Class V shall mean any waterworks as follows:

f. Waterworks employing no {treatment other than
chiorine disinfection, including consecutive water
systems or groundwater systems with no treatment or
conseculive systems employing repumping or
rechiorination or both, and classified by the

Department of Health as public water supplies; or

2. Waterworks classified by the Department of Health
as Class V waterworks.

A= B. Class IV shall mean any waterworks as follows:

1. Waterworks employing disinfection, corrosion
control, iron and manganese removal, softening, slow
sand filtration, rechlorination, and other approved
methods of treatment, or any cembination thereod,
excepi fluoridation, serving less than 5,000 persons and
¢lassified by the Department of Health as public water
supplies; or

2. Waterworks classified by the Department of Healih
as Class IV faeiliies waferworks .

B- C. Class III shall mean any waterworks as follows:

1. Waterworks employing processes including, buif not
limited to, chemical coagulation, sedimentation,
filtration ofther thar slow sand filtration , disinfection,
fluoridation, aeration, corrosion conirol, or any
combination thereof, serving a population of less than
5,000, or having a rated capacity of less than 0.5 mgd;
or

2. Waterworks employing processes including
disinfection, corrosion conirol, iron and manganese
removal, softening, rechlorination, and other approved
methods of treatment serving 5,000 persons or more;
or

3. Waterworks employing fluoridation which are not
under a higher classification and which are classified
by the Department of Health as public water supplies;
or

4, Waterworks classified by the Department of Health
as Class III feeilities waferworks .

& D. Classg II shall mean any waterworks as follows:

1. Waterworks employing processes inciuding, but not
limited to, chemical coagulation, sedimentation,
filtration, disinfection, fluoridation, aeratien, corrosion
control, or any combinafion thereof, serving a
population of at least 5000 persons, but less than
50,000 persons, or having a rated capacity of at least
0.5 mgd, but less than 5.0 mgd; or

2. Waterworks employing processes including, but not
limited to, chemical coagulation, sedimentation,
filtration, and disinfection, employing the high rate
filiration process, and having a filier rate greaier than
2.0 gpm/sq. it., serving a population less than 50,000
* persons, or having a rated capacity less than 5.0 mgd;
or

3. Waterworks classified by the Department of Health
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as Class II facilities walerworks .

B £ Class T shall mean any waterworks empioying

processed including, but not limited to, chemical
ceagulation, sedimentation, filtration, disinfection,
fluoridation, aeration, corrosion <conirel, or any

combination thereof, serving a popuiation of 50,000 persons
or more or having a rated capacity of 5.0 mgd or more,

§ 1.5, Wastewater works.
4. Class IV shall mean any wastewater works as follows:

1. Raw sewage stabilization ponds with a design
hydraulic capacity greater than 0.04 mgd but equal to
or less than 1.0 mgd; or

2. Wastewater works classified by the State Water
Conirol Board as Class IV wastewater works.

B. Clags I shall mean any wastewater works as follows:

1, Wastewaier works using bhiological treatment
methods having a design hydraulic capacity greater
than 0.04 mgd, bui equal {o or less than 0.5 mgd; or

2. Wastewater works using physical/chemical treatment
methods having a design hydraulic capacity greater
than 0.04 mgd, but egual to or less than 0.5 mgd; or

v 3. Wastewater works using combinaitions of biclogical

© and physical/chemical tireatment methods having a
design hydraulic capacity greater than 0.04 mgd, buf
equal to or less than 0.1 mgd; or

4. Raw sewage stabilization ponds, with a design
hydraulic capacity greater than 1.0 mgd; or

6. Wastewater works that do not use biological or
physical/chemical treatment methods but are classified
by the State Water Control Board as Class Il
wastewater works.

C. Class II shall mean any wastewater works as follows:

1. Wastewater works wusing Dbiological treaiment
methods having a design hydraulic capacity greater
than 0.5 mgd, but equal to or less than 5.0 mgd; or

2. Wastewater works using physical/chemical treatment
methods having a design hydraulic capacity greater
than 0.5 mgd, but equal io or iess than 5.0 mgd; or

3. Wastewater works using combinations of biological
and physical/chemical {reatment methods, having a
design hydraulic capacity greater than 8.1 mgd, but
equal to or less than 2.5 mgd.

D. Class I shall mean any wastewater works as follows:
1. Wastewater

works using biological treatment

methods having a design hydraulic capacity greater
than 5.0 mgd; or

2. Wastewater works using physical/chemical treatment
methods having a design hydraulic capacity greater
than 5,0 mgd; or

3. Wastewater works using combinations of biological
and physical/chemical treatment methods, having a
design hydraulic capacity preater than 2.5 mgd.

E. Biological treatment methods a8 used in this section
shall mean a fixed film or suspended growih biological
treatment process, such as:

1. Activated sludge.

2. Trickling filter,

3. Aerated lagoon.

4. Rotating biclogical contactor.

5. Land application,

6. Biological nutrient removal process.

F, Physical/chemical treatment methods as used in this
section shall mean a treatment process such as;

1. Chemical coagulation, flocculation and precipitation,
2. Filtration.

3. Carbon adsorption.

4, Breakpoint chlorination,

5. Demineralization (including but not limited to ion
egchange, reverse osmosis, electrodialysis).

PART II,
ENTRY REQUIREMENTS.

§ 2.1. Licensure,

The board shall issue a Class V, IV, III, II, or I license
only after an individual has met all edueation; experience
and examination requirements as set forth in these
regulations. Each license shall be in the appropriate
category and classification and shall indicate the highest
clasgification of works the holder is qualified to operate.

§ 2.2, Licensure by reciprocity.

The board may issue a license to any person holding a
currently valid license or certificate in any state, territory,
or possession of the United States, or in any foreign
country, or a certificate issued by the Association of
Boards of Certification, provided the requirements and
standards ynder which the license or certificate was issued
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are equivalent fo those established by these regulations.

§ 2.3. Licensure by edueatien; experience ; and
_examination.

The education end experienee requirements are
summerized in Table 3. Licensure is based upon having
applicabie experience arnd demonsirating minimum
required hnowledge, skills and abilities by examination.
Education, specialized training, and experience in the
other category may be substituted for fthe required
experienice as specified in this section. These requirements
are summarized in Table 1.

A. Experience.

For purposes of these regulations, experience
requiremernts are expressed in lerms of calendar periods
of full-time emplovment with actuel hands-on experience
as an operaltor or as an operatorintraining af a
waterworks or wastewater works in the same calegory as
the license being applied for. All experience claimed on
the application for licensure must be certified by the
individual’s immediate supervisor.

1. A year of fuiltime employment is defined as 1760
hours per vear or 220 workdays per year. A workday
is defined as altendance at a waterworks or
wastewater works o the extent required for proper
operation. .

2 Experience gamned as an operalorin-training must
be oblained under the supervision of an operator
holding a valid license of the same calegory and of a
classification equal to or higher than the classification
of the waierworks or wastewater works at which the
experience 1s goined.. The supervising operator shall
certify the experience on the application form.

3. Partial credit may be given for actual hours of
work. or workdays experience If the applicant works
as an operator or as an operator-m-trammg less than
Jull time,

4. Experience limited to wastewaler collection system
aperation and maintenance, laboratory work, plant
" mainienance, and other nonoperating duties shall not
be counted as experience as an operator or as an
operator-in-fraining.

5. Experience limited to waler distribution system
operation and maintenance shall be considered only
when applying for a Class V walerworks operator
license.

B. Specific requirements for licenses.

1. Specific requirements for a Class V license.

Applicants for licensure as a Class V waterwork
operator shall meet one of the following requirements
and pass a board-approved examination.

a. Have (i) a high school diploma of GED and (1i} at
least six months of experience as an
operator-in-training of waterworks of Class V, Class
IV, Class III, Class I, or Class I.

b. Have (i) no high school diploma and (i} at least
one year of experience as an operator-intraining of
waterworks of Class V, Class IV, Class I}, Class II,
or Class I

A 2. Specific requirements for a Class IV license.
Applicants for licensure as a Class IV waterworks or
wastewater works operator shall meet one of the
following requirements and pass a beard-approved
examination:

+ 4. Have (i) a high school diploma or GED and
(i) at least six months of experience as an
operator-in-training of waterworks or wastewater
works of Class IV er higher , Class I, Class II, or
Class I; or

2- A Have (i) no high school diploma and (ii) at least
one year of experience as an operator-in-raining of
waterweorks or wastewater works of Class IV er higher
, Class I, Class H, or Class I .

B. 2 Specific requirements for a Class III license.
Applicants for licensure as a Class III waterworks or
wastewater works operator shall meet one of the
following requirements and pass a beard-approved
examination:

3 a Have (i) a bachelor's degree in el
environmentel or sanitary engineering or engineering
technology , or & bachelor’s degree in physical,
biological or chemical science er eagineering with
three semester hours in either water or wasiewaler
treatment technology; of beth; ; and (ii) at least one
year -of experience as an operator-intraining of
waterworks or wastewater works of Class IV er
higher , Class Ill, Class II, or Class I'; or

2. b Have (i) - a bachelor's degree in eivik
environmental or sanitary engineering or engineering
technology , or & bachelor’s degree in physical,
biological or chemical science or engineering with
threc semester hours in either water of wastewater
treatment teehnology; or bolly, ; (i) a Class IV
license ; , and (iii) at }east sie months of
experienee a folal of at least one vear of
experience as an operator or operator-in-training of
waterworks or wastewater works of Class IV or as
an operator-intraining of waterworks or wastewater
works of Class III, Class II, or Class I; or

8 ¢. Have (i) a high school diploma or GED an¢
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(iiy at least two years of experience as an
operator-in-fraining of waterworks or wastewater
works of Class IV er kigher , Class [, Class If, or
Class I or

4: d. Have (i) a high school diploma or GED, (ii) a
Class IV license, and (iii) et least -2 wears a
total of at least iwo years of experience as an
operator or operator-in-raining of waterworks or
wastewater works of Class IV or as an
operator-in-training of waterworks or wastewater
works of Clags II1, Class I, or Class I; or

& e. Have (i) no high school diploma, (ii) a Class
IV license, and (i) ot least three years a fofal of
at least four years of experience as an operater or
operator-in-iraining of waterworks or wastewater
works of Class IV or as am operator-in-training of
waterworks or wastewater works of Class III, Class
II, or Class L

& 4. Specific requirements for . Class II license.
Applicants for licensure as a Class II waterworks or
wastewater works operator shall meet one of the
foliowing requirements and pass a board-approved
examination:

. @ Have (1) a bachelor's degree in eivik;
envirenmental or senitery engineering or engineering
technology , or & bachelers degree in physical,
biglogical or chemical science oF eagineering with
three semester hours in either water or wastewater
treatment - of beth; ; and (ii) ¢ total of
at least 1-1/2 years of experience , of which at
least six months without substifutions shall be as
an operator-iniraining of waterworks or wastewater
works of Class IIf er higher , Class Il or Class I ;
or

2: Have &) o bachelor's degree in elvil, enviremmenio}
oF sanitary eapincering; oF & bachelor’s degree in
MW%WM%W
with three semester hours in  either waler of
wastewater treptment techrology oF both; i) a Class
theeﬂse—aﬂé{uﬁatleastsmmeamsefeﬂpeﬂeﬂee
as an operater or ef weterworks oF
westewster works of Class HE oF as &b
eperatorin-training of woterworks or wastewater works
of Class H or Class & oF

3 b Have (i) a bachelor's degree in eivik
ernviropmental of senitary engineering or engineering
technology , or & bachelor’s depree in physical,
biological or chemicai science oF ecngineering with
three semester hours in either water of wastewaier
treakment ; 6F bothy ; (i) a Clasg IV
license ; ; and (ili) ot least ene year of experience
a total of at least I-1/2 years of experignce, of
which at least six months without substitutions
shall be as an operator-intraining of waterworks or
wastewater works of Class III, Class II or Class I; or

e. Heve (i) a bachelor’s degree in engineering or
engineering technology, or in physical, bivlogical or
chemical science; (i) a Class I ficense; and (i) a
total of at least i-}2 years of expericave, of which
at least six months, without subsifiulions sholl be
as an opergtor or operator-in-trafning of waterworhs
or wastewater works of Class [if or as an
operatorin-training of waterworks or waslewaler
works of Class IT or Class Iy or

4 d. Have (i) a high school diploma or GED, (i) a
Class III license, and (i) of jeast twe weass of
experience a folal of at leest four yewrs of
experience of which af least two years withouf
substitutions shall be as an operator or
operator-indraining of waterworks or wastewater
works of Class III or as an operator-im-iraining of
waterworks or wastewater works of Class IF or Class
I or

& e. Have (i) no high school diploma, (ii) a Class
I license, and (iii} at least three wears eof
experience a fotal of at least seven years of
experience of which at least three years without
substitutions  shall be =as an gperafor or
operater-indraining of waterworks or wastewaler
works of Class Il or as an operatordn-raining of
waterworks or wastewater works of Class I or Class
L

B 4. Specific requirements for a Class i license.
Applicants for licensure as a Class 1 waterworks or
wastewater works operator shall meet one of ihe
following requirements and pass 3 bhoard-approved
eXamination:

+ g Have (i) a bachelor's degree in ebdih

" eavironmentel oF senitery engineering or engineering
technology , or a bacheler's degree in physical,
biological or chemica! science eoFf ongineesing wih
three gemester hours in either water or wostewaiesr
freatment technology, e betly (i) a Class I
license ; ; and (iii) o least one yess of expericnce
a total of at least I-12 years of experience, of
which at least one vear without substitutions shall
be as an operator or operatorin-raining of
waterworks or wastewater works of Class I or as
an operator-in-iraining of waterworks or wastewater
works of Class I; or

2- 5. Have (i) a high school diploma or GED, (ii) a
Class II license and (iii) et least iwo yewrs of
experienee « Jotal of a least six years of
experience of which at least two years without
substifutions shall be as an operator or
operator-in-training of waferworks or wastewaier
works of Class II or as an operator-intraining of
waterworks or wastewaier works of Class [; or

# ¢. Have (i) no high school diploma, (ii) a Class II
license, and (ili) et least three years of expericnes
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a fotal of at least 10 years of experience of which
at least three years without substitutions shall be as
an gperator or operator-in-training of waterworks or
wastewater works of Class II er higher as an
operator-in-training of waterworks or wasiewater
works of Class L

§ &4 Eduestion:
Fdveation mey be ubstituted for experionee 85 follows:

# Edueation or speeiglized iraining mey net reduce the
ectunl operating expericnee regiired for Hoensure to less

then twe and ene-half years for Class L to less tham one

erd enekolf yeprs for Class 15 o less thon one year for
€lass HE; or i less than oix menths for Class B

BE&He&tw&sabst&uteéfefemeﬂeaeemay&atbeaseé _

o meet the eduesiion reguirement:

bﬁa%&maybesubstﬁuteé &efequﬂe&emtenee—

+. Time ealewlations skell be based en the continuing
2 Fen clossreom hours shall equal ene CEY 08 heurs
= 16 CEt:

& One CEU mey be substituled for onc month of
operating experience:

P: Fermal eduention:
Fema}eeuﬁesatapast-seeend&wievelmphysie&l—
biclogleal or echemieal scicnee; enginecering; engineeriag
teehﬂ%epp&bhehea{thmaybesubs&mteéfef&paﬁ
of the reguired experienes:

L Caleulatisns shall be based on semester howss {(eme
guaster hour = 23 of & semester hour)-

3 One semester houwr mey ke substiluled for one

E: Speciplived beining and formel cousses uSed ia

. q&aﬁ%ﬁngfefa%ewefem}teeﬁseshaﬁae%beuseéag&m_

te meet the pdditicnel reguivement
Heenge-

§ 2.5 Expesience:

Beguired work cnperienee is based ea fullHme wotle
Fell-time woek is defined as net less than 1760 howrs per
year Experience galned as ap eperpiordniraining shall be
certified on the appliestion form by an eperater holding &
vahdheemeefmepfepefemgeﬁ‘aﬁdaﬂd&mﬁea&ea-

i3 for a higher eless

4 Partial eredit will be given for aciual hours of work

B: At least 5005 of the experience reguired for a Heesse
shell be obiained in the eatemery of the license; with net
less than six months eof fulldme cmployment 880
men-hours) i the calegory of the lcense: Partial eredit
mey be given for related cxberience in the other sategery
gt & rele of up to 5005 of the aciunl experience goined i
the other eategery

GE—K{)&H&%H&G&%&W#&F&M&&S&
license shall aet be used again o meet the additioncd

requirements for o higher class license:

B. Esperience limited to distributien and collecHon
systemeaefaheﬂaﬂdmﬁ&ten&nee-labef&teﬁmfk—plaa%
maintenanee; ond other nonepergting dulies shell nei be
counted a5 cxperichce as af eperates

C. Substitutions for required experience.

For the purpose of meeting the experience requirements
for licenses of Cless HE Class H, and Class 1, experience
in the other category, relevant training in waterworks and
wastewater works operation, and formal education may
be substituted for actual hands-on experience in the
category being applied for.

1. Limitations on substitution.

a. Substitutions may not reduce the actual operator
experience required to less than 2-1/2 years for a
Class I license, to less than 1-1/2 vears for o Class
Il license, to less than ome year for a Class HI
license, or to less than I/2 year for ¢ Class IV or
Class V license.

b. Under no circumstances shall experience,
training, and education substitutions exceed 50% of
the total experience required in the appropriate
subdivision of § 2.3 A

¢. No experience, training, or education
substitutions are permitied jor the experience
required te obtain a Class V or a Class IV license
as specified in § 2.3 A

2. Experience substitution. Onehalf of the actual
experience gained in the other category may be
substituted for required experience in the category of
the license being applied for.

3. Education substitution. FEducaltion may be
substituted for part of the required experience, subject
to the limitations in § 2.4 A as follows:

a. Fducation used to meet the educational
requirements for any class of license may not be
substituted for experience.
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/ b. Formal education. Formal education courses at a
post-secondary level in physical biological or
chemical science; engineering or engineering
technology; waterworks or wastewater
operation; or public health may be substrtuted for
part of the required experience.

(1) All education substituted for experience must be
relevant to the category and classification of the
license being applied for. .

(2) Education may be substituted for experience at
a rate of one month experience for each semester
hour of college credit approved by the board. One
quarter hour of college credit will be considered
equal to 2/3 of a semester hour.

¢. Specialized training. Walerworks or wastewater
works operator (raining courses, semingrs,
workshops, or similar specialized training,
specifically approved By the board, may be
substituted for part of the required experience.

() All training substituted for experience must be
relevant to the category and classification of the
license being applied for.

(2) Training may be substituled for experience at a
rate of one month experience for each continuing
education unit (CEU) approved by the board. One
CEU is awarded for each 10 hours of classroom
contact time or for each 20 hours of laboratory
exercise and field trip time. No credit towards
CEU’s is granted for breaks, meals, receptions, and
tine other than classroom, laboratory and field trip
contact time.

(3} All courses used for substitution must be
approved by the board utilizing the criteria sef
forth in Appendix A.

§ 2:6: D. Examination.

A board-approved examination shall be administered at
least twice a year.

#= 1. An individual may take the examination prior to
fulfilling the education and experience requiremenits,
provided all requirements will be met within three
months after the date the applicant will take the
examination. The results of the examination and the
license shall not be issued uniil all applicable

requirements have heen met and satisfactorily
verified. '
B: 2 An individgual who is unable to take an

examination at the time scheduled shali potify the
board prior to the date of the examination; such an
individual shall be rescheduled for the next
examination. Failure to notify the board may require
the submittal of a new application and payment of

works .

faes, in accordance with §§ 14 and %7 A 24 4 .

& 3. Upon submission of an application for
reexamination form provided by the board and
payment of the reexamination fee, an applicant who is
unsuccessful in passing an examination will be allowed
to retake any exzamination{s) given within two years
of the date of notification of initiai unsuccessful
examination rvesulis. After the {wo-year period has
elapsed, an applicant will be required to submit a new
appiication with fee in accordance with these
regulations in order to take an examination.
Applications for reexamination must be received in
{he Depariment of Commerce at least 60 days prior to
a scheduled examinaiion in order to be eligible {o sit
for that examination.

§ &% § 2.4, Application,

A. Any person seeking licensure by reciprocity or by
education, experience, and examination shall submit a
fully-completed application with the appropriate fee(s)
attached. Incomplete applications will be returneg to the
applicant. Application for licensure by exemination must
be received in the Department of Commerce 60 days prior
to a scheduled examination in order to be eligible {o sit
for that examination.

B. All applications of candidates will be reviewed by the
Department of Commerce staff to determine eligibility for
licensure and £xamination within 50 days of receipt at the
offices of the Depariment of Commerce. Any applicant
may appeal the initial review, in writing, to the board
within 60 days of the siaff’s determination. No applicant
will be approved for - licensure unless he meeis all of the
requirements of Part II of these reguiations.

C. Applicants who have been found ineligible {o sit for
an examination may request further consideration by
submitting a letter ip the board with the necessary
evidence of additional qualifications, iraining, or
experience. No additional fee will be required, provided
all requirements for licensing are met within two years
from the date of original application.
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Table 1. Sumsary of edueation and experiemee requirements for operator's license by class.
Minimum Experience must be at this
Total Years class facility or higher . Maximm
License | 5 Current Experience |  Time in ¥ears (Tears Substitution
Class | Education License Required cl.w b cl. TVl c1.IIT § c1.I1 Permitted
{Years) {Years
v BS deqree None 0.5 0.5 0.0
High School Nooe 0.5 4.5 0.0
Hone None 1.0 1.0 0.0
v BS degree None 6.5 0.5 0.8
High School Hooe 92,5 0.5 0.0
None, Nonpe 1.0 1.0 4.0
I BS degree Eope 1.0 1.0 2.0
V' 1.0 ; 1.0 0.0
Bigh School None 2.0 2.0 1.0
v 2.0 2.0 1.0
None v 4.0 4.0 2.0
II _BS degree one 1.5 $:50.5 Q.0
v 1.5 B:5 | 1-80.5 0.0
1 1.5 i:8 9.5 0.0
High School 1T 4.0 2:8 2.0 2.0
None Il 1.0 4:8 3.0 3.5
I BS deqree 1z 2:5 1:5 1.0 0.0
33 2:5 1-8 8<h EL:) [ ettt
I14 ) 8:5 1:8 ) 2 A s
Righ Scheal IT &.0 2:0 26 2.0 3.0
Hone II 10.60 4.0 3.0 3.0 5.0

This table is provided for information only and does not supersede the test of the regulatioms.

1

(¥ ke

e

BS degree = bacheior's degree in civil; enviroms mial er agmitery engineering; or engineering
technology; or in physical, biological, or chemical science or engineering with at least 3
semester hours in wnter andfer wastewster treath st techneioqy; or poth . Rll other bachelor's
degrees will be considered the squivalent of high school education for the purpose of meeting the
" education requirement

substituted for experience in agcordapce with § 2,3 ¢ .

High Schocl = high scheo) diploga or GED or college degree other than BS degree defined above.

alth

Birst license was €iass fi-

Pirst license was €lave ¥ii-

First license was glass Iv:

individyal courses ip science, engi

ing, or public health wmay be

A1) experience must be at 3 woterworks or wastewater works of the appropriate category and of the

elass indicated a class

to or higher than the class indicated i

the table.

B jence gained

at the a waterworks or wastewater works of higher class than curremtly held license mist be under
direct supsrvisiom and direction of @ pruperly licensed vperator.
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PART III. .
STANDARDS OF PRACTICE.

§ 3.1. Discipline.

A. The Board; in its discrétiou, may fine any licensee,
or may suspend or revoke a license, either or both, if it
finds that:

1. The license was obtained or renewed through fraud
Or misrepresentation; or

2. The licensed operator has been found guilty by the
board, or by a court of any material misrepresentation
in the course of performing his operating duties; or

3. The licensed operator has not demonstrated
reasonable care, judgment or application of his
knowledge - and ability in the performance of his
operating duties; or

4. The licensed operator violates or induces another
person to violate amy provisions of Chapters 1, 2, 3,
and 23 of Title 541 of the Code of Virginia, or any
provisions of these regulations.

B. The board, in its discretion, may refuse to grant or
renew a license of any person for any of the reasons
specified in subsection A of this section.

Appendix A - Approval of Specialized Training

Specialized waterworks and wastewater works operafor
training may be substituted for some of the experience
required for Class III, Class I and Class I licenses, subject
fo the limitations in this appendix. Training courses that

may - be substituted for required experience must be

approved by the board prior fo the training activity in
accordance with the following procedure:

A. Training activities for which experience credit may
be granted must be conducted in general conformance
with the guidelines of the Council on the Continuing
Education Unit. The board reserves the right lo waive
any of the requirements of the council's guidelines on a
case-by-case basis.

1. Organization. The board will only approve training
offered by a sponsor who is an identifiable
organization with a mission statement outlining its
Sfunctions, structure, process and philosophy, and that
has a staff of one or more persons with the authority
to administer and coordinate a CEU program.

2: CEU records. The board will only approve training
offered by a sponsor who maintains CEU records for
all participants for a minimum of 20 years, and who
has a written policy on retention and release of CEU
records.

3. Instructors. The board will only approve training

conducted by personnel who have demonstrated
‘competence in the subject being taught, an
understanding of the learning objective, a knowledge
of the learning process lo be used, and a proven
ability to communicate.

4. Objectives. The board will only approve courses
that have a series of slated objectives fhat are
consistent with the job requirements of waterworks
and wastewater works operators. The training course
content must be consistent with those objectives.

5. Course completion requirements. For successful
completion of a training program, participants must
attend 90% or more of the class contact time and
riust  demonstrate therr learning through writien
examinations, completion of a project, self-ussessment,
oral examination, or other assessment technigue.

B. The board shall consider the following information, to
be submitted on forms provided by the board, at least 45
days prior to the scheduled training activity:

1. Course information.
a. Course title
b. Planned audience
¢. Name of sponsor
d. Name, address, phone number of contact person
‘. Scheduled presentation dates
f. Detailed course schedule, kour-by-four
g. List of planned breaks
h. Scheduled presentation location

i. Relevancy of course fo waterworks or wastewater
works operator licensing

2. Instructor qualifications.
a. Name of instructor
b. Title, employer
¢. Summary of qualifications to teach this course

3. Traiming materials. -
a. Course objectives. A listing of the course
objectives stated in the terms of the skills,
knowledge, or attitude the participant will be able

to demonstrate as a resuft of the trainipg.

b, Course outline. A delailed oulline showing the
planned activities that will oceur during the
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training program, Including major fopics, planned
presentation sequence, laboratory and . field
activities, audio-visual presentation, and other major
activities.

¢. Course reference malerials. A list of the name,

publisher and publication date for commercially
available publications; for reference malerials

developed by the course spomsor or available

exclusively  through the course, a copy of the
reference.

d. Audio-visual supporé materials. A listing of any
commercially available audio-visual support material
that will be used in the program; a brief description
of any sponsor or Instructor generated audio-visual
material that will be used.

e. Handouts. Ientification of all commercially
available handoul materials that will be used;
copies of all other planned handouts.

4.  Determination of successful completion. A
description of the means that will be used fo
determine the successful completion of the training
program By individuagl atiendees, such as
exaringtions, projects, personal evaluations by the
mnstrictor, or other recognized evaluation fechniques.

C. Substitution of training for experience will be
approved by the board only for applicants whose names
appear on a roster of those participants who successfully
completed the course, including their names and social
Security numbers, submitted to the board By the sponsor,
and who submit a copy of an appropriate certificate
identifying the subject matier of the course and the CEU
value, provided to the participant by the sponsor.

D. Recurring training programs. If there are plans fo
present the same course of Instruction routinely af
multiple locations with only minor modifications and
changes, the board may approve the overall program
rather than individual presentations if so requested by the
SPONSor.

1. The board shall consider ali of the informatioﬁ
listed above except those items related to specific
offerings of the course.

2. Board approval may be grdnted for a specific
period of time or for an indefinite period.

3. Board approval will apply only fo those specific
offerings appearing on listings provided fo the board
prior o conducting the training. The listing shall
contain for each offering the dates, locations, and
instruciors.

4 To maintain approval of the program, changes
made to the program since its approval must be
submitted.

5. Substitution of training for experience will b
approved by the board only for applicants whose
names appear on a roster of those who have
successfully completed the course, including their
names and soctal security numbers, submitted fo the
board by the sponsor following the course offering,
and who submit a copy of an appropriate certificate
identifying the subject matter of the course and the
CEU value, provided to the participant by the
sponsor. .
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Commenweaith of Virginia
Board for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators

Departmant of Commerce
P.O. Box 11066
Richmond, Virginia 23230-1066
Telephone: 804/367-8554

Application for Licsnsdre as a Waterworks or W Works Op

INSTRUCTIONS: : R
Read 1he regulations of the Board tharoughly before filing out this application.
Make check of maney order payable o Treasuser of Virginia.

Submit application with fee of $65.00 to the address shown sbove. Incomplete applications will be returned.

A. General Information

Applying for feirele onef: Watarworks Operator 1 " m w v
Wastewater Works Operatar | " m v

Applying for rcheck. one): { 1 Examination [ ]. Reciprocity .

B. Name and Addresses

Name

Home Address JEN—
City State 2lr Phone ——

Present Empiayer

Employer's Address
Ci[\;' State zZIF Phone X

Which address should we use for mailing purposes? { ] Home [ ] Employer

C. ldentification

Social Security Number

IRequired for sdtmissian 1o
Daza of Birth Place of Birth
Dperatars’ licensas presently hald:
Category
{Water/Wastewataer} Class Certificate Number State of issue OQFFICE USE

D. Education Artach copies of dipiomsa, certificate or transcript.

High School, Secendary School, or GED program:

Name of schogl or program

City and stats

Date of graduation/completion

Bachelor's dograe program®:

Name of institution

City and state

Major subject Degree Date

- i ’ ”,
See regulations for hachelor's degree programs rhat sre accepted for basic education requiremenis

suonje[rday pasodoid
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E. Experience

INSTRUCTIONS FOR LISTING EXPERIENCE: Begin with your present Or most recent employer. Account for

all refevant experience. Atlach additional pages if necessary. Describe your actual job duties in your gwn
words, including the degree of your responsibiiities a1 the Facility and the aumber of hours you were in

areendance at the facility. Note that aif work as an Dperator-in-training must be certifiad by an operator

hoiding a license equal 10 or greater than thal of the facility and in the same category; ALL experignce must

be certified by a supervisor.

Cqﬂenr Employer
Employer:
Address: a
Name of fagility:
11 waterworks [ ] wastewater Works CIas.s:
Individual certifying experience: -
Signzture Titre Lie. Class e, No.,
Employment period: From: f Ta: /! Positien title:

Was this full-time? []1Yes []1No — If not ful-time, number of hours/week:

Duties:

Employer:

Address:

Name uf facility:

I ]_ Waterwarks { ] Wastewarer Works

Individual certitying experience:

Signature Titls

Emplayment period: From: / To:

Was this fuli-time?

Duties:  ___ -

[iYes [}No — If not full-time, number of heursiweck:

/ Position tige:

Employer:

Address:

Name of facility:

[ ] Waterworks 1] Wastewater Works

Individuat certifying experience:

Class:

Signature Title

Empiloyment period: From: I To: ! Position title:

Was this full-time?  [] Yes [1No — If npt full-time, numser of hoursiweek:

Duties:

L. Chrss Lie, No.

—_—

——————

suoliendoy pasodolg
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F. Substitutions

{1} Operzicr training courses, i wo and speciatized nil proposed {or experience
substitution {See § 2.3C). Arrach copies of certificatas for alt iraining.

Course Title/Sponsar Date(s) of Attendance CEUs OFFICE USE

({21 Formai education proposed for substitution: post-secondary courses in science, engineering, engineering
technology, waterworks or wastewate! works operation, public heaith (See § 2.3C). Artach copies of
certificates or transcripts for all cowrses.

College or . Course titie and Dates of Sem.
University briet description Attendance Hours QFFICE USE

[3) Experience in the tther category proposed for substitution {See & 2.3C). A experience must be centified
by a ficensed operator. .

Narme and address of em;iloyer, Signature, title and
Dates " your job title, description Plant | operator ficense na. of OFFICE
{Mofrs) of your job duties Class | person certifying exp. USE
From:
To:

+

Fram:
To:

G. Facility description

H-ov;d:e 2 brief description in your gwn words of the facility at which you now work. Inciude the fiow
capacity and/or Service population and classification. Describe the treatment Processes an

o ! d equiprment used
e the faciiity. This sheet must be Signed by the spolicant and by the applicant’s imma

diate supervisor.

VS!'unature af applicant:

Approved and certified by:

immediata Supenvisor

Supervisor's Operator License Categery, Class, and Number:

H. Affidavit

STATE OF

CITY/COUNTY OF

The undersw‘gneq being quly SWOrn says that hesshe is the person who executed this opplication, that the
stalemer?ts helgln contained re true, that he/she has not withheld or suppressed any information that might
attect this a_ppln:alrcns, and that hefshe has read and understands this afigavir. .

Signature of applicant: :

Signature of notary public:

Subscribed and sworn 10 befare me this day of 19
'

My commission expires:

suonenday pasedoig
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STATE WATER CONTROL BOARD

" Title of Regulation: VR 686-16-05. York River Basin Water
Quality Management Plan, '

Statutory Authority: §§ 62.1-44.15(3a) and 62.1-44.15(13) of
the Code of Virginia. '

Public Hearing Date: September 30, 1991 - 7 p.m.
(See Calendar of Evenis section
for additional information)

Summary:

Water quality management plans (WQMP) serve as a
regulatory guide for the State Water Control Board in
the implementation of mandafed water quality goals.
Two main components of the plans are the stream
segment classifications and the establishment of total
maxtmum daily loads - which contain waste load
allocations for segments classified as water quality
limiting. S

The purpose of the proposal is to amend the York
River Basin Water Quality Management Plan (Plan) o
remove the waste load allpcations in siream segrient
8-12 for American Of, York and James City SD #l,
and York Regional STP. The three facilities discharge
to an efffuent limiting stream segment, which is not.
required by federal or state laws or regulations. to
have waste load allocations.

VR 680-16-05. York River Basin Water Quality Management
-Plan. '
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TABLE 3
WASTE LOAD ALLOCATIONS (1N LBS RER DAY)

vy Loas? mrimm’ | arcomiunto ALLOCATION AV VASTC 10AD  |xrouered ¥ Removac
POINT SOURCE - M e v AT 193 crFicey 1995
tooog |vson! | cooog | waoo | caon, | waoo et | teong | uso. feaoo, | veoo
tordonville m 198 | ase | w2 150 w3 0 1856 { 2730 2 8s
tovisacRiaesal ' 50 108 55 ng 55 1 6 | 850 ] N5 3 30
Coswet } 52 ve 862 {1407 | 6901125 | 1080 | 154n M| n
Trorabueg o e | e | ¢ | x| o Yuame [ | s | w0
Souling Creea n & | 29 6 29 6 0 80 | 926 96 9
saland T lwe [ [ s | s e Loy [ o2, fase [ams | 2 | w
wsower (Regions) 577) 20 | 432 e | s | 2 | s 0 sne | 7930 Y %
sherapeare Coep, évto | 8000 10_.“5?5.000?0.4&55 15,00(:5 ®A {51700 [68630 5 %
vest Poiat 103 3o | 283 |20 s ha 20 | 000 | 1660 15t 73
M*b-mmvr-;bii- — 343 $ot-— 14309 2883 — - L 400 --&m—-%——»~-—-—M-J-4;u-—~-w-lsﬁ~- R
 Petmariren-0it R T T T T Earial . s a1 e EERWYLR SVIYSE SYPPR % 8 of
} TVIUE YR FOUN I P Y— L 3280~ }-9330-—~} 9000 {40500 - — L..-mw-[.nm--. 20-——fassco. Jaaseo- - ssb 5. 6 1

Yusco 3s Vitlaate STochemica] Omygen Damind, 115 concantretion s declvad by the followiag: 800¢/0,30 « 5.8 (‘:m)-{moa}
#0TE:  Ths asouns, of TXX wti)ized depends on the location Ja the basin,

1!*mju‘.un'l for 1377 sased on population projectioas,
precosmendsd a)locatlion based oa JPCTUA effluent guidalinas applied 0 raw waste londs at 2020.
snlatm fanowal afllchsncy.
‘Ml«ulu basad on BATEA Guidelinas st 2029,
’uud o 3sswined fnfTueat characiecistics, . N
ASSIAILATIVE CAPALIYY s

Source: Roy F. Weston, 'Inc.
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FINAL REGULATIONS

For information concerning Final Regulations, see information page.

regulations.

Symbol Key
Roman type indicates existing text of regulations, ffalic type indicates new text. Language which has been strickexﬁ
indicates text to be deleted. [Bracketed language] indicates a substantial change from the proposed text of the

VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

|INOTICE: The Virginia Housing Developmeni Authority is
exempied from the Administrative Process Act (§ 9-6.14:1
gt seq. of the Code of Virginia); however, under the
provisions of § 9-6.1422, it is required to publish all

proposed and final regulations.

Title of Regulation; VR 480-02-0003. Rules and Regulations
for Single Family Morigage Loans t¢ Persens and
Families of Low and Moderate Income.

Statutery Authority: § 36-55.30:3 of the Code of Virginia.

Effective Date: July 18, 1091.

NOTE: Documents and forms referred t¢ herein as
exhibite have not been adopied by the authority as a part
of the Ruies and Regulations for Single Family Mortgage
Loans to Persons and Families of Low and Moderate
Income hut are attached thereto for reference and
informational purposes. Accordingly, such documents and
forms have not beenm included in the amendments io the
foregoing Rules and Regulations for Single Family
Morigage Loans to Persons and Families of Low and
Moderate Income. Copies of such documents and forms
are available upon request at the office of the authority.

LLETENL

The amendments to the authority’s rules and
- regulations applicable fc its single family morigage
loan program (i) will provide for implementation of
the Farmers Home Administration Guarantee and
Interest Assistance programs, (i) allow certain
applicants for morigage loans fo borrow funds from
their employers for downpayment and closing costs
assistance and clarify the extenft to which
downpaymeni funds may be borrowed by other
applicants, (iif) require certain documents fo be
included in application and closing packages Io
conform the authorily’s requiremenis lto recent
changes In federal law, (iv) clarify reguirements for
assumptions fo include all requiremenis of state and
federal law, and (v) make cerfain (ypographical and
stylistic revisions.

VR 400-02-0003. Rules and Regulations for Single Family
Mortgage Loans to Persons and Families of Low and
Moderate Income.

PART L
GENERAL.

~ executive director

§ 1.1. General.

The following rules and regulations will be applicable to
morigage leans which are made or financed or are
proposed to bhe made or financed by the anihority to
persons and families of low and moderaie income for the
acquisition (and, where applicable, rehabilitation),
ownership and occupancy of single family housing units.

In order to be considered eligible for a morigage loan
hereunder, a “person” or “family” (as defined in the
authority’s rules and regulations) must have a '‘gross
family income” (as determined in accordance with the
authority’s rules and regulations) which does not exceed
the applicabie income limitation set forth in Part II
hereof. Furthermore, the sales price of any single family
unit to be financed hereunder must not exceed the
applicable sales price limit set forth in Part Il hereef The
terin “sales price,” with respect t¢ a morigage loan for
the combined acquisition and rehabilitation of a single
family dwelling unif, shall include the cost of acquisifion,
plus the cost of rehahilitation and debt service for such
period of rehabilitation, not to exceed three months, as the
executive director shall determine that such dweliing uni
will not be available for occupancy. In addition, each -
morigage loan must satisfy all requirements of federal law
applicable to loans f{financed with the proceeds of
tax-exempi bonds as set forth in Part II hereof.

Mortgage loans may be made or financed pursuant to
these rules and regulations only if and to the extent that
the authority has made or expects {0 make funds available
therefor.

Notwithstanding anything to the conirary herein, the
ts ‘authorized with respect fo any
mortgage loan hereunder to waive or modify any
provisions of these ruies and regulations where deemed
appropriate by him for good cause, to the extent not
inconsistent with the Act.

All reviews, analyses, evaluations, inspections,
determinations and other actions by the autherity pursuant
to the provisions of these rules and regulations shall be
made for the sole and exclusive benefit and protection of
the authority and shall not be construed {o waive or
modify any of the righis, benefils, privileges, duties,
liabilities or responsibilifies of the authority or the
mortgagor under the agreements and documents executed
in connection with the mortgage loan.

The rules and regulations set forth herein are intended
to provide a general description of the authority’s
processing requirements and are not intended to include
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i1 actions invelved or required in the originating and
administration of mortgage loans under the authority’'s
single family heousing program. These rules and regulations
are subject io change at any time by the authority and
may be supplemented by policies, rules and regulations
adopted by the authority from time fo time.

§ 1.2. Originating and servicing agents.
A. Approval/definitions.

The originating of mortgage loans and the processing of
applications for the making or financing thereof in
accordance herewith shall be performed through
commercial banks, savings and loan associations and
private morigage bankers approved as originating agenis
("originating agents”) of the authority. The servicing of
morigage loans shall be performed through commercial
banks, savings and lpan associations and private mortgage
bankers approved as servicing agents (“servicing agents”)
of the authority.

To be initially approved as an originating agent or as a
servicing agent, the applicant must meet the following
qualifications:

1. Be authorized to do busingss in the Commonwealth
of Virginia;

2. Have a net worth equal to or in excess of $250,000
or such other amount as the executive director shall
from time to time deem appropriate;

d. Have a staffi with demonsirated ability and
experience in mortgage loan origination and processing
(in the case of an originating agent applicant) or
servicing (in the case of a servicing agent applicant);
and

4, Such other qualifications as the executive director
shall deem to be related to the performance of its
duties and responsibilities.

Each originating agent approved by the authority shall
enfer into an originating agreement (“originating
agreement”), with the authority containing such terms and
conditions as the executive director shall require with
respect to the origination and processing of mortgage loans
hereunder. Each servicing agent approved by the authority
shall enter into a servicing agreement with the authority
containing such terms and conditions as the executive
director shail require with respect to the servicing of
morfgage loans.

An applicant may be approved as both an originating
agent and a servicing agent (“originating and servicing
agent”). Each originating and servicing agent shall enter
into an originating and servicing agreement (“originating
and servicing agreement”) with the authority containing
such terms and conditions as the executive director shall
.'*::pquire with respect {o the originating and servicing of

morigage loans hereunder.

For the purposes of these rtules and regulations, the
term *“originating agent” shall hereinafier be deemed to
include the term “originating and servicing agent,” unless
otherwise noted. Similarly, the term “originating
agreement” shall hereinafter be deemed to include the
term “originating and servicing agreement,’ unless
otherwise noted. The term “servicing agent” shall continue
to mean an agent authorized only to service morigage
loans. The term “servicing agreement” shall coniinue to
mean only the agreement between the authority and a
servicing agent.

Originating agents and servicing agents shall maintain
adequate books and records with respect to mortgage
loans which they originate and process or service, as
applicable, shall permit the authority to examine such
books and records, and shali submit to the authority such
reports (including annual financial statemenis) and
information as the authority may require. The fees
payable to the originating agents and servicing agents for
criginating and processing or for servicing mortgage loans
hereunder shall be established from time to time by the
executive director and shall be set forth in the originating
agreements and servicing agreements applicable fo such
originating agents and servicing agents.

B. Allocation of funds,

The executive director shall allocate funds for the
making or financing of mortgage loans hereunder in such
manner, to such persons and enfities, in such amounts, for
such period, and subject to such terms and conditions as
he shall deem appropriate to best accomplish the purposes
and goals of the authority. Without limiting the foregoing,
the executive director may aliocate funds (i) to mortgage
loan applicants on a first-come, first-serve or other basis,
(ii) to originating agents and siate and local government
agencies and instrumentalities for the origination of
mortgage loans to qualified applicants and/or (iii) to
builders for the permanent financing of residences
constructed or rehabilitated or to be constructed or or
rehabilitated by them and to be sold to qualified
applicants. In determining how to so aliocate the funds,
the executive direcior may consider such factors as he
deems relevant, including any of the following:

1. The need for the expeditious commitment and
- disbursement of such funds for mortgage loans;

2. The need and demand for the financing of
mortgage loans with such funds in the various
geographical areas of the Commonwealth;

3. The cost and difficulty of administration of the
allocation of funds; '

4. The capability,
originating agents,
agencies and

history - and experience of any
state and local governmental
instrumentalities, builders, or other
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persons and entities (other than meortgage loan
applicants) who are to receive an allocation; and

5. Housing conditions in the Commonwealth.

In the event that the executive director shall determine
to make allocations of funds to builders as described
above, the following requirements must be satisfied by
each such builder:

1. The builder must have a valid contractor’s license
in the Commonwealih;

2. The builder must have at least three years

experience of a scope and nature similar to the
proposed construction or rehabilifation; and

3. The builder must submit to the autherily plans and
specifications for the proposed -construction or
rehabilitation which are acceptable to the authority.

The executive director may from time to time take such
action as he may deem necessary or proper in order to
solicit applications for allocation of funds hereunder. Such
actions may include advertising in newspapers and other
media, mailing of information (o prospective applicants
and other members of ithe public, and any other methods
of public announcemnent which the execufive director may
select as appropriate under the circumstances. The
executive director may impose requirements, limitations
and conditions with respect io the submission of
applications as he shall consider necessary or appropriate.
The executive director may cause market studies and
other research and -apalyses to be performed in order to
determine the manner and conditions under which funds
of the authority are fo be allocated amd such other
matters as he shall deem appropriate relating thereto. The
authority may alse consider and approve applications for
ailocations of funds submitted from time to time to the
authority without any solicitation therefor on the part of
the authority.

C. Originating guide and servicing guide.

The originating guide attached hereto as Part II is
incorporated into and made a part of these rules and
regulations. All exhibits and other documenfs referenced in
the criginating guide are not included in, and shatl not be
deemed to be a part of, these rules and regulations. The
executive director is authorized to prepare and from time
to time revise a servicing guide which shall set forth the
accounting and other procedures to be followed by all
originating agents and servicing agents responsible for the
servicing of morigage loans under the applicable
originating agreements and servicing agreements. Copies of
the servicing guide shall be available upon request. The
executive - director shall be responsible for the
implementation and interpretation of the provisions of the
originating guide and the servicing guide.

D. Making and purchase of new mortgage loans. .

The authority may from time to time (i) make morigag
loans directly fo morigagors with the assistance and
services of its originating agenis and (ii) agree to purchase
individual meortgage loans from its origiraling agents or
servicing agents upon the consummation of the closing
thereof. The review and processing of applications for
such mortgage Ioans, the issuance of morigage loan
commitments therefor, the closing and servicing (and, if
applicabie, the purchase) of such mortgage loans, and the
terms and conditions relating to such morigage loans shall
be governed by and shall comply with the provisions of
the applicable originating agreement or servicing
agreement, the originating guide, the servicing guide, the
Act and these rules and reguiations.

If the applicant and the application for a mortgage loan
meet the requirements of the Act and these rules and
regulations, the executive director may issue on behalf of
the authority a mortgage loan commitinent o the applicant
for the financing of the single family dwelling unit, subject
to the approval of ratification thereof by the board. Such
mortgage loan commitmeni shall be issued only upen the
determination of the authority that such a morigage loan
is not otherwise available from private lenders upon
reasonably equivalent terms and conditiens, and such
determination shall be set forth in the morigage loan
commitment. The original principal amount and term of
such mortgage loan, the amortization period, the terms and
conditions relating to the prepayment thereof, and such
other terms, condifions and requirements as the executive
director deems necessary or appropriate shall be set fort
or incorporated in the morigage loan commitment issue.
on behalf of the authorily with respect o such meortgage
loan.

E. Purchase of existing morigage loans.

The authority may purchase from time fo time existing
mortgage loans with funds held or received in connection
with bonds issued by the authority prior to January 1,
1981, or with other funds legally available therefor, With
respect to any such purchase, the executive director may
request and solicit bids or proposals frem the authority’s
originating agents and servicing agenis for the sale and
purchase of such mortgage loans, in such manner, within
such time period and subject to such terms and conditions
as he shall deem appropriate under the circumstances.
The sales prices of the single family housing - units
financed by such mortgage loans, the gross family incomes
of the morigagors thereof, and the original principal
amounts of such morigage ioans shall not exceed such
limits as the executive director shall establish, subject to
approval or ratification by resolution of the board. The
executive director may take such action as he deems
necessary or appropriate to solicit offers to sell morigage
loans, including mailing of the request to originating agents
and servicing agents, advertising in newspapers or other
publications and any other method of public announcement
which he may select as appropriate under the
circumstances. After review and evaluation by the
executive director of the bids or proposals, he shall sele¢
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jose bids or proposals that offer the highest yield to the

authority on the mortgage loans (subject to any limitations
imposed by law on the authority) and that best conform tfo
the terms and conditions established by him with respect
to the bids or proposals. Upon selection of such bids or
proposals, the executive director shall issue commitments
to the selected originating agents and servicing agents to
purchase the mortgage loans, subject to such terms and
conditions as he shall deem necessary or appropriate and
subject to the approval or ratification by the board. Upon
satisfaction of the terms of the commitments, the
execufive director shall eXecute such agreements and
documents and take such other action as may be
necessary or appropriate in order to consummate the
purchase and sale of the mortgage loans. The morigage
lpans so purchased shall be serviced in accordance  with
the applicable originating agreement or servicing
agreement and the Servicing Guide. Such mortgage loans
and the purchase thereof shall in a1l respects comply with
the Act and the authority’s rules and regulations.

F. Delegated underwriting.

The executive director may, in his discretion, delegate
{o one or more originating agents the responsibility for
issuing commitments for mortgage loans and disbursing the
proceeds hereof without prior review and approval by the
authority. The issuance of such commitments shall be
subject to ratification thereof by the board of the
authority, If the executive director determines to make
ny such delegation, he shall establish criteria under
which originating agenis may qualify for such delegation,
If such delegation has been made, the originating agents
shall submit all required documentation to the authority
after closing of each mortgage loan. If the executive
director determines that a morigage loan does not comply
with the processing guide, the applicable originating
agreement, the Act or these rules and regulations, he may
require the originating agents {o purchase such mortgage
loan, subject to such terms and condiiions as he may
prescribe.

PART IL
VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
PROCESSING GUIDE.

Article 1.
Eligibility Requirements.

§ 2.1. Eligible persons and families.
A. Person.
A one-person household is eligible.
B. Family.
A single family loan can be made to more than one

person only if all such persons to whom the loan is made
are related by blood, marriage or adoption and are living

" together in the dwelling as a single nonprofit housekeeping

-described below as  well

unit,
C. Citizenship.

Each applicant for an authority morigage loan must
either be a United States citizen or have a valid and
current alien registration card (U.S. Depariment of
Immigration Form 1-551 or U.S. Department of
Immigration Form 1-151),

§ 2.2. Compliance with certain requirements of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (hereinafter
“the tax code”).

The tax code imposes certain requirements and
restrictions on the eligibility of mortgagors and residences
for financing with the proceeds of tax-exempt bonds. In
order to comply with these federal requirements and
restrictions, the authority has established certain
procedures which must be performed by the originating
agent in order to determine such eligibility. The eligibility
requirements for the borrower and the dwelling are
as the procedures to be
performed. The originating agent will certify to the
performance of these procedurss and evaluation of a
borrower’s eligibility by compieting and signing the *“
Originating Agent's Checklist for Certain Requirements of
the Tax Code” (Exhibit A(l)) prior to the authority’s
approval of each loan. No loan will be approved by the
authority unless all of the federal eligibility requirements
are met as well as the usual requirements of the autherity
set forth in other parts of this guide,

§ 2.2.1. Eligible borrowers.
A. General.

In order to be considered an eligible borrower for an
authority mortgage loan, an applicant must, among other
things, meet alt of the following federal criteria;

~The applicant:

1. May not have had a present ownership interest in
his principal residence within the three vyears
preceding the date of execution of the mortgage ioan
documents. (See § 2.2.1.B Three-year requirement);

2. Must agree to occupy and use the residential
properiy to be purchased as his permanent, principal
residence within 60 days (90 days in the case of a
rehabilitation loan as defined in § 2.17) after the date
of the closing of the mortgage loan. (See § 2.2.1.C
Principal residence requirement);

3. Must not use the proceeds of the mortgage loan to
acquire or replace an existing mortgage or debt,
except in the case of certain types of temporary
financing. (See § 2.2.1.D New mortgage requirement);

4. Must have contracted to purchase an eligible
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dwelling. (See § 2.2.2 Eligible dwellings),

5. Must execute an affidavit of borrower (Exhibit E)
at the time of loan application;

6. Must not receive income in an amount in excess of
the applicable federal income limit imposed by the
tax code (See § 2.5 Income requirements);

7. Must agree not to sell, lease or ofherwise transfer
an interest in the residence or permit the assumption
of his morigage loan unless certain requirements are
met. (See § 2.10 Loan assumptions) ; and

8. Must be over the age of 18 years or have been
declared emancipated by order or decree of a court
having jurisdiction. :

B. Three-year requirement.

An eligible borrower does not include any borrower
who, at amny time during the three years preceding the
date of execution of the mortgage loan documenis, had a
“nresent ownership interest” (as hereinafter defined) in
his principal residence. Each borrower must ceriify on the
affidavit of borrower that at no time during the three
years preceding the execution of the mortgage loan
documents has he had a present ownership interest in his
principal residence. This requirement does not apply to
residences located in “targeted areas” (see § 2.3 Targeted
areas); however, even i the residence is located in a
“targeted area,” the tax returns for the most recent
taxable year (or the letfer described in 3 below) must be
obtained for the purpese of deiermining compliance with
other requirements.

1. Definition of present ownership interest. “Present
ownership inierest” includes:

a. A fee simple interest,

b. A joint tenancy, a tenancy in common, or a
tepancy by the entirety,

¢. The interest of a tenant shareholder in a
cooperative, :

d. A life estate,

“e. A land contract, under which possession and the
henefits and burdens of ownership are transferred
although legal title is not transferred until some
later time, and

f. An interest held in irust for the eligible borrower
{whether or not created by the eligible borrower)
that would constitute a present ownership interest if
held directly by the eligible borrower.

Interests which do not constitute a present ownership
interest include:

a. A remainder interest,

b. An ordi'nary lease with or without am option io
purchase,

¢. A mere expeciancy to inherit an inferest in a
principal residence,

d. The interest that a purchaser of a residence
acquires on the execution of an accepted offer to
purchase real estate, and

e. An interest in other than a principal residence
during the previous three years.

2. Persons covered. This requirement applies to any
person who will execute the mortgage document or
note and will have a present ownership interest (as
defined above) in the eligible dwelling.

3. Prior tax returns. To verify thai the eligible
borrower meets the three-year requirement, the
originating agent must obtain copies of signed federal
income fax returns filed by the eligible borrower for
the three tax yvears immediaiely preceding execution
of the mortgage documenis {(or certified copies of the
returns) or a copy of a letter from the Internal
Revenue Service stating fhat its Form 1040A or
10406EZ was filed by the eligible borrower for any of
the three most recent tax years for which copies of
such returns are not obiained. If the eligible borrows
was not required by law to file a federal income tia:
return for any of these three vears and did not so
file, and so states on the borrower affidavit, the
requirement to obtain a copy of the federail income
tax return or letter from the Internal Revenue Service
for such year or years is waived.

The originating agent shall examine the tax returns
particularly for any evidence that the eligible
borrower may have claimed deductions for property

" taxes or for interest on indebtedness with respect to
real property constifuting his principal residence.

4, Review by originating ageat. The originating agent
must, with due diligence, verily the representations in
the affidavit of borrower (Exhibit E) regarding the
applicant’s prior regidency by reviewing any
information including the credit report and the tax
returns furnished by the eligible borrower for
consistency, and certify to the authority fhat on the
basis of its review, it is of the opinicn that each
borrower has not had present ownership interest in a
principal residence at any fime during the three-vear
period prior to the anticipated date of the loan
closing.

C. Principal residence requirement.

1. General. An eligible borrower must iniend at the
time of closing to ocecupy the eligible dweliing as r
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/' principal residence within 60 days (90 days in the

case of a purchase and rehabilitation loan) after the
closing of the mortgage loan. Unless the residence can
reasenably be expected to become the principal
residence of the eligible horrower within 60 days (90
days in the case of a purchase and rehabilitation
loan) of the mortgage loan closing date, the residence
will not be considered an eligible dwelling and may
not be financed with a mortgage loan irom the
authority. An eligible borrower musi covenant to
intend to occupy the eligible dwelling as a prinicipal
residence within 60- days (90 days in the case of a
purchase and rehabilitation loan) after the closing of
the mortgage loan on the affidavit of borrower (to be
updated by the verification and update of information
fomtn) and as part of the attachment to the deeéd of
trust,

2. Definition of principal residence. A principal
residence does not inciude any residence which can
reasonably be expected to be used: (i) primarily in a

trade or business, (ii) as an investment property, or

(iiiy as a recreational or second home. A residence
may not be used in a manner which would permit
any portion of the costs of the eligible dwelling to be
deducted as a trade or business expense for federal
income tax purposes or under circumstances where
any portion of the total living area is to be used
primarily in a trade or business.

3. Land not to be used to produce income. The land
financed by the mortgage loan may not provide, other

than incidentally, a source of income to the eligible

borrower. The eligible borrower must indicate on the
affidavit of borrower that, among other things:

a. No portion of the land financed by the mortgage
loan provides a source of income (other than
incidental income);

b. He does not intend to farm any portion (other
than as a garden for personal use) of the land
financed by the mortgage loan; and

c. He does not intend to subdivide the property.
4. Lot size. Only such land as is reasonably necessary

to maintain the basic livability of the residence may
be financed by a mortgage loan. The financed land

must not exceed the customary or usual lot in the -

area. Generally, the financed land will not be
permitted o exXceed two acres, even in rural areas.
However, exceptions may be made to permit lots
larger than two acres, but in no event in excess of
five acres : (i) if the land is owned free and clear
and is not being financed by the loan, (ii) if difficulty
is encountered locating a well or septic field, the lo{
may include the additional acreage needed , and (iii)
local city and county zoning ordinances which require
more acreage will be taken into consideration.

5. Review by originating agent. The affidavit of
borrower (Exhibit E) musi be reviewed by the
originating apgent for conmsistency with (the -eligible
borrower’s federal income {ax refurns and the credit
report in order te support an opinion that the eligible
borrower is not engaged in any employment activity
or trade or business which has been conducted in his
principal residence. Also, the originating ageni shall
review the appraiser report (Exhibii H) of an
authority approved appraiser and the required
photographs to determine based on the location and
the structural design and other characteristics of the
dwelling that the residence is suitable for use as a
permanent residence and not for use primarily in 2
trade or business or for recreational purposes. Based
on such review, the originating agent shall certify to
the authority its findings and certain opinions in the
checklist “for certain requiremenis of the tax code
(Exhibit A(l)) at the time the loan application is
submitfed o the authority for approval.

6. Posiclosing procedures. The originating agent shall
establish procedures to (i) review correspondence,
checks and other documents received {rom the
borrower during the 120-day period following the loan
closing for the purpose of ascertaining that the
address of the residence and the address of the
borrower are the same and (i) notify the authority if
such addresses are not the same. Subject to the
authority’s approval, the originating agent may
establish different procedures to verify compliance
with this requirernent.

D. New morigage requirement.

Mortgage loans may be made only to persons who did
not have a morigage (whether or not paid off) on the

-eligible dwelling at any time prior to the execution of the

mortgage. Mortgage loan proceeds may not be used to
acquire or replace an existing morigage or debt for which
the eligible borrower is liable or which was incurred on
behalf of the eligible borrower, except in the case of
construction period loans, bridge loans or similar
temporary financing which has a term of 24 months or
less.

1. Definition of mortgage. For purposes of applying
the new morigage requirement, a mortgage includes
deeds of ftrust, conditional sales contracts (ie.
generally a sales contract pursuant io which regular
installments are paid and are applied to the sales
price), pledges, agreements fo hold title in escrow, a
lease with an option to purchase which is freated as
an installment sale for federal income tax purposes
and any other form of owner-financing. Conditiona!
land sale coniracis shall be considered as existing
loans or mortgages for purposes of this requirement.

2, Temporary financing. In the case of a mortgage
loan (having a ferm of 24 months or less) made to
refinance a loan for the comstruction of an eligible
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dwélling, the authority shali not make such mortgage
loan until it has determined thai such construction has
been satifactorily completed.

3. Review by originating agent. Prior to closing the.

morigage loan, the originating agent must examine the
affidavit of borrower (Exhibit E), the affidavit of
seller (Exhibit F), and related submissions, including
(i) the eligible horrower’s federal income tax returns
for the preceding three years, and (ii) credit report,
in order to determine whether the eligible horrower
will meet the new meorigage requirements. Upon such
review, the originating agent shall certify to the
authority that the agent is of the opinion that the
proceeds of the mortgage loan will not be used i{o
repay or refinance an existing morigage debt of the
borrower and that the borrower did not have a
morigage lcan on the eligible dwelling prior to the
date hereof, except for permissible temporary
financing described above.

3. Definition of acquisition cost. Acquisition cost mean
the cost of acquiring the eligible dwelling from the
seller as a compleied residence.

a. Acquisition cost includes;

(1) All amounts paid, eitker in cash or in kind, by
the eligible borrower {or a related party or for the
benefit of the eligible borrower) to the seller {(or a
related party or for the benefit of the seller) as
consideration for the eligible dwelling. Such amounts
include amounts paid for items constituting fixtures
under state law, bui not for items of personal
property not constituting fixiures under siate law.
(See Exhibii R for examples of fixtures and items
of personal property.)

(2) The reascnable costs of completing or
rehabilitating the regidence (whether or not the cost
of completing construction or rehabilifation is to be
financed with the morigage loan) if the eligible

dwelling is incomplete or is fo be rehabilitated. As
an example of reasonable completion cost, costs of
completing the eligible dwelling so as to permit
occupancy under local jaw would be included in the
acquisition cost. A residence which includes
unfinished areas (ie. an area designed or intended
to be completed or refurbished and used as living
space, such as the lower level of a tri-level
residence or the upstairs of a Cape Cod) shall be
deemed incomplete, and the costs of finishing suc
areas must be included in the acquisition cost. (See

E. Multiple loans,

Any eligible borrower may not have more than one
outstanding authority meortgage loan.

§ 2.2.2. Eligible dwellings.
A. In general.

In order to qualify as an eligible dwelling for which an
authority loan may be made, the residence must:

1. Be locaied in the Commonwealth;

2. Be a ¢ne-family detached residence, a townhouse or
on¢ unit of an authority approved condominium; and

3. Satisfy the acquisition cost 'requiremen_ts set forth
below. ' : .

B. Acquigition cost requirements.

1. General rule. The acquisition cost of an eligible
dwelling may not exceed certain limits established by
the U.S. Depariment of the Treasury in effect at the
time of the application. Note: In all casés for new
loans such federal limits equal or exceed the
authority’s sales price limits shown in § 2.3. Therefore,
for new loans the residence is an eligible dwelling if
the acguisition cost is not greater than the authority’s
sales price limit. In the eveni that the acquisition cost
exceeds the aguthority’s sales price Iimit, the
originating agent must contact the authority to
determine if the residence is an eligible dwelling.

"2, Acquisition cost requirements for assumptions. To
determine if ihe acquisition cost is at or below the
federal limits for assumptions, the originating agent or,
if applicable, the servicing agert must in all cases
contact the authority see § 2.10 below.

Acquisition Cosi Worksheet, Exhibit G, Item 4 and
Appraiser Report, Exhibit H).

(3) The cost of land on which the eligible dwelling
is located and which has been owned by the eligible
borrower for a period no longer than two years
prior o the construction of the structure comprising
the eligible dwelling,

b. Acquisition cost does not include:

(1) Usual and reasonabie setflement or financing
costs, Such excluded setilement costs include title
and transfer costs, title insuramce, survey fees and
other similar costs. Such exciuded financing costs
include credit reference fees, legal fees, appraisal
expenses, points which are paid by the eligible
borrower, or other costs of financing the residence.
Such amounis must not exceed the usval and
reasonable costs which otherwise would be paid.
Where the buyer pays more than a pro rata share
~ of property taxes, for example, the excess is to be
treated as part of the acquisition cost.

(2) The imputed value of services performed by the
eligible borrower or members of his family
{brothers and sisters, spouse, ancestors and lineal
descendanis) in constructing or completing the
residence. i
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/ 4. Acquisition cost worksheet (Exhibit G) and
Appraiser Repert (Exhibit H). The originating agent is

-~ required to obtain frem each eligible borrower a
completed acquisition cost worksheet which shall
specify in detail the basis for the purchase price of
the eligible dwelling, calculated in accordance with
this subsection B. The originating agent shall assist the
eligible borrower in the correct completion of the
worksheet. The originating agent must also obtain
from the appraiser a completed appraiser’s report
which may also be relied upon in completing the
acquisition cost worksheet. The acquisition cost
worksheet of the eligible borrower shall constitute part
of the affidavit of borrower required to be submitted
with the loan submission. The affidavit of seller shall
also certify as to the acquisition cost of the eligible
dwelling on the worksheet,

5. Review by originating agent. The originating agent
shall for each new loan determine whether the
acquisition cost of the eligible dwelling. exceeds the
authority’s applicable sales price limit shown in § 2.4
If the acquisition cost exceeds such limit, the
originating agent must contact the authority to
determine if the residence is an eligible dwelling for a
new loan. (For an assumption, the originating agent
or, if applicable, the servicing agent must contact the
authority for this determination in all cases - see
section 2.10 below), Also, as part of ifs review, the
origlnating agent must review the acquisition cost
worksheet submitted by each morigage loan applicant,

¢+ and the appraiser report, and must certify to the
authority that it is of the opinion that the acquisition
cost of the eligible dwelling has been calculated in
accordance with this subsection B. In addition, the
originating agent must compare the information
contained in the acquisition cost worksheet with the
information contained in the affidavit of seller and
other sources and documents such as the contract of
sale for consistency of representation as to acquisition
cost.

6. Independent appraisal. The authority reserves the
right to obiain an independent appraisal in order to
establish fair market valye and to determine whether
a dwelling is eligible for the mortgage lpan requested.

§ 2.2.3. Targeied areas.
A. In general.

In accordance with the tax code, the authority will
make a portion of the proceeds of an issue of its bonds
available for financing eligible dwellings located in
targeted areas for at least one year following the issuance
of a series of bonds. The authority will exercise due
diligence in making mortgage loans in targeted areas by
advising originating agents and certain localities of the
availability of such funds in targeted areas and by
advising potential eligible borrowers of the availability of
- "uch funds through advertising and/or news releases, The

amount, if any, allocated to an originating agent
exclusively for tiargeted areas will be specified in a
forward commitment agreement between the originating
agent and the authorily.

B. Eligikility.

Mortgage loans for eligible dwellings located in targeted
areas must comply in all respecis with the reguiremenis in
this § 2.2 and elsewhere in this guide for all morigage
loans, except for the three-year requirement described in §
2.2.1.B. Notwithstanding this exception, the applicant must
still submit certain federal income tax records. However,
they will be used te verify income and to wverify that
previously owned residences have not been used in a
trade or business (and not {0 verify nonhomeownership),
and only those records for the most recent vear preceding
execution of the mortgage documents (rather than the
three most recent years) are required. See that section for
the specific type of records to be submitted.

1. Definition of targeted areas.

a. A targeted area is an area which I8 a qualified
census iract, as described in b helow, or an area of
chronic economic distress, as described in ¢ below.

b. A qualified census tract is a census fract in the
Commonwealth in which 70% or more of the
families have an income of 809 or less of the
state-wide median family income based on the most
recent “safe harbor” statistics published by the U.S.
Treasury.

¢. An area of chronic economic distress i3 an area
designated as such by the Commonwealth and
approved by the Secretaries of Housing and Urban
Development and the Treasury under criteria
specified in the tax code. PDS agenis will be
informed by the authority as to the location of
areas so designated,

§ 2.3. Sales price limits.
A. For reservations made on or after March 1, 1988,
The authority’s maximum allowable sales price for new
loans for which reservations are taken by the authority on
or after March 1, 1989, shall be as foliows:
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE SALES PRICES

Applicable {o All New Loans for which Reservations are
Taken by the Authority On or after March 1, 1989

NEW CONSTRUCTION/

EXISTING/
SUBSTANTIAL
AREA REHABILITATICN
Washington, DC-MD-VA MSA - $120,000

(Virginia Portion)
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1/

Norfolk-Virginia Beach- $ 81,500
Mewport News MSA

2/ )

Richmond -Petersburg MSA - § 79,500
3/

Charlottesville MSA $ 77,000
4/

Fauquier County $ 77,000
Spotsylvania and § 75,500

King George Counties

Balance of Stiate $ 75,500

1/ Includes: Alexandria City, Arlington County, Fairfax

City, Fairfax County, Falls Church City, Loudoun
County, Manassas City, Manassas Park City, Prince
William County, Stafford County.

2/ Includes: Chesapeake Cily, Gloucester County,
Hampton City, James City County, Newpert News City,
Norfolk City, Poguoson City, Portsmouth City, Suffolk
City, Virginia Beach City, Williamshurg City, York
County.

3/ Includes: Charles City County, Chesterfield County,
Coloniat Heights City, Dinwiddie County, Goockland
County, Hanover County, Hemnrico County, Hopewell
City, New Kent County, Petersburg City, Powhatan
County, Prince George County, Richmond City.

4/ Includes: Albemarle County, Charlottesville City,
Fluvanna Couanty, Greene County. :

B. Effect of solar grant.

The applicable maximum aliowable sales price for new
construction shall be increased by the amouni of any grant
to be received by a mortgagor under the authority’s Solar
Home Grant Program in connection with the acquisition of
a residence. :

§ 2.4, Net worth.

Te be eligible for authority financing, ar applicant
cannot have a net worth exceeding $20,000 plus an
additional $1,00¢ of net worth for every $5,000 of income
over $20,000. (The value of furniture and household: goods
shall not be included in determining net worth) In
addition, the portion of the applicant’s liquid assets which
are used to make the down payment and to pay closing
“costs, up to a maximum of 25%, of the sale price, will not
be included in the net worth calculation.

Any income producing assets needed as a source of
income in order to meet the minimum income
requirements for an authority loan will not be included in
the applicant’s net worth for the purpose of determining

whether this net worth limitation has been violated. .
§ 2.5. Income requirements,
A. Maximum gross income,

As provided in § 2.2.1.A.6 the gross family income of an
applicant for an authority mortgage loan may not exceed
the applicable income limitation imposed by the U.S.
Department of the Treasury. Because the income limits of
the authority imposed by this subsection A apply to all
loans to which such federal limits apply and are in all
cases below such federal limits, the requiremenis of §
2.2.1.A6 are automatically met if an applicant’s gross
family income does not exceed the applicable limits set
forth in this subsection.

For the purposes hereof, the term “gross family income”
means the combined annualized gross income of ali
persons residing or intending to reside in a dwelling unit,
from whatever source derived and before taxes or
withholdings. For the purpose of this definition, annualized
gross income means gross monthly income multiplied by
12. “Gross monthly income” is, in turn, the sum of
monthly gross pay plus any additional dividends, interest,
royalties, pensions, Veierans Administration compensation,
net rental income plus other income (such as alimony,
child support, public assistance, sick pay, social security
benefits, unemployment compensation, income received
from trusts, and income received from business activitier
or investments).

For reservations made on or afier March 1, 1989, the
maximum gross family incomes for eligible borrowers
shall be determined or set forth as follows:

(1} MAXIMUM GROSS FAMILY INCOME

Applicable only to loans for which reservations are
taken by the authority on or after March I, 1989 ,
except loans to be guaranteed by the Farmers
Home Admiristration {“FmHA") .

The maximum gross family income for each borrower
shall be a percentage (based on family size) of tie
applicable median family income (as defined in Section
143(1)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Median Family Income’), with respect to
the residence of such borrower, which percentages shall

be as follows:
Percentage of applicable Median
Family Income (regardless
of whether residence is new
construction, existing or

Family Size substantlally rehabilitated)

1 person 0%
2 persons 5%
3 or more persons 100%

The authority shall from time to time inform if
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siginating agents and servicing agenis by written
notification thereto of the foregoing maximum gross family
income limits expressed in dollar amounts for each area
of the state and each family size. The effective dates of
such limits shall be determined by the executive director.

(2} FmHA MAXIMUM GROSS FAMILY INCOME
Applicable only to loans to be guaranteed by FmiHA.

The maximum gross family income for each borrower
shail be the lesser of the amount determined in
accordance with [ § Y 2.5 A (1) or FmHA income
limits in effect at the time of the application.

B. Minimum inceme (nof applicable to applicants for
loans to be insured or guaranteed by the Federal Housing
Administration ez , the Veierans Administration or FmHA
(hereinafter referred to as “FHA er , VA or FmHA
loans”).

An applicant satisfies the autherity’s minimum income
requirement for financing if the monthly principal and
interest, tax, insurance (“PITI”) and other additicnal
monthly fees such as condominium assessmenis (60% of
the monthly condominium assessment shall be added to
the PITI f{igure), townhouse assessments, etc. do not
exceed 329 of monthly gross income and if the monthly
PITI plus ouistanding monthly installment loans with more
than six months duration do not exceed 40% of monthly
ross income (see Exhibit B). However, with respect to
those mortgage loans on . which private morigage insurance
is required, the privaie mortgage ingurance company may
impose more siringent requirements.

§ 2.6. Calculation of maximum loan amount.

Single family detached residence and townhouse (fee
simple ownership) Maximum of 95% (or, in the case of a
FHA er , VA or FmHA loan, such other percentage as
may be permifted by FHA e , VA or FmHA ) of the
lesser of the sales price or appraised value, except as may
otherwise be approved by the authority.

Condominiums - Maximum of 95% (or, in the case of a
FHA or , VA or FrmHA loan, such other percentage as
may be permitted by FHA o , VA or FmHA ) of the
tesser of the sales price or appraised value, except as may
be otherwise approved by the authority.

For the purpose of the above calculations, the value of
personal property to be conveyed with the residence shall
be deduycted from the sales price. (See Exhibit R for
examples of personal property.) The wvalue of personal
property included in the appraisal shall not be deducted
from the appraised value. (See Appraiser Report, Exhibit
H)

In the case of a FHA or , VA or FmHA loan, the FHA
8¢ , VA or FmHA insurance fees or guarantee fees
wharged in connection with such lean (and, if a FHA loan,

the FHA permitied cloging costs as well) may be included
in the calculation of the maximum lcan amount in
accordance with applicable FHA and , VA or FmHA
requirements, provided, however, that in no event shall
this revised maximum lcan amount which includes such
fees and closing costs be permitted to exceed the
authority’s maximum allowable sales price limits set forth
herein.

§ 2.7. Morigage insurance requirements.

Uniess the loan is an FHA er , VA or Fmid loan, the
borrower is required to purchase at time of loan cloging
full private mortgage insurance (25% to 100%, coverage,
as the authority shall determine) on each loan the amount
of which exceeds 80% of the lesser of sales price or
appraised value of the property {0 be financed. Such
insurance shall be issued by a company accepiable o the
authority. The originating agent is required to escrow for
annual payment of morigage insurance, If the authorily
requires FBA e , VA or FmHA insurance or guarantee
the loan will either, at the election of the authoriiy, (a) be
closed in the authority’s name in accordance with the
procedures and requirements herein or (b) be closed in
the originating agents name and purchased by the
authority once the FHA Certificate of Insurance e , VA
Guaranty or FmHA Guararfee has been cobtained. In the
event that the authority purchases an FHA or , VA or
FmHA loan, the originating agent must enter into a
purchase and sale agreement on such form as shall be
provided by the authority. For assumptions of conventional
loans (i.e, loans other than FHA amd , VA or FmHA
loans), full private mortgage insurance as described above
is required unless waived by the authority.

§ 2.8. Underwriting.
A, -Conventional loans.

The following requirements must be met in order to
satisfy the authority’s underwriting requirements. However,
additional or more stringent requirements may be imposed
by private morigage insurance companies with respect to
those loans on which private morigage insurance is
required.

1. Empleyment and income.

a. Lengih of employment. The applicant must be
employed a minimum of six months with present
employer.. An exception to the six-month
requirement can be granted by the authority if it
can be determined that the type of work is similar
to previous employment and previous employment
was of a stable nature.

b. Self-employed applicants. Note: Under the tfax
code, the residence may not be expected to be used
in firade or business. (See § 22.1.C Principal
residence requirement.) Any self-employed applicant
must have a minimum of (wo years of
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self-employment with the same company and in the
same line of work. In addition, the following
information is required at the time of application:

(1) Federal income tax returns for the two most
recent tax years.

-'(2) Balance sheets and profit and loss statements
prepared by an independent public- accountant.

In determmmg the income for a selfemployed
applicant, income will be averaged for the two-year
period.

¢. Income derived from sources other than primary
employment.

{1) Alimony and child support. A copy of the legal
document and sufficient proof must be subritted to
the authorily verifying thai alimony and child
support are court ordered and are heing received.
Child support paymenis for children 15 years or
-older are not accepted as income in quahfymg an
applicani for a lean.

(2) Social security and other retirement benefits.
Social Security Form No. SSA 2458 must be
submitted to verify that applicant is receiving social
security benefits. Retirement bDenefils must be
verified by receipt or retirement Schedules. VA
disability benefiis must be verified by the VA,
Educational benefits and social securily benefits for
dependents 15 years or older are not accepied as
income in gualifying an applicant for a loan.

(3) Parttime employment. Part-time employment
must be comtinuous for a minimum of six months,
Employment with different employers is accepiable
so0 long as it has been uninterrupted for a minimum
of six months. Part-time employment as used in this
section means employment in addition to full-time
employment.

Part-time employment as the primary employment
will - also be required to be continuous for six
months.

(4) Overtime, commission and bonus. Overtime
~ earnings must be guaranteed by the employer or
verified for & minimum of t{wo years. Bonus- and
commissions must beé reasonably predictable and
stable and the applicant’s employer must submit
evidence that they have been paid on a regular
basis and can be expected to be paid in the future.

2, Credit,

- a. Credit experience. The authority requires that an
applicant’s previous credit experience be
satisfactory. Poor credit references without an
‘acceptable explanation will cause a loan to be

rejected. Satisfactory credit references are
considered to be one of the most important
requirements in erder io obiain an suthority loan.

b. Bankruptcies. An applicant will not be considered
for a loan if the applicant has been adjudged
bankrupt within the past two years and has a poor
credit histery. If longer than two years, the
applicant must submif a wrilten explanation giving
details surrounding the bankruptcy and poor credit
history. The authority has complete discretion fo
decline a loan when a bankruptcy and peor credit is
involved.

¢. Judgments. An applicant i§ required to submit a
written explanation for all judgments. Judgments
must be paid before an applicant will be considered
for an authority loan.

3. Appraisals. The authority reserves the right to
obtain an independent appraisal in order to establish
the fair market wvalue of the property and to
determine whether the dwelling is eligible for the
merigage loan requested.

B. FHA lecans only.

i, In general. The authority will normally accept FHA
underwriting requirements and property standards for
FHA loans. However, most of the authority’s basic
eligibility requiremenis including fhose described in §«
2.1 through 2.5 hereof remain in effect due to
{reasury restrictions or authorily policy.

2. Morigage insurance premium. Applicant's morigage
insurance premium fee may be included in the FHA
acquisition cost and may be firanced provided that
the final loan amount does not exceed the authority’s
maximum allowable sales price. Tn addition, in the
case of a condominium, such fee may not be paid in

~ full in advance but insiead is payable in annual

instaliments.

3. Closing fees. The FHA allowable closing fees may
be includéd in ihe FHA acquisition cost and may be
financed provided the final loan amouni does not
exceed the authority’s maximum aliowable sales price.

4, Appraisals. FHA appraisals are acceptable. VA
certificates of reasonable value (CRV's) are acceptable
if accepiable to FEA.

C. VA loans only.

1. In general. The authority will normally accept VA
underwriting requirements and property guidelines for
VA loans. However, most of the authority’s basic
eligibility requirements (including those described in
§§ 2.1 through 2.5 hereof) remain in effect due to
freasury restrictions or authority policy.

/
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. & VA funding fee. 1.0% funding fee can be included
in loan amount provided fina! loan amount does not
exceed the authority's maximum allowable sales price.

3. Appraisals. VA certificates of reasonable value
{CRV's) are acceptable. : '

D. FmHA loans only.

1. In general. The aulhority will normally accept
FmHA underwriting requirements and property
standards for FmHA loans. However, most of the
authoriiy’s ~basic eligibility requirements
those described in §§ 2.1 through 2.5 hereof remain in
effect due fo treasury restrictions or authority policy.

2. Guarantee fee. 1.0% FmHA guarantee fee can be
included in loan amount provided final loan amount
does nol exceed the authority’s maximum alfowable
sales price.

E FmHA Inierest Assistance Program.

Borrowers with low income, as determined by FmHA,
are eligible for interest assistance payments. FmHA will
make monihly payments to the authorily to reduce the
effective interest rafe, depending om the borrower’s
income. However, no borrower will pay less than 20% of
adjusted income, as determined by FmHA, for principal,
;‘nterest, taxes, and insurance. Interest assistarnce
yayments will be recalculated by the authority at such
" lmes as are required by FmHA. All interest assistance By
FmHA is subject fo recapiure by FmHA ai the time lhe
property is sold. In the eveni the authority inlends lo sell
the FmHA Interest Assistance Program loans lo the
Federal National Morigage Association (“FNMA”), each
such loan must safisfy all of the applicable guidelines,
requirements, terms and conditions imposed by FNMA.

B: F. FHA and VA buydown program.

With respect to FHA and VA loans, the anthority permits
the deposit of a sum of money (the “buydown funds™) by
a party (the “provider”) with an escrow agent, a portion
of which funds are to be paid to the authority each month
in order to reduce the amount of the borrower’s moenthiy
payment during a certain period of time, Such
arrangement is governed by an escrow agreement for
buydown mortgage loans (see Ezxhibit V) executed at
closing (see § 2.15 for additional information). The escrow
agent will be required to sign a certification (Exhibit X)
in order tfo satisty certain FHA requirements. For the
purposes of underwriting buydown mortgage loans, the
reduced monthly payment amount may be taken into
account based on FHA guidelines then in effect (see also
subsection B or C above, as applicable).

E: G. Interest rate buydown program.

Unlike the program described in subsection [ B F ]
- above which permits a direct buydown of the borrower’s

including -

monthly payment, the authority alse from time io time
permits the buydown of the inierest rate on 2
conventional, FHA or VA morigage loan for a specified
period of time. '

§ 2.%. Funds necegsary to close.

A. Cash (Not applicable to FHA st , VA or FmHA4
loaas).

Funds necessary to pay the downpayment and closing
costs must be deposited at the time of loan application.
The authority doss nol permit the applicant to borrow
funds for this purpose , excep! where (i} the loen amount
Is less than or egual to 80% of the losser of the sales
price or the appraised value, or (i} the loan amount
exceeds S80% of the lesser of the sales price or the
appraised value and the epplicant borrows a portion of
the funds from their employer with the approval of the
private morigage insurer and the applicant pays in cash
from their own funds [ er an | amount equal to at least
3.0% of the lesser of the sales price or the appraised
value . If the funds are being held in an escrow accouni
by the real estate broker, builder or closing attorney, the
source of the funds must be verified. A verification of
deposit from the parties other than financial institutions
authorized to handle deposited funds is not acceptabile.

B. Gift letters.

A gifi latter is required when an applicant proposes to
obtain funds as ¢ gift from a third party. The giit letter
must confirm that there is no obligation on the part of the
borrower to repay the funds at any time. The party
making the gift must submit proof thai the funds are
availaple. This proof should be in the form of a
verification of deposit.

C. Housing expenses.

Proposed monthly housing expenses compared to current
monthly housing -expenses will be reviewed carefully to
determine if there is a substaniial increase. If thers is a
substantial increase, the applicant must demonstrate his
ability to pay the additional expenses.

§ 2.10. Loap assumptions.
A. Requirements for assumptions.

VHDA currently permits assumptions of all of its singie
family mortgage loans provided that certain requirements
are met For all leans closed prior to January 1, 1891,
except FHA loans which were closed during calendar year
1990, the maximum gross family income for thoss
assuming a lcan shall be 1009% of the applicable Median
Family Income. For such FHA loans closed during 1990, if
assumed by a household of three or more persons, the
maximum gross family income shall be 115% of the
applicable Median Family Income (1409 for a residence
in a targeted area) and if assumed by a household of less
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than three persons, the maximum gross family income
shall be 100% of the applicable Median Family Income
(1209, for a residence in a targeted area). For all loans
closed after January 1, 1991, the maximum gross family
income for those assuming loans shall be as set forth in §
2.5 A of these regulations. The requirements for each of
the two different categories of morigage loans listed below
{and the subcategories within each) are as follows:
I. Assumptions of conventional loans,

a. For assumptions of conventional loans financed

by  the proceeds of bonds issued on or afier

December 17, 1981, the requirements of the

foliowing sections hereof must be met: '

(1) Maximum gress family income requirement in
this § 2.10 &

{2} § 2.21.C (Principal residence requirement)

(3) § 2.8 (Authority underwriting requirements)

(4) § 2.2.1.B (Three-year requirement)

{5) § 2.2.2.B (Acquisition cost requirements)

(6) § 2.7 (Morigage insurance requirements).

b. For assumptions of conventional loans financed
by the proceeds of bonds issued prior to December
17, 1881, the requiremenis of the following sections

hereof must be met:

(1) Maximum gi'oss family income requirement in
this § 2.10 A

(2) § 2.2.1.C (Principsl residence requirements)
{3) § 2.8 (Authority underwriting requireme_nts)
(4) § 2.7 (Mortgage insurance requirements).

2. Assumptions of FEHA er , VA or FrnHA loans.
a. For assumptions of FHA er , VA or FmEA loans
financed by the proceeds of bonds issued on or
after December 17, 1981, the following conditions
must be met:

(1) Maximum gross family income requirement in
this § 2.10.A _ :

§ 2.2.1.C (Principal residence requirement)
(3) § 2.2.1.B (Three-year requirement)
(4) § 2.2.2.B (Acquisition cost requirements).

In addition, all applicable FHA o , VA or FmHA
uetderwriting requirements, if any, musi be met.

b. For assumpticns of FHA er , VA or FruH4 loan.

. financed by the proceeds of bonds issued prior to
December 17, 1981, only the applicable FHA er ,
VA or FmHA underwriting reduirements,  if aay,
must he met.

B. Aunthorization to process assumpiions/Requirerment
that the authority to contacted.

Although the requirements listed in subseciion A above
are generally those that only originating agenfs are
responsible for determining compliance with, in the case
of assumpticns, servicing agenfs are alse autherized to
make such determinations. More generally, for the
purposes of this § 2.10, servicing agenis may process
assumption requests provided that they do so in
accordance with all the requirements hereof, including
those otherwise the exclusive reponsibility of originating
agents. Accordingly, references are made within this
section to “originating agenis or servicing agenits” in order
to reflect this additional role of servicing agents.

The originafing agent or servicing ageni must in each
case of & request for assumption of a morigage loan
contact the authority in order to determine which category
of Ioans described in subsection A above applies to the
loan and whether or mnol the requirements of the
applicable category are satisfied. (For example, in cases of
assumptions, the originating agent or servicing agent may
not rely - as it may for new loans - on the fact that the
acquisition cost of the dwelling is less than the authority’
sales price limits to satisfy the acqguisition cosi
requirement, It is therefore essential that the authority be
coniacted in each case.)

C. Applicgtion package for assumptions.

Once the originating agent or servicing agent has
contacted the authority and it has been determined which
of the categories described in subsection A above applies
to the locan, the originating agenmt or servicing agent must
submit to the authority the information and documents
listed below for the applicable category.

1. Assumption package for conventional loans:

a. Conventional loans financed by the proceeds of
bonds issued on or affer December 17, 1981;

(1) Affidavit of borrower (Exhibit E).

(2) Affidavit of seller (Exhibit F).

(3) Acquisition cost worksheet (Exhibit G).
(4) Appraiser’s report (Exhibit H).

(6) Three year’s tax returns.

(8) Originating agent's checklist (Exhibit A(l)).
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(7) 4506 form (Exhibit Q).

(8) Originating agent’s loan submission cover letter
(Exhibit 0(1).

(9) Authority’s completed application (Exhibit D).

(10) Verification of employment (VOE's) (and other
income related information). .

(11) Verification of deposit (VOD's).
(12) Credit report.

(13) Sales contract.

(14) Truth-in-Lending (Exhibit K) and estimate of

charges.

(15) Equal Credit Opportunity Act (ECOA)

/Recapture Tax/RESPA notice (Exhibit I),

(16) Authority underwriting qualification
{Exhibit B(1)).

sheet
(17) All other requ:rements of state and federal law
must he met.

b. Conventional loaﬁs financed by the proceeds of
bonds issued prior to December 17, 1981:

(1) Authority’s completed application (Exhibit D).

(2) Verification of employment (VOE's) (and other

income related information).

(3) Verification of deposit (VOD's).
(4) Credit report. .

(5) Sales contract.

(6) Truth-in-Lending (Exhibit K) and estimate of
charges.

(7) Equal Credit Opportunity Act (ECOA) /Recapiure
Tax/RESPA notice (Exhibit I).

(8) Authority underwriting qualification sheet
(Exhibit B(2)).

(9 All other requirements of state and federal law
must be met.

2. Assumption package for FHA er , VA or FmHA
loans.

a. FHA or , VA or FmHA loans financed by the
proceeds of bonds issued on or atier December 17,
1981:

(1) Affidavit of borrower (Exhibit E).

(2) Affidavit of seller (Exhibit F).

(3) Acquisition cost worksheet (Exhibit G).

(4) Appraiser's Report (Exhibit H).

(5) Three yeer's years’ tax returns,

{6) Originating agent's checklist (Exhibit A(1)}.
(7) 4506 form (Exhibit Q).

(8) Originating agent’s loan submission cover letier
(Exhibit 0(2) or (3).

(9) Authority’s completed application (Exhibit D).
(10) Sales contract.

(11) Copy of the executed FHA moi’tgage credit
analysis worksheet if the original borrowers are to
be released from liability.

(12) Equal Credit Opportunity Act (ECOAYRecapture
Tax/RESPA notice (Exhibit 1).

(13) Truth-n-Lending (Exhibit K) and estimale of
charges if original borrowers are to be released
from liability.

(14} A copy of the FHA Notice to Homeowner, if
the "original borrowers will not be released from
liability.

€2 (15) In addition, all applicable requirements, if
any, of FHA or , VA or FmHA and those under
state and federal law musi alse be met.

b. FHA e , VA or FmHA loans financed by the
proceeds of bonds issued prior to December 17,
1981: Only the The applicable requirements, if any,
of FHA er , VA or FmHA and those under state
and federal law must be met, ‘

D. Review by the authority/additional requirements.

Upon receipt from an originatinog agent or servicing
agent of an application package for an assumption, the
authority will determine whether or not the applicable
requirements referenced above for assumption of the loan
have been met and will advise the originating agent or
gervicing agent of such determination in writing. The
authority will further advise the originating agent or

‘servicing agent of all other requirements necessary to

complete the assumption process. Such requirements may
include but are not limited to the submission of
satisfactory evidence of hazard insurance coverage on the
property, approval of the deed of assumption, satisfactory
evidence of mortgage insurance or mortgage guaranty
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including, if applicable, pool insurance amd , Submission of
an escrow transfer leiter and execution of a Recapture
Requirement Notice (VHDA Doc. R-I) .

§ 2.11. Leasing, loan term, and owner occupancy.
A. Leasing, '

'The owner may not lease the property without first
ceniacting the authority.

B. Loan term.
Loan {erms may not exceed 30 years,
C. Owner occupancy.

N¢ loan will be made unless the residence is to be
occupied by the owner as the ¢wner’s principal residence.

§ 2.12. Reservations/fees.
A, Making a reservation.

The authority currently reserves funds for each
morigage loan on 3 first come, first serve basis.
Reservations are made by specific originating agents with
respect to specific applicants and properties. No
substitutions are permitted. Similarly, locked-in interest
rates (see subdivision 5 below) are also nontransferable. In
order to make a reservation of funds for a loan, the
criginating agent shail:

i. First make a determination based on the
information then made availzble to it by the applicant
or otherwise that neilher the applicant nor the
properiy appears to violate any of the authority’s
eligibility requirements for a new loan.

2. Collect a $100 nonrefundable reservation fee (or
such other amount as the authorily may require).

3. Determine what type of morigage insurance or
guarantee Will be required; specifically, whether the
lean will be a conventional loan, an FHA loan e¢ , a
VA loan or an FmHA loan . .

4, Complete a reservation sheet (Exhibit C(1)).

5. Call the authority (after completing the four
preceding requirements) bhetween 9 am. and 5 p.m.
Monday through Friday for the assignment of a
reservation number for the loam, the inierest rate
which shali be locked in for the reserved funds and
an expiration date for the reservation, all of which
will be assigned after the originating agent gives to
the authority the following information:

a. Name of primary applicant

b. Social security number of applicant

c. Estimated loan amount
d. PDS agent's servicer number

e. Gross family income of applicant and family, if
any

f. Location of property (city or county)
g. Verification of receipt of the reservation fee

h. Type of mortgage insurance to be used (i
conventional, the authority will assign the loan a
suffix “C;” if FHA, the suffix will be “F’; and; if
VA, it will be “V” ; and if FmHA, it will be “FM”
)

6. Complete the reservation card by filling in the
reservation number, interest rate, expiration date and
by executing it (only an authorized representative of
the originating agent may sign the reservation card)
and, in addition, complete a lock-in disclosure (Exhibit
C(2)) and have the applicant execute it prior to
submitting it with the application package.

7. Submit the complete application package to the
authority (see § 2.13) along with evidence of receipt
of the reservation fee within 69 days after the
authority assigns the reservation number to the loan
(i.e, takes the reservation), Funds will not be
reserved longer than §0 days unless the originati;
agen{ requests and receives an addifional one-im.
extension prior to the 60-day deadline.

B. More than one reservation.

An applicant may request a second reservation if the
first has expired, but in no case may the interest rate be
reduced without the authority’s prier approval. In addition,
a second reservation fee must be collected for a second
reservation.

C. The reservation fee.

Under no circumstances is this fee refundable. If the
loan closes, it will be retained by the originating agent as
part of its 1.0% origination fee, If (1) the application is
not submitied prior to the expiration of the reservation, or
(ii) the authority determires at any time that the loan will
not close, this reservation fee must be submitted to the
authority within 30 days after such expiration or such
determination by the authority, as applicable. If, in such
cases, the fee is not received by the authority within such
30-day period, the originating agent shall be charged a
penalty fee of $50 in addition to the reservafion fee (see
subsection D for other fees). No substitutions of applicants
or properties are permitted.

D. Other fees.

1. Commiiment fee. The originating agent musi collec’
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at the time of the issuance of a commitment by the
authority an amount equal to 1.0% of the loan amount
less the amount of the reservation fee already
collected (such that the total amount received by the
originating agent at that point equals 1.0% of the loan
amount - please also note that for FHA loans the loan
amount for the purpose of this computation is the
base loan amount only). If the loan closes, the
originating apgent retains such 1.0% fee as its original
fee. If the loan does not close the origination fee
(which includes the reservation fee) must be
submitted to the authority when the failure io close is
due to the fauli of the applicant. On the other hand, if
the failure. to close is not due to the fault of the
applicant, then the coliected commitment fee less the
reservation fee may at the option of the authority be
refunded to the applicant. (The reservation fee, as
required in subsection C above is always submitted to
the autherity when a loan fails fo close.)

2. Discount point. The originating agent must collect at
the time of closing an amount equal to 1.09 of the

loan amount from the seller.- This fee is to be -

remiited to the authority by the originating agent.

Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC") form
and should be completed by an appraiser who has
been approved by FHLMC or a private morigage
insurer acceptable to the authority or who has a
certification from a trade organization approved by
the authority (photos and required supporting
documentation).

11. Loan submission cover ietter. (Exhibit 0(1))

12. Appraiéer’s report. - (Exhibit H)

13. Acquisition cost wofksheet. (Exhibit G}

14. Affidavit of seller. (Exhibit F)

15. Affidavit of borrower, (Exhibit E)

16. Federal income tax returns - copy of horrower’s
federal income tax returns to the extent required by
Item 6 in the affidavit of borrower and § 2.2.1.B.3

hereof.

(NOTE: If a letter from the Internal Revenne Service
is to be delivered pursuant to paragraphs § 2.2,1.B.3

§ 2.13. Preparation of application package for new loans. hereof, such letter must be enclosed instead).
A. Conventional loans. : 17. Originating agent’s checklist for certain
requirements of the tax code. (Exhibit A(1})
- The application package submitied to the authority for :
pproval of a conventional loan must contain the following

18. Signed request for copy of tax returns. (Exhibit Q)
driginal documents:

1. Reservation sheet (Exhibit C(1)) and lock-in

disclosure {Exhibit C{2)).

2. Application - the application must be made on the
authority’s approved application form. (Exhibit D}

3. Preliminary underwriting form. (Exhibit B)

4. Credit repert issued by local credit bureau and
miscellaneous information as applicable explanation of
bankruptcies, etc., (and any additional documentation).

5. Verification of employment ({(and any additional
documentation).

6. Verification of other income.

7. Verification of deposits (and any additional
documentation).

8, Gift letters (and verification).

9. Sales contract - contract must be signed by seller
and all parties entering into the contract and state
which parties are paying points and closing costs.

10. Appraisal (FHLMC No. 70) should be the Federal

19. U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (“HUD™) information booklet
acknowledgement by applicant of receipt of HUD
information booklet and estimate of the charges the
borrower is likely to incur as required by the Real
Estate Settlement Procedures Act of 1974, as amended
the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act
Amendments of 1975 (RESPA), as amended, and
Regulations Z (Truth-In-Lending), as amended.
Acknowledgement can be made part of the application
or can be a separaie statement. Applicant must
receive HUD information book the day application is
made,

20. Equal Credit Opportunity Act (“ECOA”) /Recapture
Tax/RESPA notice statement to borrower of provisiens
of the ECOA |, with borrower’s acknowledgement of
receipt, (Exhibit 1))

21. Truth-in-Lending Disclosure, (Exhibit K)

22. RESPA Disclosure Statement (Exhibit AA).

23. Quality Control Disclosure and Authorization
(Exhibit 'Y).

B. FHA loans.

National Mortgage Association (“FNMA”) or Federal The application package submitted to the authority for
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approval of an FHA loan must contain the following items
(please note that items 13 through 18 and 20 and 21 are
authority forms and must be submitied as originals, not
copies): .

1. Reservation sheet (Exhibit C(1)) and lock«n
disclosure (Exhibit C(2)). - )

2. Application - must be on the authority’s form and
can he handwritten if legible (Exhibit D).

3. Copy the HUD application (FHA form 92900).

4. Copy of the Mortgage Credii Analysis Worksheet
{HUD form 929060-ws).

5. Copy of the credii report.

6. Copy of verification of employment and current pay
stubs.

7. Copy of verification of other imcome.
8. Copy of verification of deposits.
9. Copy of gift letters (and verification).

10. Copy of sales contract.

22. U.S.. Depariment of Housing and Urb:
Deveiopment (“HUD”) information booklet -
acknowledgement by applicant of receipt of HUD
tnformation booklet and estimate of the charges the
borrower is likely to incur as reguired by the Real
Estate Settlement Procedures Act of 1974, as amended,
the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act
Amendments of 1975 (RESPA), as amended, and
Regulation Z (Truth-In-Lending), as amendead.
Acknowledgement can he made part of the application
or can be a separale statement. . Applicant must
receive HUD information beok the day application is
made.

23. Equal Credit Opportunity Act (“ECOA") /Recapiure
Tax/RESPA notice statement to borrower of provisions
of ECOA , with borrower’s acknowledgement of
receipt. (Exhibit I)

24. Truth-in-Lending Disclosure. (Exhibit K}

25. RESPA Disclosure Statement. (Exhibit AA)

26. Quality Control Disclosure and Authorization.
(Exhibit Y)

C. VA loans.

The application package submitted {o the authority for

11. Assignment letter - this must reference the case - approval of a VA loan must contain the following items
number, name of applicant, (please note that items 15 through 18 and 20 and 21 &

authority forms and must be subiniited as originals, n.
12, Copy of appraisal - this must be on a form copies:

acceptable t¢ FHA and must contain all supporting
documentation necessary for valuation.

13. FHA Notice to Buyers (Document F-3)

. 14, Loan submission cover letter. (Exhibit 0(2))
15. Appraiser’s report. (Exhibit H)
16. Acquisition cost worksheet. (Exhibit G)
17. Affidavit of seller. (Exhibit F)
18. Affidavit of borrower. (Exhibit E)
19. Federal income tax returns - copy of borrower's
federal income tax returns to the extent required by
Item 6 in the afﬂdawt of borrower and § 2.2.1.B3
hereof. '
(NOTE: If a letter from the¢ Iniernal Revenue Service
is to be delivered pursuant to paragraphs § 2.2.1.B.3
hereof, such letter must be enclosed instead).

20. Originating agent's checklist for certain
requirements of the tax code. (Exhibit A(1))

21. Signed request for copy of tax returns (Exhibit Q)

1. Reservation sheet (Exhibit C(1) and lock-in
disclosure (Exhibit C(2)).

2. Application - must be on the authority’s form and
can be handwritten if legible (Exhibit D).

3. Copy the VA application (VA form 26-18024).

4. Copy of the Loan Analysis Worksheet (VA form
6393).

5. Copy of VA certificate of eligibility.
6. Copy of VA benefits and related indebtedness letter.
7 Copy of the credit report.

8. Copy of verification of employment (if active duty,
inciude current LES form).

9. Copy of verification of other income.
10. Copy of verification of deposits.
11. Copy of gift letters (and verification).

12. Copy of sales contract.
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: 13. Copy of appraisal - this must be on a form
‘acceptable to VA and must comtain all  supporting
documentation necessary for valuation.

14. Loan submission cover letter. (Exhibit 0(3))
15. Appraiser's report. (Exhibit H)

16. Acquisition cost worksheet. (Exhibit G)

17. Affidavit of seller. (Exhibit F)

18. Affidavit of borrower. (Exhibit E)

19. Federal income tax returns - copy of borrower's
federal income tax returns to the extent required by
Hem 6 in the affidavit of borrower and § 2.2.1.B.3
hereof.

(NOTE: If a letter from the Internal Revenue Service
is to be delivered pursuani to paragraphs § 2.2.1.B.3
hereof, such letier must be enclosed instead).

20. Originating agent's checklist for certain
requirements of the {ax code. (Exhibit A(1))

21. Signed request for copy of tax returns (Exhibit Q)

22. U5, Department of Housing and Urban
Development (“HUD") information booklet -

+acknowledgement by applicant of receipt of HUD

» information booklet and estimate of the charges the
borrower is likely to incur as required by the Real
Estate Settlement Procedures Act of 1974, as amended,
the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act .
Amendments of 1975 (RESPA), as amended, and
Regulation Z (Truth-In-Lending), as amended.
Acknowledgement can be made part of the application
or can be a separate statement. Applicant must
receive HUD information book the day application is
made.

23. Equal Credit Opportunity Act (“ECOA”) /Recapture
Tax/RESPA notice statement to berrower of provisiens
of ECGA , with borrower’s acknowiedgement of
receipt. (Exhibit I)

24, Truth-in-Lending Disclosure. (Exhibit K)
25. RESPA Disclosure Statement. (Exhibit AA)

26. Quality Control Disclosure and Authorization.
(Exhibit Y)

D. FmHA loans.

The application package submitted lo the authorily for
approval of an FmHA loan must contein the foliowing
items (please note that ifems 13 through 18 and 20 and
21 are authority forms and must be submitted as
sriginals, not copies):

I Reservation sheet (Exhibit (1)) and lockin
disclosure (Exhibit [2)).

2. Application - must be on the authority’s form and
can be handwritten if legible. (Exhibit D)

3. Copy of the HUD application (FHA forrm 92900).
4. Copy of the credit report.

4. Copy of vertfication of employment and current
pay stubs.

6. Copy of verification of other income.

7. Copy of verification of deposits.

& Copy of gift letters (and verification).

9. Copy of .sales.[ eentraets contract ] .

10. Copy of uppraisal - this must be on a form
acceptable to FmHA and must contain all supportmg
documentation necessary for valuation.

11. Privacy Act Statement (Form FmHA 410-3).

12 Loan submission cover letter. (Exhibit (¥2))

13. Appraiser’s report. (Exhibit H)

I4. Acquisition cost worksheet. (Exhibit G)

15. Affidavit of seller. (Exhibit Fj

16. Affidavit of borrower. (Exhibit E)

17. Federdl income tax returns - capy of borrower’s
Jederal income tax returns to the exteni required by
Item 6 in the affidavit of borrower and § 2.2.1B.3
hereof. (NOTE If a letter from the Internal Revenue
Service is f{o be delivered pursuant to § 221B.3
hereof, such letter must be enclosed instead).”

18. Originating agerzt’s checklist for certain
requirements of the tax code. (Exhibit A1)

19. Signed request for copy of fax returns. (Exhibit Q)

20. US. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (“HUD”). information booklet -
acknowledgement by applicant of receipt of HUD
information booklet and estimate of the charges the
borrower is likely to incur as required by the Readi
Estate Seftlement Procedures Act of 1974, as

-amended, the Reql Estate Seftlement Procedures Act

Amendments of 1975 (RESPA), as amended, and
Regulation Z (Truth-in-Lending), as amended.
Acknowledgement can be made part of the
application or can be a separate statement. Applicant
must receive HUD iInformation book the day
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application is made.

21, Egqual Credit Opportunity Act ("ECOA”)/Recapture
Tax/RESPA rnotice, with borrower’s acknowledgement
of receipt. (Exhibit I)

22. Truth-in-Lending Disclosure. (Exhibit K)

23. RESPA Disclosure Statement. (Exhibit A4)

24, Quality Contral Disclosure and - Authorization.
{Exhibit Y}

25. Other items which FmiiA feqm’res. The authority .

will advise you of such additional requirements, "If
any.

B- E. Delivery of package to [ fhe ] authority.

After the application package has been completed, it
should be forwarded to: .

Singie Family Division

Criginations Department :
Virginia Housing Development Authority
601 South Belvidere Sireet

Post Office Box 5206

Richmond, VA. 23220-8206

§ 2.14, Commitment. (Exhibit J)
A. In general.

Upen approval of the applicaat, the authority will send a
morigage loan commitment {o the borrower in care of the
originating agent. Also enclosed in this package will be
other documents necessary for closing. The originating
agent shall ask the borrower to indicate his acceptance of
the morigage loan commitment by signing and returning it
to the originating agent, along with the 1.0% commitment
fee, within .15 days afler the date of the commitment. If
the borrower does so indicate his acceptance of the
commitment, the originating agent shall retain the fee in
accordance with § 2.1.2.D.1. above. If the borrower fails to
so indicate his acceptance of the commiiment, either by
failing to return an executed original thereof or by failing
to submit the fee, or both, the originating agent shall,
within 20 days after the date of the commitment, notify
the authority in writing of such failure. If the originating
agent does not do so, the authority shall deem that
commitment to havé been duly accepted, and the
originating agent shali be liable te the authority for the
uncollected commifmeni fee based on the loan’s failure to
close as described in § 2.1.2.D.1. above.

A commitment must be issued in writing by an
authorized - officer of the authority and signed by the
applicant before a loan may be closed. The term of a
commitment may be extended in certain cases upon
written request by the applicant and approved by the
authority. Generally, no more than one commitment will

be issued to an applicanf in any calendar year. Howeve
if an applicant who received a commitment fails to close
the mortgage loan transaction through ne fault of his own,
that borrower may be considered for one additional
commitment upon proper reapplication to the authority
within the one year period from the cancellaiion or
expiration of the original commitment; provided, however,
that the interest rate offered ir the additional
commitment, if issued, may be higher than the rate
offered in the original commitment. Such new rate and
the availability of funds therefor shall in all cases be
determined by the authority in iis discretion.

B. Loan rejection.

If the application fails to meet any of the standards,
criteria and requirements herein, a loan rejection letter
will be issued by the authority (see Exhibit L). In order to
have the application reconsidered, the applicant must
resubmit the application within 30 days after loan
rejection. If the application is so resubmitted, the credit
documentation cannot be more than 20 days old and the
appraisal not more than six months old.

§ 2.15. Loan setilement.
A. Loan closing'.

1. In general. Upon the borrower’s accepiance of the
morigage loan commiiment, the originating agent will
send the authority’s letier and closing instructions (se
Exhibits M and N) and the closing papers to th.
closing attorney. The originating agent should
thoroughly familiarize himself with the closing
instructions and should fill in all blanks such as per
diem interest, appraisal fee, credit report charges to
be collected at closing, and any special requirements
of the commitment before the closing instructions are
forwarded to the closing atiorney. The authority will
provide the originating agent with the documents
which the closing aftorney is required to complete.

Once the attorney completes the preclosing package, it
should be mailed to:

Single Family Division

Pre-Closing Section

Virginia Housing Development Authority
601 South Belvidere Sireet

Post Oiffice Box 4593

Richmond, VA 23220-8593

After the authority reviews the closing attorney’s
preliminary work and has been advised by the
originating agent in the case of an FHA er , VA or
FmHA loan that all applicable FHA er , VA or FmHA
requirements have been met, it will approve closing
and, a loan proceeds check will be sent to the closing
attorney or firm named in the ftitle insurance
commitment or binder as approved under the issuing
company’'s insured  closing service, along witr
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additional ciosing instructions. The closing attorney
‘may disburse loan proceeds only after he has
conducted the loan clesing and recorded all necessary
documents, including the deed of trust Securing
repayment of the loan to the authority and in all
other respecis is in a position to dishurse proceeds in
accordance with the authority's lefter autherizing the
closing, the commitmen{ and the instructions
previously issued by the originating agent. It is the
originating agent’s respensibility to see that all
documents and checks are received immediately after
loan closings and that they are completed in
accordance with the authority’s requirements,
Reguiation Z and ECOA. :

2. Special note regarding checks for buy-down points
(this applies to both the monthly payment buydown
program described in § 2.8.D above and the interest
rate buydown program described in § 2.8E) A
certified or cashier's check made payable to the
authority is to be provided ai lean closing for
buy-down points, if any. Under the tax code, the
original proceeds of a bond issue may not exceed the
amount necessary for the 'governmental purpose”
thereof by more than 5.09%. If buy-down points are
paid out of morigage loan proceeds (which are
financed by bonds), then this federal regulation is
violated because bond proceeds have in effect been
used to pay debi service rather than for the proper

“governmenial purpose” of making morigage loans..

_'g, Therefore, it is required that buy-down fees be paid
- 4 from the seller’s own funds and not be deducted from
loan proceeds. Because of this requirement, buy-down

funds may not appear as a deduction from the seller's

proceeds on the HUD-1 Settlement Statement.
B. Post-closing requirements,

All post-closing documents, inciuding the post-closing
cover letter (Exhibit P), should be forwarded as follows
{o:

Single Family Division

Post-Closing Section

Virginia Housing Development Authority
601 South Belvidere Street

Post Office Box 5427

Richmond, VA 23220-8427

Within five 10 days after the closing of the loan, the
originating agent must forward the fees, interest and any
other money due the authority, a repayment of the
authority’s outstanding construction lean, if any, private
mortgage insurance affidavit and all closing documents
except the original recorded deed of trust and title
insurance policy and hazard insurance pelicy.

Within 45 9¢ days after loan closing, the originating
agent shall forward to the authority the original recorded
deed of trust amd ,“final mortgage title insurance policy
~and FHA certification of insurance, VA guaraniy or FmHA

guarantee Within 55 days after loan closing the
originating agent shall forward to the authority the criginal
hazard insurance policy.

During the 120-day peried following the loan closing the
originating agent shall review correspondence, checks and
other documents received from the borrower for the
purpose of ascertaining that the address of the properiy
and the address of the borrower are the same, and also to
ascertain any change of address during such period and
shall notify the authority. if such addresses are not the
same or if there is any such change of address. Subject to
the authority’s approval, the originating agent may
establish different procedures to verify compliance with
the principai residence requirement in § 2.2.1.C. In the
event that the originating agent receives information at
any time that any itemn noted on the originating agent’s
checklist for certain requirements of the tax code may not
be correct or proper, the originating agent shali
immediately notify the authority.

§ 2.16. Property guidelines.

A. In general.

For each application the authority must make the
determination that the property will constitute adequate
security for the loan, The determination shall in turn be
based solely upen a real estate appraisal’s determination
of the value and condition of the property.

In addition, manufactured housing (mobile homes) may
be financed only if it is new construction and insured
1009 by FHA (see subsection C), Existing manufactured
housing is not eligible for authority financing.

B. Conventional loans.

1. Existing housing and new construction. The
following requirements apply to both new construction
and existing housing to be financed by a conveational
loan: (i) all property must be lecated on a state
maintained road (easements or rights-of-way to state
maintained roads are not acceptable as access to
preperties); (ii) any easements which will adversely
affect the marketability of the property, such as
high-tension power lines, drainage or other utility
easemenis will be considered on a case-by-case basis
to determine whether such easements will. be
accepiable to the authority; (iii) property with
available water and sewer hookups must utilize them;
and (iv) property without available water dnd sewer
hookups may have their own well and septic system;
previded that jeint ownership of a well and septic
system will be considered on a case-by-case basis to
determine whether such ownership is acceptable to
the authority.

2. Additional reguirements for new consiruction. New
construction financed by a conventional loan must also
meet Uniform Statewide Building Code and local code.

Monday, August 12, 1991
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C. FHA ar , VA or FmHA loans.

1. Existing housing and new consiruction. Both new
construection and existing housing financed by an FHA
e , VA or FmHA loan must meet all applicable
requirements imposed by FHA er , VA or FmlHA .

2. Additiona! requirements for new congiruction. If
such homes heing financed by FHA loans are new
manufactured housing they must meet federal
manufactured home construction and safety standards,
safisfy all FHA insurance reguirements, be on a
permanent foundation to be enclosed by a perimeter
‘masonry curtain wall conforming to standards of the

will approve loans to cover the purchase of .
residence, including the rehabilifation:

a. Where the eligible borrower is acquiring a
residence from a buiider or other selier whe has
performed a substantial rehabilitation of the
residence; and

b. Where the eligible borrower i§ acquiring an
unrehabilitated residence from the seller and the
eligible borrower contracts with others to perform a
subsiantial rehabilitation or performs the
rehabilitation work himself prior to occupancy.

Uniform Statewide Building Code, be permanently § 2.18. Condominium reguirements.

affixed to the site owned by the borrowers and be
insured 100% by FHA under its section 203B program.
In addition, the property must be classified and taxed
as real estate and no personal property may hbe
financed,

§ 2.17. Substantially rehabilitated.

For the purpose of qualifying as substantially
rehabilitated housing under the authority’s maximum sales
price limitations, the housing unit must meet the following
definitions: :

1. Substantially rehabilitated means improved to a
condition which meets the authority’s
underwriting/property standard requirements from a
condition requiring more than routine or minor repairs
or improvements to meet such requirements. The term
includes repairs or improvements varying in degree-
from gutting and extensive recomstruction to cosmetic
improvements which are coupled with the cure of a
substantial accumulation of deferred maintenance, but
does not mean cosmetic improvemenis alone..

2. For these purposes a Substantially rehabilitated
housing unit means a dwelling unit which has been
substaniizily rehabilitated and which is being offered
for sale and occupancy for the first time since such
rehabilitation. The value of the rehabilitation must
equal - at least 2595 of the total value of the
rehabilifated housing unit. - ’

& The authority’s staff will inspect each house

' submitied as substantially rehabilitated to ensure
compliance with our underwriting-property standards.
An appraisal is fo be submitted affer the authority’s
ingpection and is to Hisi the improvements and
egtimate their value.

4. The authority will only approve rehabilifation loans
to eligible borrowers who will be the first resident of
the residence after the completion of (he
rehabilitation. As a result of the tax code, the
proceeds of the mortgage lcan cannot be used to
refinance an existing mortgage, as explained in §
2.2.1.D (New mortgage requirement). The authority

A. Conventional loans.

1. The originating agent must provide evidence that
the condominium i3 approved by any iwg of the
following: FNMA, FHLMC or VA, The originating ageni
must submit evidence at the time the borrower's
application is submitted to the authority for approval

2. Al the time the borrower’s loan application is
submitied for the financing of a unit in any
condominium in which the authority has not
previously financed the purchase of any unifs, Exhibit
S, providing basic information about the condominium,
must be completed by the Unit Owners Association.
The most recent financial statemeni and operatin
budget of the condomininm {or, in the case of &
newly constructed or converied condominium, a copy
of the projecied operating budget and a copy of the
most recent financial statement, if any) must also be
submitted. The authority wil! review the above
described form and financial information. If on the
hasis of such review the authority finds the
condominiim to bhe acceptable, the condominium will
be approved and the individual loan application will
be processed. Exhibit § requires that the Unit Owners
Association agree to submit to the authorify upon its
request, the condominium’s annunal financial

‘statements, operating budge! and other information as

the authority may require, The association is also
required to agree that the authority shall have a right
to inspect the condominium and its records. The form
states that failure to comply with the foregoing shall
be grounds for the authority’s termination of its
approval of the condominimm.

3. Each year the authority will send Exhibit T to the
Unit Owners Association requesting information
concerning the condominium including & statement as
to the status of the approvals of VA, FNMA and
FELMC, as applicable, and a copy of the
condominium’s financial statement and operating
budget. The association will be advised that if the
request for information is not received within %0 days
from the date of the request, the authority may
terminate its approval of the condominium. The
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authority will review the financial statement and
operating budget and the questionnaire and if the
condominium remains in satisfactory condition, the
authority will continue to make morigage loans on the .
units subject to the limitations in paragraph 4 below.
In the event the authority determines a condominium
is not in satisfactory condition, the Unit Owners
Association will be given 60 days to correct the
deficiencies. If the deficiencies are not corrected to
the satisfaction of the authority, the condominium will
no longer be approved for financing. The Tequirements
and precedures in- this. section will also apply o
condominiums previously approved by the authority.

4, If a condominium is approved by FNMA, the
authority will make mortgage loans on no more than
50% of the units in the condominium. If the
condominium is not approved by FNMA, the authority
will make mortgage loans on no more than 25% of
the units in the condominium. If a condominium is {o
be phased, the foregeoing percentage limits will be
applied to sach phase until all phases are completed.
If the condominium has been previously approved by
the authority and exceeds the foregoing percentage
limitations, the authority will make no further
mortgage loans for the purchase of the units in the
condominium until such time as its percentage limits
are no longer violated. '

B. FHA a2 , VA or FmHA loans,

.~ The authority will accept a loan to finance a

condominium if the condominium is approved by FHA, in
the case of an FHA loan, [ e ] by VA, in the case of a
VA loan or by FmHA, in the case of an FmHA loan .

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES
(BOARD OF)

Title of Regulation: State Plan for Medical Assistance
Relating to Spousal Impoverishment
VR 469-82-2.6100. Eligibility Conditions and Requirements.
VR 460-03-2.6113. § 1924 Provisiens.
VR 460-04-8.6. Spousal Iimpoverishment.
Stautory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.
Effective Date: October 1, 1991.

Summary:

The provisions of § 1924 of the Social Security Act
define new methods for determining income and
resource eligibility and set forth a new method of
computing post-eligibility income for institutionalized
individuals who have spouses and dependent relatives
at home. These requirements allow a community
spouse (or other dependent relative) of a nursing
home patient a minimum income aflowance for basic
living expenses, and protect a specified amount of the
resources which the institutionalized spouse owns
individuaily or jointly with the community spouse. In
this way, the community spouse is not completely
impoverished in order for the institutionalized spouse
to become eligible for Medicaid.

The regulation is based upon the siatutory lenguage

“where that is clear, and upon the interpretive

guidelines obtained from HCFA where interpretfalion
is required. The levels of Income and resource
standards are the minimum required by federal law.

The federal statute allows states to apply these
income and resource rules to individuals in home and
community-based care waiver -programs. These
individuals receive services inlended to prevent their
entering nursing homes. The department evaluates

eligibility for these individuals in the same manner as
if they were institutionalized. This similar lreafmeni
ensures that individuals are not forced lo enier
nursing homes fo become eligible for Medicaid if
services in their private homes would cost Medicaid
less than nursing home care. Failure fo implement

spousal allowance rules jfor both groups
simultaneously could result in unnecessary and more
expensive nursing home placements for individuals
who otherwise would remain at home under the

waiver prograrm.

The final regulations contain no substantive
differences from the proposed regulations. The
description of the undue hardship was removed from
the State Plan at Supplement 13, Attachment Z2.6-A,
page 1, at the direction of the Health Care Financing
Administration. New language specified by the Health
Care Financing Administration was added which
states that the state has defined undue hardship. The
definition of “undue hardship” in the state regulations
at VR 460-04-8.6, § 1 and the exemption of excess
resources if denial of Medicaid would create an undue
hardship at § 2.11 were left intact. In another section
wording was added for clarification.

This regulation defines methods for delermining VR 460-82-2,6100. Eligibility Conditions and Reguirements,

income and resource eligibility for institutionalized
individuals who have a spouse or dependent relative
Iiving at home.

This Plan amending and regulatory action . affects
Attachment 26 A and the Spousal Impavenshment
regulations at VR 460-04-8.6.

3. For families and children,
each family member

AFDC level §
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Monthly Medically needy levels § See Below
' Other as follows §

dependent.

Standard based on the
formuia contained in
§ 1924(d)(1)(C) is used.

X 1.

4. Amounts for incurred medical

expenses not subject to payment

by a third party B
2. A fixed standard greater

than the amount which

would be used if the

formula described

in § 1924(d)(1)(c)

were used.

Health insurance premiums,
deductibles and co-insurance
cherges

Except as provided a.
in § 1924 of the Act,

the policies reflected

in €, items 1-5 apply.

See Supplement 13 for b.
additional policies
relative to § 1924,

Necessary medical or remedial

care not covered under the

Medicaid plan (Reasonable

limits on amounts are described

in Supplement 3 to ATTACHMENT X
2.6-A.) (No limits on amounts

are applied)

The standard used is

c. The standards described sbove
are used for individuals
receiving home and community
based services in lieu of
services provided in medical
or remedial institutions.

5. An amount for maintenance of a
gingle individual’s home for not
longer than 6 months, if a .
physician has certified he or she d.
is likely to return home within
that period,

Definition of dependency.

The definition of dependency
below is used to define

X Yes. Amount for maintenance of dependent children, parents
homa $........ See B.2. and siblings for purposes
. of deducting allowances
No. under § 1924,

1902(1) of the Act, 6. SSI benefits paid under The definition used is:

P.L. 98-643 § 1611(e)(1}(E) of the Act to
(§ 3(b)) individuals who receive care in Dependent Children — A couples’
a hospital, SNF, or ICF. children age 21 and older who
live with a community spouse
For § 1924 policies see Ba. and who may be claimed as
. - dependents by either member of
435.711 C. Financial Eligibility - Categorically a couple for tax purposes und
435,721 and Medically Needy and Qualified the Internal Revenue Services
435.831 Medicare Beneficiaries Code. This also includes minor
. children under age 21 who live
1. Income disregards - Cateporically with a community spouse,
and Medically Meedy and Quatified
Medicare Beneficiaries Dependent Parents -~ Parents
) - ) of either member of a couple
B.2. Group I = $216.67; Group II - $250.00; Group III who reside with the community

= $325.00
For appropriate family size (see Supplemént 1 to
Attachment 2.6A, Page 2)

spouse and who may be clalmed
as dependents by either spouse
for tax purposes under the’
Internal Revenue Services Code.

B.3.

7. Maintenance Standard for community
spouse and other dependent family
members under § 1924 of the Act.

Dependent Siblings — A brother
or sister of either member of
a couple {including and half-
brothers and half-sisters and
giblings gained through
adoption) who reside with the
community spouse and who may be
claimed by either member of
the married couple for tax
purposes under the Internsl
Revenue Services Code.

a. Community Spouses

X 1. Standard based on formula
contained in § 1924(d) is
used.

2. Maximum standard . )
contained in § 1924(d)3.

3. A fixed standard which is
greater than the minimum
standard described in
§ 1924(d) plus actual
shelter costs not to
exceed maximum
standard contained in

VR 466-63-2,6113. § 1824 Provisions.
§ 1924 Provisions

&. Income and Resource eligibility
policies used to determine

b.

§ 1824(d)(3)(c).
[ The standard used is

cee ]

Other family members who are

eligibility for
institutionalized spouses who
have spouses living in the
community are consistent with
§ 1924,

Virginia Register of Regulations

3616



Final Regulations

b. In the determination of
regource eligibility the
state resource standard is
$12,000 adjusted annually in
accordance with § 1924(g)

c. [ Fie defipitdon of undue
frerdwirtp or purposes of
wetermimning +F
institatiomeriized sponses
recetve Medicatd in spite
of having excess courtible
regourees 48 doseritbed befows

[ An institutionalized
spouse who (or whose spouse)
has extess resources shall
not bhe found ineligible
under title XIX of the Social
Security Act, per )

§ 1924(c)(3)(C),

where the state determines that
dental of eligibility on the
basis of having excess
resources would work an

undue hardship. |

YR 4680-04-8.8. Spousal Impoverishment,

PART 1,
GENERAL.

Article 1
Definitions.

§ 1.1 Definitions.

The following words and terms when used in these
regulations, shall have the following meanings unless the
context clearly indicates otherwise:

“Acceptable medical evidence” means either (i)
certification by a nursing home preadmission Sscreening
committee; or (i} certification by the individual's attending
physician.

“Applicable percent” means that percentage as defined
in § 1924 (dY3YB) of the Social Security Act.

“As soon as practicable” ( [ as it relates to ] transfer of
resources) means within 90 days from the date an
institutional spouse agrees to lransfer resources to the
communily spouse, unless the depariment determines that
a longer period is necessary.

“Al the beginning” of a continuous period of
institutionalization means the first calendar month of the
most recent continuous period of institutionalization or
receipt of waiver services.

“Community spouse” means a [ warriod | person who fs
not an inpatient at e medical nsiftution or nursing
facility and who Is married to an institutionalized spouse.

“Communily spouse maintenance needs allowance” s
an amount by which the applicable percentage of 1/12 of
the [ #Pb Federal Poverly Level | for a family of two, in
effect on July 1 of each year, plus an excess sheiter
allowance exceeds the amount of monthly income
otherwise avarlable lo the communify spouse. The
community spouse maintenance allowance cannot exceed
$1,500 [ adjusted annually in accordance with 1924g) |
except pursuant fo a court order or an amouni
designated by a DMAS hearing officer.

“Communily spouse resource allowance” means the
difference between a couple’s countable resources and the
greatest of (i) the spousal share, not to exceed $60,000; or
(1) the spousal resource standard, 312,000 or (i) an
amount transferred to the communily spouse by the
institutionalized spouse pursuant fo a courl order; or (iv)
an amouni designated by a department hearing officer.
For services furnished during a calendar year affer 1989,
the dollar amounts specified in this section shall be
increased by the same percenlage as the percentage
increase in the consumer price index for all urban
consumers (all items; US. cily average) between
Sepiember 1988 and the September bsfore the colendar
Year involved,

“Continuous period of institutionalization” means 30
consecutive days of institutional care in a meadical
institution or nursing facility, or 30 consecutive days of
receipt of waiver services, or 30 comseculive days of a
combination of institutional and walver services.
Continuity is broken only by 30 or more days absence
from institutionalization or waiver services.

“Countable resources” means all nonexempt resources,
except for a couple’s home, contiguous property,
household goods, and one automobile. These rtems are
exempl for purposes of determining the combined and
separate resources of institulionalized and community
spouses only.

“Department” means the Department of Medical
Assistance Services.

“Dependeni child” means a child age 21 years old or
older, of either spouse, who lives with the community
spouse and who may be claimed as a dependent by either
member of the couple for tax purposes pursuant fo the
Internal Revenue Code.

“Dependent family member” means a parent, dependent
child, or dependent sibling, including half brothers and
half sisters and siblings gained through adoption, of either
member of a couple who resides with the community
spouse and who may be claimed as a dependent by either
member of the couple for tax purposes pursuant to the
Internal Revenue Code.

Vol. 7, Issue 23

Monday, August 12, 1991

3617



Final Regulations

“Exceptional circumstances resulting In  significant
financial duress” means circumstances other than those
taken into account in establishing the spousal
maintenance allowance for which the communily spouse

incurs expenses in amounts that he cannot be expected fo -

pay from the spousal mainfenance allowance or from
amounits held in the community spouse resource
allowernce.

“Excess shelter allowance” means the actual monthly
expense of maintaining the community spouse’s residence
that exceeds 30% of the communily spouse mainlenance
needs allowance, but limited to the lotal of (i) rent or
morigage, Including inferest and principal; (ij) taxes and
ingurance; (i) any maintenance charge for a condominium
or cooperative; and (iv) utiities, if not included in the
rent or maintenance charge, excepl that ulilify expenses
will not be included to the extent that they exceed the
standard deduction under the Food Stamp program that
would be appropriate fo the number of persons living in
the community spouse’s household.

“Federal Poverty Level” or “FPL” means the annual
Federal Poverty Level as computed by the Office of
Managemen! and Budget and published in the Federal
Register.

“Initial determination” means:

1. Eligibility determinations made in conjunction with
Medicaid applications filed during an individual’s most
recent continuous period of institutionalization, or

2 The first redetermination of eligibility for a
Medicaid eligible institutionalized spouse after being
admitted fo an Institution or receiving waiver
services.

“Initial redeterminations” means those redeterminations
of eligibility for a Medicaid eligible spouse which are
regularly scheduled, or which are made necessary by a
change in the individual’s circumstances.

“Institutionalized spouse” means a married person Who
iz an inpalient of a medical nstitution or nursing facility
or who Is receiving walver services and who is likely to
rermain i Such facility or under such care [ for at least
2 consecutive days 1, and whose spouse is nof an
inpatient at a medical institution or nursing factlity.

“Likefy lo remain’” in an institution means a reasonable
expectation based on acceptable medical evidence that an
individual will be institutionalized for 30 consecutive days,
even if his institutionalization or waiver services actually
ferminate in less than 30 consecutive days.

“Maintenance needs standard” means an income
standard fo which a community spouse’s or other family
member’'s income is compared in order to determine the
community spouse’s and other jfamily members’
maintenance allfowance.

“Medical institution or nursing facility” means hospite
[ skiled and | nursing facilities [ ; intermediate care
facilities | (including ICF/MR) [ , ] conszstenf with the
definitions of such institutions faund in the Code of
Federal Regulations at 42 CFR 4351009 [ , 44040 and
440.150 | and which are authorized under Virginia law fo
provide medical care.

“Minor” means a child under age 21, of either spouse,
who lives with the community spouse.

“Other family members maintenance needs allowance”
means an amount for each family member, equal fto I/3 of
the applicable percentage of /12 of the FPL for o family
of two in effect on July I of each year, reduced by the
amount of the monthly income of that family member.
income or resources”

“Otherwise available means

" income and resources which are legally available fo the

community spouse and fo which lhe communiiy spouse
has access and conirol,

“Promptly assess resources” means within 45 days
urless the delay is due to nonreceipt of documentation or
verification, if required, from the applicant or from a
third party.

“Resource assessment” means an appraisal completed
by request of a couple’s combined countable resources af
the beginning of each conlinuous period of
institutionalization beginning on or afier September
1989,

“Spousal resource standard” means the minimum
amount of a couple’s combined countable resources
($12,000 in 1959 and as increased each year beginning in
1990 by the same percentage increase as in the Consumer
Price Index), necessary for the community spouse to
maintain himself in the community.

“Spousal share” means 12 of the couple’s countable
resources at the beginning of the most recent continuous
period of institutionalization, or af the beginning of a

“continuous period of receipt of waiver services, as

defermined by a resource assessment.

“Spouse” means a person who is legally married to
another person under Virginia law.

“State Plan” means the State Plan for Medical
Assistance. '

“Undue hardship” means denial of Medicaid eligibility
would result in the institutionalized spouse being removed
from the institution and unable to purchase life sustaining
medical care.

“Waiver services” means Medicaid reimbursed home or
community-hased services covered under a 19i5c) waiver
approved by the  Secretary of the United States
Department of Health and Hurman Services.
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PART II.
RESOURCE ASSESSMENTS AND ELIGIBILITY.

Article L
General,

§ 2.1 Applicability.

Resource assessment and resource eligihility rules
contained in Part II of these regulations shall apply to.

1. Persons whose first continuous period of
institutionalization began on or after September 30,
1989; and

2. Institutionalized persons who leave the Institution,
or cease receiving waiver services, for at least 30
consecutive davs and who are readmitied to the
institution for a continuous period, or begin receiving
waiver services for a continuous period, on or after
September 30, 1959,

Article 2. -
Assessments of Couple’s Resources.

§ 2.2 Resource assessment initiated.
A resource assessment shall be initigted:

1. Upon payment of a fee, if any, the amount of
Y which is delermined by the Depariment of Social
- Services, by either member ?f a couple, or a
representative acting on behalf of either spouse, if the
institutionalized spouse has not applied jor Medicaid;
or

2. Upon application for Medicaid by an
institutionalized spouse who has a community spouse.

§ 2.3. Notification of documentation reguired.

When a resource assessment s initiated, the
Department of Social Services shall notify the applicant of
all relevant documentation required to be submitted for
the assessment.

§ 24. Failure to provide documentation.

If an applicant fails to provide requested documentation

within 45 days of receipt of notification sent pursuanf to

§ 2.3, the department shall notify him a.‘hat the assessment
cannot be compieted,

§ 2.5. Notification of assessment and appeal rights.

The depariment shall provide each member of a couple
with copies of the completed resource assessment and the
documentation used to produce it. The department shall
notify the couple of the procedure by which to appeal the
resource assessment.

§ 2.6. Appeal of resource assessment.

A, [ Mon-Medieaid application: Not accompanied by a
Medicald application. }

If the resource assessment was conducted | pursuant 48
8 ner-Medicard without a concurrent Medicaid
application, it may [ not ] be appealed pursuant to the
existing Clieni Appeals regulations (VR 460-04:8.7) [ by an
Ingligible spouse, bul ineligible spouses will have an
opportunity to appeal assessment findings if and when
their institutionalized spouses apply for Medicaid ] .

B. Medicaid application.

A resource assessment which was conducted pursuant
to a Medicaid application submitied by the
institutionalized spoiuse may be appealed pursuant fo
existing Client Appeals regulations (VR 460-04-8.7).

Article 3.

Resource Eligibility Determinations for Institutionalized
Spouses.

§ 2.7. Applicability.

This article shall be used to determine an
institutionalized spouse’s initial and continuing eligibility
for his current continuous period of institutionalization,

§ 28 Initial eligibility determinations.

Except as provided in §§ 210 and 211 of these
regulations, an institutionalized spouse is eligible for
Medicard if the difference between the couple’s combined
countable resources and its communily spouse resource
allowance, as defined in § 11, is equal to or less than the
approprigie Medicaid resource limit for one person.

§ 2.9. Initial determinations of ineligibility.

If the difference between a couple’s current combined
countable resources and ifs community spouse resource
allowance s greater than the appropriate Medicaid
resource limit for one person, the institutionolized spouse
shall be ineligible for Medicaid until the couple’s combined
countable resources are reduced to the greatest of:

- 1. The state’s spousal resource standard ($12,000) plus
the appropriate Medicaid resource lLmit for one
person; or

2. The spousal share (not to exceed $60,000) plus the
appropriate Medicaid resource limit for one person; or

3. A court ordered spousal share plus the appropriate
Medicaid resource himit for one person; or

4. A spousal allowance defermined necessary by a
department hearing officer plus the appropriate
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Medicaid resource limit for one person.

5. For services furnished during a calendar year after
1988, the doliar amounts specified in this section shall
be increased by the same perceniage incredse in lhe
consumer price index for all urban consumers (all
iterns; U.S. city average) beiween September 1988 and
the September before the calendar year involved.

§ 2.10. Revisions to the communily spouse resource
aliowance.

For the purposes of this article, a communily spouse
resource allowance may be revised if:

1. A depariment hearing officer determines on appeal

that the income generated from the community
spouse resource allowance as originally calculated as
described in § 2.9 of this article is inadequate to raise
the community spouse’s income to the minimum
amount to be deducted as a maintenance allowance
in the posi-eligibilily determination made pursuant to
Part HI of these regulations; or

2. A department hearing officer determines on appeal
that the originel calculation was incorrect; or

3. The depariment determines that the original
information with which the spousal share was
calculated was incorrect.

§ 2.1, Additional resource exclusions.

- If an insfifutionafized spouse has resources exceeding -

the appropricte Medicaid resource limit for one person,
the following are deducted from his resources for the
purpase of establishing eligibility, as appropriate:

1. The amount of resotirces Which the institutionalized
spouse has transferred to the community spouse or lo
other dependents pursuant fo a court support order;

" 2 Support .rights of institutionalized spouses asszgnea'
to the Commonwealth;

3. Any support rights which cannot be assigned due
fo the institutionalized spouse’s legal Incompetency
and wupon which the Commonwealth would have a
legal right to recover against the communily spouse;

4. An amount necessary lo make the individual
eligible if the Department determines that the denial
of Medicaid would create undue hardship as defined
in § 1.1 of these regulations.

.8 2.12. Redetermination of eligibility of institutionalized
spouses.

Beginning with the first calendar month following the
. date of the initial deternunation of eligibility, unless § 2.18
or 219 of these regulations applies, the institutional

spouse’s continuing eligibility shall be determined baseu
selely on resources held in his name. The conunumity
spouse’s resources shafl not be deemed available to the
institutional spouse in the month follawmg the initial
month of ongoing eligibility.

§ 2.13. Post-eligibility resource transfers.

Affer an initial defermination of eligibility, an
institutionalized spouse may transfer to his community
spouse any of the community spouse resource uoilowance
which is not already titled to the community spouse. Amy
amount of the community spouse resource allowance
which is not transferred pursuant to this section and
which is not actually aevailable to meet the community
spouse’s needs, shall be deemed available to ke
institutional spouse for the purpose of determining
continuing eligibility.

§ 2.14. Protected periods of eligibility.

Subject to § 215, for 90 days after an initial
determination of eligibility, an institutionalized spouse’s
eligibility shall be protected (ie, the resources in the
community spouse resource allowance shail not be
attributed to the institutionalized spouse} to allow him
time to legally transfer resources pursuant fo § 2.13 if the
institutionalized spouse expressly indicates his intention to
effect such a transfer. Absent such an expression of
intent, the protected period will not extend beyond the
end of the month in which eligibility is being defermined
The depariment may extend the protected period if i
finds an extension is necessary.

§ 2.15. Exception to protected period of eligibility.

If, at the time of an initial determination of eligibilily, a
community spouse has litle to resources egqual to or
exceeding his community spouse resource allowance, no
prolected period of eligibility shall exist. In fthis
circumstance, an Institiutionalized spouse may transfer
resources in any amount to the commurnily spouse,
pursuant to § 1917 of the Social Security Act, but there
shall be no protected period of eligibility for doing so.

§ 2.16. Additional resources acquired during profected
period of eligibility.

If a couple obtains additional resources during «
protected period of eligibiity, the additional resources
shall be exempt during the protected period if:

I, The new resources combined with other resources
that the institutionalized spouse intends to retain do
not exceed the appropriate Medicaid resource [imit
for one person, or

2. The institutionalized spouse intends to transfer the
new resources during the protected period of
eligibility to the community spouse, and the
community spouse’s resources are less than the
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i community spouse resource allowance.

§ 2.17. Resources transferred pursuant to § 1917 of the
- Act.

Provided transfers are made within one month of the
inttinl determination of eligibilily, resources held by an
Institutionalized spouse shall not be counted in
determining continuing eligibility when § 1917 transfers
are made fo parties for which there is no penalty for
failure to receive eguitable value, or lransfer for which
equitable value is received.

§ 2.18. Resource eligibility deferminations in retroactive
pertods.

A. First application far Medicaid.

In each of the three months precea‘mg an
institutionalized spouse’s first application for Medicaid in
the current continuous period of institutionalization for
which resource eligibilily is to be determined, the
community spouse resource allowance shall be deducted
from the couple’s combined countable resources.

B. Later applications for Medicaid.

In later applications for the same period of
institutionalization, including retroactive months, the
conununily Spouse resource allowance shall not be
Yeducted for the couple’s combined  countable resources
except in the first month in the refroactive period for
which eligibility is being determined.

§ 2.19. Eiigibility for community spouses and other family
members.

Resources are considered under the eligibility rules
which would apply o the community spouse and other
family members, regardless of the rules governing the
institutionalized spouse.

PART IiL
POST-ELIGIBILITY PROCESS.

Article 1.
General.

§ 3.1. Applicability.

The post-eligibility process contained in Part HI of these
regulations shall apply to persons living in a nursing
facility and to persons recerving services under home and
community-based waivers, This process determines how
much such persons contribute lo the cost of their
mstitutional care or waiver services.

Article 2.
Income,

~f &2, Determining | of 1 income.

A couple’s income shall be determined as follows,
without regard to state laws governing community
property or division of marital property:

1. Income from nonirust property. Unless a
department fearing officer determines that the
institutionalized spouse has proven to the contrary by
a preponderance of the evidence:

a. Income paid to one spouse belongs to thai
spouse,

b. Each spouse owns one-half of all income puid fo
both spouses jointly;

¢. Each spouse owns one-half of any income which
has no instrument establishing ownership;

d. Income paid in the name of either spouse, or
both spouses and at least one other party, shall be
considered available to each spouse in a
proportionate share. When income is paid to both
spouses and each spouse’s individual interest is not
speczﬁed consider one-half of their joint interest in
the income as available io each spouse.

2. Income from trust property. Ownership of trust
property shall be determined pursuant to the State
Plan, except as follows:

a. Each member of a couple owns the income from
trust property in accordance with the [rust's
specific terms.

b. If a trust instrument is not specific as fo the
oWwnership interest in income, ownership shall be
determined as follows:

(1) Income paid to one spouse belongs fo that
spouse;

(2} One-half income paid to both spouses shall be
considered avarlable to each spouse;

(3} Income from a trust paid in the name of either
spouse, or both spouses and at least one other
party, shall be considered available to each spouse
in a proportionate share. When income from a trust
is paid to both spouses and each spouse’s individual
interest is nol specified, consider one-half of their
joint interest in the income as available to each
spouse.

Article 3.
Patient Pay.

§ 3.3 Applicability.
After all appropriate deduclions pursuant to §§ 3.4, 3.5,

and 3.6 have been made from an institutionalized spouse’s
gross monthly income pursuant to this article, the balance
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shall constitute the amount the institutionalized spouse
shall pay for institutional or waiver services.

§ 34 Mandatory deductions from ' institutionalized
spouse’s income. .

The foliowing amounts shall be deducted from the
institutionalized spouse’s gross monthly income:

1. A personal needs allowance of $30; and

2. The community spouse mainfenance allowance as
calculated pursuant to § 3.5, and

3. The family maintenance allowance, if any, as
caleulated pursuant to § 3.6; and

4. Incurred medical and remedial care expenses
recognized under State law, not covered under the
State Plan and not subject to third party payment.

§ 3.5. Community spouse maintenance allowance. -

A. The community spouse maintenance allowarice shall
" be the greatest of the following amounts:

I The total. of the community spouse maintenance
reeds standard and the excess shelter allowance; or

2. An amount set in a spousal support court order; or

3. An amount determined nécessary by a depariment
hearing officer because of exceptional circumstances
resulting in extreme financial duress.

B. Deductions are not made from the income of the
institutionalized spouse income when the allowances are
not actually made. available to the community spouse.

§ 6. Famtly members maintenance needs allowance

A An amount equal to 1/3 of the minimum manthly
standard for the community spouse, withou! regard lo
excess shelter aillowances, minus each family member’s
incorte, shall be deducted for the mamtenance of each
family member.

B This allowance is to be deducted regardless of ‘al: any time with respect to reconsideration or revision.

Whether the institutionalized spouse actually makes the
allowance available to the famtly member,

PART IV.
APPFEALS.

Article 1.
General,

§ 4.1. Applicability.

The appeals process contained i1 Part IV of these
regulations shall apply to appeals of initial determinations

and redeferminations of resources and income amouni
and allowances made in connection with applications for
Medicaid benefits by spouses institutionalized for a
continuous period on or after September 30, 1989, or
receiving waivered services for a continuous period on or
after September 30, 1989, pursuant to existing Client
Appeals regulations.

Article 2.
Notification.

§ 4.2. Notices.

Written notices are to be provided to the
institutionalized spouse and the community spouse
advising them of:

1. The amounts deducted for spousal and family
allowances used in the posteligibility calculation; and

2. Their rights to appeal the amounts deducted in the
caleulations for determining the spousal and farmily
allowances used in the post-eligibility calculation.

§ 4.3. Regulatory authority.

Hearings and éppeals held for the purpose of § 4.1 are
consistent with regulations at 42 CFR § 431 Subpart E.

§ 4.4 Hearing officer authority.

Through the appeals process applicable as described .
§ 4.1 of these regulations, hearing officers shall prescribe
appropriate increases in spousal maintenance allowances
in the event they determine that exceptional
circumstances extst which cause financial duress to the
community spouse.

* % % %k ok ¥ Kk ¥

|excludes regulations that consist only of changes in siyle

REGISTRAR'S NOTICE: This i'egulation is excluded from
Article 2 of the Adminisirative Process Act in accordaice
with § 961441 C 3 of the Code of Virginia, which

or form or corrections of technical errors. The
Department of Medical Assistance Services will receive,

‘consider and respond te petitions by any interested person

Title of &ggu_lg,tlﬂ State Plam for Medical . Assistance
Relating to Undue Hardship.

VR 460-63-2.6109. Transfer of Regovrces.

VR 460-04-2.6109. Transfer of Resources.

- Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Effective Date: October 1, 1991.

This action amends the Plan for Medical Assistance tr
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i

conform - to HCFA’s requirements concerning the
placement of undue hardship language.

This regulatory action affects Attachment 2.6 A,
Supplements 9 (Transfer of Resources) and 13 (Spousal
Impoverishment}) and state regulations 46004-2.6109
and 460-04-8.6.

HCFA issued a Regional Medicaid Letter 2580
regarding clarification of its policy of state
acknowledgement of the undue hardship provisions of
the Social Security Act §§ 190%kk4), 1917 cf2fD) and
1924y 3¥C). This regional Medicaid Letter supplied
State Plan language for incorpordtion that recognizes

the undue hardship provisions. Previous HCFA policy
had been to require the states to define undue
hardship provisions in their State Plans.

The Act $§ 191Fc¥¥D) and 1924cy3YC) prohibit
recipients from being found ineligible for Medicaid
when to do so would cause undue hardship. DMAS is,
therefore, moving ils existing policy on undue
hardship as relates to transfer of resources
{Supplement 9} and spousal impoverishment
(Supplement 13) to state regulations and adding the
language prescribed in the HCFA Regional Medicaid
Letter 25-90. Only the iransfer of resources regulation
is addressed in this regulatory package. Spousal
impoverishment provisions are contained in another
regulatory action. Since the Commonwealth has no
hardship provisions of § 190Xk} Medicaid qualifying
trusts, no changed language is herein proposed.

There is no fiscal impact for this change because
programmatic policies are not changing.

transfer. The computation of the period and the
reasonable velationship of this period to the
uncompensaied value is described as follows:

(See pages 8 and 9 of this supplement. This transfer
of resources rule includes the transfer of the former
residence of an inpatient in a medical institution.)

b. O The period of ineligibility is less than 24
months, as specified below:

¢. @ The agency has provisions for waiver of denial
of eligibility in any instance where the state
determines that a denial would work am undue
hardship.

2, Tranéfer of the home of an individual who is an
inpatient in a medical institution.

C A period of ineligibility applies to inpatients in an
SNF, ICF or other medical institution as permitted
under § 1917(c)(2)(B){@).

a. Subject to the exceptions on page 2 of this
supplement, an individual is ineligible for 24 months
after the date on which he disposed of the home.
However, if the uncompensated value of the home is
less than the average amount payable under this
plan for 24 months of care in an SNF, the period of
ineligibility is a shorter time, bearing a reasonable
relationship (based on the average amount payable
under this plan as medical assistance for care in an
SNF) to the uncompensated value of the home as
follows:

b. O Subject to the exceptions on page 2 of this

VR 460-03-2.6109. Tramsfer of Resources. supplement, if the uncompensated value of the home

is more than the average amount payable under this
plan as medical assistance for 24 months of care in
an SNF, the period of ineligibility is more than 24
months after the date on which he disposed of the
home. The period of ineligibility bears a reasonable
relationship (based upon the average amount
payable under this plan as medical assistance for
care in an-SNF) to the uncompensated value of the
home as follows:

§ 1. Transfer of resources.
1902(f) and 1917 of the Act.

The agency provides for the denial of eligibility by
reason of disposal of resources for less than fair market
value, See pages 8 and 9 -of this Supplement for
procedures applicable to all transfers of resources.

A, Except as noted below, the criteria for determining No 1nd1v1duai is ineligible by reason of subdivision A
the period of ineligibility are the same as criteria 2 if:
specified in § 1613(c) of the Social Security Act (Act).
(1) A satisfactory showing is made to the agency (in
accordance with any regulations of the Secretary of
Heaith and Human Services) that the individual can
reasonably be expected to be discharged from the

1. Transfer of resources other than the home of an
individual who is an inpatient in a medical institution.

a. The agency uses a procedure which provides
for a total period of ineligibility greater than 24
months - for individuals who have (transferred
resources for less than fair market value when the
uncompensated value of disposed of rtesources
exceeds $12,000. This period bears a reasonabie
relationship to the uncompensated value of the

medical institution and to return to that home;

(2) Tille to the home was transferred to the
individual's spouse or child who is under age 2i, or
(for states eligible to participate in the state
_program under title XVI of the Social Security Act)
is blind or permanently and totally disabled or (for
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states not cligible to .participate in the state program
under title XVI of the Social Security Act) is blind
or disabled as defined in § 1614 of the Act;

3 A satibfactory showing is made to the agency (in
accordance with any regulations of the Secretary of
Heaitk and Human Services) that the individual

‘intended to dispose of the home either af fair

markef value or for other vaiuable consideration; or

{4y The agency determines that denial of eligibility
would work an undue hardship.

3. 1802(1) States

O Under the provisions of § [902(1) of the Social

Security Act, the following itransfer of resource criteria

more restrictive thar those established under §
1817¢(c) of the Act, apply:

B. Other than those procedures specified elsewhere in
the supplement, the procedures for implementing denial of
eligibitity by reason of disposal of resources for less than
fair market value are as follows:

1. If the uncompensated value of the iranmsfer is
$12,000 or less: the individual is ineligible for two
years from the daie of the transfer.

2. If the uncompensaied value of the {ransfer is more
than $12,000: the imdividual is ineligible for two years,
plus an additional 2 months for every $1,000 or part

thereof of uncompensated value over $12,008, from the

date of {ransfer.
§ 2. Property transfer,

- An applicant for or recipient of Medicaid is ineligible

for Medicaid if ke transferred or otherwise disposed of his
‘legal equitable initerest in real or personal property for
iegs than fair market value. Trangfer of property preciudes
eligibility for two years from the date of the transfer if
the uncompenszted value of the property was $12,000 or
less. If the uncompensated value was over $12,000, an
additional iwo months of ineligibility will be added for
each $1,000 of additional uncompensated value (see
following table). “Uncompensated value” -means the
current market value of the property, or equity in the
property, at the time if was transferred, less the amount

of compepsation {money, goods, services, efc.) recewed for

~ the property.
Exceptions to this provision are:

1. When the iransfer was not made with the infent of
establishing or retaining eligibility for Medicaid or SSL
Any transfer shail be presumed te have been for the
purpose of establishing or reiaining eligibility for
Medicaid or SSI unless the applicant/recipient
furnishes convincing evidence (o establish that the
transfer was exclusively for some other purpose.

a. ‘The applicant/recipient has the burden o
establishing, by objective evidence of facts rather
than statement of subjective intent, that the transfer
was exclusively for another purpose.

b. Such evidence shall include evidence that
adequate resources were available at the time of
the transfer for the applicant/recipient’s support and
medical - care including nursing home care,
considering his age, state of health, and Ilife
expectancy

¢. The declaration of another purpose shali noi be
sufficient to overcome this presumpiion of intent.

d. The establishment of the fact that the
applicant/recipient did not have specific knowledge
of Medicaid or 58I eligibility policy is noi sufficient
to overcome the presumption of intent.

2. Retention of the property would have no effect on
eligibility unless the property is a residence of an
individual in a nursing home for a iemporary period.

3. When transfer of the property resulted in
compensation (in money, goods, or services) ifo the
applicant/recipient which approximated the equity
value of the property.

4. When the receiver of the property has made
payment on the cosi of the applicant/recipient’
medical care which approximates the equity value o.
the property.

5. When the property owner has been a victim of
another person’s actions, except those of a legal
guardian, commiitee, or power-of-atforney, who
obtained or disposed of the property without the
applicant/recipient’s full understanding of the action.

6. When prior to October 1, 1982, the Medicaid
applicant transferred a prepaid burial account (plan)
which was valued at less than $1,5006 for the purpose
of retaining eligibility for SSI, and was found ineligible
for Medicaid solely for that reason. The applicant,
after reapplying, may be eligible regardless of the
earlier transfer of a prepaid burial account if the
applicant currently meets all other eligibility criteria.

7. When the property is transferred into an
irrevocable trust designated solely for the burial of
the transferor or his spouse. The amount transferred
into the irrevocable burial trust, together with the face
value of life insurance and any other irrevocable
funeral arrangements, shall not exceed $2,000 prior to
July 1, 1888, and shall not exceed $2,500 after July I,
1988.

PERIOD OF INELIGIBILITY DUE TO TRANSFER OF
PROPERTY TABLE
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heompensated Velue of Property . Period of Ineligibility
$§ O - $12,000
* 24 months )
12,006.01 - 13,000 -

26 months
13,000.01 - 14,000

28 months
14,000.01 - 15,000

30 months
15,000.01 - 16,000

32 months

For each additional $1,000 add two months of ineligibility.

The preceding policy applies to eligibility determinations
on and before June 30, 1988. The following policy appiies
to eligibility determinations on and afier July 1, 1988.

1. The state plan provides for a period of ineligibility
for nursing facility services, equivalent services in a
medical institution, and home and community-based
services in the case of an institutionalized individual
(as defined in paragraph (3) of § 1917 (¢) who,
disposed of resources for less than fair market value,
at any time during or affer the 30-month period
immediately before the date the individual becomes
an Institutionalized individual (if the individual is
entitled to medical assistance under the state plan on
that date) or, if the individual is not entitled on the

. date of institutionalization, the date the individual

< applies for assistance while an institutionalized
individual.

a. 30 months, or

b. The total uncompensated value of the resources
so transferred, divided by the average cost, to a
private patient at the time of application, of nursing
facility services in the state.

2. An individual shall not be ineligible for medical
assistance by reason of subdivision 1 to the exfent
that:

a. The resources transferred were a home and title
te the home was transferred to:

(1) The spouse of such individual;

(2) A child of such individual who is under age 21,
or is blind or disabled as deffhed in § 1614 of the
Social Security Act;

(3) A sibling of such individual who has an equity
interest in such home and who was residing in such
individual's home for a period of at least one year
immediately before the date the individual becomes
an institutionalized individual; or

{(4) A son or daughter of such individuat (other than

a child described in subdivision 2) who was residing
in such individual’s home for a period of at least
two years Iimmediately before the date the
individual becomes an institutionalized individual:
and who (as determined by the state) provided care
to such individual which permitted such individual
to reside at home rather than in such an institution
or facility;

b. The resources were transferred to (or to another
for the sole benefit- of) the community spouse as
defined in § 1924(h)(2) of the Social Securitv Act,
or to the individual's child who is under age 21, or
is blind or disabled as defined in § 1614 of the
Social Security Act.

¢. A satisfactory showing is made to the state (in
accordance with any regulations promulgated by the
Secretary of the United States Department of Health
and Human Services) that:

(1) The individual intended to dispose of the
resources either at fair market value, or for other
valuable consideration. To show -intent fo receive
adequate compensation, the individual must provide
objective evidence that:

(a) For real property, the individual made an initial
and continuing effort to sell the property according
to the “reasonable effort to sell” provisions of the
Virginia Medicaid State Plan;

{b) For real or personal property, the individual
made a legally binding contract that provided for
receipt of adequate compensation in a specified
form (goods, services, money, etc.) in exchange for

the transferred property;

(¢) An irrevocable burial trust of $2,500 or less was
established on or after July 1, 1988, as compensation
for the transferred money;

(d) An irrevocable burial trust over $2,500 was
established on or after July 1, 1988, and the
individual provides objective evidence to show that
all funds in the trust are for identifiable funeral
services, or

{2) The resources were transferred exclusively for a
purpose other than to qualify for medical assistance;
the individual must provide objective evidence that
the transfer was exclusively for another purpose and
the reason for the transfer did not include possible
or future Medicaid eligibility; or

{3) The State determines that deninl of eligibility
wotlld werk an undue herdship:

the transfer and the eclaim of undue hardship:
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s serviees due to the

Consistent with § 1817ck3¥D), an institutionalized
spouse who (or whose spousel transferred resources
for less than faiv markel value shall not be found
ineligible for nursing facility service, for a level of
care in a medical institution equivalert to that of
nursing  facilily services, or for home and
community-based services where the state
deternines thai denlal of eligibility would work an
undue hardskip under the provision of §
19171y 2yD) of the Social Securify Act.

3. In this sectiom, the term “instituticnalized
individual” means an individual who Is an inpatient in
a nursing facility, or who is an inpatient in a medical
institution and with respect to whom payment is made
based on & level of care provided in a nursing
facility, or who is described In § 1902
(@) Qe ANV,

4, In this section, the -individual’s tiome is defined as
the house and lot used as the principal residence and
all contiguous property up to $5:906;,008 £5,000 .

VR 466-04-2.6108. Transfer of Resources.

§ 1. When determining the eligibility of an applicant, in
cases where the siale defermines that denial of eligibility
world werk an undue hardship:

I The individual must provide writien documentation
to substantiate the circumstances of the transfer and
the claim of undue hardship.

2 The individual must provide written documentation
that the resources (fransferred without adequate
compensation cannot be recovered.

3. The individual must provide written documentation
fo clearly substantiate the immediate adverse impact
of the demial of Medicaid coverage of nursing facility
services dug lo the uncompensated transfer.
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STATE WATER CONTROL IBOARD

Title of Regulations; VR 680-14-93, Virginia Pellutant
Discharge Elimination System (VPDES) Geperal Permit
for Domestic Sewage Discharges of Less Than or Equal
to 1,188 Gallons Per Day. : :

Statutory Authority: §§ 62.1-14.15(7), - 62.1-14.15(8),
62.1-14.15(9), 62.1-14.15(10), 62.1-14.15(14), 62.1-44.18,
62.1-44.19, 62.1-44.18.20, and 621-44.1821 of the Code of
Virginia and 33 USC 1251 et seq.

Effective Date: July 12, 1991 through July 11, 1892

Preamble:

VR 680-14-09 establishes a General VPDES Permit for
the category of point source discharges of ireated
domestic sewage of less than or equal to 1,000 gallons
per day. Af the present time, all owners wishing to

discharge pollutants from point sources to surface
waters of the Commonwealth of Virginia must obtain
individual YPDES permils. Some of these permils are
for minor dischargers which have little or no potential
to adversely impact the receiving state walers, A
General Permit is issued by the siale for a calegoiy
of discharges instead of to an Individual discharge.
Anyone who fits into the caftegory covered by the

General Permit and who agrees lo abide by its

conditions may apply for coverage under it instead of

applying for an individual permifl. Issuance of General
VPDES Permits would reduce the application costs

and paperwork burden for the dischargers. It will also

reduce the administrative time and burden for the
Board in processing individual permits, Thus, it will
improve the administrative efficiency of the Board’s
permitting program and allow staff resources to be
concentrated on individual VPDES permits which have
more potential for impacting water quality in Virginia.

On May 20, 1891 the Regional Adminisirator of EPA
Region III signed the modification to Virginia's
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES) permit program delegation which authorized
the Waler Conirol Board fto issue General VPDES
Permits. '

General Permits may be issued for categories of
dischargers located throughout the Commonwealth that:
Involve the same or similar types of operations;
Discharge the same or similar fypes of wastes,
Require the same effluent Iimitaiions or operating

conditions; and Require the same or similar
monitoring. As with an individual permif, the effluent
Iimits in a General Permit will be set to protect the
quality of the waters receiving the discharge. Also, no
discharge would be covered by the General Permit
unless the local governing body has certified that the

facility complies with all applicable zoning and
planning erdinances.

Sewage treatment planis which are designed for 1,000
galions per day or less of waste are {ypically installed
at Iindividual homes when central sewer is not
available and the sopil conditions profibit the use of
septic tanks and drainfields. They may also be
installed io fireat domestic sewage from duplexes,
chirches, gas stations, efc. where sewage flow is low
and other treafment alternatives are not availabie.
‘These treatment planis have minimal impact on water
quality. There are approximafely 1,000 individual
VPDES permils in effect for discharges in this
category. This is roughly one third of the tetal permiis
issued by the Board for ail discharges in Virginia. In
spite of their numbers, If all the flows from these
facilities siatewide were pul (together, the iotal
discharge would have less pollufion lpad ithan one
small town’s sewage treaiment plant,

.
=

e of the Emergency:

The Board proposes to adopt a regulation for the
issuance of a General Permit for domestic sewsge
discharges less than or equal to 1,000 gallons per day.
The discharges could be located on any surface walers
within the boundaries of the Commonwealth of

Virginia, except those where Board regulations or
policies prohibit such discharges. The draft General
Permit requires that all covered facilities meet the
same effluent limitations and meniioring requirements.

In 1896, ithe General Assembly amended Sections
32.1-163 and 32.1-164 of the Code of Virginia fo
address the respoensibilities of the State Board of
Health as they relate to sewage disposal and
inspections of alternative discharging sewage systems.
These sysiems are defined as discharges of treated
sewage regulated by a General VPDES Permit issued
by the Water Contro! Board fo individual single family
dwellings with flows less than or equal to 1,000 gallons
per day. The Code mandales regular inspection of
such systems and it empowers the Board of Health fo
establish requirements for maintenance contracts for
these  facilities. It also provides that upon final
adoption of a General VPDES Permit by the Wafer
Comntrol Board, the Board of Health shall assume the
respongibility for permifting allernative discharging
sewage systems.

The Department of Health cannot assume
responsibility for permiiling alternative discharging
sewage systems - including promulgation of
implementing regulations - until the Water Conirol
Board receives EPA approval of its General Permif
Program and a -General Permit for single family
homes. EPA approved the General Permil Program on
May 20, 1991. The Waier Conirol Board submitled a
draft General Permit for domestic sewage discharges
of less than or equal to 1,000 gallons per day to EPA
for their review. This General Permit would cover the
single family home discharges. By lefter dated June
19, 1991, EPA approved the General Permit. The
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Board must adopt the General Permit as a regulation
because It covers a class of discharges rather fhan an
individual source. Once this is accomplished, the
adminisiration of the program as Ii relates to single
family homnes may - be performed by the Health
Department. '

Necessity For Action:

Every discharge of treated wastewater fo surface
waters must have a permit according to federal and
state iaw. Because domestic sewage discharges of less
than or equal to 1,000 gallons per day are low impact
point sources, they have a lower priority than other
discharges when limited manpower resources. are
allocated fo issuing permits. The General Permit is
one way in which such discharges can be permiifed
with minimal resource commifment on the part of
regulatory agencies and the regulated community.

In some cases, the low priority assigned fo these small
discharges has resulted in delays in issuing permifs,
These delays can impact a landowner’s ability to
consfruct and occupy a new home if the sewage
treatment plant for the site is not permitted. Coverage
under a General Permit would be a simpler and Iegs
expensive process than applying for an individual
VPDES permit and fewer delays would be expected.

The Water Conirel Board recognizes the utility of this
General Permit and the benefits it may bring to fhe
regulated community. Without it the Depariment of
Health cannot accomplish their legisiative mandate for
regulating single family dwelling sewage discharges. In
order to Implement fhe General Permit it must be
adopted as a regulation. A number of home owners
have applications pending at this (time  Without
adoption of the emergency regulation, appiications will
not be acted upon under the current system within a
regsonable period of fime. By adopting the General
Permit as an emergency regilation, the Board and the
Health Depariment can begin covering these small
discharges immediately.

Summary;

This regulation wili establish @ General VPDES Permit
for the category of domestic sewage discharges with
flows of less than or egual to 1,000 galions per day.
This General Permit will expedite the process of
issuing permits fo this cafegory of discharges and
reduce fhe regulalory burden on the permifiee
compared io the process of issuing individual VPDES
permits. The regulation will allow the Department of
Health o implement their legislative mandate (o
controf (he discharges from alfernative discharging
sewage systems. It will also allow the Water Control
Board o devole more resources to the permitting of
poliution sources with greater potential for waler
qualily impacis.

This emergency regulation wilf be enforced und

applicable statutes and will remain in full force anu
effect for one year from the effective date, unless
sooner modified or vacated or superseded by
permanent regulations adopted pursuant fo the

Adminigirative Process Act.

The State Waier Conirol Board will receive, consider,
and respond to pelitions by any Interested persons at
any time for the reconsideration or revision of (this
regulation.

It is so ordered.

BY:

/s/ Richard N. Burton
Executive Director
Date: June 27, 1991

APPROVED BY:

/s/ Elizabeth H. Haskell
Secretary of Natural Resources
Date: July 1, 1991

APPROVED BY:

/s/ Lawrence Douglas Wilder
Governor of the Commonwealth
Date: July 11, 1991

FILED WITH:

/8/ Joan W. Smith .
Registrar of Regulations

Date: July 12, 1991

VR 6B80-14-09. Virginia Pollutani Discharge Elimination
Systere (VPDES) General Permit Regulation for Domestic
Sewage Discharges of Less Than or Equal to 1,000 Galions
Per Day.

Section 1. Definitions

The words and {erms used in this regulation shall have
the meanings defined in the State Water Coairgl Law and
VR 6801401 (Permit Regulation) unless the context
clearly indicates otherwise, except that for the purposes of
this regulation:

“Domestic Sewage” means the water-carried human
wastes from residences, buildings, industrial establishments
or other places.

Section 2. Purpose

This General Permit regulation governs domestic sewage
discharges to surface waters from freatment works that
discharge less than or equal to 1000 gallons per day on a
yearly average.

Section 3. Authority for Regulation

The authority for this regulation is pursuani to the Stab
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Jater Controi Law Sections 62.1-44.15., (7), (8), (9), (10),

“(14); 44.18; 44.19; 44.20; 44.21 of the Code of Virginia and
33 USC 1251 et seq. and Section 6.2 of the Permit
. Regulation (VR §80-14-01).

Section 4. Delegation of Authority

The Executive Director, or his designee, may perform
any act of the Board provided under this regulation,
except as limiled by Section 62.1-44.14 of the Code of
Virginia. '

Section 5. Effective Date of the Permit

This General Permit will become effective upon filing
with the Registrar of Regulations and completion of public
notice. This General Permit will expire five years from
the effective date. This General Permit is effective as to
any covered owner upon compliance with all the
provisions of Section 6 and the receipt of this VPDES
General Permit.

Section 6. Authorization to Discharge

Any owner of a itreatment works governed by this
General Permit is hereby authorized to discharge treated
domestic sewage to surface waters of the Commonwealth
of Virginia provided that the owner files the Registration
Statemeni of Section 7, complies with the effluent
limitations and other requirements of Section 8, and
~rovided that the owner has complied with all the
sollowing conditions:

A. Individual Permit

The owner shall not have been required to obtain an
individual VPDES permit as may be required in Section
6.2.B. of the Permit Regulation,

B. Prohibited Discharge Locations

The owner shall not be authorized by this General
Permit to discharge to surface waters where other Board
regulations or policies prohibit such discharges.

C. Central Sewage Facilities

The owner shall nof be authorized by this General
Permit to discharge to surface waters where there are
central sewage facilities reasonably available, as
determined by the Board.

D. Local Government Netification

The owner shall obtain notification from the local
government body of the county, city or town in which the
discharge is to take place that the location and operation
of the discharging facility is consistent with ail ordinances
adopted pursuant to Chapter 11 (Section 15.7-427 et seq) of
Title 15.1.

E. Onsite Sewage Disposal System

The owner shall have applied to the Department of
Health for an onsite sewage disposal system permit and
that system has been evaluated and found unsatisfactory
by the Department of Health.

Receipt of this VPDES General Permit does not relieve
any owner of the responsibility to comply with any other
statute or regulation, including applicable regulations of
the Department of Health adopted pursuant fo Sections
32.1-163 and 32.1-164 of the Code of Virginia.

Section 7. Registration Statement

The owner shall file a complete VPDES General Permit
Registration Statement for domestic sewage discharges of
less than or equal to 1000 gallons per day. The required
registration statement shall be in the following form:

VIRGINIA POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION
' SYSTEM
GENERAL PERMIT REGISTRATION STATEMENT

FOR DOMESTIC SEWAGE DISCHARGES
LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 1,000 GALLONS PER
DAY

1. Name of Facility/Regidence ...........cocvveeieiviiiian.,
2. Location of Facility (City or County) ..............oooo.e.
3. Facility Owner

Last Name First Name ML

4, Address of Owner

Street City State Zip
5. Phone

- 6. Location of Discharge (stream into which discharge

0Tt od 1 | o)
Attach a topographic or other map which indicates
discharge point, property boundaries, wells,
downstream houses, etc.

7. Amount of Discharge (galions per day) ..................
8. Are any pollutants other than domestic sewage to be
discharged? :
O Yes [1 No TIf yes, please indicate what:
9. Attach a diagram of the existing or propesed sewage
treatment system, including the location of the
facility/residence and the individual sewage treatment
units.

10. Proposed facilities, additions of outfalls at existing
facilities or any facilities which have not previously been

Monday, August-12; 1991
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issued a valid VPDES  permit must attach te this
Registration Statement notification from the Ilocal
government body of the county, city or town in which the
discharge is to take place that the location and operation
of the discharging facility is consistent with all ordinances
adopted pursuant to Chapter 11 (Section 15.7-427 et seq) of
Titie 15.1 of the Code of Virginia. :

11. Attach a notification from the Department of Health
that an on-site sewage disposal system permit has been
applied for and that the system has been evaluated and
found unsatisfactory by the Departmernt of Health,

12. Are central sewage facilities available to this facility?
0 Yes O No If yes, please explain: ........

................................................................

13. Does this facility currently have a VPDES permit?
O Yes O No If yes, please provide Permit
Number: ...l

‘Certification:

B hereby grant to 'duly authorized -agents of the State

Water Control Board, upon presentation of credentials,
permission to enter the property for the purpose of
determining the suitability of the General Permit. 1 certify
under penalty of law that this document and all
attachmenis were prepared under my direction or
‘supervision in accordance with a sysiem designed fo
assure that qualified personnel properly gather and
evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry
of the person or persons who manage the system or those
persons directly responsible for gathering the information,
the information submitted is to the best of my knowledge
and belief true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that
there are significant penalties for submitting false
information including the possibility of fine and
imprisonment for knowing violations.

Signature: ..........coeeiiiieinan Date: .......covviiiiininn.
For égency uge only: .
Accepted/Not Accepted ............... Date.:. ....... IRETRTEE
Section 8. General Permit

Any owner whose regisiration statement is accepted by
the Executive Direcior or his designee will receive the
foliowing permit and shall comply with the requirements
therein and be subject to-all requirements of Section 6.2
of the Permit Regulation (VR 680-14-01).

General Permit No.. VAG0000¢1
Effective Date:
Expiration Date:

GENERAL PERMIT FOR DOMESTIC SEWAGE
- DISCHARGES
LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 1,000 GALLONS PER

DAY

AUTHORIZATION TO DISCHARGE UNDER THE
VIRGINIA POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION
SYSTEM .
AND
THE VIRGINIA STATE WATER CONTROL LAW

In compliance with the provisions of the Clean Water
Act, as amended and pursuant to the Siate Water
Control Law and regulations adopted pursuant thereto,
owners of domestic sewage discharges less tham or
equal to 1,000 gallons per day are authorized to
discharge to surface waters within the boundaries of
the Commonwealth of Virginia, except those where
Board Reguiations or Policies prohibit such discharges.

The authorized discharge shall be in accordance with
this cover page, Part I - Effluent Limitations and
Monitoring Requirements, Part II - Moenitoring and
Reporting Requirements, and Part III - Management
Requirements, as set forth herein.
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PART T
A EFFIIENT LIMTITATICONS AND MONITORING REQUIREMENTS

1. During the period begimming with the permit's effective date and lagting until the fermit's
expiration date, the permittee is authorized to discharge from outfall serial mmber 001

Such discharges shall be limited and monitored by the permittee as specified below:

EFFLUENT CHARACTERTSTICS = DISCHARGE LIMTTATIONS MONTTORTNG RECUTREMENTS
Instantanecus Instantanecus : .

Minimm Maximm _ Frequency Sample Type
Flow (MGD)* NA m 1/year Estimate
BOD, NA 30myl 1/year Grab
Suspended Solids o m 30 ma/1 1/year Grab
Fecal Coliform Bacteria+ 1Y 200/100 ml | 1/year Grab
Total Residual Chlorine NA Non—detectable . 1/year Grab
pH (standard units) 6.0 e 1/year Grab
Dissolved Oxygen ' 5 mg/1 _ 1.9 - 1/year Grab

NL = No Limitation, monitering recuired
NA = Not Applicable .

2. There shall be no discharge of floating solids or visible foam in other than trace amounts.
* The design flow of this treatment facility is less than or equal to 1,000 galions per day
** Continuous disinfection capability shall be provided in order to maintain this effluent limit.
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"PART II
MONITORING AND REPORTING

A, Sampling and Analysis Methods

1. Samples and measurements taken as required by
this permit shall be representative of the volume and
rature of the monitored activity.

2. Uniess otherwise specified in the permif all sample
preservation metheds, maximum holding times and
analysis methods for pollutants shall comply with
requiremenis set forth in Guidelines Establishing Test
Procedures for the Analysis of Pollutanis Under the
Clean Waier Act as published in the Federal Register
(40 CFR 136).

3. The sampling and analysis program to demonsirate
compiiance with the permit shall at a minimum,
conform to Part I of this permit.

4, The permillee shall periodically calibrate and
perform maintenance procedures on all monitoring
and analytical instrumentation at infervals that will
insurs accuracy of measuremenis,

B. Recording of Resulls

For each measurement or sampie taken pursuani to the
requirements of this permit, the permiftee shall record the
following information:

1. The date, exact place and time of sampling or
measurements; :

2. The person(s) who performed the sampling or
MEaSuTemnents;

3. The dates analyses were performed;
4, The persen(s) who perforined each amalysis;
5. The analytical fechnigues or methods used; and
6. The resulls of such analyses 'and measurements.
C. Monitoring Records
All records and information resuliing from the
monitoring activities required by this permit, including all
records of analyses performed and calibration and
maintenance of instrumenistion and recording from
continueus monitoring instrumentation, shail be retained
for five (§) years from the dafe of the sample,
measurement, report or application. Such records shall be
made available to the Board upon reguest. '
B. Reporting Requirements

The permitiee shall report any ucpermiited, unusual or
exiraordinary discharge which enters or could be expected

to enter Stale waters. The permittee shall provide ¢
following information regarding each such discharg.
immediately, that is as quickly as possible upon discovery,
however, in no case later than 24 hours:

1. A description and cause of noncompliance;

2. The period of noncompliance, including exact dates
and times and/or the anticipated time when the
noncompliance will cease; and

3. Actions taken or to be faken to reduce, eliminate,
and prevent recurrence of the noncompliance.

A written submission covering these points shall be
provided within five days of the time the permittee
becomes aware of the circumstances covered by this
paragraph,

E. Signatory Requirements

Any registration statement, report, or certification
required by this permit shall be signed as fellows:

1. Regisiration Statement

a. For a corporation: by a responsible corporaie
official. For purposes of this section, a responsible
corporaie official means (i) a president, secretary,
treasurer, or vice-president of the corporation ir
charge of a principal business function, or any of!
persen who performs simiiar policy
decision-making functions for the corporation, or (ii)
the manager of one or more manufacturing,
production, or operating facilities employing more
than 250 persons or having gross amnual sales or
expenditures  exceeding  $25,000,000 (in
secend-quarter 1980 dollars), i authority to sign
documents has been assigned or delegated to the
managger in accordance with corporate procedures.

b. For a Municipality, State, Federal or other public
agency by either a principal executive officer or
ranking elected official. (A principal executive
officer of a Federal, municipal, or State agency
includes the chief executive officer of the agency or
head executive officer having responsibiliy for the
overall operation of a principal geographic unit of
the agency).

¢. For a parteership or sole proprietorship, by a
general pariner or proprietor respectively.

2. Reports - All reports required by permits and other
information requested by the Board skall be signed
by:

a. One of the persons described in subparagraph 1.,
a., b., or c. of this section; or

b. A duty authorized representative of that person,
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person is a duly authorized representative onty if:

(1) The authorization is made in writing by a
person described in subparagraph l.a, b, or c. of
this section; and

(2) The authorization specifies either an individual
or a position having responsibility for the overall
operation of the regulated facility or activity, such
as the position of plant manager, operator of a well
or a well field, superintendent, or position of
equivalent responsibility. (A duly authorized
representative may thus be either a named
individual or any individual occupying a named
position).

(3) If an authorization is no longer accurate because
a different individual or position has responsibility
for the overall operation of the facility, a new
authorization must be submitted to the Board prior
to or together with any separate information, or
registration statement to be signed by an authorized
representative. -

3. Certification - Any person signing a document under
paragraph 1. or 2. of this section shall make the
following certification: 1 certify under penalty of law
that this document and all attachments were prepared
under my direction or supervision in accordance with
a system designed to assure that qualified personnel
properly gather and evaluate the information
submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or
persons who manage the system or those persons

directly responsible for gathering the information, the

information submitted is fo the best of my knowledge
and belief true, accurate, and complete. I am aware
that there are significant penalties for submitting false
information including the possibility of fine and
imprisonment for knowing violations.

PART 11
MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS

A. Change in Discharge or Management of Pollutants

1. Any permittee proposing a new discharge or the
management of additional pollutants shall submit a
new registration statement at least 180 days prior to
commencing erection, construction, or expansion or
employment of new poliutant management activities or
processes at any facility. There shall be no
commencement of freatment or management of
pollutants activities until a permit is received.

2. All discharges or pollutant management activities
authorized by this permit shall be made in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the permit. The
permittee shall submit a new registration statement
180 days prior to all expansions, production increases,
or process medifications, that will result in new or
increased poliutants. The discharge or management of

any pollutant more frequently than, or at a level
greater than that identified and authorized by this
permit, shall constitute a violation of the terms and
conditions of this permit.

B. Treatment Works Operation and Quality Control

1. Design and operaiion of facilities and/or treatment
works and disposal of all wastes shall be in
accordance with the registration statement. If facility
deficiencies, design and/or operational, are identified
in the future which could affect the facility
performance or reliability, it is the responsibility of
the permittee to correct such deficiencies.

2. All waste collection, control, treaiment, management
of pollutant activities and disposal facilities shail be
operated in a manner consistent with the following:

a. ‘At all times, all facilities and pollutant
‘management activities shall be operated in a
prudent and workmanlike manner so as to minimize
upsets and discharges of excessive pollutants to State
waters.

b. Maintenance of treatment facilities or poltlutant
management activities shall be carried out in such a
manner that the monitoring and/or limitation
requirements are not violated.

¢. Collected sludges shall be stored in such a
manner as to- prevent entry of those wastes (or
runoff from the wastes) into State waters.

C. Adverse Impact

The permittee shall take all feasible steps to minimize
any adverse impact to State waters resulting from
noncompliance with any limitation(s) and/or conditions
specified in this permit, and shall perform and report such
accelerated or additional monitoring as is necessary to
determine the nature and impact of the noncomplying
limitation(s) and/or conditions.

D. Duty to Halt, Reduce Activity or to Mitigate

1. Tt shall not be a defense for a permittee in an
enforcement action that it would have been necessary
to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to
maintain compliance with the conditions of this
permit.

2. The permittee shall take all reasonable steps to
minimize, correct or prevent any discharge in

- violation of this permit which has a reasonable
likelihood of adversely affecting human health or the
environment.

E. Structural Stability

The structural stability of any of the units or paris of
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the facilities hersin permilted is the sole responsibility of
the permittee and the failure of such siructural units or
parts shall pot relieve the permitiee of the responsibility
of complying with all termg and conditions of {his permit,

F. Bypassing

Any bypass (“Bypass - means intentional diversion of
waste streams from any porilon of a treaiment works™) of
the treatment works herein permitied i prohibited.

G. Compliance With Siate and Federzl law

Compliance with this permil durisg iis term copstitules
compliance with the State Water Comirol Law and the
Clean Water Act

" Nothing in ihis permit shall be consirued to precinde
the institution of any legal action undser, or relieve the
permiliee from any responsibilities, Habilifies, or penslties
esiablished pursuant fo any other Siate law or regulation
or under authority preserved by Section 510 of the Clean
Waier Act

H. Property Righis

The issuance of this permit does nol convey any
property righis in either real or personal properly, or any
exclusive privileges, nor does i auvthorize any injury to
private property of any invasion of personal rights, nor
any infringement of Federsl, Siste, or Local Laws or
regulations.

L Severability
The provisions of this permil are severable,
J. Right of Eniry

The permiitee shall sllow authorized Siate and Federal
representatives, upon the presentation of credentials:

1. To enier upon the permities’s premises on which
the esiablishment, freatment works, pollulani
management activities, or discharge(s) is iocated or in
which any records are required {o be kept under the
terms and conditions of this permit;

2. Te have access to ingpect and copy al reasenable
times anv records required to be kepi under the
terms and conditions of this permil;

3. To inspect &t reasonable times any moritoring
equipment or onitoring method required in this
permit;

4. To sample al reasonable timeg any waste stream,
discharge, process stream, raw material or by-product;
and

5 To iospect al reasonable times any collection,

treatment, pellutant management activities o1
discharge facilities required under this permit. :

For purpeses of this section, the time for inspection
shall be deemed reasonable during regular business hkours,
and whenever the facility is discharging or involved in
managing pollulants, Nothing contained herein shall make
an inspection time unreasenable during an emergency.

K. Transferability of Permits

This permit may be tragsferred to another person by a
permittee if:

i. The curreat owner notifies the Board 30 days im
advance of the proposed transfer of the title io the
facility or property;

2. The notice includes & wrilten agreement between
the existing and proposed new owner containing a
specific dale of firansfer of permit responsibility,
coverage and liabiiity between them; and

3. The Board does not within the 30-day time period
notify the existing owner and the proposed owner of
its intent fo modify or revoke and reissue the permit.

Such a transferred permit shail, as of the date of the
iransier, be as fully effective as if it had been issued
directly to the new permittee.

L. Continuation of Expired Gepneral Permiis

An expired general permit continues in force and effect
until 2 new general permit is issued. Only those facilities
authorized to discharge under the expiring general permit
are covered by the continued permit,

M. Public Access to Information

All information perizining to permit processing or in
reference to any source of discharge of any pollutant,
shall be available to the public.

N, Permit Modification

The permit may be modified when any of the foliowing
developments oceur:

1. When a change is made in the promuigated
standards or regulations on which the permit was
hased;

2. When an effluent standard or prohibition for a toxic
pollutant must be incorporated in the permit in
accordance with provisions of Section 307(a) of the
Clean Water Act;

3. When the level of discharge of or management of a
poliutant not limited in the permit exceeds applicable
Water Quality Standards or Water Quality Criteria, or
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! the level which can be achieved by technology-based
treatment requirements appropriate to the permittee;

Q. Permit Termination

After public notice and opportunity for a hearing, the
general permit may be terminated for cause.

P, When an Individual Permit May Be Required

The Board may require any owner authorized to
discharge under this permit to apply for and obtain an
individual permit. Cases where an individual permif may
be required include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. The discharger(s) is a significant contributor of
pollution.

2. Conditions at the operating facility change altering
the constituents and/or characteristics of the discharge
such that the discharge ne longer dualifies for a
General Permit.

3. The discharge violates the terms or conditions of
this permit.

4. A change has occurred in the availability of
demonstrated technology or practices for the control
or abatement of poflutants applicable to the point
source.

5. Effluent limitation guidelines are promulgated for
the point sources covered by this permit.

6. A water quality management plan 'containing
requirements applicable to such point sources is
approved after the issuance of this permif.

This permit may be i{erminated as to an individual
owner for any of the reasons set forth above after
appropriate notice and an oppertunity for a hearing.

Q. When an Individual Permit May be Requested

Any owner operating under this permit may request to
be excluded from the coverage of this permit by applying
“for an individual permit. When an individual permit is
issued to an owner the applicability of this general permit
to the individual owner is automatically terminated on the
effective date of the individual permit. When a General
Permit is issued which applies to an owner already
covered by an individual permit, such owner may request
exclusion from the provisions of the General Permit and
subsequent coverage under an individual permit.

R. Civil and Criminal Liability
Nothing in this permit shall be construed to relieve the

permittee from civil and criminal penalties for
noncompliance.

S. 0il and Hazardous Substance Liability

Nothing in this permit shall be construed to preclude
the institution of any legal action or relieve the permittee
from any responsibilities, liabilities, or penalties to which
the permittee is or may be subject under Section 311 of
the Clean Water Act or Sections 62.1-44.34:14 through
62.1-44.34:23 of the Law.

T. Unauthorized Discharge of Pollutants

Except in compliancé with this permit,
unlawiful for any permittee to:

it shall be

1. Discharge into State waters sewage, industrial
wastes, other wastes, or any noxious or deleterious
- substances; or

2. Otherwise alier the physical, chemical or biological
properties of such State waters and make them
detrimental to the public heaith, or to amimal or
aquatic life,” or to the uses of such waters for
domestic or industrial consumption, or for recreation,
or for other uses.
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STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

STATE CORPORATION COMBMISSION
AT RICHMOND, JULY §, 1991
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

At the relation of the
- CASE NO. INS210044

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Ex Parte: In the matter

of adopting Rules Governing the
Reporting of Cost Utilization Data
Relating to Mandated Benefits and
Mandated Providers

ORDER ADOPTING REGULATION

WHEREAS, by order entered herein March 25, 1981, the
Commission ordered that a hearing be held in the
Commission’s Courtroom on May 14, 1991, for the purpose
of considering the adoption of a regulation proposed by
the Bureau of Insurance (“Bureau”) entitled “Rules
Governing the Reporting of Cost Utilization Data Relating
to Mandated Benefils and Mandated Providers”;

WHEREAS, the Commission conducted the aforesaid
hearing where it received the comments of interested
persons and at the conclusion of fthe hearing the
Commission ordered that the record remain open until
May 31, 1391, in order for interested persons to file
additional comments to the repulation for consideration by
the Commnission; and

THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein,
the comments of interested persons and the
recommendations of the Bureau of Insurance, is of the
opinion that the regulation should be adopied, with certain
amendments;

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that the regulation
entitled “Rules Governing the Reporting of Cost Utilization
Data Relating tec Mandated Benefits and Mandated
Providers” which is attached hereto and made a part
hereof, should be, and it is hereby, ADOPTED to be
effective October 1, 1981, '

AN ATTESTED COPY hereof shali be sent by the Clerk
of the Commission to Theodore F. Adams, Esquire,
Christian, Barton, Epps, Brent & Chappeil, 1200 Mutual
Buliding, Richmond, Virginia @ 23219; Alan D. Albert,
Esquire, Mays & Valentine, 1111 E. Main Street,
Richmond, Virginia 23219; Jay W. DeBoer, Esquire, 16
East Tabb Streei, Petéersburg, Virginia - 23803; Jean M.
Gardner, Esquire, Blue Cross & Blue Shield of Virginia,
B.0. Box 27401, Richmond, Virginia 23279; Mark E. Rubin,
Esquire, P.0. Box 675, Richmoend, Virginia 23206; William
G. Shields, Esguire, P.0. Box 7438, Richmond, Virginia
23221; and the Bureau of Insurance in care of Deputy
Commissioner Gerald A. Milsky, who shall forthwith give

further notice of the adoption of the regulation by mailing
a copy of this order togeiher with & copy of the regulation
to all insurers .licensed (o sell accident and sickness
insurance in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

RULES GOVERNING THE REPORTING OF COST
AND UTILIZATION DATA RELATING TO
MANDATED BENEFITS AND MANDATED

PROVIDERS

& 1. Authority.

This Regulation s issued pursuant to the authority
vested in the Commission under §§ 38.2-223 and 38.2-3418.1
of the Code of Virginia.

§ 2. Purpose.

The purpose of this Regulation is to implement §§
38.2-3418.1 of the Code of Virginia with respect fo
mandaied health insurance benefits and providers:

This regulation is designed to:

{a) provide the format for the reporting of costs
and utilization associated with mandated hbenefits
and providers;

(b} describe the system for reporting such data;

() define the information that is required fto bl
reported; and

(d) report general data related i{o cosis and
utilization associated with mandated benefits and
mandated providers, However, due to the numerous
means of filing claims through various procedure
codes, the reguiation limits the data requesied to
that information required to be submitied.

§ 3. Effective Date.
This Regulation shall be effective on Ociober 1, 1951,
§ 4. Scope.

A. This regulation shall apply to every insurer, healih
services plan and heaith maintenance organization issuing
policies of accident and sickness insurance or subscription
contracts in this Commonwealth unless exempted by
subsection B of ihis section.

B. This regulation does not apply fo:

1. Insurers with Virginia anoual written premiums for
accident and sickness policies or subscription confracls
of less than $500,000; or

2. Cooperative nomprofit life benefit companies and
mutual assessmeni life, accident and sickness insurers;
or '
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3. Insurers that solely issue policies not subject to the
mandated benefits or mandated provider requirements
of §§ 38.2-3408 through 38.2-3419 and 38.2-4221 of the
Code of Virginia.

§ 5. Definitions. -
For the purposes of this Regulation:

A, “Earned Premiums” means the aggregate of the
earned premium on ail policies during a given period. The
figure is calculated by adding the premiums written to the
unearned premiums as of the beginning of the period and
subtracting the unearned premiums as of the end of the
period.

B. “Incurred Claims” means the total losses sustained
whether paid or unpaid. '

C. “Mandated Benefits” means those benefits that must
be included or offered in policies delivered or issued for
delivery in the Commonwealth as required by §§ 38.2-3408
through 38.2-3419 of the Code of Virginia.

D. “Mandated¢ Providers” means those practitioners that
are listed in §§ 38.2-3408 and 38.2-4221 of the Code of
Virginia.

E. “Paid Claims” means the aggrégate of loss payments,
less deductions for all credits, except that no deduction is
}ade for reinsurance recoveries, during a given period.

F. “Written Premiums” means gross premiums written
minus premiums on policies cancelled and all returned
premiums during a given period. Premiums paid to
reinsurance carriers on reinsurance ceded are not
deducted.

§ 6. Procedures.

A. Each insurer, health services plan or health
maintenance organization shall submit a report for the
preceding calendar year's ciaims on mandated benefits
and mandated providers to the Bureau of Insurance by
May 1, of each year beginning in 1992 unless exempted
from this reguirement by the provisions of subsection 4B
of this Regulation.

B. The report shall be filed in the format prescribed in
the Appendices to this Regulation.

The experience of group and non-group business shall be
reported separately. Information shall be converted to the
required coding systems by the insurer, health services
plan or health maintenance organization prior to
submission to the Bureau of Insurance,

§ 7. Penalties.

The failure te file a substantially compiete and accurate

w~eport on cost and utilizatien data relating to mandated

benefits and mandated providers by the required day may
be considered a willful violation and is subject o an
appropriate penaity in accordance with §§ 38.2-218 and
38.2-219 of the Code of Virginia.

§ 8. Severability.

If any provision of this Regulation or the applicaticn
thereof to any person or circumstances is for any reason
held to be invalid, the remainder of this Regulation and
the application of such provision to other persons or
circumstances shall not be affected thereby.

Appendix A. Data Reporting Instructions.
A, Format and Timing of Reporis

1. Cost and utilization data relating to mandated
benefits and mandated providers must be submitied in
the format prescribed in Appendix B of this
Regulation and must be submitted no later than May 1
of each year beginning in 1992. A separate report is
required for each insurer.

2. Tt is preferred that reports be filed by the use of
machine readable computer diskettes, although written
reports are acceptable provided that the exact format
set forth in this regulation is utilized. The Automated
Systems Section of the State Corporation Commission’s
Bureau of Inserance should be contacted at (804)
371-0394 for details regarding the computerized
transmission of reports.

3. Insurers writing less than $500,000 of accident and
sickness premiums in a given vyear in the
Commonwealth of Virginia are exempt from the
reporting requirements for that year according to § 4
of this Regulation. Each insurer claiming an
exemption for a given calendar year is responsible for
notifying the Bureau of Insurance by completing and
filing Page 1 of Form MB-1 prior to May 1, of the
following year in lieu of a full report,

B. Specifications for Cost and Utilization Data

1. Parts A and B of form MB-1 require specific claims
and other actuarial data for individual business on
Benefit Worksheet #1 and Provider Worksheet #1
and for group business on Benefit Worksheet #2 and
Provider Worksheet #2. In determining the cost of
each mandate, it is expected that actual claims or
actuarial data wiil be used. Use claims for the CPT-4
or ICDOCM Codes listed under each mandate in
Appendix C of this Regulation to determine claim
costs.

2. Part C of form MB-l requires that a standard
policy be defined and the annual premium disclosed.
The portions of that premium attributable to Virginia's
mandated benefits and providers are to be outlined
with respect to single and family coverage within both
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the indivigual and group categories of business.
Addifional questions are also asked.

3. Part D of' form MB-1 requires that utilization and
claims daia be disclosed for various providers and
procedures. '

4, The Physician’s Current Procedural Terminology,
Fourth Edition (CPT-4) and the Internal Classification
of Disease 9th Revision Clinical Modification Third
Edition (ICD-SCM) should be used as the basis for
defining the information to be reported. Companies
using a system other than CPT-4 or ICD-9CM should
report the required data under a comparable system
in use by that company that has beem converted fo
CPT-4 or ICD-9CM.

5. Provider information should be reported by
category of provider as they are lisied. We are
requesting information only for the providers
mandated by § 38.2-3408 and the physician counterpart
for that provider. Place of service can bhe identified
by Uniform Billing Code Numbers (UB-82). A partial
listing of UB-82 codes is included im Appendix C of
this Regulation.

6. For data regarding group coverage, inciude only
benefits paid for master coniracts delivered or issued
for delivery to group policyholders located in Virginia.

7. Report claim amounis separately for group and
individual contracts.

8. For newborn children coverage datia, include claims
for newboerns less than 32 days old.

9. For dependent children coverage, include all heaith

care claims for dependents beyond the age for cut-off

for coverage of dependents that is specified in your

contracts im the  absence of a physical

handicap/mental retardation (identified in this manner

will be those claims for dependents other than those
- roufinely covered). ’ : '

10. Claims may be reported on an “incurred .claims”
or “paid claims” basis. Indicate if not om a ‘“paid
claims” basis. The same basis must be used
throughout the report.

11. All costs of health cére provided because of a
mandated benefit or mandated provider should be
atiributed to that mandate for Paris A, B and C.
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Part A: Benelit Worksheet # 1 - Individual

a b [ d ] i 2]
. Totat Number Clalm Annual Percent of
* Banafit Number MNumber Claims of Cost Per  Administrative Total Heatth

of Visita ol Days  Payments Contracts  Contract Cost Claima Pald

Depandent Childran
Coveraga

Doctor 10 Includa
Dentist

Newbom Children

Inpatient Mental /
Emotional f Nervous
Obstetrical Sarvices

Pragnancy from
Rape { Incest
Mammography
Child Health
Supervision
* inclucks information and amounta pald on hospital bills and other providers
a: number of provider Bnd physician visits
b1 number of days In facility (if appticable )
c: total of cdaims paid fer this mandate
d ; number of contracts in force in Virginla
8 costper contract = column ¢ divided by column d
I tha administrative cost of complying with this mandate during the reporting year
g daims paid Jor this benefit 8s @ parcentage of the total amount of health claima pald for
Virginia policyhclders by thia company
Benefit Worksheet # 2 ~ Group
a8 b c d [ i f
Total Mumber Claim Annual Paicent of
* Banalit Number Numbar Claims of CostPer  Administrative Totel Hetth
of Vislts ofDays  Payments Contracts  Contract Coat Claima Pald
Dependent Chiidren .
| Coverage .
Doctor ta Includa
Dentist
Newborn Childran
Mertal [ Emotional /
Narvous;
inpatient | | I |
Outpatient i | | [
Alcohol and Drug
Dependence:
r Inpatlent
Cuipalient
Obstatrical Sarvices
Pragnancy from
Rape / Incest
Mamrmography
Child Health -
Supenvision
* Include information and amounts pald on hospltal bilis and other providars (for alt health care axpenasa incurred
a: number of provider and physician visita becauss of thia mandats)
b number of days in facility { if appiicable )
¢ : tatal of claims paid for this mandate
d: number of cernficates In Virgiria fwith thla coverage)
@ . cost per contract = column © divided by column d
1 the adminisirative cost of complylng with this mandate during the reporting year
g daims paid for this benefit aa a percentage of the total amount of [ali] health clalma paldt dor
Virginia poficyholders by this company .
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Pari B; Provider Worksheat # 1 - individual

a b & d ) [ t
Total ' Nurnber Annuet Parcent of
Provider Number Claims Cost Per “of ‘Cost Per  Adminietretive Totai Health .
of Visltle " Paymente Vish Contracts  Contract Cont Clainsg Pald

Chiropraciar

Optometrist

Optician

[Psychologist

Clinical Sccial
Warker
Podiatrist

b ]

Professional
Counaslor
Physical
Theraplst
Clinical Nurse
Speciahist
Audiologist

Speach
Palhologist

; nurnber &f visits to this provider group tor which claims were paid In Virginla
. total dotlar amount of claims pald 1o thls provider group In Virginia
! cost per visit = columnb divided by column &
;. number of contracts in torse in Virginla
: cost per contract = column b dvided by column d
. tha annual administrative cost associated with compliance with this mandate
: claims paid for services administered by this provider group as & percentage
ol the lolal emaunt of heaith claims paid for Virginia policyholders by this company

C PO TE

Provider Worksheet # 2 — Group

[ b c d [ f 2
Total Number Annusi Percent of
Provider Number Clalms Cost Per of °  CostPer Adminlstrative Totel Haalth
of Visits  Paymants Visit Contacts  Contmct Cost Clslma Paid
Chiropractor
Optometrist
Qptician
Psychologist
Clinical Social
Worker
® Podiatrist
o
Proiesstanal
Counselor
Physlcal
Therapist
Clinicat Nurse
Specialist
Audiologist
Speach “
Pathologist
a: number of visits 10 this provider group flor which claims were paid in Virginia
b : 1otal dollar amount of claims paid to thla provider group in Virginia
€ cost per visit = column b divided by column e
d: number of cortificates in Virginia
& castper contract = celkumn b divided by column d
f: the annual administrative cost assocliated with compliance with this mandate
g : claims paid lor services edminiatered by this provider group as a percanlage

of the tatal smount of health cleims paid for Virginia policyholders by this company
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L Please use what you consider to be your standard policy to answer this question. For
the individuai policy used a3 your base cziculations in the question below:

Whai i3 the deductible?

What is the coinsurance’

Whar is the indiviial/employee out-ol-pocied maximum?
the group policy used a3 your base calculaton in the question bedow:

‘What is the deductible?

What is the coinsurance?

What is the individual/employes cit-ol-pocket maximum?

For your heaith insurance in Virginia, what is the 101af anaual premium including

mandates, and what amgunt i3 added to the annual premium of each type policy for each
mandate listed?

Pleass indicaie where coverage under your policy exceeds Virginia's mandates.

ODOE} [-N-X-]

k!.d-: 1‘ D iy '.- x ; . [ d I3
Single Family Siagle Family
Total Annual Policy Premium

Premium for:
Dependent Children Coverage
Doctor to Include Dentist

Mewbomn Children

Mentzl/Emotional/Nervous
(Mental Disabijities)
Inpatient

®  Cutpatient

“Alcohot and Drug Dependenice
Inpatient

Cutpatient
=Obuetrical Services f
Pregnancy from Rape or [ncest
*Mammography
sChild Health Supervision

|
SN

= Denotes mandated offering

Chiropracior
Optometrist

Optician

Pyychologise

Podiatrist

Professignal Counselor
Physical Therapist
Clinical Nurse Specialist
Audiologist

Speech Pathologist

2. What i3 the number of individual policies and/ i i
Company 1 1991 s Ve po of group certificates issued by your

Single Family
Individual

Group

3. What is the number of individual policies andfo i i
Sompany o of ber 31 Lo Virgl':noia? [ group certificates in force for your

Siogle . . Family
Individual

Group

4. What would be the annual premium for an individual poli 1 manda

or mandated providers for 2 30 year old male in the Richmonpdoag :[?02?' sta.ndzuflexl E:I?'ESE
class? What would be the cost for a policy for the same individual with present 1-n|::;ntfaam:sr2
{Assume coverage including $250 deguctible, $1,000 stop-10ss limit, 80% co-insurance factor,
$250,000 policy maximum.) If you do rot issue a policy of this type, please provide the
premium for a 30 year old male in your standard premium class for ihe {:\olicy that you offer
that is most similar to the one described and summarize the differences from the described

policy.
Without Mandates - $ !
With Mandatey 3

B-7
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Part 0: Utilzation and Expenditures for Sekcted Procedures by Provider Typs

© Selact Procadure Codes are listed hers toy obtsin infarmation abaut utifization
and costs for specific types of services, Pbaseﬁmﬂymmmmmwm
for the PFrocedure Codeas indicated, ommmmmmnm.

7h9E

suopmisy fo 4818189y PIUIFNA

5 Dojouaddmamwntmﬂ:n;mlpmujumuramw\iﬂcammmuummof
ey?! Yo_____ Mo = |

conversioa 1o an individual policy?

. If yes, what is the average dollar amount:

Single Fumily

Hm,hmmmvaedhhmuiprmimofmghdiﬁdudpoﬂcy?h No

B-8

. Procedure Code 90015

Omcth&hmiamWwNme
- Number Clairms

Cr;m '_Par
Visit

of Visits Payments
Chiropractor :

Clinical Sccial Worker

Physical Therapist

UOISSTUIIO

Podiatrist —

Professional Counse

Psychologist

Physician

Procedure Code 80844
Medical Psychotherapy, 45 to 50 Minute Session

Number Claims

Cost Per
Visit

of Visits Payments
Clinicai Nurse Specialisi -

"] Clinical Social Workes

Professional Counselor

Psychiatrist

[Psychologist

Physician

. Procedure Code 90853

Group Medicai Psychotherapy

Number Claims
of Visits Payments

Clinical Nurse Specialist

1
Cost Per

Clinical Social Worker

Protessionat Counsaior

Psychiatrist

Psychiciagist

Physician

B8-9
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4. Procedure Code 92507

Speech, Language o Hearing

MNumber Claims Cost Per
of Viaits Payments Visit

Audiciogiat

Clinical Social Worksr

Phy-sscai Therapist

Professional Counssior

| Speech Pathologist
Physician

Procedurs Cods 97110
Physical Medicing Treatment, 30 Minutes, Therapeutic Exercisa

Number Claims Cost Per
of Visits Payments Visit

Chircpractor

Physicai Therapist

Physician

Podiatrist

Speech Pathalogist

. Procadura Code 97124

Physical Medicine Treatment, Massage

MNumbar Claims Cost Per
of Visits - Payments Visit
Chircgractor
Physical Therapist
Physician
Podiatrist

. Procedurs Code 97128

Physical Medicine Treatment, Uttrasound

Number Claims Cost Per
of Visits Payments vist
Chiropractor I )
[Physical Thérapist
Physician
Podiatrist
B-10

8. Procedure Cods 92352

Fitting of Spactacle Prosthesis for Aphakia

Munber Clzima Cost Per
- of Visils Paymernis Visit
o aimeloget B
Optic :
Cptometnst
5 F'ro_cedura Code 11785

Excision of Ingrown Toenail

?;u‘:}@g Claims Cost Per
Prveician [ L Payments Visit
Podiatrist i 3

3 uonesodio) srels
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Apgendix € CPT-4, TCD-6CM, and UB-22 References
A.  CPT and ICD-9CM Codes
‘Dactor to Inciude Dentist
ICD Codes .
520-329 Discases of oral cavity, salivary glands and jaws
524 Dentotacial ancmaies, including malocciesion
525 Other diseases and cooditions of the teeth and supporting structare
26 Diseases of the jaws ‘
. Ne'bor.\l Children
ICD Codes :
T40-759.9  Congenital anomalies
T60-763 . Certain conditions originating in the perinatal period
764-T79 Other conditions oﬁﬁnaﬁng_in the p?rinata] period
CPT Codes
90223 History and examination of the normal newbom infant, initiation of
diagnostic and treatment programs and preparation
90282

Normal Newbom Servicey

Mental/Emotions! Nervous Disorders

CPT Codes - Distinguish between inpatient and qutpatient

90825

9C301

90643

Psychiatric evaluation of hospital records, other psychiatric reports,
psychometric and/or projective tests, and other accumulated data for
medical diagnostic purposes. ®

Psychiatric diagnostic interview examination, including history, menual
stztus, or disposition

Conmltation for psychiatric evaluation of a2 patient includes examina-
tion of a patient and exchange of information with primary physician
and other informants such as nurses or family members, and
preparation of report. .

90341

0843

90845

90847
90849
90853
90862

90870
90871

ICD Codes
291-291.9

Psychological testing by phiysician, with writlen report per hour
Narcosynthesis fqpayc!ﬁm-icdi:a\mdc and therapeutic purposes

Individual medjca} psychotherapy by a physici . S

< . : A ysician, with continuin
Medical diagnostic evaluation and drug management when indimled‘;
including inxight eriented, behavior modifying or supportive paycho

]

ppeoi ,mwm”' 0241y
apyroximately 45 ty 50 minutey (9084 1)

Family medical psychotherapy (without the patieat p?u&m)
Family medical psychotheragry {conjoint psychotherapy)

.Mlllﬁphfamilypwpmedica_tmchumwyuygphyﬁm

Group madical psychotherapy

Pharmacologic nunagem&l(, including prescription use, and iew
medication with no more than minimat medimppsythor.ﬁemp'ymew of

Electro convulsive therapy
Multiple seizures, per day
Other Psychiatric Therapy

Other Proceshyres .
Unlisted psychiatric service/procedure

Aleshol and Drug Dependence

Alcohol Psychoses
Alcohol dependence syndrome ‘

c-2
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ICD Codes
292-292.9

35 - 3059

CPT Codes
39400

34910

54912

54914
59420
54930

59510

39515
59525

90280
53812
58920

Drug Pyychoses
Drug dependence

Obstetrial Sexvices
Detivery, Antepartum and Postpartum Care

Routine obstetric care including antepartum care, vaginal delivery (with
or without epistiotomy, and/or forceps} and postpartum care

Vaginal delivery only (with or without epiatifslomy and/or forceps)
including postpartum care

External ccphalic version, with or without tocolyss (list in addition to
code(s) for delivery)

Delivery of placenta following delivery of infant outside of hospital
Antepartum care only (separate procedure)
Postpartum c:u-e only {separale procedure)

Cesarean Delivery
Routine obstetric care including antepartum ¢are, cesarean delivery,
and postpartum care
Cesarean delivery only including pom.rmm care
Subtotal or totad hysterectomy after cesarean delivery (list in addition o
33510 or 59515)

Abortion <

Medical treatment of spontaneous abornon, any mmester

.

Treaiment of spontaneous abortion, any timester, compieted surgically

Treatment of missed abortion, completed surgically, first trimester

58921
58930
52959

Second trimestar
Treatment of septic aborticn, completed surgically
Unlisted procedure, maternity care and delivery

Pregragey fran Bape/Tooest

g Cl.uli 2l Services/Aay © .

CPT Code

6092

CPT Codes
90701

Mammography

Screening Mammography, bilateral

Child Health Supervision, Services
(Well Baby Care)

Immunization, active; diptheria and tetanus toxids.and pertussis vaccine

(DTF)

Diptheria and tetanus toxids (DT}

Tetanus toxoid

bunips vinas vaccine, live

Measles virus vaceine, live, attenuated
Rubella viras vaccine, live

Measies, mumps and rubells virus vaccing, live
Measles, and rubella vins vaccine, live
Rubella and mumps virgs vaccine, live
Polio virus vaceine, live, oral ((any type (s))
Hemophilius influcnza B

Infant care to one year of age, with 2 maximum of 12 office visits
during regilar affice hours, including tuberculin skin testing and
unmunization of DPT znd Oral polio -

c-4
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Estabjished Pt
Interval history and exam related to the healthy individual, including
anticipatory guidance, periodic type exam

A6 Late childhood (Age 5-6 years)

90763 Early childhood (Age | through 4 years) .

Hr7eh Infant (Agounder | year) '

9074 Administration and medical incerpretation of developmental tests

36585 Tuberculosis, tine st )

w752 late childhood {age 5 through 11)

90753 early childhood (age | through 4)

754 infant (age undar 1 year)

c-5

- R Uniform Billing Code Numbers (UB-87)

PLACE OF SERVICE CODES -

88§8§88&‘&E3%E&SESM‘J%’BEGEE

Hospiral, impat
h c , inpatient
Hospital, outpatient

Hospital-based ambulatoey surgical facii
Hospital, outpatient hospice wervice i
Provider's office :

tal, office
ll;:ﬁa;t's(%me i ices)
ospice (Home hospice services) -
Feychiatric facility, inparent
Pyychiatric facility, outpatient
lP’:ychianicﬁghtmﬁn';!
Residential sub abus:ty

Qutpatient substance abuse treatment facility

" Independent clinical laboratory

Nursing home

Skilled nursing facility/extended care facitiry

Ambulance; ground
Ambulance; air

Ambulance; sea

Other unlisted licensed facility

c-6

treg facility

Inpatient
Outpatient
8utpatiem
utpatient
Qutpatient
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State Corporation Commission

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

AT RICHMOND, JULY 19, 1991
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the -
CASE NO. INS910072
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
Ex Parte: In the matter
of adopting Rules Governing
Annual Audited Financial Reports

ORDER ADOPTING REGULATION

WHEREAS, by order entered herein May 17, 1991, the
Commission ordered that a hearing be held in the
commission’s Courtroom on July 18, 1991, for the purpose
of considering the adoption of a regulation proposed by
the Bureau of Insurance - (“Bureau”) entitled “Rules
Governing Annual Audited Financial Reports”;

WHEREAS, the Commission conducted the aforesaid
hearing where the Bureau appeared and recommended
several technical corrections to the regulation and several
substantive changes to the regulation in response to the
filed written comments of interested parties; and

THE COMMISSION, having considered the record herein,
1e comments of inierested persons and the
.ecommendations of the Bureau of Insurance, is of the
opinion that the regulation should be adopted, with certain
amendments;

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that the regulation
entitled “Rules Governing Annual Audited Financial
Reports” which is attached hereto and made a part hereof
should be, and it is hereby ADOPTED io he effective
September 1, 1991. : _

AN ATTESTED COPY hereto shall be sent by the Clerk
of the Commission to the Bureau of Insurance in care of
Deputy Commissioner Alfred W. Gross, who shall forthwith
give further notice of the adoption of the regulation by
mailing a copy of this order together with a copy of the
regutation to all insurers, health services plans, health
maintenance organizations, fraternal benefit societies,
burial societies, legal services plans and dental or
optometric services plans licensed by the Commission.

RULES GOVERNING ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL
REPORTS

§ 1. Authority.

This regulation is issued pursuant to §§ 38.2-1109,
38.2-1203, 38.2-1301, 38.2-2506, 38.2-2613, 38.2-3804, 38.2-3903,
38.2-4004, 38.2-4126, 38.2-4214, 38.2-4307.1, 38.2-4408,
38.2-4509 and 38.2-4602 of the Code of Vlrglma as
- mended.

§ 2. Purpose.

The purpose of this regulation is to improve the
Commission’s monitoring of the financial condition of
licensed companies by requiring an annual examination by
an Independent Certified Public Accountant of the
financial statements reporting the financial position and
the resulis of operaticns of insurers,

§ 3. Applicability.

This regulation shall apply to all Life, Accident and
Health, Sickness, and Property and Casualty insurers
licensed to transact the business of insurance in Virginia
under Chapter 10 of Title 38.2 of the Code of Virginia and
all other organizations licensed to do business under any
one or more of the following chapters of Title 38.2 of the
Code of Virginia, subject to the limitations and/or
exemptions as further stated in this regulation.

A. Chapter 11 - Captive Insurers.
B. Chapter 12 - Reciprocal Insurance. .

C. Chapter 25 - Assessment Property and

Casualty Insurers,

Mutual

D. Chapter 26 - Home Protection Companies.

E. Chapter 38

- Cooperative Nonprofit Life Benefit
Companies. :

F. Chapter 39 - Mutual Assessment Life, Accident and
Sickness Insurers.

G. Chapter 40 - Burial Societies.
_'H. Chapter 41 - Fraternal Benefit Societies.

1. Chapter 42 - Health Services Plans.

J. Chapter 43 - Health Maintenance Organizations.

K. Chapter 44 - Legal Services Plans.

L. Chapter 45 - Dental or Optometric Services Plans.

M. Chapter 46 - Title Insurance.

§ 4. Scope,

This regulation shall apply to all organizations listed in §
3, hereinafter referred to as “insurers.” Insurers having
direct premiums written of less than $1,000,000 in any
calendar year and having iess than 1,000 policyholders or
certificate holders of directly written policies at the end of
such calendar year are exempt from the requirements of
this regulation for such year unless the Commission deems
that compliance with the reporting requirements of this
regulation is necessary to establish the financial condition
of an insurer. Insurers having assumed premiums of
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$1,000,000 or more pursuant to contracis and/or treaties of
reinsurance will not be so exempt.

Foreign or alien insurers filing Audited Financial
Reports in another state, pursuant to that state’s
reqguirements for filing of Audited Financial Reports and
where such requirements have been . found by the
Commission to be substantially similar to the requirements
herein, are exempt from this regulation if:

A. Copies of the Audited Financiai Report, the Report on
Sigaificant Deficiencies in Intermal Conirols, and the
Accountant’s Letter of Qualifications which are filed with
such other stafe are filed with the Commission in
accordance with the filing dates specified in §§ 6, 13 and
14, respectively (Canadian insurers may submit
Accountants’ reports as filed with the Canadian Dominion
Department of Insurance); and

B. A copy of any Notification of Adverse Finaacial
Condition Report filed with such other staie is filed with
the Commission within the time specified in § 12.

This provision shall not prohibit, preclude or in any way
limit the Commission's rights with respect to workpapers
described in § 15 of this regulation or ifs righis concerning
the ordering and/or conducting and/or performing .of
examinations of insurers under Title 38.2 of the Virginia
Code.

§ 5. Definitions.

A, “Audited Financial Report” means and includes those
items specified in § 7 of this regulation.

B. “Accountant” and “Independent Certified Public

Accountant” means an . independent, certified public
accountzat or accounting firm in good standing with the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“AICPA") and in all states in which such accountant or
firm is licensed to practice; for Canadian and British
companies, it means a Canadian-chartered or
British-chartered accountant.

C. “Due Date” means (i) June 1 for all domestic
insurers, and (ii) June 30 for all foreign or alien
companies domiciled or entered through a state in which
similar law, regulation or administrative practice provides
for a June 30 filing daie, or (iii), for all other insurers,
the earlier of June 30 or the date established by the
insurer’s state of domicile or entry for filing similar
audited financial reports.

D. “Workpapers” means the records kept by the
Accountant of the procedures followed, the tests
performed, the information obtained, and the conclusions
reached pertinent o the Accountant’s examinaticn of the
financial statements of an insurer. Workpapers,
accordingly, may include work programs, analyses,
memoranda, letters of confirmation and representation,
abstracts of company documents and schedules or

commentaries prepared or obtained by the Accountant i
the course of the examination of the financial statements
of an insurer and which support the Accountant’s opinion
thereof.

§ 6. Filing and Extensions for Filing of Annuai Audited
Financial Reports.

All insurers shall have an anpual audit by an
Accountant and shall file an Audited Financial Report with
the Commission on or before the applicable Due Date for
the year ended December 31 immediately preceding.

The Commission may require an insurer foc file an
Audited Financial Report earlier than the Due Date with
ninety (90) days advance notice to the insurer.

An extension of the Due Date filing date may be
granted by the Commission for periods of up to thirty days
upon a showing by the insurer and its Accountant of the
reasons for requesting such extension and upon
determination by the Commission of good cause for an
extension. The request for extension must be submitted in
writing not less than ten (i0) days prior to the due date
in sufficient detail to permit the Commission to make an
informed decision with respect to the requesied extension.

§ 7. Contents of Annual Audited Financial Report.

The annual Audited Financial Report shall reporf the,
financial position of the insurer as of the end of the mos
recent calendar year and the results of its operations, casi.
flows, and changes in capital and surplus for the year
then ended in conformity with siatutory accounting
practices prescribed, or otherwise permitted, by the
insurer's state of domicile. The annual Audiled Financial
Report shall include the following:

A. Report of Independent Certified Public Accountant.

B. Balance sheet reporting admiited asseis, iiabilities,
capital and surplus. '

C. Statement of operations.
D, Statement of cash flows.
E. Statement of changes in capital and surplus.

F. Notes to financial statements. These noies shall be
those required by the Annual Statement and/or generally
accepted accounting principles and shall also include:

(1) A reconciliation of differences, if any, between the
statutory financial stalements contained in the Audited
Financial Repert and the Annual Statement filed
pursuant to §§ 38.2-1300, 38.2-4126 or 38.2-4307 of the
Virginia Insurance Code with a written description of
the nature of these differences.

(2) A summary of ownership and relationships of ths
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insurer and all affiliated compahies.

G. The financial statemenis included in the Audited
. Financial Report shall be prepared in a form and using
language and groupings substantially the same as the
relevani seciions of the Annual Statement the insurer fiied
with the Commission and the financial statement shall be
comparative, presenting the amounis as of December 31 of
the curreat year and the amounts as of the immediately
preceding December 31. (However, in the first year in
which an insurer is required to file an Audited Financial
Report, the comparative data may be omitted.)

§ 8. Designation of
Accountant.

Independent Certified Public

Each insurer required by this regulation to file an
annual Audited Financiagl Report must within sixty (68)
days after becoming subject to such requirement, register
with the Commission in writing the name and address of
the Accountant retained to conduct the annual audit set
forth in this regolation. Insurers not retaining an
Accountant on the effective date of this regulation shall
regisier the name and address of a retained Accountant
within six (6) months after the effective date of this
regulation.

As part of this registration, the insurer shall obtain a
lstter from the Accountant and file a copy with the
Commission stating that the Accountant is aware of the
vgvisions of the Insurance Code and the Rules and
Jkpulations of the Insurance Department of the state of
domicile that relate to accounting and financial matters,
and affirming that he will express his opinicn on the
financial statements in the terms of their conformity to
the statutory accounting practices prescribed or otherwise
permitted by that Department, specifying such exceptions
as he may believe appropriate.

If the Accouniant who was the Accountant for the
immediately preceding filed Audited Financial Report is
dismissed or resigns, the insurer shall within five (5)
business days notify the Commission of this event. The
insurer shalli also furnish the Commission with a separate
letter within ten (10) business days of the above
notification stating whether in the twenty-four (24) months
preceding such event there were any disagreements with
the former Accountant on any matter of accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or
auditing scope or procedure; which disagreements, if not
resolved to the satisfaction of the former Accountant,
would have caused him fto make reference to the subject
matter of the disagreement in his opinion. The
disagreemenis required to be reported in response -to this
section include those resolved to the former Accountant’s
satisfaction and those not resolved to the former
Accountant’s satisfaction. Disagreements contemplated by
this section are those that eccur at the decision-making
level, i.e. between personnel of the insurer responsible for
presentation of its financial statements and personnel of
*we accounting firm responsible for rendering its report.

The insurer shall alse in writing request such former
Accountant to furnish a letter addressed to the insurer
stating whether the Accountant agrees with the statements
contained in the insurer’s letter and, if nof, stating the
reasons for disagreement; and the insurer shall furnish
such responsive letter from the former Accountant to the
Commission together with its own letter.

§ 9. Qualifications of the Accountant.

A. The Commission shall not recognize any person or
firm as a qualified Accountant that is not in good standing
with the AICPA and in all states in which the Accountant
is licensed to practice, or, for a Canadian or British
company, that is not a chartered Accountant.

B. Except as otherwise provided herein, an Independent
Certified Public Accountant shall be recognized as
qualified as long as he or she conforms to the standards
of his or her profession, as contained in the Code of
Professional Conduct of the AICPA and the Rules and
Regulations, including the Standard of Practice, of the
Virginia Board for Accountancy, or similar code.

C. No partner or other person responsible for rendering
a report may act in that capacity for more than seven (7)
consecutive years. Following any period of service, such
person shall be disqualified from acting in that or a
similar capacity for the same company or its insurance
subsidiaries or affiliates for a period of two (2) years. An
insurer may make application to the Commission for relief
from the above rotation requirement on the basis of
unusual circumstances. The Commission may consider the
following factors in determining if the relief should be
granted:

(1) Number of partners, expertise of the pariners or
the number of insurance clients in the currently
registered firm;

(2) Premium volume of the insurer; or

e)) Number of jurisdictions in which the insurer
transacts business.

The requirements of this paragraph shall become
effective two (2) years after the promulgation of this
regulation.

D. The Commission shall not recognize as a qualified
Accountant, nor accept any annual Audited Financial
Report, prepared in whole or in part by any person who:

(1) has been convicted of fraud, bribery, a violation
of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations
Act (18 US.C. Secticns 1961-1968) or any dishonest
conduct or practices under federal or state law;

(2) has violated the insurance laws of this
Commonwealth with respect to any previous reports
submitted under this regulation; or
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(3) has demonsirated a pattern or Dractice of failing
to detect or disclose material information in previous
reports filed under the provisiens of this reguiation.

E. The Commission may (i) make a determination as to
whether an Accouniant is qualified and may, based upon
the facts comsidered, determine that such Accountant is not
gualified for purposes of expressing an opinion on the
financial statements in the annval Audited Financiat
Report made pursuant to this regulation and (ii) require
the insurer to replace such Accountant with another whose
relationghip with the insurer is qualified within the
meaning of this regulation.

§ 10. Consolidated or Combined Audiis.

An insurer may make written application to the

Commission for approval to include in its Audited
Financial Report audited consolidated or combined
financial staiements in lieu of separate annual audited
finapcial staiements if the insurer is part of a group of
ipsurance companies which utilizes a pooling or one
hundred percent reinsurance agréeement ihat affects the
solvency and integrity of the insurer's reserves and such
insurer cedes all of its direct and assumed business to. the
pool. In such cases, & columnar consolidating or combining
warksheet shall be filed with the report, as follows:

A. Amounis shown on the consclidaied or combined
Audited Financial Repori shall be shown on the worksheet.

B. Amounts for each insurer subject to this section shatl
be siated separately.

C. Noninsurance operations may be shown on the
worksheet on a combined or individual basis.

D. Explanations of congolidating and eliminating entries
shall be included.

E. A reconciliation shall be included of any differences
between the amounts shown in the individual insurer
columns of fhe worksheel and comparabie amounts shown
¢n the Annual Statements of the insurers.

§ 11. Scope of Examination and Report of Independent
Certified Public Accountant.

Financial statements furnished pursuani to § 7 hereof
shall be examined by an Accountant. The examination of
the insurer’s financial statements shail be conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.
Consideration should alse be given to such other
procedures illustrated in the Financial Condition
Examiner's Handbhook promuigated by the National
Association of Imsurance Commissioners as the Accountant
deems necessary.

§ 12. Notification of Adverse Financial Condition,

The insurer required to furnish the annual Audited

Financial Report shall require the Accountani to report i
writing within five (§) business days to tke board of
directors or its audit committee any determination by the
Accountant that the insurer has materially misstated its
financial condition as reported to the Commission as of
the balance sheet date under examination or that the
insurer does not meet its minimwm statutory capital and
surplus requirements as of that date pursuant to Virginia
law. An insurer that has received a report pursuant to this
paragraph shail forward a copy of the report to the
Commission within five (5) business days of receipt of
such report and shall provide the Accountant making the
report with evidence of the report being furnished to the
Commission. If the Accountant fails to receive such
evidence within the required five (5) business day pericd,
the Accountant shall furnish to the Commission a copy of
its report within the next five (5) business days.

No Accountant shall be liable in amy manner to any
person for any statement made in connection with the
above paragraph if such statement is made in good faith
in compliance with the above paragraph.

If the Accountant, subsequent to the date of the Audited
Financial Report filed pursuant to this regulation, becomes
aware of facts which might have affected his repori, the
Commission notes the obligation of the Accoumiant to {ake
such action as prescribed in Volume 1, AU Section 561 of
the Professional Standards of the AICPA,

§ 13. Report on Significant Deficiencies in Interns
Controls. :

In addition to the annual audited financial statements,
each insurer shall furnish the Commission with a written
report prepared by the Accountant describing significant
deficiencies in the insurer’s internal control structure
noted by the Accountan{ during the audit. Statement of
Auditing Standards No. 60, Communication of Internal
Contro!l Structure Matters Noted in an Audit (AU Section
325 of the Professional Standards of the AICPA) requires
an Accountant to communicate significant deficiencies
(known as ‘“reportable conditions”) noted during a
financial statement audit to the appropriate pariies within
an entity, No report should be issued if the Accountant
does not identify significant deficiencies. If significant
deficiencies are noted, the written report shall be filed
annually by the insurer with the Commission within sixty
(60) days after the filing of the annuai Audited Financial
Statemenis, The insurer is required f{o provide a
description of remedial actions taken or proposed to
correct significant deficiencies, if such actions are not
described in the Accountant's report.

§ 14. Accountant’s Letter of Qualifications.

The Accountant shall furnish the insurer in connection
with, and for inclusion in, the filing of the annual Audited
Financial Report, a letter stating:

A. That he is independent with respect to the insure”
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id conforms to the standards of his profession as
contained in the ATCPA’s Code of Professional Conduct and
pronouncements of its Financial Accounting Standards
Board, and the Standards of Practice of the Virginia Board
for Accountancy, or similar code.

B. The background and experience in general, and the
experience in audits of insurers of the staff assigned to
the engagement and whether each is an Accountent.
Nothing within this regulation shail be construed as
prohibiting the Accouniant from utilizing such staff as he
deems appropriate where such use is consistent with the
standards prescribed by generally acecepted auditing
standards.

C. That the Accountant understands the annual Audited
Financial Report, and that its opinion thereon will be filed
in compliance with this regulation and that the
Commission will be relying on this information in the
monitoring and regulation of the financial position of
insurers.

D, That the Accouniant consents to the requirements of
§ 15 of this reguiation and that the Accountant consents
and agrees to make available for rteview by the
Commission, its designee or appoeinted agent, the
workpapers, as defined in § 5.

E. That the Accountant is properly licensed by an
appropriate state licensing authority and that he is a
ember in good standing in the AICPA.-

F. That the Accountant is in compliance with § 9 of this
regulation.

§ 15. Availability and Maintenance of CPA Workpapers.

Every insurer required to file the Audited Financial

Report described in this regulation, shall require the
Accountant to make available for review by the
Commission’s examiners, all workpapers prepared in the
conduct of his examination and any communications
related to the audit between the Accountani and the
insurer, at the offices of the insurer, at the Commission or
at any other reasonable place designated by the
Commission. The insurer shall require that the Accountant
retain the workpapers and communications until the
Commission has filed a Report on Examination covering
the period of the audit, but no longer than seven (7) years
from the date of the audit report

In the conduct of the aforementioned periodic review by
the Commission’s examiners, it shall be agreed that
photocopies of pertinent workpapers may be made and
retained by the Commission. Such reviews by the
Commission’s examiners shall be considered investigations
and all workpapers and communications obtained during
the course of such investigations shall be confidential.

§ 16. Exemptions.

Upon written application of any insurer, the Commissicn
may grant an exemption from any provision and/or
requirement of this regulation if the Commission {finds,
upon review of the application, that compliance with this
regulation would constitute an undue financial or
organizational hardship upon the insurer. An exemption
may be granted at any time and from time to time for a
specified period or perieds. Upon written application of
any insurer, the Commission may, for a specified period
or periods, permit an insurer to file annual Audited
Financial Reports on some basis other than a calendar
year basis.

§ 17. Effective Dates.

All insurers retaining a certified public accountant on
the effective date of this regulation who qualifies as an
Accountant shall comply with all provisions of this
regulation for the year ending December 31, 1991, and
each vyear thereafter unless the Commission permits
otherwise.

Insurers not retaining a certified public accountant on
the effective date of this regulation who qualifies as
independent may meet the following schedule for
compliance unless the Commission permits ofherwise.

A. For the year ending December 31, 1991, {ile with the
Commission:

{1) ‘Report of Independent Certified Public Accountant;
(2) Audited balance sheet; and
(3) Notes to audited balance sheet.

B. For the vear ending December 31, 1992, and each
year thereafter, such insurers shall file with the
Commission all reports required by this regulation.

§ 18. Canadian and British Companies.

A, In the case of Canadian and British insurers, the
annual Audited Financial Report shall be defined as the
annual statement of total business on the form fited by
such companies with their domiciliary reguiatory authority
duly audited by an independent charterad accountant.

B. For such insurers, the letter required in § 8 shail
state that the Accountant is aware of ithe requirements
relating to the annual Audited Financial Report filed with
the Commission pursuant to this section and § 6 and shall
affirm that the opinion expressed is in conformity with
such requirements,

§ 19. Severability Provisien.

If any section or portion of a section of this regulation
or the applicability thereof to any person or circumstance
is held invalid, the remainder of the requirement or the
applicability of such provision to other persons or
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circumstances shall ndt be "_affected thereby.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
AT RICHMOND, JULY 24, 1991
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA '

AL the relation of the '
. .' CASE NO. INS910220
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION '

Ex Parte: In the matter of

adopting Rules Establishing Standards
for Life, Annuity, and Accident and
Sickness Reinsurance Agreements

QRDER SETTING HEARING

WHEREAS, Virginia Code § 12.1-13 provides that the
Commission shall have the power to promulgate rules and
regulations in the enforcement and administration of all
laws within its jurisdiction and Virginia Code §§ 38.2-223
and 38.2-1316.7 provide that the Commission is authorized
to issue reasonable rules and regulations necessary to
regulate the standards for life, annuity, and accident and
sickness reinsurance agreements;

WHEREAS, the Bureau of Insurance has submitied to
"the Commission a proposed regulation entitled “Rules
Establishing Standards for Life, Annuity, and Accident and
Gickness Reinsurance Agreemenis”; and

WHEREAS the Commission is of the opinion that a
hearing should be held to consider the adoption of the
proposed regulation;

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED: -

(1)- That the proposed regulation entitled “Rules
Establishing Standards for Life, Annuity, and Accident
and Sickness. Reinsurance Agreements” be appended
hereto and made a part hereof, filed and made a part
of the record. herein;

(2) That a hearing be held in the Commission’s
Courtroom, 13th Floor, Jefferson Building, Bank and
Governor Streets, Richmend, Virginia ai 10:00 am. on
September 24, 1991, for the purpose of considering the
adoption of the proposed regulation;

(3) That, on or before September 5, 1991, any person
desiring to comment on the proposed regulation shall
file such comments in writing with the Clerk of the
Comamission, Document Control Center, P. 0. Box 2118,
Richmond, Virginia 23216;

(4) That, in accordance with § 12.1-31 of the Code of
Virginia, a Hearing Examiner shall conduct ail further
proceedings in this matter on behalf of the

Commission, concluding with the filing of i
Examiner's final report to the Commission. In the
discharge of such duties, the Hearing Examiner shall
exercise all the inquisitorial powers possessed by the
Commission, including, but not limited to, the power to
administer oaths, require the appearance of witnesses
and parties and the production of documents, schedule
and conduct prehearing conferences, admit or exclude
evidence, grant or deny continuances, and rule on
motions, matters of law, and procedural questions. Any
party objecting to any ruling or action of said
Examiner shall make known iis objection with
reasonable certainty at the time of the ruling, and
may argue such objections to the Commission as part
of its comments to the final report of said Examiner;
provided, however, if any ruling by the Examiner
denies further participation by any party in interest in
a proceéding not thereby concluded, such party shall
have the right to file a written motion with the
Examiner for his immediate certification of such
ruling to the Commission for its consideration. Pending
resolution by the Commission of any ruling so
certified, the Examiner shall reiain procedurai control
of the proceeding;

(5) That the Hearing Examiner hereinbefore appointed
shall cause the testimony taken at the hearing to be
reduced fo writing and promptly deliver his writien
findings and recommendations together with the
transcript of the hearing to the Commission for ife
consideration and judgment; |

{6) That an attested copy hereof, together with a copy
of the proposed regulation, be sent by the Clerk of the
Commission to the Bureau of Insurance in care of
Deputy Commissioner, Alfred W. Gross, who shali
forthwith give further notice of the proposed
regulation and hearing by mailing a copy of this order
together with a copy of the proposed regulation to all
companies licensed to write life insurance, amnuities,
or accident and sickness insurance in the
Commonwealth of Virginia; and

(7) That the Bureau of Insurance shall file with the
Clerk of the Commission an affidavit of compliance
with the notice requirements of paragraph (6) above.

RULES ESTABLISHING STANDARDS FOR LIFE,
ANNUITY, AND ACCIDENT AND SICKNESS
REINSURANCE AGREEMENTS
§ 1. Authority.

This Regulation is adopted and promuigated by the
Commission pursuant to Virginia Code §§ 12.1-13, 38.2-223
and 38.2-1316.7.

§ 2. Purpose.

is to set forth
involving i’

A. The purpose of this Regulation
standards for reinsurance agreements
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nsurance, annuifies, or accident and sickness insurance in
~order that the financial statements of the life and health
ingurers utilizing such agreements properly reflect the
financial condition of the ceding insurer.

B. The commission recognizes that life and health
ingurers roufinely enter into reinsurance agreemenis that

yield legitimate relief to the ceding insurer from strain to

surplus.

C. However, the commission has become aware that
some life and health insurers, in the capacity of ceding
insurers, have at times entered into reinsurance
agreements, for the principal purpose of producing
significant surplus aid for the ceding insurer, which
provide little or ne indemnification of policy benefits by
the reinsurer. In addition, the Commissien is concerned
with reserve credits taken under reinsurance agreements
which provide some indemnification of policy benefiis
where those policy henefits are not included in the gross
reserves established by the ceding insurer, such as
catastrophic mortality or extraordinary survival. The
Commission believes that insurers should be precluded
from claiming the surplus relief created by the terms of
such agreements as referred to herein and described in §
4 of this regulation, since the recognition of such surpius
would be in conflict with:

{1) the provisions of Virginia Code §§ 38.2-1300 and
38.2-1301 requiring insurers to file financial statemenis
and reports that disclose full and accurate knowledge
of their affairs and condition;

(2) the provisions of Article 3.1, Chapter 13 of Titile
38.2 of the Code of Virginia relating to reinsurance
reserve credits and a ceding insurer’s ability to reduce
liabilities or establish assets for reinsurance ceded;
and

(3) the provisions of Virginia Code §§ 38.2-1038 and
38.2-1040 concerning the manner in which the
Commission may respond fo an insurer whose
condition or continued operation may be hazardous to
policyholders, creditors and the public in this
Commonwealth,

§ 3. Scope and definitions.

A, This Regulation shall apply to all domestic life and
health insurers and to all other licensed life and health
insurers who are not subject to substantially similar
provisions in their states of domicile or entry.

B. For purposes of this Regulation,

(1) “Life and health” and “life or health” mean (i) a
class of insurance defined by Virginia Code §§ 38.2-102

through 38.2-109 or (ii) any product or service sold or .

offered by a person organized and licensed in Virginia
under Chapter 38 (cooperative nonprofit life benefit
“y  companies), Chapter 39 (mutual assessment life,

accident and sickness insurers), Chapter 45 (dental
and optomeiric services plans) or Chapter 42 (health
services plans) of Title 38.2 of the Code of Virginia.

(2) “Insurer” means an insurance company or a
cooperative nonprofit life benefit company or a mutual
assessment life, accident and sickness insurer, or a
health services plan or a dental services plan or an
optometric services plan as those terms are defined in
Title 38.2 of the Code of Virginia.

§ 4. Accounting and actuarial requirements.

A. No life or health insurer subject to this Regulation
shall, for reinsurance ceded, reduce any liability or
establish any asset in any financial statement filed with
the Commission if, by the terms of the reinsurance
agreement, in substance or effect, any of the following
conditions exist:

(1) The primary effect of the reinsurance agreement
is to transier deficiency reserves or excess interest
reserves to the books of the reinsurer for a “risk
charge” and the agreement does not provide for
significant participation by the reinsurer in of the
following risks: mortality or morbidity, investment, or
persistency;

(2) The reserve credit taken by the ceding insurer is
not in compliance with the laws of this
Commonwealth, particularly the provisions of Title 38.2
of the Code of Virginia and related Rules, Regulations
and administrative pronouncements, including actuarial
interpretations or standards adopted by the
Commission;

(3) The reserve credit taken by the ceding insurer is
greater than the amount which the ceding insurer
would have reserved on the reinsured portion of the
risk if there had been no reinsurance;

(4) The ceding insurer is required. to reimburse the
reinsurer for negative experience under the
reinsurance agreement, except that neither offsetting
experience refunds against prior years’ losses nor
payment by the ceding insurer of an amount equai to
prior years’ losses upon voluntary termination of
in-force reinsurance by that ceding insurer shall be
considered such a reimbursement to the reinsurer for
- negative experience; provided, however, that any
offsetting provisions (i) shall be limited to such
reinsurance agreement, (ii) are specifically between
the ceding insurer and the reinsurer and (iii) are
provided for in such reinsurance agreement;

“(5) The ceding insurer can be deprived of surpius at
the reinsurer’s option or automatically upon the
occurrence of some event, such as the insolvency of
the ceding insurer or the appointment of a receiver,
except that termination of the reinsurance agreement
by the reinsurer for non-payment of reinsurance
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premiums shall not be considered fo be such a
deprivation of surplus;

{6) The ceding insurer must, at specific poinis in time
scheduled in the agreement, ierminate or
automatically recapture ali or part of the reinsurance
ceded;

(7) Settlements are made on an untimely basis or
payments due from the reinsurer are nol made in
cash but are instead made only in a “reinsurance
account,” and no funds in such accouni are available
for the payment of benefits; or

(8) The reinsurance agreement involves the possible .

payment by the ceding insurer to the reinsurer of
amounts other than from income reasonably expected
from the reinsured policies.

() The terms or operating effect of the reinsurance
agreement are such that it does not tramsfer
substantial lability or risk. '

B. Compliance with the conditions of subsection A of this
section is not to be interpreted to diminish the
requirement of Article 3.1 of Chapter 13 in Title 38.2 of
Code of Virginia that the reserve credils taken must be
based upon the actual liability assumed by the reinsurer to
reimburse the ceding company for benefits that the ceding
company is obligated to pay under iis direct policies and
which gave rise io the requirement of staiutory reserves.

C. The ceding insurer’s actuary responsible for the
valuation of the reinsured business shali consider this
Regulation and any applicable actuarial standards of
practice when determining the proper reinsurance credit
in financial statemenis filed with the Commission. The
actuary should maintain adequate documentation and be
prepared upon reguest to describe the actuarial work that
substantiates the reserves, reserve credils or any other
reserve adjusimenis reported in the financial statement
and to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Commission
that such work conforms {o the provisions of this
Regulation,

D. Notwithstanding subsection A of this section, an
insurer subject to ihis Regulation may, with the prior
approval of the Commission, take such reserve credit as
the Commission may deem consistent with the laws of thig
Comrnonwealth, particularly the provisions of Titie 38.2 of
the Code of Virginia and related Rules, Regulations and
administrative pronouncements, including actuarial
interpretations or standards adopted by the Commission.
All of the insurer's financial statements filed with the
Commission pursuant to Virginia Code §§ 38.2-i300 or
38.2-1301.1 shall thereafter identify the reduction in
liability or the establishment of an asset.

§ 5. Writlen agreements,

A. No reinsurance agreement or amendment fo any

agreement may be used to reduce any liability or t
establish any asset in any financial statemeni filed with-
the Commission, unless the agreement, amendment or a
fetter of inten{ has been duly executed by both parties no
later than the “as of date” of the financial statement.

B. In the case of a lelter of intenf, a reinsurance
agreement or an amendment fo a reinsurance agreement
must be executed within a reasonable period of time, not
exceeding ninety (90) days from the execution date of the
lefter of intent, in order for credit to be.granted for the
reinsurance ceded.

€. The reinsurance agreement shail at all times set forth
the names of all parties to the agreement.

§ 6. Existing agreements.

Notwithstanding subsection 4A of this Regulation,
insurers subject to this Regulation may continue to reduce
liabilities or establish assets in financial statements filed
with the Commission for reinsurance ceded under types of
reinsurance agreements described in §§ 2C and 4,
provided:

A. The agreements were executed and in force prior to
the effective date of this Regulation;

B. No new business is ceded under the agreements after
the effective date of this Regulation;

C. The reduction of the liahility or the asset esiablishe.
for the reinsurance ceded is reduced to zerc (0) at least
on a pro-rata basis by December 31, 1992, or such later
date approved by the Commission as a result of am
application made by the ceding insurer prior t¢ December
31 of the year in which this Regulation becomes effective;

D. The reduction of the liability or the establishiment of
the asset is otherwise permissible under all other
applicable provisions of the laws of this Commonweaith,
particularly the provisions of Title 38.2 of the Code of
Virginia and related Rules, Regulations and administrative
pronouncements, including actuarial interpretations or
standards adopted by the Commission; and

E. The Commission is notified, within ninety (80} days
following the effective dafte of this Reguiation, of the
existence of such reinsurance agreements and all
corresponding reserve crediis taken or agsets established in
the ceding insurer’s 1990 Annual Statement. ’

§ 7. Severability.
If any provision in this Regulation or the application

thereof to amy person or circumstance is held for any
reason to be invalid, the remainder of the provisions in

‘this Regulation shall not be affected thereby.
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STATE LOTTERY DEPARTMENT

JIRECTOR’S ORDER NUMBER FIFTEEN (91)

VIRGINIA’S FIRST “PICK 37 TICKET GIVEAWAY GAME;
- FINAL RULES FOR GAME OPERATION,

In accordance with the authorily granted by  Section
58.1-4006A of the Code of Virginia, I hereby promulgate
the “Pick 3” ticket giveaway game rules for the Pick 3
promgtional program to be conducted throughout the
Commonwealth from Monday, June 10, 1991 through
Saturday, July 13, 1991. These rules amplify and conform
to the duly adopted State Lottery Board regulations for the
conduct of lotieries.

The rules are available for inspection and copying
during normal business hours at the Siate Lottery
Depariment headquariers, 2201 West Broad Sireet,
Richmond, Virginia, and at each of the State Loftery
Department regional oifices. A Copy may he requested by
mail by writing to; Marketing Division, State Lottery
Department, P. 0. Box 4689, Richmond, Virginia 23220.

This Director’s Order becomes effective on the date of
its signing and shall remain in full force and effect unless
amended or rescinded by further Director’s Order.

/s/ Kenneth W. Thorson
Director
Date: June 7, 1891

JIRECTOR'S ORDER NUMBER SEVENTEEN (91)

“JOKER’S WILD”; VIRGINIA LOTTERY RETAILER SALES
PROMOTIONAL PROGRAM AND RULES

In accordance withk the auihority granted by Section
58.1-4006A of the Code of Virginia, I hereby promulgate
the “Joker’s Wild” Virginia Lottery Retailer Sales
Promotional Program and Rules for the Iottery retailer
incentive program which will be conducted from Monday,
June 24, 1991 through Sunday, August 18, 1991. These rules
amplify and cenform to the duly adopted State Lottery
Board regulations.

These rules are avallable for inspection and copying
during normal business heours at the State Lottery
Department headquarters, 2201 West Broad Street,
Richmond, Virginia, and at each of the State Loitery
Department regional offices.” A copy may be requested by
mail by writing to: Marketing Division, State Lottery
Department, P. O. Box 4689, Richmond, Virginia 23220,

This Director’s Order becomes effective on the date of
its signing and shall remain in full force and effect unless
amended or rescinded by further Directer’s Order.

/s/ Kenneth W. Thorson
Diractor
Date: June 24, 1991
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' GOVERNOR

. GOVERNOR’S COMMENTS ON PRCPOSED -
: REGULATIONS

(Required by § 9-8.12:8.1 of the Code of Virginia)

TREASURY BOARD

Title 6f Regulation: VR 640-02, Security for Public
Deposits Act Regulations. '

Governor's Comment;

Pending public comment, I concur with the substance of
these regulations. However, 1 recommend that  the
Treasury Board consider the suggestions made by the
Department of Planning and Budget to clarify language in
the proposal.

/8/ Lawrence Douglas Wilder
Governor
Date: July 22, 1991

VIRGINIA RACING COMMISSION.

Title of Regulation: VR €62-83-04. Reguiations Pertaining
to Horse Racipng with Pari-Muotuel
Comemission Veterinariam.

Governor’s Comment:.

These - regulations are intended to establish adequate
requirements for veterinarians hired by the Virginia
Racing Commission.  Pending public comment, 1
recommend approval of the regulations,

/8/ Lawrence Douglas Wilder
- Governor .
Date: July 21, 1981

F R Kk & B &

Title of Regulatibﬁ: VR 66€2-03-05. Regulations Pertaining
te Herse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering - Formal
Hearings. : _ :

Governor's Comment:

These regulations are intended to establish procedures
under which a holder of a racing permit may appeal a
“decision of the stewards to the Virginia Racing
Commission.  Pending public comment, I recommend
approval of the regulations.

/s/ Lawrence Douglas Wilder
Governor
Date: July 21, 1991

¥ ¥ k E & % & @

Wagering -

Title of Regulation: VR 662-04-21. Regulations Pertaining
tc Horse Racing with Pari-Muteel Wagering - Horses.

Governor's Comment:

These regulations are intended io establish adequate
conditions under which horse racing would be conducted
at race meetings licensed by the Virginia Racing
Commission. Pending public comment, I recommend
approval of the regulations.

/8/ Lawrence Douglas Wilder .
Governor
Date: July 21, 1991

R o % % % ¥ % ¥

Title of Regulation: VR 662-85-81. Regulations Pertaining
to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering - Conduct of
Flat Racing.

Governor’s Comment:

These regulations are intended to establish adequate
conditions under which flat racing would be conducted at
race meetings licensed by the Virginia Racing Commission.
Pending public comment, I recommend approval of the

. regulations.

/s/ Lawrence Douglas Wilder
Governor
Date: July 21, 1981

¥ ¥ ¥ %k ¥ % ¥ #

Title of Regulation: VR 662-05-03. Regulations Pertaining
to Horse Racing with Pari-Mutuel Wagering - Conduct of
Jump Racing.

Governor’s Comment:

These regulations are intended to establish adequate
conditions under which jump racing would be conducted at
race meetings licensed by the Virginia Racing Commission,
Pending public comment, I recommend approval of the
regulations.

/s/ Lawrence Douglas Wilder
Governor
Date: July 22, 1991

& % % ¥k ¥k ¥ ¥ %

Title of Regulation: VR 662-05-64. Regulations Pertaining
to Horse Racing with Pari-Muotvel Wagering - Conduct of
Quarter Horse Racing.

. Governor’s Comment:

These regulations are intended to establish adequate
conditions under which quarter horse racing would br
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Governor

Jdnducted at race meetings licensed by the Virginia
Racing Commission. Pending public comment, I
recommend approval of the regulations.

| /s/ Lawrence Douglas Wilder
Governor
Date: July 23, 19981

DEPARTMENT OF YOUTH AND FAMILY SERVICES
(BOARD OF)

Title of Regulation: VR 69%0-20-¢41. Pre and
Post-Dispositional Group Home Standards.

Governer’s Comment;

Promulgation of these regulations would establish
operating standards for the care of youth in pre and
post-dispositional group homes by the Department of Youth
and Family Services. Approval is recommended.

/s/ Lawrence Douglas Wilder
Governor
Date: July 15, 1991
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GENERAL NOTICES/ERRATA

Symbol Key {
t Indicates eniries since lasi publication of the Virginia Register

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER
SERVICES (BOARD OF)

Naotice of Intended Regulatory Action

Netice is hereby given in accordance with this agency’s
public participation guidelines that the Board of
Agriculture and Consumer Services intends to consider
amending regulations entitted: VR 115-04-12. Rules and
Regulations for the Enfercement of the Virginia
aselipe and RMoter Fuels Law. The purpose of the
proposed actien is fo adopt a umiformi system of color
code identification for underground petroleum storage
tanks. This action is at the request of the 1991 Virginia
General Assembly confained in House Joini Resolution 304.
Public comment is- particularly welcome relating to the
“unusual circomstances” or “other methods” mentioned in
the final paragraph of the resolution that may not require
a regulation.

Statutory Authority: § 59.1-156 of the Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitted until August 18, 1981,
9 a.nm. '

Centact: J.. Alan Rogers, Program Manager, VDACS, Office
of Weighls and Measures, P.0. Box 1163, Richmend, VA
23209-1163, telephone (804) 786-2476.

CHILD DAY-CARE COUNCIL
t Motice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency's
public participation guidelines that the Child Day-Care
Councii intends to consider promulgating regulations
entitled: VR 175-08-81. Minimum Standards for Licemsed
Child Care Cemters, Nursery Scheols, and Child Day Care
Camps Serving Children of Prescheel Age or Youmger.
The purpose of the proposed action is to develop
minimum siandards that are appropriate for child care
centers, nursery schools, and child day care camps serving
children of preschocl age or younger. This notice
represents a conversion of the notices of inteni for: VR
175-02-01 (Minimum Standards for Licensed Child Care
Centers), VR 175-05-01 (Minmimum Standards for Licensed
Child Day Care Camps) and VR 173-06-01 (Minimum
Standards for Licensed Preschools and Nursery Schools).
These previous notices of intent were published September
1€, 1986, in Volume Six of Issue 25 of the Virginia
Repgister.

Statutory Authority: §§ 63.1-202 and 63.1-202.1 of the Code
of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitted until August 28, 1991,

Contact: Pegey Friedenburg, Legisiative Analysi, Office of
Governmental Affairs, Department of Social Services, 8007
Discovery Drive, Richmond, VA 23228-86892, tielephone
(804) 662-9217.

t Notice of Intended Regulatory Actien

Netice is hereby given in accordance with this agency’s
public participation guidelines that the Child Day-Care
Council intends to consider promulgating reguiations
entitied: VR 175-88-01. Minimum Standards for Licemsed
Child Care Centers, Befere School and After School Child
Care Programs, and Child Day Care Camps Serving
School Age Childrem, The purpese of the proposed action
is to develop minimum standards that are appropriate for
child care centers, before school and afier school child
care programs, and child day care camps serving school

"age children. This notice represents a conversion of th-

notices of intent for: VR 175-02-01 (Minimum S$tandards f
Licensed Child Care Centers), VR 175-05-01 {(Minimum
Standards for Licemsed Child Day Care Camps) and VR
175-07-01 (Minimum Standards for Licensed Before School
and After School Day Care Programs). These previous
notices of intent were published Sepiember 10, 1996, in
Volume Six of Issue 25 of the Virginia Register,

Statutory Authority: §§ 63.1-202 and 63.1-202.1 of the Code
of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitted uniil August 28, 1991,

Contact: Peggy Friedenburg, Legislative Analyst, Office of
Governmental Affairs, Department of Social Servicas, 8007
Discovery Drive, Richmond, VA 232298689, telephone
(804) 662-9217,

BOARD OF CORRECTIONS
1 Netice of Intended Regulaiory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency’s
public parficipatien guidelines that the Board of
Corrections iniends fo consider amending regulations
entitled: VR 238-30-802. Community Diversion Program
Standards. The purpose of the propesed action is to
establish minimum standards for the developmeni,
operation and evaluation of programs and services

‘provided under the Communify Diversion Incentive Act, !
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JAatutory Authority: §§ 53.1-5 and 52.1-180 et seq. of the
Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitied unfil September 10,
1991.

Centact: Dee Malcan, Chief of Operations, 6900 Atmore
Drive, P. O. Box 26963, Richmond, VA 23261, telephone
(804) 674-3242,

DEPARTMENT OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES
(BOARD OF)

Notice of Intended Regulatery Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency's
public participation guidelines thai the Criminal Justice
Services Board intends to comsider amending regulations
entitfled: Rules Relating to Certification o¢f Criminal
Justice Imstruciers. The purpose of the proposed action is
to amend and revise the Rules Relating io Certification
and Recertification of Criminal Justice Instructors.

Statutory Authority: § 9-170 of the Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitted unitil Augusi 29, 1981,
to LT. Eckenrode, Department of Criminal Justice
Services, 805 East Broad 5treet, Richmond, Virginia 23219.

antact: Paula Scoft, Staff Executive, 805 E. Broad St.,
fichmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-4000.

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency’s
public participation guidelines that the Criminal Justice
Services Board intends to consider amending regulations
entitled: Rules Relating to Compulsery In-Service
Training Standards for Law-Enforcement Officers, Jallors
er Custodial Officers, Courtroom Security Officers,
Process Services Officers and Officers of the
Department of Correctiens, Division of Adolt Institutions.
The purpose of the proposed action is to amend and
revise the Rules Relating to Compulsory In-Service
Training Standards for Law-Enforcement Officers, Jailors
or Custodial Officers, Courtroom Security Officers, Process
Service Officers and Officers of the Department of
Correcticns, Division of Adult Institutions.

Statutory Authority: § 3-170 of the Code of Virginia.
Written comments may be submitted until August 29, 1991,
to LT. Eckenrode, Department of Criminal Justice
Services, 805 East Broad Streef, Richmond, Virginia 23219,
Contaci: Paula Scoit, Staff Executive, 805 E. Broad St,
Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-4000.

DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

i Netice of Intended Begulatory Actien

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency’s
public participation guidelines that the Depariment of
General Services intends fo consider amending regulations
entitled: VR 330-02-85. Reguirements for Approval fo
Perform Prenatal Serological Tesis for Syphills. The
purpese of this action is io update regulations to reflect
current proficiency iesting practices and make regulations
consistent with federal statutes.

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-60 of the Code of Virginia.
Written comments may be submitted until August 24, 1991.

Comtact; James Blaine, Assistant Bureau Director, Division
of Consclidated Lab Services, 1 North 14th Sireei,
Richmond, V4 23219, telephone (804) 786-5453.

DEPARTMENT OF BEALTH (STATE BOARD OF)
1 Natice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency’s
public participation guidelines that the State Board of
Hezalth intends to consider amending regulations entitled:
YR 355-13-880, Waterworks Reguiations. The purpose of
the proposed action is to make appropriate amendmenis to
make state regulations as stringent as federal for Total
Colifortn Rule and Surface Water Treatment Rule, Lead
and Copper Rule, Standardized Monitoring Rule, and Phase
II (SOC & 100).

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-170 of the Code of Virginia.

Written commenis may be submitted until September 9,
1991.

Contaet: Allen R. Hammer, Division Director, Virginia
Department of Heaith, Division of Water Sapply
Engineering, P.0. Box 2448, Richmond, VA 23218,
telephone (804) 786-5566.

Netice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency’s
public participation guidelines that the Siate Board of
Health intends to consider amending regulations entitled:

VR 355-33-92. Regulations fer the Licensure of Home
Health Agencies. The purpese of the proposed action is to
amend existing regulations governing the licensure of
home health agencies to incorporate statufory revisions to
Article 7.1 of Chapter 5 of Tille 32.1 that now provide for
the licensure of home care organizations.

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-162.12 of the Code of Virginia.
Written comments may be submitted until August 28, 1991,

Contact: Stephanie A. Sivert, Division of Licensure and
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Certification, Assistant Dirécmr, Acute Care, 3600 W. Broad
S, Suite 218, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804)
367-2104. N ‘

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES
(BOARD OF) .

Netice of Intended Regulatory Action

MNotice is hereby given in accordance with this agency's
public participation guidelines that the Department of
Medical Assistance Services intends to consider amending
regulations entitled: Case Management for the Elderly.
The purpese of the proposed action is to promuigate
permanent regulations o supersede the current emergency
regulaiions which provide for the administration of case
management reguirements for the elderly. .

Statuiery Auihority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Written commenis may be submitted until August 12, 1991,
to Ann E. Cook, Eligibility and Regulatory Consultant,
Divigion of Policy and Research, DMAS, 600 East Broad
Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, Virginia 23213.

Comiact: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator,
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad
St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804)
786-7833. -

Notice of Intended Reguiatery Action

Notice is hereby given in accordamce with this agency'’s
public participation guidelines that the Depariment of
Medica: Assistance Services iniends to consider amending
regulations entitied: Methods and Standards for
Establishing Payment Rates - Other Types of Care:
Fee-for-Service Reimbursement for Home Health
Services. The purpose of the proposed action is fo
promulgate permanent regulations to supersede the current
emergency regulations which provide for f{ee-forservice
reimbursemnent for home health agencies in place of the
previous cost based reimbursement methodology.

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Writiten comments may be submiited until August 12, 1991,
te N. Stanley Fields, Manager, Division ¢f Cost Seitiement
and Audit, DMAS, 600 East Broad Street, Sulte 1300,
Richmeond, Virglma 23218,

Ceontacf: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator,
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad
St., Sulte 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone - (804)
786-7933.

Neotice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice i¢ hereby given in accordance with this agency's
public participation guidelines ihat the Department of

Medical Assistance Services intends to consider amendim,
regulations entitled: Nursing Home Reimbursement
Methodology (PIRS): Mortgage Dept Refinancing;, Nursing
Facility Rate Change; Technical Amendment io Ceiling
Meihkeodeiogy. The purpose of the proposed action is to
promulgate permanent regulations to supersede the current
emergency regulations whick provide for: an incentive to
providers io refinance morigages when to do so benefits
both the provider and the Commonwealik; an adjustment
to the per diem rate for nursing facilities; techmical
amendment to the ceiling methodology.

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Written commenis may be submitied untif August 12, 1991,
to Joseph J. Beck, Hearings Oifficer, Division of Cost
Settlement and Audit, DMAS, 600 East Broad Sireet, Suite
1300, Richmond, Virginia 23219.

Comtact: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator,
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad
St, Suite 1306, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804)
786-7933.

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency's
public participation guidelines that the Depariment of
Medical Assistance Services intends to consider amending
regulations entitled: Amount, Duratien, and Sespe of
Services: Reduction of Threshold Days fer Hospit

Utilizatien Review. The purpose of the proposed action i
to promulgate permanent regulations to supersede the
current emergency regulations which provide for the
reducticn of the number of inpatient hospital days which
will be paid for without the manual review of the hospital
claim.

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Written commenis may be submitted uniil August 12, 1991,
to Jim Cohen, Manager, Division of Client Services, DMAS,
600 East Broad Sireet, Suite 1300, Richmond, Virginia
23219, '

Centact:  Victgria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator,
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 630 E. Broad
St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804)

186-7933.

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency’s
public participation guidelines that the Department of
Medical Assistance Services intends o consider amending
regulations entitled: Amount, Duratiom, and Scope of
Services: FElimination of Secend Surgical Opinion
Program. The purpose of the proposed action is tfo
eliminate the Second Surgical Opinion Program and its
concomitant requirements.

Virginia Register of Regulations

3660



'“.
)

General Notices/Errata

Aatutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitted uniil August 12, 1961,
. to Mike Jurgenson, Analyst, Division of Policy and
~ Research, DMAS, 600 East Broad Sireef, Suite 1300,
Richmond, Virginia 23219.

Contaet: Vicltoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Ceordinatoer,
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad
St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804)
785-7933.

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with fhis agency’s
public participation guidelines that the Department of
Medical Assistance Services intends fo consider amending
regulations entitled: Commuanily Mental Health and
Mental Retardation Serviecee {(revised). The purpose of
the propesed action is to promulgate permanent regulations
based on the revised emergency regulaticn whick became
effective July 1, 19%i,

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitled until August 12, 1991,
fo Ann E. Cook, Regulatory and Eligibility Consuliant,
Division of Policy and Research, DMAS, 600 East Broad
Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, Virginia 23219.

- smtact: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator,
Oepartment of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad
St, Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, ielephone (8G4)
786-7933.

VIRGINIA HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COUNCIL
Motice of Intended Regulatery Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency’s
public participation guidelines that the Virginia Health
Services Cost Review Council intends to consider amending
regulations entitled: VR 3706-81-08k. Rules and Regulations
of the Virginla Health Services Cost Review Council. The
purpose of the proposed action is to amend §§ 6.1 and 6.7
of the rules and regulations to require health care
institutions to file certified audited financial statements
with the council no later than 120 days after the end of
the institution’s fiscal year. A 30-day exitension could be
granted for extenuating circumstances. A late charge of
$10 per working day would be assessed for filings
submitted past the due date.

Statutory Authority: §§ 8159(A)Y()) and 9-164(2) of the
Code of Virginia,

Written commenis may be submitted until August 26, 1981,

Contact: G, Edward Dalion, Deputy Director, 805 E. Broad
%, 6th Floor, Richmond, VA 23213, ielephone (8(4)

T86-6371.

BOARD OF MEDICINE
Motice of Intended Regulatery Action

Notice is hereby given in accordaince with this agency’s
public participation guidelines that the Board of Medicine
intends to consider amending regulaiions entitled: VR
465-85-01. Regulations Governing Physiclan’s Assistants.
The purpose of the proposed action is to amend § 2.1
General Requirements; § 2.2(D)(2} Renewal Reporting; and
§ 4.1(E) Onehour rule; and technical amendmenis for
deleting “certificate” and inserting “license” where
appropriate.

Statutory Authority: § 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia.
Written comments may be submitied until August 15, 1881,

Coniact: Eugenia K. Dorson, Deputy Executive Director,
Board of Medicine, 1§01 Rolling Hills Dr.,, Richmond, VA
23229-5005, telephone (804) 652-0925,

Netice of Intended Regulatery Actiom

Motice is hereby given in accordance with this agency’s
public participation guidelines that the Board of Medicine
intends fo congider amending regulations entitled: VR
465-07-81. Regulations Governing the Licenswre and
Practice of Nurse Practitionmers (issued jointly with the
Board of Nursing). The purpose of the proposed actlon is
to establish standards governing the prescriptive authority
of nurse practitioners as are deemed reasonable and
necessary fto ensure appropriate standard of care for
patients.

Statutery Authority: 4§ 54.1-2400 and 54.1-2957 of the Code
of Virginia.

Written commenis may be submitied until September 18,
1991,

Contact: Hilary H. Conner, M.D., Executive Director, Board
of DWMedicine, 1601 Rolling Hills Dr, Richmond, VA
23229-5005, telephone {804) 662-5508.

Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency's
public participation guidelines thai the Board of Medicine
intends to consider amending regulations entitled: VR
465-88-01. Certification for Optometrisis to Prescribe for
and Treat Certain Diseases or Abnormal Conditions of
the Human Eyve and I[ts Adnexa with Certaln Therapeutic
Pharmaceutical Agents. The purpose of the proposed
action is to review the regulalions in response to (he
Governor’'s request. The board will enieriain  wrillen
comments for consideration on the present regnlations,
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Copies of the present regulations may be secured by
phone reguest at (804) 662-8925,

Statutory Authority: § 54.1-2400 of the Code of Virginia,

Wrilten comments may be submitted uniil September 3,
1991.

Contact: Hugenia K. Dorson, Deputy Execulive Director,
Board of Medicine, 1661 Rolling Hilis Drive, Richmond, VA
23228-5005, telephone (804) 662-0925.

BOARD OF NURSING
Matice of Intended Begulatory Action

Motice is hereby given in accordance with this agency’s
public participation guidelines thai the Board of Nursing
intends fo consider amending regulations entifled: VR
445-02-1. Regulations Gevernimg the Licemsure of Nurse
Practitioners (adopted joinily with the Board of

Medicine). The purpcose of the proposed regulation is to

establish standards goverping the vrescriptive authority of
nurse practiticners as are deemed reasonable and
necessary io ensure an appropriate standard of care for
patients. ‘

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-2400 and 54.1-2957 of the Code
of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitied until September 16,
1981,

Contact: Corinne F. Dorsey, R.N. Execulive Director,
Virginia Board of MNursing, 160¢ Rolling Hills Dr,
Richmond, VA 33228, lelephone (804) 862-9809.

REAJL ESTATE BOARD
t Motice of Intended Regulatery Action

MNotice is hereby given in accordance with this agency’s
public parficipation guidelines that the Real Estate Board
intends to comsider amending regulations entitled: Real
Estate Board Regulatiems. The purpose of the proposed
action is to undertake a review and seek public comments
on all iis regulations ior pmmuiganon amendment and
repeal ag is deemed necessary in its mission to regulate
Virginia real estate licensees.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-200 and 54.1-21- et seq, of the
Code of Virginia.

Writien comuments may be submitied until October I, 1981.

Comtact: Joan L. White, Assistant Manager, 3600 W. Broad
Streef, Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8552.

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES (BOARD OF) '
Notice of Intended Regallaiary Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency’s
public participation guidelines that the Board of Social
Services intends to consider promulgating regulations
entitled: VR 615-01-36. General Relief (GR)} Program -
Locality Options. The purpose of the proposed aciion is fo
adopt the expanded options included in the curreni
emergency regulation VR 615-01-36 that was published in
Volume 7, Issue 13, dated March 25, 1991, in the Virginia
Register.

Statutory Authority: § 63.1-25 of the Code of Virginia.

Writien commenis may be submiited until August 14, 1891,
to Diana Salvatore, Program Manager, Division of Benefit
Programs, Depariment of Social Services, 8007 Discovery
Drive, Richmond, Virginia 23229-8699,

Contact: Peggy Friedenburg, Legislative Analyst, Bureau of
Governmental Affairs, Division of Planning and Program
Review, Depariment of Social Services, 8007 Discovery Dr,,
Richmond, VA 23229-8699, telephone (804) 662-9217.

Notice of Intended Regulatory Actiom

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency’s
public participation guidelines that the Board of Social
Services iniends to comsider amending regulations entitled’
VR §15-70-17. Child Suppert Erferecement Pregram. The
purpose of the proposed action is to allow the department
to adminisiratively deviate from the child support
guidelines. In response to public comment, the Department
of Social Services plans to (i) study the issue of
administrative deviation from the child support guidelines,
and if determined appropriaie, (ii) promulgate revisions
allowing the department to deviate from the guidelines.

Statutorv Authority: § 63.1-25 of the Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitted until August 15, 1$51,
to Penelope Boyd Pellow, Division of Child Support
Enforcement, Depariment of Social Services, 8007
Discovery Drive, Richmond, Virginia 23229-8658.

Centact: Peggy Friedenburg, Legislative Analyst, Bureau of
Governmental Affairs, Division of Planning and Program
Review, Department of Social Services, $007 Discovery Dr,,
Richmond, VA 23229-8689, teiephone (804) 6§2-9217.

t Notice of Intended Regulatery Actien

Notice is hereby given in accordance with thié agency’s

public participation guidelines that ihe Board of Social

Services infends to consider repealing regulations entitled:
Child Day Care Schelarship Program. These regulations
provide adminisirative regulations guiding the procedures
for the award of child day care scholarships.
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atutory Authority: § 63.1-25 of the Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitted until September 12,
1981, to Catherine A. Loveland, Division of Licensing
Programs, 8007 Discovery Drive, Richmond, Virginia
23229-8699.

Contact: Peggy 'Friedenburg, Executive Assistant, 8007
Discovery Dr., Richmond, VA 23229-8699, telephone (804)
662-9217.

GENERAL NOTICES

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER
SERVICES (BOARD OF)

Public Notice

Take mnotice that a referendum will be conducted by mail
ballot among Virginia small grains producers regardless of
age who sold small grains during two of the pasi three
years preceding October 4, 1991, The word “small grains”
includes all barley, oats, rye, and wheat sold in the
Commonwealth.

The purpose of this referendum is to allow Virginia
'rmers producing small grains to vote on whether or not
ey are willing to access themselves in the amount and

manner helow stated. The assessment shall be used by the

Virginia Small Grains Board for research, education,

publicity, and promotion of the sale and use of small

grains.

The assessment to be voted on is 1/2 of one per cent of
the selling price per bushel when sold. The processor,
dealer, shipper, exporter or any other business entity who
purchases small grains from the producer shall deduct the
1/2 of one per cent levy thereon and the levy shall be
remitted to the Virginia State Tax Commissioner.

Producers must establish their eligibility te vote in this
referendum by properly completing a certification form
and returning the form to the Virginia Department of
Agriculture and Consumer Services no later than August
30, 1991.

Eligible voters will be mailed a baliot and return
envelope. Each eligible voter must return the ballof and
ballot must be received by the Director, Division of
Marketing, Virginia Department of Agriculture and
Consumer Services on or before b p.m. October 4, 1991.

Producers may obtain eligibility certification forms from
the following sources: County Extension Agent Offices;
Virginia Small Grains Association, P.0. Box 400,
Heathsville, VA 22473; Virginia Department of Agriculture
.»nd Consumer Services, Division of Marketing, P.0. Box

1163, Richmond, VA 23209.

COUNCIL ON THE ENVIRONMENT
Pubiic Notice
Notice of the Availability for Public Review

An Environmental Impact Assessment for an
Exploratory 0il or Gas Well to be Drilled in King
George County, Virginia.

Purpose of Notice: This notice informs persons interested
in reviewing and commenting on the environmental impact
assessment described herein of the availability of the
assessment as required by § 62.1-195.1(D) of the Code of
Virginia. A general description of the proposed activity, its
location, and the content of the environmental impact
assessment follow.

Location: Texaco, Inc. has proposed locating an exploratory

-oil or gas well in King George Couniy. The site for the

exploratory well is to be located on a tract of land
bordered by Route 205 on the south, approximately one
mile west of Ninde, Virginia, and is roughly opposite the
cultural feature identified as “Prince Cemetery” on the
Dahlgren quadrangle, USGS topographic map, 7.5 minute
series. The proposed well site and associated lease
boundaries are generally described in the accompanying
map.

Project Description: The proposed exploratory well drilling
operation will be conducted to evaluate the potential for
marketable quantities of oil or gas resources to exist in
the Taylorsville basin located in Tidewater Virginia. The
proposed drilling operation would require three to four
weeks for site preparation, 12 to 14 weeks for drilling,
four to six weeks for completion and testing as warranted,
and three to four weeks for site restoration. The well site
will require a maximum area of 35 acres. The site is
currently unused pastureland. Employees will live on-site
and there will be on-site sewage treatment facilities. The
drill site will be designed to contain a discharge of all
fluids generated within the drill site, The drilling
operations will be conducted 24 hours per day.

The environmental impact assessment submitted for the
proposed project includes a description of the proposed
wel drilling site and the vicinity, a description and
evaluation of the potential environmental impacts that may
result if the exporatory well is constructed, an assessment
of the potential environmental impacts that may result
from accidental events, methodotogies which would be put
in place to minimize the likelihood of an accidental event,
and control measures to minimize impacts should an
accidental event occur. A discussion of the types and
magnitude of environmental impacts which may occur as a
result of longerterm production activities is included
should the exporatory well prove successful.
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Location of the Assessment: & copy of the assessment may
be reviewed during regular business hours at the offices of
the Council on the Environment, 202 North Ninth Street,
9th Floor, Suite 900, Richmond, Virginia. Another copy of

the assessment will be available for review at the Smoot

Memorial Library located in King George, Virginia, on
Route 3 next the King George County Courthouse. The
-summer library hours are 10 am. to 9 pm. Tuesday
through Thursday and 1§ am. te 5 p.m. Friday and
Saturday.

Deadiine for Public Comment: Written comments on the
envirgnmental impacis of the proposed aciivity may be
submitted until 5 p.m., August 16, 1991. Commenis must be
addressed to:

Keith J. Buttleman, Administrator
Virginia Councii on the Environment
202 N. Ninth Street

Suite 900

Richmond, VA 23219

Comtact: For additional information, contact Jay Robers,
Council on the Environment at the address indicated above
- or call (804) 786-4500 or (804) 371-7604/TDD.

Public Notice
Notice of the Availability for Public Review

An Environmental Impact Assessment for an
Exploratory Oil or Gas Well to be Drilled in
Westmoreland County, Virginia.

Purpose of Notice: This notice informs persons interested
in reviewing and commenting on the environmental impact
assessment described herein of the availability of the
" assessment as required by § 62.1-195.1(D) of the Code of
Virginia. A general description of the proposed activity, iis
location, arnd the content of the environmental impact
assessment follow,

Project Description: The proposed exploratory well drilling
operation will be conducted to evaluate the potential for
marketable quantities of oil or gas resources to exisi in
the Taylorsville basin located in Tidewater Virginia. The
proposed drilling operation would require three to four
weeks for site preparation, 12 o 14 weeks for dritling,
four to six weeks for completion and testing as warranfed,
and three to four weeks for site restoration. The well site
will require a maximum area of 3.5 acres. The site is
currently unused pastureland. Emplovees will live on-site
and there will be onsite sewage treaiment facilities. The
drill site will be designed to contain a discharge of all
fluids generated within the drill site. The drilling
operations will be conducted 24 hours per day.

The - environmental impact assessment submitted for the
proposed project includes a description of the proposed
weli drilling site and the vicinity, a description and
evaluation of the peteniial environmental impacts that may

resuli if the exporatory well is constructed, an assessme:
of the potential environmental impacts thal may resul
from accidental events, methodologies which would be pui
in place to minimize the likelihood of an accidental event,
and conirol measures. to minimize impacts should an
accidental event occur, A discussion of the {ypes and
magnitude of environmental impacts which may occur as a
resuli of longer-term production activities is included
shouid the exporatory well prove successful.

Location of the Assessment: A copy of the assessment may
be reviewed during reguiar business hours at the offices of
the Council on the Environment, 202 Nerth Ninth Sireet,
8th Floor, Suite 900, Richmond, Virginia, Other copies of
the asgsessment will be available for review through the
Centiral Rappahannock Regional Library. A Copy of the
assessiment will be available at the Hague, Montross,
Colonial Beach, and Fredericksburg branches of the
Regional Library system.

Deadline for Public Comment: Written comments on the
envirecnmental impacts of the proposed activiiy may be
submitted until 5 p.m., August 30, 1981. Comments must be
addressed to:

Keith Jj. Buitleman, Administrator
Virginia Council on the Environmeni
202 N. Ninth Street

Suite 900

Richmond, VA 23219

Contact: For additional information, contact Jay Rebe;‘
Council ¢n the Environment at the address indicated above
or cali (804) 786-4500 or (804) 371-7604/TDD.

DEPARTMENT FOR THE VISUALLY HANDICAPPED
Public Notice

The Virginia Departmenti for the Visually Handicapped
(DVH) invites public inspection of and comment on iis
draft tramsition plan for structural changes to its facilities
to achieve program accessibility for persons with
disabilities. This public notice is in accordance with Part
IIL, § 3.1 D of state regulations entitled,
“Nondiscrimination Under State Granits and Programs,”
published by the Board for Rights of Virginians with
Disabilities and effective October 1, 18%0. The
above-referenced regulations implement § 51.1-40 of the

Code of Virginia.

Any interested party may obtain additional information
and a copy of the agency’s drafi transition plan by
contacting Carter D. Hamleit, Assistant Deputy
Commissioner for Services, Department for the Visually
Handicapped, 397 Azalea Avenue, Richmond, Virginia
23227, telephone 804/371-3140 (Voice/TDD)} or toll-free
1-800-622-2155. Closing date for receipt of comments will
be September 2%, 1991,
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DEPARTMENT OF WASTE MANAGEMENT
1 Public Netice

Designation of Regional Selid Waste Management
Planming Area

In accordance with the provision of Section 10.1-1411 of
the Code of Virginia, and Part V, Regulations for the
Development of Solid Waste Management Plans, VR
672-50-01, the Director of the Department of Waste
Management iniends to designate a solid wastie
managemeni region for the local governments of the
Southern portion of the Crater Planning District comprised
of the City of Emporia, the Ceunties of Dinwiddie,
Greensville, Surry and Sussex and the Towns of Claremont,
Dendron, Jarratt, McKenney, Stony Creek, Surry, Wakefield
and Waverly. The Crater Planning District Commission will
be designated contact for development and/or
implemeniation of a regional sclid waste management plan
and programs for the recycling of solid waste generated
within the designated region.

A petition has been received by the Department of Waste
Management for the designation on behalf of the local
governments.

Anyone wishing to comment on the designation of this
region should respond in writing by 5 p.m. on Friday,

September 13, 1991 fo Ms. Cheryl Cashman, Legislative.

‘aison, Department of Waste Management, 11th Floor,
.onroe Building, 101 North 14th Street, Richmond, VA
23219, FAX 804-225-3753 or TDD B804-371-8737.

Immediately following the closing date for comments, the
Director of the Department of Waste Management will
notify the affected local governments of its approval as a
region or of the need to hold a public hearing on the
designation.

Any questions concerning this notice should be directed to
Ms. Cheryl Cashman, Legislative Liaison, at 1-800-552-2075
or (804) 225-2667.

1 Public Netice

Designation of Regional Solid Waste Management
Planning Area

In accordance with the provision of Section 10.1-1411 of
the Code of Virginia, and Part V, Regulations for the
Development of Solid Waste Management Plans, VR
672-50-01, the Director of the Department of Waste
Management intends to designate a solid - waste
management region for the local pgoveraments of the
County of Culpeper and the Town of Culpeper. The County
of Culpeper will be designated contact for development
and/or implementation of a regional solid waste
- management plan and programs for the recycling of solid
*  waste generated within the designated region.

A petition has been received by the Department of Waste
Management for the designation on behalf of the local
governments.

Anyone wishing to comment on the designation of this
region should respond in writing by 5 p.m. on Friday,
September 13, 1981 to Ms. Cheryl Cashman, Legislative
Liaison, Department of Waste Management, 11th Floor,
Monroe Building, 101 North 14th Street, Richmond, VA
23219, FAX 804-225-3753 or TDD 804-371-8737.

Immediately following the closing date for comments, the
Director of the Department of Waste Management will
notify the affected local governments of its approval as a
region or of the need to hold a public hearing on the
degignation.

Any guestions concerning this notice should be directed to
Ms. Cheryl Cashman, Legislative Liaison, at 1-800-552-2075
or (804) 225-2667.

1 Public Notice

Desigration of Regleonal Sofid Waste Management
Plagning Area

In accordance with the provision of Section 10.1-1411 of
the Code of Virginia, and Part V, Regulations for the
Development of Solid Waste Management Plans, VR
672-50-01, the Director of the Depariment of Waste
Management intends to designate a solid waste
management region for the Virginia Peninsulas Public
Service Authority comprised of the local governments of
the Cities of Hampton, Newport News, Poquoson and
Williamsburg, the Counties of Essex, Gloucester, James
City, King & Queen, King William, Mathews, Middlesex and
York and the Towns of West Pegint, Urbanna and
Tappahannock. The Virginia Peninsulas Public Service
Authority will be designated centact for development
and/or implementation of a regional solid waste
management plan and programs for the recycling of solid
waste generated within the designated designated region.

A petition has been received by the Department of Waste
Management for the designation on behall of the local
governmenis,

Anyone wishing to comment on the designation of this
region should respond in writing by 5 p.m. on Friday,
September 13, 1991 te Ms. Cheryl Cashman, Legislative
Liaison, Department of Waste Management, 1lth Floor,
Monroe Building, 101 North 14th Street, Richmond, VA
23219. FAX 804-225-3753 or TDD 804-371-8737.

Immediately following the closing date for comments, the
Director of the Department of Waste Management will
notify the affected local governments of #s approval as a

- region or of the need to hold a public hearing on the

designation.

Any questions concerning this notice should be directed to
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Ms. Cheryl Cashman, Legislative Liaison, at 1-800-552-2075
or (804) 225-2667.

T Public Notice

Diesignation of Regional Solid Waste Management
Planning Area

In sccordance with the provision of Section 10.1-1411 of
the Code of Virginia, and Part V, Regulations for the
Development of Solid Waste Management Plans, VR
672-80-01, the Director of the Department of Waste
Management intends to designate a solid waste

management region for the local governmenis of the

County of Nottoway and the Towns of Blackstone,
Burkeville and Crewe, The County of Notfoway will he
designated contact for development and/or implementation
of a regionai solid waste management plan and programs
for the recycling of solid waste generated within the
designated region.

A petition has been received by the Department of Waste
Management for the designation on behalf of the local
governments.

Anyone wishing to comment on -the designation of this
region should ' respond in writing by 5 p.m. on Friday,
September 13, 1891 to Ms. Cheryl Cashman, Legislative
Ligison, Depariment of Waste Management, 1iith Floor,
Monree PBuilding, 101 North i4th Street, - Richmond, VA
23219. FAX 804-225-3783 or TDD 804-371-8737.

Immediately following the closing date for comments, the
Director of the Department of Waste Management will
notify the affected local governments of its approval as a
region or of the need to hold a public hearing on the
designation.

Any questions concerning this notice should be directed to
Ms. Cheryl Cashman, Legislative Liaison, at 1-800-552-2075
or (804) 225-2667.

t Public Netice

Designation of Regional Solid Waste Management
Planning Area

In accordance with the p’rovision of Section 10.1-1411 of
the Code of Virginia, and Part V, Regulations for the
Development of Solid Waste Management Plans, VR
§72-50-01, the Direcior of the Department of Waste
- Management intends to designate a solid waste
management region for the local governments of the
Peters Mountain Landfill Board comprised of the County
of Alleghany, the Town of Iron Gate and the Cities of
Clifton Forge and Covington. The Peters Mountain Landfill
Board will be designated contact for developmeni and/or
implementation of a regional solid waste management plan
and programs for the recycling of solid waste generated
within the designated region.

A petition has been received by the Department of Was
Management for the designation on behalf of the loea.
governments,

Anyecne wishing to comment on the designation of this
region should respond im writing by § pm. on Friday,
September 13, 1981 to Ms. Cheryl Caskman, Legislative
Liaison, Department of Waste Mapagement, 1ith Floor,
Monroe Building, 161 North 14th Street, Richmiond, VA
23219. FAX B804-225-3753 or TDD 804-371-8737.

Immediately following the closing date for comments, the
Director of the Department of Waste Managemeni will
notify the affected local governmenis of its approval as a
region or of the need i{o hold a public hearing on the
designation.

Any questions concerning this notice should be directed io
Ms. Cheryl Cashman, Legislative Liaison, at 1-806-552-2075
or (804) 225-2667.

1 Public Notice

Designation of Regional Solid Waste Management
FPlanning Area

In accordance with the provision of Section 106.1-1411 of
the Code of Virginia, and Pari V, Regulations for the
Development of Solid Waste Management Plans, VE
672-50-01, the Director of the Department of Waste
Management intends to designate a solid was’
management region for the local governments of i
Piedmont Planning District Commission comprised of
Amelia County, Buckingham County and the Town of
Diliwyn, Charlotte County and the Towns of Charlotie
Court House, Drakes ZPranch, Keysville and Phenix,
Cumberiand County, Lunenburg County and the Towns of
Kenbridge and Victoria, and Prince Edward County and
the Town of Farmville.  The Piedmont Planning District
Cominission will be designated contaci for development
and/or implementation of a regional gsolid waste
management plan and pregrams for the recycling of solid
waste generated within the designated region.

A petition has been received by the Depariment of Waste
Management for the designation on behalf of ihe local
governments,

Anyone wishing to comment on the designation of this
region should respond in writing by 5 pan. on Friday,
September 13, 1991 to Ms. Cheryl Cashman, Legislaiive
Liaison, Department of Waste Management, 1ith Floor,
Monroe Building, 101 North 14th Sireet, Richmond, VA
23218. FAX 8(4-225-3753 or TDD 804-371-8737.

Immediately following the closing date for commenis, the
Director - of the Department of Waste Management will

"notify the affected local governments of its approval as a

region or of the need o hold a public hearing on the

designation.
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a1y questions concerning this notice should be directed to
‘#Ms. Cheryl Cashman, Legislative Liaison, at 1-806-552-2075
ot (804) 225-2667. .

1 Public MNotice

Designation of Regional Sofid Waste Mapagement
Planning Area

In accordance with the provision of Section 10.1-1411 of
the Code of Virginia, and Part V, Regulations for the
Development of Sclid Waste Management Plans, VR
£72-50-01, the Director of the Department of Waste
Management intends to designate a solid waste
management region for the local governments of
Pittsylvania County and the Towns of Chatham, Hurt and
Gretna. The County of Pittsylvania wili be designated
contact for developmeni and/or impiementation of a
regional solid waste management plan and programs for
the recycling of solid waste generated within the
designated region.

A petition has been received by the Department of Waste
Managemen! for the designation on behalf of the local
governments.

Anyone wishing to comment on the designation of this
region should respond in writing by 5 pm. on Friday,
September 13, 1991 to Ms. Cheryl Cashman, Legislative
Liaison, Department of Waste Management, 1lth Floor,
‘fonroe Building, 101 North 14th Street, Richmond, VA
3219, FAX B04-225-3753 or TDD 804-371-8737.

Immediately following the closing date for comments, the
Director of the Department of Waste Management will
notify the affected local governments of its approval as a
region or of the need to hold a public hearing on the
designation.

Any questions concerning this notice should be directed to
Ms. Cheryl Cashman, Legislative Liaison, at 1-800-552-2075
or (804) 225-2667.

Division of Solid Waste

Notice of Availability of Drait Solid Waste Disposal
Facility Permit, Tentative Decision to Grant
Variance to Certain Permitting Requirements, and
Scheduled Public Hearing on the Draft Permit for
the Virginia Fibre Industrial Landfill Proposed by
Virginia Fibre Corporation, Amherst County,
Virginia.

Pursuant to the requirements of Part VII of the Virginia
Solid Waste Management Regulations (Permitting of Solid
Waste Management Facilities), the draft Solid Waste
Disposal Facility Permit for the development of an
industrial landfill, proposed by Virginia Fibre Corporation,
is available for public review and comment. The permit
allows the proposed facility to accept only authorized,
1onhazardous wastes which result from the operations of

Virginia Fibre Corporation. The proposal incorperates
design elements for a synthetic cap, and synthetic drainage
layers for the cap and side slopes of the base liner, which
are not provided for in the regulations. Virginia Fibre
petitioned for these features pursuant to the requiremenis
of Part IX of the regulations (Rulemaking Petitions and
Procedures), and the Department of Waste Management
has granted tentative approval.

The Department of Waste Management will hold a public
hearing on the draft permit on Wednesday, August 28,
1991, at 7 p.m. in the Board Room of the School
Adminisiration Building, Washington Sireet, Town of
Amherst, Virginia. The public comment period shali extend
untit 5 p.m. on Monday, September 9, 19%91. During this
period, the Department of Waste Management is soliciting
comments on the tentative decision to grant the variance,
and on the technical merits of the draft permit as it
pertains to this proposed facility. Comments on this draft
should be in writing and direcied to Hassan Vakili,
Technical Services Administrator, Department of Waste
Management, Division of Solid Waste, Eleventh Floor
Monroe Building, 101 Nerth Fourteenth Street, Richmond,
Virginia 23219. For more information, call E.D. Gillispie at
(804) 371-0514. '

VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION
NOTICE TO STATE AGENCIES

Change of Address: Our new mailing address is: Virginia
Code Commission, 910 Capitol Street, General Assembly
Building, 2nd Floor, Richmond, VA 23219. ¥You may FAX
in your notice; however, we ask that you do not follow-up
with a mailed in copy. Our FAX number is: 371-0169.

FORMS FOR FILING MATERIAL ON DATES FOR
PUBLICATION IN THE VIRGINIA REGISTER OF
: REGULATIONS

All agencies are reguired to use the appropriate forms
when furnishing material and dates for publication in the
Virginia Register of Regulations. The forms are supplied
by the office of the Registrar oi Regulations. If you do not
have any forms or you need additional forms, please
contact: Virginia Code Commission, 910 Capitol Sireet,
General Assembly Building, 2nd Floor, Richmond, VA
23219, telephone (804) 786-3591.

FORMS:

NOTICE
RRO1
NOTICE of COMMENT PERIOD - RR(2
PROPOSED (Transmittal Sheet) - RR03
FINAL {(Transmittal Sheet) - RR04
EMERGENCY (Transmittal Sheet) - RR05
NOTICE cof MEETING - RR0{6

AGENCY RESPONSE TO LEGISLATIVE
OR GUBERNATORIAL OBJECTIONS - RR08

of INTENDED REGULATORY ACTION -
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DEPARTMENT of PLANNING AND BUDGET
(Transmittal Sheet) - DPBRRO0S

Coples of the Virginia Register Form. Stvie and Procedure
Manual may also be obtalned at the above address.

ERRATA

COUNCIL ON THE ENVIRONMENT

Title of Regulation: VE 305-01-0¢1. Public Participation
Guidelines.

Publication: 7:21 VAR 3118-3121 July 15, 1091
Correction fo Proposed Regulation:

Page 3118, Summary, clause (v) should read as follows;

“.(v) allowing at least 60 calendar days for public
review and comment after publication of a notice of
public comment (NOPC) in the Virginia Register, a
Richmond area newspaper, and by other means
deemed appropriate;...”

Title ¢f Resgulation: VR J05-62-1. Guidelines for the'
Preparation of Enviroamental Impact Assessments for

Oil apd Gas Well Drilling Operations in Tidewater
© Virginia.

Ey_m;gangg; 7:21 VAR 3121- 3132 July 15, 1991
Correction fo Proposed Regulation:

Page 3122, parégraph 5, definition of "Highly erodible
soils,” line 3, first word, change the word “drill” to “rill.”
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Symbois Key
T Indicates entries since last publication of the Virginia Register
Location accessible to handicapped
= Telecommunications Device for Deaf (TDD)/Veice Designation

NOTICE

Only those meetings which are filed with the Registrar
of Regulations by the {iling deadline noted at the
beginning of this publication are Ilisted. Since some
meetings are calied on short notice, please be aware that
this listing of meetings may be incomplete. Also, all
meetings are subject to cancellation and the Virginia
Register deadline may preciude a notice of such
cancellation.

For additional information on -open meetings and public
hearings held by the Standing Commitiees of the
Legislature during the interim, please call Legislative
Information at (804) 786-6530. '

VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION

EXECUTIVE

DEPARTMENT FOR THE AGING
Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program Advisory Council

t September 26, 1991 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting
Medical Society of Virginia, 1606 Santa Rosa Road, Suite
235, Richmond, Virginia. &

Business will include discussion of VDA Legislative
Studies, including Home Care Ombudsman
Presentation, and election of officers.

Contact: Ms. Virginia Dize, State Ombudsman, Department
for the Aging, 700 E. Franklin St., 10th Floor, Richmond,
VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-2271/TDD or toll-free
1-800-552-3402.

VIRGINIA AGRICULTURAL COUNC{IL

t Awngust 26, 1991 - & a.m. — Open Meeting
Holiday Inn - Airport, 5203 Williamsburg Road, Sandston,
Virginia.

Annual meeting of the Council to hear new project
proposals which are properly supported by the board
of directors of a commodity group, review financial
statements, and conduct any other business that may
come before the members of the council.

“entact: Henry H. Budd, Assistant Secretary, 7th Floor,

Washington Building, 1100 Bank Street,
23219, telephone (804) 371-0266.

Richmond, VA

BOARD FOR ARCHITECTS, PROFESSIONAL
ENGINEERS, LAND SURVEYORS AND LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTS

t September 12, 1991 - 19 a.m. — Open Meeting
Department of Commerce, 3600 West Broad Street, Fifth
Floor, Conference Room One, Richmond, Virginia.

The board will meet to conduct a formal hearing: File
aumber 90-01734, APELSLA Board v. Davie E. Delew,

Contact: Gayle Eubank, Hearings Ccordinator, Department
of Commerce, 3600. West Broad Street, Richmond, VA
23230, telephone (804) 367-8524. :

Board for Architects

Aungust 22, 1891 - 9:30 am. — Open Meeting _
Department of Commerce, 3600 West Broad Street,
Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to (i) approve minuies of April 18, 1891
meeting; (ii) review correspondence; (ili) review
applications; and (iv) review enforcement files,

Contact: Bonnie S, Salzman, Assistant Director, Department
of Commerce, 3600 W. Broad St, Richmond, VA 23230,
telephone (804) 367-8514. '

Board for Professional Engineers

Auvgnsi 13, 1891 - 3 a.m. — Open Meeting
Departmen{ of Commerce, 3600 West Broad Street,
Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to (i) approve minutes of May 10, 1891
meeting; (ii) review correspondence; (iii) review
applications; and (iv) review enforcement files.

COMMISSION FOR THE ARTS

August 12, 1991 - noon — Open Meeting

August 13, 1991 - 9 am. — Open Meeting

Virginia Housing Development Authority, 601
Belvidere Sireet, Richmond, Virginia. & .

South

-VCA quarterly business meeting.

Contact: Virginia Commission for the Arts, 223 Governor
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Street, Richmond, .Virginia 23219-2010, telephone (304)
225-3132.

Task Force ¢n the Promotion of Aris
'T Angust 15, 1991 - 16 a.m. — Public Hearing

Alexandria City Councii Chambers, City Hall,
Street, Alexandria, Virginia. &

301 King

Public hearing on Task Force on the Promotion of the
Arts. .

Comtact: Virginia Commission for the Arts, 223 Governor
Street, Richmond, Virginia 232182010, telephone (804)
225-3132.

AUCTIONEERS BGARD

August 13, 1981 - § am. - Open Meeting
Department of Commerce, 3600 West  Broad Street,
Richmond, Virginia. &

An open meeting to conduct regulatory review and
other matters which require board action.

' Contact: Mr. Geralde W, Morgan, Administrator,
Department of Commerce, 3600 W. Broad Si, Richmond,
VA 23230-4917, ielephone (804) 367-8534.

BOARD FOR BARBERS

August 12, 1991 - 8 a.m. — Open Meeting
Deparimeni of Commerce, 3600 West Broad Street, §th
Floor, Richmeond, Virginia. &

A meeting to (i) review applicatiens; (i) review
correspondence; (ili} review and disposition of
enforcement cases; and (iv) consmler routme board
business.

Contact: Roberia 1. Banning, Assisiant Director, 3600 W.
Broad §t, Richmond, VA 23230-4917, ielephone (804)
367-8590.

VIRGINIA COMMISSION ON THE BICENTENNIAL OF
THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION

. 1 August 15, 1881 - 18 am. — Open Meeting
Jefferson Sheraton Hetel, Richmond, Virginia.

The Commission is charged with planning and
coordinating Virginia's celebration of the Constitution
and the Bill of Rights bicentennial. The August
meeting will include a resume of past activities
commemorating the birth of the Bill of Rights.

Comtact: Tracy Warren, Associalc Director, Virginia
Commission on the Bicentennial on the United States

Constitution, 2015 Ivy Road; Room 308, Charlottesville, V.
22903, telephone (804) 924-1053 or SCATS 198-1053.

STATE BUILDING COBE TECHNICAL REVIEW BOARD

t Auvgust 16, 1881 - 10 a.m. — Open Meeting

Fourth Street State Office Building, 205 North Fourth
Sireet, Second Floor Conference Room, Richmond,
Virginia. 8 {Interpreter for deaf provided upen request)

A meeting to (i) consider requests for interpretation of
the Virginia Uniform Statewide Building Code; (i)
consider appeals from the rulings of local appeal
boards regarding application of the Virginia Uniform
Statewide Building Code, and (iii) approve minutes of
previous meeting.

Contact: Jack A. Procior,

205 North Fourth Street,
Richmond, Virginia 23219. :

CHESAPEAKE BAY LOCAL ASSISTANCE BOARD

August 21, 1891 - 30 a.m. — Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, Senate Room B, 910 Capitol
Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter for deaf
provided upon request)

The board will conduct general business, including
review of local Chesapeake Bay Preservation Are

programs. Public comment will be heard early in th_
meeting. A tentative agenda will be available from the
Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Department by
August 14, 1991,

Centact: Receptionist, Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance
Department, 805 E. Broad St., Suite 701, Richmond, VA
23218, telephone (804) 225-3440 or toll-free
1-800-243-7229/TDD =

CHILD-DAY CARE COUNCIL
September 1%, 1981 - 3:36 p.m. — Public Hearing

Roanoke Municipal Building, Council Chambers, 4th Fioor,
215 Church Avenue, S.W., Roancke, Virginia.

September 17, 1881 - 3 p.m. — Public Hearing

Washingion Gas and Light Company, The Auditorium, 68061
Industrial Road, Springfield, Virginia.

September 13, 1991 - 3 p.m. — Public Hearing
Williamsburg Repgional Library, The Aris Center Theatre,
515 Scotland Street, Williamsburg, Virginia.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Child Day-Care
Council intends to adopt regulations entitled: VR
175-08-0%, Minimum Standards for Licemsed Child
Care Centers, Nursery Scheols, and Child Day Cap
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Camps Servieg Children of Preschosl Age or
Yeunger. This regulation describes the requirements
that child care centers, nurserv schoois, and child day
care camps serving children of preschool age or
younger must meet to become licensed. VR 175-08-01
replaces VR 175-02-01, 175-05-01, and 175-07-01 since it
was decided t{o consolidate these regulations. VR
175-02-01 will be repealed effective July 1, 1992,

Statutory Authority: 8§ 63.1-202 and 63.1-202.1 of the'Code
of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitted uniil September 25,
1991, o Peg Spangenthal, Chair, Child Day-Care Council,
8007 Discovery Drive, Richmond, Virginia 23228,

Contact: Peggy Friedenberg, Legislative Analyst, Office of
Governmental Affairs, Depariment of Social Services, 8007
Discovery Drive, Richmond, VA 232258598, telephone
(804) 662-9217.

# B % ko x o ok %

Septemnber 18, 1381 - 330 p.m. — Public Hearing
Roanoke Municipal Building, Council Chambers, 4th Floor,
215 Church Avenue, 5.W., Roanoke, Virginia.

September 17, 1881 - 3 p.m. — Public Hearing
Washington Gas and Light Company, The Auditorium, 6801
Tndustrial Road, Springfield, Virginia.

Jeptember 19, 1881 - 3 pum, — Public Hearing
Williamsburg Regional Library, The Aris Center Theatre,
515 Scotland Sireet, Williamsburg, Virginia.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14;7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Child Day-Care
Council intends to adopt regulations entitled: VR
175-0%-05. Minimum Standards fer Licensed Child
Care Centers, Before School and Affer School Child
Care Programs, and Child Day Care Camps Serving
School Age Children. This regulation describes the
requirements that child care centers, before school
and after school child care programs, and child day
care camps serving school age children must meet o
become licensed. VR 175-08-01 repiaces VR 175-02-01,
175-05-01, and 175-07-01 since it was decided fo
consolidate these regulations. VR 175-02-01 will be
repealed effective July 1, 1992,

Statutory Authority: §§ 63.1-202 and 83.1-202.1 of the Code
of Virginia.

Written comments may be Submitied until September 25,
1991, to Peg Spangenthal, Chair, Child Day-Care Council,
8007 Discovery Drive, Richmond, Virginia 23229.

Contact: Peggy Friedenberg, Legislative Analyst, Office of
Governmenial Affairs, Department of Secial Services, 8007
Discovery Drive, Richmond, VA 23229-8695, telephone
©'B04) 662-9217.

INTERAGENCY CONSORTIUM ON CHILD MENTAL
HEALTH

September 4, 1881 - 15 a.n. — Open Meeting
Youth and Family Services, 700 Cenire, 7Tth & Franklin
Sireets, Richmond, Virginia. [&

A meeting to (1) discuss technical assistant position;
(ii) set date for quarterly review; (iil) review fiscal
report; (lv) review old applications, and (v) review
new applications.

Contact: Dian M. McConnel, Chair, P.0. Box 3AG,
Richmend, VA 23208-1108, telephone {804) 371-0700.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

August 13, 1991 - 18:3% a.m. — Open Meeting
Department of Comunerce, 3600 West Broad Strest,
Conference Room 3, Richmond, Virginia.
A formal hearing will be held for: File No. 50-02024,
Department of Commerce v. David E. Carter.

Contact: Gayle Eubank, Hearings Coordinator, Depariment
of Commerce, 3600 W. Broad Sireef, Fifth Floor,
Richmond, VA 23230, ielephone (804) 367-8524,

MIDDLE VIRGINIA BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE
MIDDLE VIRGINIA COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS
RESOURCES BOARD

t Septemaber 5§, 1991 - 7 p.m. — Open Meeiing
1 October 3, 1291 - 7 p.m. — Open Meeting
502 South Main Strest #4, Culpeper, Virginia.

From 7 p.m. until 7:36 p.m. the board of directors will
hold a business meeting to discuss DOC contract,
budget, and other related business. Then the CCRB
will meet io review cases before for eligibllity to
participate with the program. It will review the
previous month’s operation {(budget and program
related business).

Contact: Lisa Ann Peacock, Program Director, 502 South
Main Sireet #4, Culpeper, Virginia 22701, telephone (703)
825-4562

COMPENSATION BOARD

August 28, 1891 - 5 p.m. — Open Meeting

September 25, 1581 - 5 p.m. — Open Meeting

Room 813/913A, %ih Floor, Ninth Street Office Building,
202 North Ninth Street, Richmond, Virginia. (Interpreter
for deaf provided upen request)

A routine meeting to conduct business of {he board.
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C@ﬂtactﬁ Bruce W. Haynes, Executive Secretary, P.0. Box
3-F, Richmond, Virginla 23206-0686, telephone (804)
786-3886/TDD =

BOARD ON CONSERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT OF
PUBLIC BEACHES -

t September 18, 1981 - 19:30 a.m. — Open Meeting
Virginia Institute of Marine Sciences, Director’s Office,
Gloucester Point, Virginia.

A general business meeting.

Contaet: Jack E. Frye, Shoreline Program Manager,
Depariment of Congervation and Recreation, P. 0. Box
1024, Gloucester Point, VA 23062, telephone (8(4) 842-7121.

DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND RECREATION

Juvenite Justice Systems Advisery Board

t Aungust 18, 1981 - 10 a.m. — Open Meeting
Charlottegville Downfown Recreation Center, Market and
Avon Siresets, Chariottesvilie, Virginia.

A meeting to review and revise on progress of the
project.

Contact: Kathy Hamilion Brown, Therapeutic Recreation
Specialist, Division of Planning and Recreation Resources,
203 Governor St., Suile 326, Richmond, VA 23219,
telephone (804) 371-0348 or (804) 786-2121/TDD &

Seil emd Water Conservation Beoard

September 18, 1891 - 6 p.m. — Dinner Meeting
The Ground Round, 102 Tower Drive, Danville, Virginia.

The board will hold its reguiar bi-monthly meeting.

Centact: Donald L. Wells, Assistant Director, Department
of Comservation and Recreation, 203 Governor Si., Suite
206, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-4356.

BOARD OF CORRECTIONS

t September 11, 1881 - 19 aum. — Open Meeling
6200 Atmore Drive, Board of Corrections Board Room,
Richmond, Virginia.

A regular monthly meeting te consider such matters
as may be presented to the board.

Contact: Mrs. Vivian T. Toler, Secretary to the Board, 6500
Atmore Drive, Richmond, VA 23225, telephone (B04)
$74-32.35.

Liaison Committee

1 September 12, 1991 - %:30 a.m. — Open Meeting
6900 Atmore Drive, Board of Corrections Board Room,
Richmond, Virginia.

The commitiee will continue to address criminal

justice issues,

Contact: Louis E. Barber, Sheriff, Montgomery County, P.
Q. Drawer 149, Christiansburg, VA 24073, telephone (703)
382-2951.

CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES BOARD

October 2, 1991 - § a.m, — Public Hearing
General Assembly Building, 910 Capitol Street, Richmond,
Virginia. Bl

MNotice is hereby given in accoerdance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia thai the Criminal Justices
Services Board intends to amend regulations entified:
VR 240-03-1. Ruies Relating to Compulsery Minimum
Training Standards for Private Security Services
Business Persennel. The regulations set forth
minimum fraining standards and im-service training
requiremenis for privale securily services personnel.

Statutory Authority: § 8-182 of the Code of Virginia. _,"'

Written comments may be submitied until Sepiember 16,
1891, {0 L.T. Eckenrode, Department of Criminal Justice
Services, 805 East Broad Sireet, Richmond, Virginia 23219.

Contaet: Paula Scotf, Administrative Assistant, Depariment
of Criminai Justice Services, 805 E. Broad St, Richmond,
VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-4004.

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

August 14, 1891 - 7:380 a.m. — Open Meeting

T September 25, 1991 - 8 a.m. — Open Meeting

T September 26, 1991 - 8 a.m. — Open Meeting

t October 30, 1881 - 8 a.m. — Open Meeting

1 October 3L, 1991 - 8 a.m. — Open Meeting

James Monroe Building, Conference Rooms D & E, 101
North Fourteenth Street, Richmond, Virginia. &
(Interpreter for deaf provided if requested)

The Board of Educafion and the Board of Vocational
Education will hold its regularly scheduled meeting.
Business will be conducted according to items listed
on the agenda. The agenda is available upon request.
Public comment will not be received at the meeting.

Comtact: Margaret Roberts, Executive Director, Board of
Education, State Department of Education, P.G. Box GQ,‘
Richmond, VA 232186, telephone {804) 225-2540.
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LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE -
CHESTERFIELD COUNTY

September 5, 1991 - 5:30 p.m. — Open Meeting
October 3, 1991 - 5:30 pam. — Open Meeting
Chesterfield County Administration  Building,
Ironbridge Road, Chesterfield, Virginia, @&

A meeting to meet requirements of Superfund
Amendment and Reauthorization Act of 1986,

Contact: Linda G.
Chesterfield Fire Department, P.O. Box 40, Chesterfield,
VA 23832, telephone (804) 748-1236. .

LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE -
COUNTY OF PRINCE WILLIAM, CITY OF MANASSAS,
AND CITY OF MANASSAS PARK '

August 19, 1981 - 1:30 p.m. — Open Meeting

September 16, 1931 - 1:30 p.m. — Open Meeting
1 County Complex Court, Prince William, Virginia. @l

The Local Emergency Planning Committee will meet
to discharge the provisions of SARA Title IIL.

Conmtact: Thomas J. Hajduk, Information Coordinator, 1

County Complex Court, Prince William, VA 221929201,

vephone (703) 335-6800,

VIRGINIA EMERGENCY RESPONSE COUNCIL

September 11, 15991 - 10 a.m. — Open Meeting
Conference Room B, Monroe Building, 101 North 14th
Street, Richmond, Virginia. &

This meeting will update the VERC on new
developments in SARA Title III, Emergency Planning
and Community “Right-to-Know”; and will discuss the
impact of waste minimization and pollution prevention
initiatives on program activities.

Contact: Cathy L. Harris, Environmental Program
Manager, Department of Waste Management, 14th Floor,
Monroe Bidg., 101 N. 14th Street, Richmond, VA 23219,
telephone (804) 225-2513, (B04) 225-2631,
1-800-552-2075 or (804) 371-8737/TDD = .

COUNCIL ON THE ENVIRONMENT

September 4, 1991 - 7 p.m. — Public Hearing
King George County Volunteer Fire Departmeni, Route 3,
King George, Virginia.

September 5, 1981 - 7 p.m. ~ Public Hearing
Tappahannock Elementary School, Route 17, Auditorium,
appahannock, Virginia. :

10001

Furr, Assistant Emergency Services,'

toll-free _

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Council on the
Environment intends to adopt regulations entitled: VR
305-02-01. Guidelines for the Preparation of
Enviropmental Impact Assessments fer OQil or Gas
Well Drilling Operations in Tidewater Virginia. The
proposed regulation establishes criteria and procedures
to be followed by applicants preparing and persons
reviewing an environmental impact assessment for an
oil or gas well drilling operation and related activities
in Tidewater Virginia.

Statutory Authority: § 62.1-195.1 of the Code of Virginia-

Written comments may be submitted until September 13,
1991.

Contact: Jay Roberts, Environmental Planner, 202 N. Ninth
St., Suite 900, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804)
786-4500,

* X % Xk % ¥ ¥ X%

September 13, 1991 — Written commenté-may be submitted
until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Council on the
Environment intends to adopt regulations entitied: VR
305-01-001. Public Participation Guidelines. The
proposed regulation establishes the Council on the
Environment’s procedures for soliciting public
participation in the formulation and development of
regulations.

Statutory Authority: §§ 9-6.14:7.1, 10.1- 1206, and 62.1-195.1
of the Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitted until September 13,

1991,

Contact: Jay Roberts, Environmental Planner, 202 N. Ninth
St., Suite 900, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804)
786-4500 or (804) 367-7604/TDD = .

VIRGINIA FIRE SERVICES BOARD

 August 22, 1991 - 9 am. — Open Meeting
Embassy Suites, 2925 Emerywood Parkway,
Virginia.

Richmond,

A special meeting to discuss the role of the State Fire
Marshal.

Contact: Anne J. Bales, Executive Secretary Senior, 2807
Parham Read, Suite 200, Richmond, VA 23294, telephone
(804) 527-4236.
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BOARD OF GAME AND INLAND FISHERIES

August 29, 1981 - $:3¢ a.m. — Open Meeting
4010 West Broad Streef, Richmond, Virginia. & (Interpreter
for deaf provided upon request)

Commitiees of the Board of Game and Inland
_Fisheries will meet, beginning at 9:30 a.m. with the
Planning - Committee, followed by the Finance
Committee, then the Liaison Commiftee, Wildlife and
Boat Committee and the Law and Education
Committee, Each committee will review those agenda
items ~ appropriate to its authority, and make
recommendations for adoption or advertisement of

" such to the full board at its meeting on August 30,
1991,

- August 36, 1981 - $:30 a.m. — Open Meeting
NOTE: CHANGE IN LOCATION
Holiday Inn Crossroads, 2000 Staples Mlll Road, Richmond,
Virginia. B (Interpreter for deaf provided upon request)

The Board will meet to adopt the 199192 migratory

waterfowl seasons and to propose fish regulations. In
addition, consideration will be given to modifications
to the list of new state endangered and threatened
species and changing the status of -several "species
currently on this list. Other general and admmlstratlve
. matters, as necessary, w1ll be discussed.

Contact: Belle Harding, Secretary to Bud antow 4010 W.

Broad St., P. 0. Box 11104, Rlchmond VA 23230, telephone
(804) 367—1000

DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

' Advisory Commission en Mapping, Surveying and Land
Information Systems

"+ August 15, 1991 - 16 a.m. — Open Meeting
‘1100 Bank Street, Suite 901, Richmond, Virginia. Bl

A regular business meeting.
Contact: Charies E. Tyger, Computer SYsterns Engineer,
Council on Information Management, 1100 Bank Sireet,
Suite 901, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-3622
or (804) 225-3624/TDD =

‘BOARD FOR GEOLOGY

August 15, 1991 - 8:30 a.m. — Open Meeting
August 16, 1981 - 9:3¢ a.m. — Open Meeting
Department of Commerce, 3600 West Broad Street
Conference Room 1, 5th Floor, Richmond, Virginia. &l

The board will conduct its business meeting,

Contact:

Nelle P. Hotchkiss, Assistant Director, 3600 W.

Broad St., Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8595.

BOARD OF HEALTH PROFESSIONS

Tagk Ferce on Managed Health Care

+ August 20, 1681 - 10 a.m. — Open Meeting

Depariment of Health Professions, Hoard Room 1, 1601
Rolling Hills Drive, Richmond, Virginia. Bl (Interpreter for
deaf provided upon request)

The Task Force will meet to review the first draft of

its report to the Commission on Health Care for All
~ Virginians. The meeting i open t¢ the public

however, no public comments will be received.

- Contact: Richard Morrison, Executive Direcior, Depariment

of Health Professions, 1601 Reoiling Hills Drive, Richmond,
VA 23229, telephone (804) 662-9%04,

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Office of Planning and Regulatoery Services

Avgust 13, 1981 - 16 am. — Public Hearing and Open
Meeting v
House Roem C, General Asserably Building, Richmon(
Virginia. & 5

The morning session wiill be a public hearing to
comment on the need t¢ regulate Durable Medical
_. Equipment management in the home. The study
- committee will meet in the afternosn to conduct a
- business meeting regarding commeits made during the
public hearing.

Contact: Raymond O. Perry, Assistant Health

Commissioner, Department of Health, 1500 E. Main Sireet,
Suite 105, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 786-6%70.

VIRGINIA BEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COUNCIL
Augpst 27, 1991 - 9:3¢ a.m. — Open Meeting

- Blue Cross/Blue Shield, Virginia Room, 2015 Staples Mill

Road, Richmond, Virginia. [

The council will conduct its meonthly meeting to
address financial, policy or techmical matiers which
may have arisen since the last meeting. The council’s
current bylaws wiil also be discussed and possibly
amended.

Contact: G. Edward Dalton, Deputy Direcior, 805 E. Broad
§t., 6th Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804>
786-6371/TDD =
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STATE COUNCIL OF HIGHER EDUCATION FOR
VIRGINIA

t September 3, 1091 - 1 p.m. — Open Meeting
1 September 4, 1991 - 1 p.m. — Open Meeting
The Airfield 4-H Center, Wakefield, Virginia.

A general business meetmg For more information call
the council.

Contact: Mike Mullen, Associate Director, 101 N. 14th St.,
Oth Floor, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-2610.

VIRGINIA HISTORIC PRESERVATION FOUNDATION

t September 11, 1991 - 11 am. — Open Meeting
530 Amherst Street, Winchester, Virginia.

A general business meeting.

Contact: Margaret Peters, 221 Governor Street, Richmond,
Virginia 23219, telephone (804) 786-3143- or (B04)
786-1935/TDD =

BOARD OF HISTORIC RESOURCES

Aungust 21, 1991 - 10:3% a.m. -~ Open Meeting

NOTE: CHANGE IN LOCATION

pard Room, Hunton and Williams, 20th Floor, Rwerfront
Plaza East Tower, 951 East Byrd Street, Richmond,
Virginia. & (Interpreter for the deaf prowded upon
request)

A general business meeting.

Contact: Margaret Peters, 221 Governor Sireet, Richmond,
Virginia 23219, telephone (804) 786-3143 or (804)
786-1935/TDD =

DEPARTMENT OF HISTORIC RESOURCES
State Review Board

Angust 20, 1991 - 10 a.m. ~ Open Meeting

Senate Room A, General Assembly Building, Richmond,
Virginia. @& (Interpreter for the deaf provided upon
request)

A meeting to consider the nomination of the following
properties to the Virginia Landmarks Register and the
National Register of Historic Places:

Black Walnut, Halifax County

Chesterfield County Courthouse and Courthouse Square,
Chesterfield County

Front Royal Recreational Park, Front Royal, Warren
County

Hanger Mill, Augusta County

Huntingdon, Roanoke (City)

The Rectory, Albemarle County

Rothsay, Bedford County

Salem Presbyterian Parsonage, Salem

Cifax Rural Historic District, Bedford County

Clifton Forge Commercial Historic District, Clifion
Forge

Powhatan/Mount Ida Rural Historic District, King
George County
Pulaski South Residential and Industrial Historic

District, Town of Pulaski, Pulaski County
Southwest Mountains Rural Historic District, Albemarle
County

Contact: Margaret Peters, 221 Governor Street, Richmond,
Virginia 23219, telephone (804) 786-3143 or (804)
786-1935/TDD = :

HOPEWELL INDUSTRIAL SAFETY COUNCIL

September 3, 1951 - 9 a.m. — Open Meeting

Hopewell Community Center, Second & City Point Road,
Hopewell, Virginia. B (Interpreter for the deaf provided
upon redquest) o .

" Local Emergency Preparedness Committee Meeting on
Emergency Preparedness as required by SARA Title
I11.

Contact: Robert Brown, Emergency Services Coordinator,
300 North Main Street, Hopewell, VA 23860, telephone
(804) 541-2298,

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT (BOARD QF)

September 9, 199} - 1 p.m. — Public Hearing

Virginia Housing Development Authority, 601
Belvidere Street, Richmond, Virginia. &

South

September 11, 1991 - 19 a.m. — Public Hearing
Prince William Department of Social Services, 7987 Ashton
Avenue, Manassas, Virginia. B

September 12, 1991 - 10 a.m. — Public Hearing
Hampton Public Library, 4207 Victoria Boulevard,
Hampton, Virginia. &

September 13, 1991 - 10 a.m. — Public Hearing
Virginia Tech Donaldson Brown Center, Otey Street,
Blacksburg, Virginia. .

The Department of Housing and Community
Development is holding four = public hearings
throughout the state to receive comments on the
proposed Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy
(CHAS) which is a statewide housing plan mandated
by the National Affordable Housing Act of 1990. The
proposed CHAS identifies needs, resources, and
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strategies for developing affordable housing and will
serve as a guide for the expenditure of all federal
and state housing assistance. .

Comments on the proposed CHAS may be made at
any of the public hearings or may be submitted in
writing through September 30, 1881. Coples of the
propesed CHAS may be obtained by calling er writing
Ms. Sharon Keileher, Depariment of Housing and
Community Development, 205 North Fourth Street,
Richmond, VA 23219, (804) 786-7801.

Contact Alice Fagcitelli, Program Manager, Department of
Housing and Community Development, 205 North Fourth
Street, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804) 225-4299 or
(804) 786-5405/TDD =

VIRGINIA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

August 15, 1961 - Writien comments may be submiited
until this date

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Virginia Housing
Development Authority intends to amend regulations
entitied: VR 460-62-0¢08. Rules and Reguladons for
Virginiz Rental Rehabilitatien Program. The purpose
of this actien is {0 amend the rules and regulations in
conformance with amendments to the federal
regulations applicabie o the program.

Statutery Authority: § 36-55.30:3 of the Code of Virginia.
Written comments may be submitted until August 15, 1991,

Contact: I 'Judsdn McKeliar, Jr.,, General Counsel, Virginia
Housing Development Authority, 601 S. Belvidere St
Richmond, VA 23220, telephone (804) 762-1986.

t August 26, 1881 - 11 a.m. - Open Meeting
601 S. Belvidere Street, Richmond, Virginia. &

A regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners fo
(i) review, and, if appropriate, approve the minutes
from the prior monthly meeting, (i) consider for
approval and ratification morigage loan commitments
under its varicug programs; (iii) review the authority’s
operations for the prior month; (iv) consider and, if
appropriate, approve proposed amendments fo the
- Rules anrd Regulations for Virginia Rental
Rehabilitation Programm; and (v) consider such other
matiers and take such other actions as they may
deem appropriate. Various committees of the Board of
Commissioners may alse meet before or after the
regular meeting and consider matters within their

purview. The planned agenda of the meeting will be -

available at the offices of the authority one week
prior to the date of the meeting.

Centact: J. Judson McKellar, Jr.,, General Counsel, Virginia

~ P.0. Box 1K, Richmond, VA 23201,

Housing Development Authority, 601 S. Belvidere St
Richmond, VA 23220, telephone (804) 782-1986.

STATE LAND EVALUATION ADVISORY COUNCIL

Auvgnst 23, 1991 - 10 a.m. — Open Meeting

September §, 199 - 16 a.m. — Open Meeting

Department of Taxation, 2220 West Broad Street,
Richmond, Virginia.

The councit will meet to adopt suggested ranges of
values for agricultural, horticultural, forest and open
space land use and the use value assessment program,

Contact: David E. Jordan, Assistant Division Direcior,
Virginia Department of Taxation, Property Tax Division,
telephone (804)
367-8020.

COMMISSION ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT

Angast 16, 1981 - 11 a.m. — Open Meeting
Auvgust 20, 1991 - (if needed} - Time f¢ be abnounced -
Open Meeting

City of South Boston, Halifax Coumty - Site fo be

- determined.

Ora! presentations regarding the proposed reversion of
the City of South Boston to town status in Halifa:
County. :

Persons desiring to participate in the Commission’s
oral presentations and requiring speciai
accommodations or inferpreter services should contact
the Commission’s offices at (804) 786-6508 or (804)
786-1860 TDD == by May 23, 1991,

August 20, 1991 - 7 p.m. — Public Hearing
City of South Boston, Halifax County area - Site to be
determined.

Public hearing regarding the proposed reversion of the
City of South Boston to town status in Halifax County.

Persons desiring to participate in the Commission's
oral presentations and requiring special
accommodations or inferpreter services should contact
the Commission’s offices at (804) 786-6508 or (804)
786-1860 TDD = by May 23, 1991.

Centact: Barbara W. Bingham, Adminisirative Assistant, 702
Eighth Sireet Office Bldg., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone
(804) 786-6508 or (804) 786-1860/TDD =

STATE LOTTERY BOARD

August 26, 1891 - 19 a.m. — Open Meeting
State Lottery Department, Conference Room, 2201 Wes
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aread Street, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular monthly meeting of the board. Business will
be conducted according to items listed on the agenda
which has not yet been determined. Two penods for
public comment are scheduled.

Contact: Barbara L. Roberison, Lottery Staff Officer, State
Lottery Department, 2201 West Broad Street, Richmond,
VA 23201, telephone (804) 367-9433.

MARINE RESOURCES COMMISSION

August 27, 1991 - 9:38 a.m. — Open Meeting

2600 Washington Avenue, 4th Floor, Room 403, Newport
News, Virginia. {Interpreter for deaf provided if
requested)

The commission will hear and decide marine
environmental matters at 9:30 a.m.: permit applications
for projects in wetlands, bottom lands, coastal primary
sand dunes and beaches, appeals of local wetland
hoard decisions; policy and regulatory issues.

The commission will hear and decide fishery
management items at approximately 2 p.m.: regulatory
proposals; fishery 'management plans; fishery
conservation issues; licensing; shelfish leasing.

Meetings are open to the public. Testimony is taken
under oath from parties addressing agenda items on
permits and lcensing. Public comments are taken on
resource matters, regulatory issues, and items
scheduled for public hearing. The commission is
empowered to promulgate regulations in the areas of
marine environmenial management and marine fishery
management.

Contact: Cathy W. Evereft, Secretary to the Commission,
P.O. Box 756, Room 1006, Newport News, VA 23607,
telephone (804) 247-8088 or (804) 247-2292/TDD =

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES
(BOARD OF) :

August 16, 1991 — Written comments may be submitted
until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medical
Assistance Services intends to adopt regulations
entitled: VR 460-04-8.12. Home and Community Based
Services for Individeals with Mental Retardation.
The purpose of this proposal is t¢ promulgate
permanent regulations for the provision of home and
community-based services for persons with mental
retardation, to supersede the temporary emergency
- regulation which became eifective on December 20,
* 1990,

Statutory Authority: § 32,1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitted until 4:30 pum.,
August 16, 1991, to Chris Pruett, Division of QCA,
Department -of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad
St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219,

Centact: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator,
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad
St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804)
786-7933.

¥ ok ¥ % k% & X

' Sepiember 13, 1981 ~ Written comments may be submitied

until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medical
Assistance Services intends to amend regulations
entitled: VR 460-04-29, 460-01-28.1, 450-81-31.1,
460-02-3.2200, and 450-03-4.1922. Coordination of Title
XIX with Part A and Part B of Title XVIII. The
purpose of the proposed action is to limit the payment
of coinsurance amount by Medicaid so that the
combined payments of Medicare Part B and Medicaid
would not exceed the Medicaid allowance for a
particular procedure.

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-324 of the Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitted until September 13,
1991, to C.M. Brankley, Director, Division of Client
Services, DMAS, 600 E. Broad St, Suite 1300, Richmond,
VA 23219,

Contact: Victoria P. Simmbns, Regulatory Coordinator,
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad
St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23218, telephone (804)
786-7933.

# % % % ¥k ¥ 2 %

September 13, 1991 ~ Written commenis may be submitted
until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medical
Assistance Services intends to amend regulations
entitlted: State Plan for Medical Assistance Relating
to Home Health Services. VR 460-03-3.1100. Amount,
Duration and Scepe of Services; VR 4§8-02-3.1308.
Standards Established and Methods Used to Assure

. High Quality of Care. The purpose of the proposed
action is to promulgate permanents regulation to
control the use of home health services.

* Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitted until September 13,
1991, to Mary Chiles, Manager, Division of Quality Care
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Assurance, DMAS, 600 E. Broad St, Suite 1300, Richmond,
VA 23218,

Comtact: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator,
Depariment of Medical Asgistance Services, 600 E. Broad
St., Suite 1300, Richmond, - VA 23218, (iclephone (804)
786-7933. .

@ % B & % ok & %

Septersber 27, 1881 — Written comments may be submitted
until ihis date,

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Board  of Medical
Assistance Services ipiends {o amend regulations
entitled: State Plan for Medical Assistance Relating
to Elimination of Medicald Payment for Reserving
Nursing Home Bed fer Hospitalized Patients. VR
460-02-4.1830. Basis for Paymeni for Reserving Beds
During a Recipient’s Absemce frem am Inpatient
Facility. The purpose of the proposed action is to
promulgate permanent regulations o supersede the
emergency regulation which provides for the same
policy.

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submified until September 27,
1881, io Betty Cochran, Director, Division of Quality Care
Assurance, DMAS, 600 E. Broad S5t, Suite 1200, Richmond,
VA 23218,

Contact:  Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator,
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 60¢ E. Broad
St, Suife 13006, Richmond, VA 23219, ielephone (804)
786-7933.

® % % ¥ R ¥ R %

September 27, 1991 — Written comments may be submitted
until this date. .

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medical
Assistance Services intends to amend regulations
entitled: VR 460-03-3.0100. VR 460-02-3.1300. VR
460-64-3.1300. OQutpadient Rehabilitative Services . The
purpose of the proposed action is to promulgate
permanent regulations to supersede the existing
emergency regulaiion which provides for substantially
the same policies, requirements, and limitations,

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-32Z5 of the Code of Virginia.
Written commenis may be submitted umtil September 27,
1991, to Mary Chiles, Manager, Division of Quality Care
Assurance, DMAS, 600 E. Broad Si., Suite 1300, Richmond,
VA 23219,

Contact: Victoria P. Simmons, Reguiatory Coordinator,

Department of Med'ical Assistance Services, 60¢ E. Broa.
Si, Suite 1300, Richmend, VA 23218, telephone (804)
786-7933.

% oW N % B o2 B %

t October 12, 1981 — Written comments may be submitied
until this daie.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Beard of Medical
Assistance Services iniends fo amend regulations
eniifled: VR 468-04-8.3. Client Medical Mapagement
Program. This action more clearly defines the
amount, duration, and scope of certain medical
services fo expedite the utilization review process.

STATEMENT

Basis and Autherity; The Department of Medical Assistance
Services (DMAS) is required by 42 CFR 456.3 Subpart A
to implement a statewide surveillance and utilization
control program. Federal regulations at 42 CFR 431.54(e)
set forth the rules for lock-in and lock-ouf programs.
DMAS meets these requirements by applying its Client
Medical Management Program to specific recipients and
providers. Subseguent to an emergency adoption action, the
agency is initiating the public nofice and comment process
as confained in Article 2 of the APA.

Purpose: This regulatory package replaces the curref
emergency reguiation enfifled Expansion of the Cliemt
Medical Management Program (VR 460-04-8.3).

Summary and Analysis: Under the Virginia Client Medical
Management Program, DMAS assigns clients who abuse or
overuse services to primary care physicians and designated
pharmacies for case management. The program also
prohibits providers who abugse or provide unnecessary
services from being designated as primary care providers
for recipients in the program.

Revisions to the Client Medical Managemeni regulations
are necessary to expedite the utilization review process in
order to increase the caseload 1o the targeted levels. New
criteria that specify utilization levels which are considered
excessive will allow DMAS staff to determine more
efficiently the clienfs’ needs for coordination of medical
care. More recipients of medical assistance will be
evaluated for care coordination. Appropriateness of
placement in care ccordination wiill be ensured by the
combined use of numeric thresholds and DMAS medical
staff’'s reviews.

These regulatery revisions are also necessary to support
the department in its administrative appeals process by
defining the amount, duration and scope of cerfain
medically unnecessary services.

The utilization patterns which serve as criteria fo-
recipient restriction are listed in §§ 2 D and 2 J of i
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Jroposed regulations. There are several changes from the
emergency regulatory package. Numeric thresholds have
been adjusted for several criteria (D.3, h and 1) usging
. statistical data available through the Surveillance and
_ Utilization Review Subsystem (SURS) of the Medicaid
Management Information System.

New criteria (§ 2 D 3, m-n} recommended by health care
providers have been added tfo help identify abusive
utilization patterns which are substantiated upon review by
DMAS staff and noncempliant behaviors which result in
abuse. These would be used for both initial review of
recipient activity and review of restricted recipients prior
to the end of each resiriction period fo determine the
need for continued utilization controls.

Experience in completing reviews on restricted recipients
has shown the need for additional writien criteria to
address compliance with DMAS policy: and
recommendations of the designated provider(s). In addition
te the changes described above, another new criterion (§ 2
J 1l.d) will allow continued restriction when restricted
recipients have had one or more changes of designated
provider due io the breakdown of the recipient/provider
relationship. These breakdowns may result from recipients’
noncompliance with Client Medical Management policy and
procedures or noncompliance with recommended medical
care which resulis in abuge, '

The result of frequent provider changes is that the
Bcipient continues to receive fragmented medical care
which may increase costs to the department. Thege
recipienis need more time o practice appropriate
ptilization of medical services and demonstrate compliance.

Currently all recipient resiriction perieds are for 18
months. Section 2 E 5 has been added to extend the
restriction period to 24 months when a recipient has
compieted a period of enrollment in Client Medical
Management and is subsequenily found to have resumed
abusive utilization practices once unrestricted. A longer
resiriction is expected to be more effective in changing
inappropriate utilization patterns by giving recipients more
time to practice compliance. It is expected to also serve
as a greater deterrent to misuse of services.

There have been t(wo changes in the emergency
regulations regarding approval of recipient and provider
regulations. Appreval authoerity for recipient restriction (§
2 D 4) and provider restriction (§ 3 D 4) has been
removed because they were procedural.

Impact: Both recipient and provider resiriction programs
have been operational since 1983, Case management
through recipient and provider restriction has been
successful as a utilization control method. The recipient
restriction program is administered by the department’s
Recipient Monitoring Unit. The average annual saving per
restricted recipient is estimated at approximately $1700.
“FThe provider restriction program currenily has one
pstricted provider. This is the only provider who has been

restricted since 1986.

Experience with the program has demonstrated that
assigning clienis who abuse or overuse services to primary
care Dphysicians for case management can change
utilization practices. Based on the deparimeni’s December,
1989 Client Medical Management Cost Avoidance Study, the
current program is cost effective and operates at an
administrative cost of $270,000 annually, with a net cost
avoidance of approximately $1,080,000 per year.

The . department expects fo increase the Client Medical
Management Program caseload to 1500 recipients in fiscal
year 1992. The increase will provide projected additional
generai fund savings of $1,500,000 in FY 92.

Implementing these permanent regulations is expected to
be budget neutral because the savings were achieved with
the emergency regulation. '

Forms: Forms to be used in the recipient restriction
program are identified below. The only form changed
significantly from the forms submltted with the initial
regulatory package is #5. L.

Practiticner Referral Form - no changes. 2.

Drug Utilization Review Reply - question IV added. 3.
Recipient/Primary Provider Agreement - no changes.
4

Questionnaire - no changes, 5.

Profile of Recipient’s Utilization - modifications reflect
changes in criteria for restriction. 6.

Primary Care Provider’s Review Form - language
modified in the first question under II

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-324 of the Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitited until 430 pm.,
October 12, 1991, to Ms. Sharon Long, Division of Program
Compliance, DMAS, 600 E. Broad St, Suite 1309,
Richmond, VA 23219,

Contact: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator,
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad
St., Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804)
786-7933.

GOVERNOR’S ADVISORY BOARD ON MEDICARE AND
MEDICAID

T August 27, 1991 - 2 p.m. ~ Open Meeting
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad
Street, Suite 1300, Richmond, Virginia.

Report and discussion of the Advisory Board’s
subcommittee meefing with the Board of Medical
Asgistance Services representatives.

Contact: Sue Jowdy, Executive Asgistant, 600 E. Broad
Street, Suite 1300, Richmeond, Virginia 23219, telephone
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(804) 786-8089 or 1-800-343-0634/TDD = .

BOARD OF MEDICINE

Septemher 13, 1981 — Wrilten comments may be submitted
until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1

of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Medicine

intends to amend regulations entitled: VR 465-88-01.
Certification for Optometrists to Prescribe for and
- Treat Certain Diseases Including Abnermal
Conditions of the Human Eye and Its Adnexa with
Certain Therapeutic Pharmaceutical Agents. These
amendments replace emergency regulations in §§
2.1-(3) and 6.1 of the regulations to provide alternate
pathways for graduates of optometric training
programs to be eligible to sit for the certification
exam to treat ocular diseases with therapeutic
pharmaceutical agenis.

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-2400,
54.1-2957.2 of the Code of Virginia.

54.1-2957.1, anmnd

ertten comments may be submitted until September 13
1991,

Centact: Eugenia K. Dorson, Deputy Execuiive Director,
1601 Rolling Hilis Dr., Richmond, VA 23229, telephone
(804) 662-9925.

Infermal Comference Commiiiee

Avgust 1§, 1991 « § a.m. — Open Meeting
Roanoke Airport Marriott, 2801 Hershberger Road, N.W,
Roanoke, Virginia. [&

The Informal Conference Commiiiee will inquire into
allegations that certain practitioners may have violated
laws and regulations governing the practice of
medicine and other healing arts in Virginia. The
committee will meet in open and closed sessions
pursuant to § 2.1-344 of the Code of Virginia. Public
comment will not be received.

Centact: Karen D. Waldron, Deputy Execufive Director,
Disc., 1601 Rolling Hiils Dr., Richmond, VA 23229,
tefephone (804) 662-9308 or (804) 662-9943/TDD =

Advisory Committee on Optometry

September 13, 1991 - 16 a.m. — Open Meeting
Department of ealth Professions, Beard Room 2, 1601
Rolling Hills Drive, Richmond, Virginia. &

The commitiee will meet to review public written
comments received on the Optomeiry Regulations VR
465-09-01, Certification for Optomefrisis to prescribe
for and treat certain diseases or abnormal conditions
of the human eye and its adnexa with certain

therapeutic pharmaceutical agents. The commitiee wil
propose recommendations for presentation to the ful
board. Public comments will not be received.

Contact: Eugenia K. Dorson, Deputy Execufive Director,
1601 Rolling Hills Drive, Richmond, VA 23229, telephone
(804) 662-8925.

Advisory Board en Physical Therapy

August 23, 1981 - § am. — Open Meeting

September €, 1981 - 9 a.m. — Open Meeting

Department of Health Professions, Board Room 2, 1601
Roliing Hills Drive, Richmond, Virginia. (&

A meeting to review and discuss regulations, bylaws,
procedural manuals, and to receive reports and other
items which may come before the advisory board. The
advisary hoard will not receive public commenis.

Contact: Eugenia K. Dorson, Deputy Executive Director,
1601 Rolling Hills Drive, Richmond, VA 23229, ielephone
(804) 662-9925.

Advisory Committee on Physician’s Assistants

August 23, 1991 - § a.m. — Open Meeting
Department of Health Professions, Board Room 1, 16(1
Rolling Hills Drive, Richmond, Virginia. &

The committee will review and prepare
recommendations to the board on proposed
amendments to regulations VR 465-05-01. The
committee will not entertain public comments.

Contact: Eugenia XK. Dorson, Deputy Executive Director,
1601 Rolling Hills Drive, Richmond, VA 23229, telephone
(804) 662-9925.

MIGRANT AND SEASONAL FARMWORKERS BOARD

t August 28, 1381 - 1& a.m. ~ Openr Meeting
State Capitol Building, House Room 1, Richmond, Virginia.
&

A regular meeting of the board. Immediately following
the conclusion of the regular meeting, the
Subcommitiee on Complaint Resolution Process will
meet.

Contact: Marilyn Mandel, Director, Office of Planning and
Policy, Department of Labor and Industry, Powers-Taylor
Building, 13 South 13th Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219 ’
telephone (804) 786-2385.
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VIRGINIA MILITARY INSTITUTE

Board of Visltors

Septembar 7, 1991 - 8:38 am. — Open Meeting
Smith Hall Board Room, Virginla Miiltary Instituts,
Lexington, Virginia, %

A regular meeting of the VMI Board of Visitors to (i)
glect president for 1981-1892; and (1) consider
committee reports.

The BOV provides an opportunity for public comment
at this meeting, lmmediately after the superintendent’s
comments (about § am.).

Contact: Colonel Edwin L. Dooley, Jr, Secrsiary to BOV,
Virginia Military Ingiliute, Lexington, Virglnia 24450,
telephone (703) 464-7206.

DEPARTMENT GF MINES, MINERALS AND ENERGY

September 13, 1861 - 10 aan. — Public Hearing
Department of Mines, Minerals and Eaergy, Division of
Mined Land Reclamation, 622 Powell Avenue, AML
Conference Room, Big Stone Gap, Virginia,

Notice is hersby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Department of Mines,

; Minerals and Energy intends to amend regulations
entitled: VR 480-03-18, Virginia Coal Surface Mining
Reclamation Regulations, This action amends
standards for protection of historic, fish, and wildlife
resources; adminisirative procedures to reinstate
individuals who have forfeited bond; appeals of the
director’s decisions; review of lands unsuitable
petitions and notification of bond release.

Statutory Authority: §§ 45.1-3.4 and 45.1-230 of the Code of
Virgiaia.

Written comments may be submitted until September 13,
- 1081,

Contact: Bill Edwards, Policy Analyst Department of
. Mines, Minerals and Energy, 2201 W, Broad S5t, Richmond,
- VA 23220, telephone (804) 367-0330 or toll-free
. 1-800-552-3831.

BOARD OF NURSING
Spacial Conferenge Commiitee

© August 13, 1881 - 8:38 a.m. — Open Meeting

o~ August 22, 1681 - 8:30 a.m. - Open Meeting

. August 23, 1981 - 8:3¢ a.m. — Open Meeting

© August 2¢, 1881 - %:3%0 a.m. — Open Meeting

- -Department of Health Professions, Conference Room 3,
" 301 Rolling Hills Drive, Richmond, Virginia. &

(Interpreter for deaf provided upon request)

A Epecial Conference Committee, comprised of three
members of the Virginla Board of Nursing, wiil
conduct informal conferences with licensess to
determine what, If any, action should be
recommended to the Board of Nursing

Public comment will not be received.

{ontact: Corinne F. Dorsey, R.N. Executive Director, 1601
Rolling Hills Drive, Richmond, Virginia 23228, telephone
(804) 662-9008, toll-free 1-800-533-1560 or (304)
862-7197/TDD =

Task Farce to Study Nurse Midwives and Obstetric Cars

August 19, 1991 - 10 a.m, - Open Meeting
General Assembly Buillding, 4th Floor West Confersnce
Room, 810 Capitol Street, Richmond, Virginia, &

August 18, 1881 - 1:30 p.m. — Public Hearing
General Assembly Building, House Room C, 910 Capiiol
Street, Richmond, Virginia, &

Task Force will meet to continue its study of
providers of obstetric care, pursuant to House Joint
Resolution 431.

At 1330 pam. the Task Force will conduct an
informational public hearing in House Room (.
Comment Is requested related to methods of promoting
and encouraging family physiciang and obstetriclansg to
continue or resume delivering babies, to examine the
potential for expanding nurse midwife practice and
recommendations for collaboration by these providers
to respond to identified needs in the Commonwealth,

Contact: Corinne F. Dorsey, R.N., Executive Director, 1601

Rolling Hills Dr., Richmond, VA 23229, telephone (804)
§62-9909, toll-free 1-800-533-1560, or (804) 662-7187/TDD =

BOARD OF NURSING HOME ADMINISTRATORS

t September 4, 1991 - 8:30 a.m. ~ Open Meeting
1601 Rolling Hills Drive, Richmond, Virginia.

The Informal Conference Commitiee will be hearing
informal conferences.

September 5, 1951 - 8:30 a.m. — Open Meeting
1601 Rolling Hills Drive, Richmond, Virginia.

A regularly scheduled board meeting,

Contact: Meredyth P. Partridge, Executive Director, 1601
Rolling Hills Dr.,, Richmond, VA 23229, telephone (804)
662-73%0,
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BOARD OF OPTOMETRY
August 21, 198F - 8:30 a.m. — Open Meeting
Department of Health Professions, Conference Room 2,
1601 Rolling Hills Drive, Richmond, Virginia.
Informal Conferences are scheduled.

The board will meet at 10 am.
Optometry Regulations.

to adopt the

Contact: Lisa J. Russell, Execuiive Director, 1601 Rolling
Hiils Drive, Richmond, VA 23220-5005, telephone (804)
662-8942.

VIRGINIA OUTDOORS FOUNDATION

August 26, 1991 - 16:30 a.m. — Open Meeting
House Room 4, State Capitol, Richmond, Virginia. &

A general Business meeting.

Contact: Tyson B. Van Auken, Executive Director, 221
Governor Street, Richmond, VA 23219, telephome (804)
786-5539.

REAL ESTATE APPRAISER BOARD

September 17, 1861 - 11 a.m, = Open Meeting
Department ¢f Commerce, 3600 West Broad Sireet,
Richmond, Virginia.

A board'meeting to adopt proposed regulations.

Contaey: Demetra Y. Konfos, Assistant Director,
Department of Commerce, Services, 3600 West Broad
Street, Richmend, Virginia 23230, telephone (804) 367-2175.

LI I B

Sepiemaber 16, 1981 — Written comments may be submitted
until this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Real Estate Appraiser
Board intends to adopt regulations entitled: VR
583-81-01. Real Estate Appraiser Board Public
Pariicipation Guidelines. The proposed regulation
outlines the procedures for solicitation of input from
inferested parties in the formation and development of
Appraiser Board Regulations.

Statutery Authority: § 54.1-2013 of the Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitied uniil September 186,
1991.

Cemtact: Demetra Y. Kontos, Assistani Director, Real
Estate Appraiser Board, Depariment of Commerce, 3600

W. Broad St, 5th Floor, Richmond, VA 23230, telephoi
(804) 367-2175.

REAL ESTATE BOARD

Auvgust 15, 1981 - 11 a.m. — Open Meeting
Court Room 1, Roanoke City Circuit Court, 315 West
Church Avenue, Roancke, Virginia.

The board will meet to conduct a formal hearing: File
Number 88-00865, Real Esiate Board v. Donald Hall
and Julia Mawyer,

Contact: Gayle Eubank, Hearings Coordinator, Department
of Commerce, 3600 W, Broad Si., Richmond, VA 23230,
telephone (304) 367-8524.

t August 22, 1981 - 9 a.m. - Open Meeting
Department of Commerce, 3600 West Broad Street, 5th
Fioor, Richmond, Virginia.

A regular meeting to consider board business including
license applications, disciplinary cases, eic.

Contact: Joan L. White, Assistant Director, Department of
Commerce, 3600 W. Broad St, S5th Fleor, Richmond, VA
23230, telephone (804) 367-8552.

August 28, 1981 - 1® a.m. — Open Meeting
Tysons Corner Marrioit, 8028 Leesburg Pike, Vieno
Virginia. A

The board will meet to conduct a formal hearing: File
Number 90-01807, Real Esiate Board v. Becker,
Harriet J.

Contact: Gayle Eubank, Hearings Coordinator, Department
of Commerce, 3600 W. Broad St, Richmond, VA 23230,
telephone (804) 367-8524.

* %k % % ¥ ¥ £ %

August 16, 1981 — Written comments may be submitted
untii this date.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Real Estate Board
intends to adopi regulations entitled: VR 585-01-05.
Real Estate Beard Fair Housing Regulaiions. The
board proposes to promulgate fair housing regulations
in support of the Virginia Fair Housing Law, Chapter
51 (§ 3696.1 et seq.) of Title 36 of the Code of
Virginia effective July 1, 1991,

Statutory Authority: §§ 36-94(d) and 36-96.20(C) of the
Code of Virginia.

Contaci: Susan Scovill, Fair Housing Administrator,
Department of Commerce, 3600 W. Broad St., 5th Floor
Richmond, VA 23230, telephone (804) 367-8530 i
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INTERDEPARTMENTAL REGULATION OF
RESIDENTIAL FACILITIES FOR CHILDREN

Coordinating Commitiee

T August 16, 1981 - 3:30 a.m. — Open Meeting

Office of Coordinator, Interdepartmental Regulation, 1603
Santa Rosa Road, Tyler Building, Suite 208, Richmeond,
Virginia. B '

A regularly scheduled meeting to consider such
administrative and policy issues as may be presented
{0 the committee. A period for public commeni is
provided at each meeting. ' '

Comtact: John J. Allen, Jr., Coordinator, Interdepartmental
Regulation, OQifice of the Coordinator, 8007 Discovery
Drive, Richmond, VA 23229-8699, telephone (804) 662-7124,

BOARD OF SCOCIAL SERVICES

August 14, 1991 - 2 p.m. — Open Meeting

August 15, 1991 - (if needed) - 9 a.m. — Open Meeting
Department of Social Services, 8007 Discovery Drive,
Richmond, Virginia.

A work session and formal business meeting.

jontact: Phyllis Sisk, Staff Specialist, Department of Social
services, 8007 Discovery Drive, Richmond, VA 23229,
telephone (804) 662-9236, toll-free 1-800-552-3431 or
1-800-552-7096/TDD =

DEPARTMENT OF S0CIAL SERVICES (BOARD OF)
AND CHILD DAY-CARE COUNCIL

T September 16, 1981 - 3:30 p.m. — Public Hearing
Roancke Municipal Building, Council Chambers, 4th Floor,
215 Church Avenue, S.W., Roanoke, Virginia.

T September 17, 1991 - 3 p.m. — Public Hearing
Washington Gas and Light Company, Auditorium, 6801
Indusirial Road, Springfield, Virginia.

1 September 19, 1991 - 3 p.m. — Public Hearing

Williamsburg Regional Library, Arts Center Theatre, 515

Scotland Street, Williamsburg, Virginia.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Board of Social
Services and Child Day-Care Council intend to amend
regulations entitled: YR 615-36-01 and 175-83-0L
General Procedures and Informatien for Licensure,
The regulations are being revised to incorporate new
legislation and to simplify and clarify licensing
procedures.

STATEMENT

" sireamlines and simplifies some

Subject: The regulation, General Procedures and
Information for Licensure, is being proposed for a2 60-day
period of public comment.

Basis; Sections 63.1-174 and 63.1-202 of the Code of
Virginia provide the statutory basis for the State Board of
Social Services to promulgate standards for adult day care
centers, homes for adults, child placing agencies, child
caring institutions, independent foster homes, family day
care homes, and family day care systems. Section 63.1-202
provides the statutory base for the child care centers,
including those centers operating as child day-care camps,
preschools and nursery schools, and before and after
schoot day-care programs. The board and council have
approved the proposed regulation for a 60-day period of
public comment.

Purpose: The purpose of the regulation is to define the
rights, responsibilities, and - procedures for licensees and
the Department of Social Services during the licensing
process. The proposed regulation was revised to include
statutory changes to both Chapters 9 and 10 of Title 63.1
and to clarify and simplify some licensing procedures for
both applicants and licensees and for licensing staff. '

Substance; The proposed regulation inctudes the follpwing

 changes:

adds four new child day care programs which will be
regulated by the Department of Social Services;

adds intermediate sanctions for homes for adulis to
those sanctions already specified in the Code of
Virgiria;

establishes a process for biennial licensure for child
care facilities;

requires licensees to request the fire and health
inspections for their facilities rather than having it
done by licensing staff;

requires unannounced renewal studies in adult care
facilities;

provides for the establishment of a parental hot line
to respond to complaints regarding child care
facilities; and :

licensing procedures
identified by licensees and licensing staff.

Issues: This regulation addresses the following issues which
impact facilities subject to licensure by the Department. of
Social Services: the license, the licensing process, allowable
variances, informal appeal process, complaint investigation,
sanctions, licensing office locations, and schedule of fees
for application processing.

Impact: This regulation will affect the following programs
licensed by the Department of Social Services: adult day
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care centers; homes for- aduvlts; child placing agencies;

independent foster homes; group family day care homes; .

family day care systems; child care centers, including
those centers operating as child day-care camps,

preschools and nursery schools, before and after school-

day-care programs.

As of May 3], '1991, there were 2372 fac:litles licensed by
the Depariment of Social Services; they have a total
licensed capacity of 146,762 chlldrenladults

| Statutory Authority: §§ 63.1-174 and 63.1-202 of the Code of
Virginia. -

Written comments may be submitted until October 12,
1991.

Contact: Peggy Friedenberg, Legislative Analyst, Office of
Governmental Affairs, Department of Social Services, 8007
Discovery Drive, Richmond, VA 23220-8699, telephone
(804) 662-9217. .

BOARD OF SOCIAL WORK

f September 20, 1981 - ¢ am, ~ Open Meeting
T September 21, 1891 - § a.m. — Open Meeting
1601 Rolling Hills Drive, Suite 200, Richmond, Virginia. &l

A meeting to (1) conduct general hoard business; (ii)
‘review and plan for the board for the next year; (iii)
review longrange goals of the board; and (iv) respond
to correspondence No public comment will be
received. E

Contact: Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director, 1601 Rolling

Hills Drive, Suite 200 Richmond, VA 23229, telephone
(8(}4) 662-9914. :

GOVERNOR’S TASK FORCE ON SUBSTANCE ABUSE
AND SEXUAL ASSAULT ON COLLEGE CAMPUSES

+ August 16, 1861 - 8:30 a.m. ~ Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, House Room D, Richmond,

(VUEM: S MEETING CANCELLED

Full commission meeting to vote on recommendatmns

‘ Contact' Kris Ragan, Staff Assistant
- Building, Room 3290, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804)
. 786 6316,

COMMONWEALTH TRANSPORTATION BOARD
August 14, 18981 - 2 p.m. - Open Meeting

Ramada Towers, 57th & Oceanfront,

] Virginia Beach,
Virginia. B ‘ :

t September 18, 1991 - 2 p.m. — Open Meeting

9th Street Office

Virginia Deparitment of Transportation, 1401 East Broad.
Street, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia. & (Interpreter for
deaf prov_ided upon reguest)

A joint work session of the Commonwealth
“Transportation Board and the Department of
Transportation staff.

August 15, 1891 - 16 am. — Open Meeting

Ramada Towers,
Virginia. @

57th & Oceanfront, Virginia Beach,

1 September 18, 1991 - 10 a.ne. — Open Meeting

Virginia Department of Transpertation, 1401 East Broad
Sireet, Board Room, Richmond, Virginia. @ (Inierpreter for
deaf provided upon request)

Monthly meeting of the Commonwealth Transportation
Board to vote on proposals presented regarding bids,
permits, additions and deletions to the highway system,
and any other matters requiring board approval.

Public comment willi be received at the outset of the
meeting, on items on the meeting agenda for which
the opportunity for public comment has not been
afforded the public in ancther forum. Remarks will be
limited to five minutes. Large groups are asked to
select one individual to speak for the group. The
- board reserves the right to amend these conditions.

Contact: John G. Milliken, Secretary of Transportation
1401 E. Broad St., Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804)
786-6670,

TRANSPORTATION SAFETY BOARD
August 16, 1981 - 10 a.m. ~ CANCELLED
Department of Motor Vehicles, 2300 West Broad Streef,
Room 702, Richmond, Virginia. &

The meeting to discuss several iopics which pertain to
transportation safety has been cancelied.

T September 26, 1991 - 18 a.m. — Open Meeting

Depariment of Motor Vehicles, 2300 West Broad Street,

Room 702, Richmond, Virginia. &

A meeting to discuss several topics which pertain to
transportation safety to include approval of FY92-402
Grant applications.

Contact: William H. Leighty, Deputy Commissicner for
Transporiation Safety, Department of Motor Vehicles, 2300
W.-Broad St, Richmond, VA 23219-0001, telephone (804)
367-6614 or (804) 367-1752/TDD =

TREASURY BOARD

August 21, 1991 - § am. — Open Meeting
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01 North 14th Street, James Monroe Building, 3rd Floor,
Treasury Board Conference Room, Richmond, Virginia. &

A regular meeting.

. Contact: Belinda Blanchard, Assistant Investment "Officer,

Department of the Treasury, P. O. Box 6-H, Richmond, VA =

23215, telephone {(804) 371-6007.

VIRGINIA RESOURCES AUTHORITY

Angust 13, 193] - 10 a.m. — Open Meeting
The Mutnal Building, 9209 East Main Street, Suite 707,
Conference Room A, Richmond, Virginia.

The board will meet to (i) approve minutes of the
meeting of July 9, 1991; (ii) review the authority’s
operations for the prior months; and (iii) consider
other matters and take other actions as they may

deem appropriate. The planned agenda of the meeting

will be agvailable at the offices of the authority one
week prior to the date of the meeting. Public
comments will be received at the beginning of the
meeting.

Centact: Shockiey D. Gardner, Jr., Mutual Building, 909
East Main Street, Suite 707, Richmond, VA 23219,
telephone (804) 644-3100 or FAX Number (804) 644-3109.

]

VIRGINIA YOLUNTARY FORMULARY BOARD

August 29, 1991 - 10 a.m. — Public Hearing
109 Governor Street, Main Floor Conference Room,
Richmond, Virginia.

The Virginia Voluntary Formulary Board will hold a
public hearing on this date. The purpose of this
hearing is to consider the proposed adoption and
issuance of revisions to the Virginia Voluntary
Formulary, The proposed revisions to the Formulary
add and delete drugs and drug products to the
Formulary that became effective on February 15, 1991
and the most recent supplement to that Formulary.

Copies of the proposed revisions to the Formulary are .

available for inspection at the Virginia Department of
Health, Bureau of Pharmacy Services, James Madison
Building, 108 Governor Street, Richmond, Virginia
23219. Written comments sent to the above address
and received prior to 5 p.m. on August 29, 1991 will
be made a part of the hearing record.

September 19, 1991 - 10:30 a.m, — Open Meeting
109 Governor Street, Main Floor Conference Room,
Richmond, Virginia.

A meeting to consider public hearing comments and
review new products pertaining to the Virginia
Voluntary Formulary.

Contact: James K. Thomson, Director, Bureau of
Pharmacy Services, 109 Governor Street, Room BI-9,
Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (B04) 786-4326 or SCATS
{804) 786-3596.

VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT BOARD

August 15, 1991 - 10 am. — Open Meeting
General Assembly Buﬂdmg, House Room C, Richmond,
Virginia. @

A general business meeting,

Contact: Loraine Williams, Secretary, 101 N. l4th Street,
Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 225-2667, toll-free
1-800-552-2075 or (804) 225-3753/TDD =

DEPARTMENT OF WASTE MANAGEMENT (VIRGINIA
WASTE MANAGEMENT BOARD)

‘August 28, 1991 - 7 p.m. — Open Meeting
The Board Room of the School Adminisiration Bmidmg,
Washington Street, Amherst, Virginia.

Pursutant to the requirements of Part VII of the
Virginia Solid Waste Management Regulations
{Permitting of Solid Waste Management Facilities), the
draft Solid Waste Disposal Facility Permii for the
development of an industrial landfill, proposed by
Virginia Fibre Corporation, is available for public
review and comment. The permit allows the proposed
facility to a accept only authorized, nonhazardous
waste which result from the operations of Virginia
Fibre Corporation. The proposal incorporates design
elements for a synthetic cap, and synthetic drainage
layers for the cap and side slopes of the base liner,
which are not provided for in the regulations. Virginia
Fibre petitioned for these features pursuant to the
requirements of Part IX of the regulations
(Rulemaking Petitions and Procedures), and the
Department of Waste Managemeni has granted
tentative approval.

t September 12, 1991 - 7 p.m. — Open Meeting
Operations Building, Municipal Center, Room 330, Virginia
Beach, Virginia.

‘Pursuant to the requirements of Part VII of the
Virginia Solid Waste Management Regulations
(Permitting of Solid Waste Management Facilities), the
draft permit for the development of a solid waste
transfer station, proposed. by Southeastern Public
Service Authority (SPSA), is available for public
review and comment. The permit allows SPSA to store
or colleet at the proposed facility authorized,
nonhazardous solid waste collected from its service
area for transportation to a permitted solid waste
disposal facility. This transfer station is one of several
components of SPSA’s Regional Solid Waste and
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Resources Recovery Project currently serving the
communities of Chesapeake, Franklin, Isle of Wright,
Norfolk, Portsmouth, - Southampton; Suffolk, and
Virginia Beach,

Contact: E. D. Gillispie, Environmental Engineering
Consultant, Department of Waste Management, 11th Floor,
* Monroe Building, 101 N. 14th Street, Richmond, VA 23219,
telephone (804) 3710514,

YRR

September 16, 1581 — Written comments may be submitted
untii this date. '

" Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Virginia Waste
Management Board intends to adopt regulations
entitled: VR 672-20-32. Yard Waste Composting
Facility Reguolation. This regulation provides for
certain. exemptions from the permiiting requirements
for solid waste management facilities contained in
Part VII of the “Virginia Solid Waste Management
Regulations” (VR 672-20-10) and certain substantive
facility standards contained in § 6.1 of the same
regulations.

Statutory Authority: §§ 10.1-1402 and 10.1-1408.1 of the
Code of Virginia.

Contact: Michael P. Murphy, Environmental Program
Manager, Department of Waste Management, 11th Floor,
101 N. 14th St,
371-0044/TDD = or toll-free 1-800-533-7488

STATE WATER CONTROL BOARD

September 4, 1881 - 7 p.m. — Public Hearing
James City County Board of Supervisors Room, Building C,
101C Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, Virginia.

September 9, 181 - 7 p.m. — Public Hearing

Prince William County Board Room, 1 County Complex,
McCourt Building, 4850 Davis Ford Road, Prmce William,
Virginia. .

September 11, 199% - 7 p.m. ~ Public Heanng
Roanoke County Administration Center Community Room,
3738 Brambieton Avenue, S.W., Roanoke, Virginia.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 3-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the State Water Control
Board intends to adopt regulations entitled: VR
680-14.87.  Qil Discharge Contingency Plans and
Administrative Fees for Approval. The purpose of
this proposal is to establish requirements for facility
and tank vessel contingency plans and fees for
approval of contingency plans.

Statutory Authority: §§ 62.1-44.34:15 and 62.1-44.34:21 of the

Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804)

Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitied umntil 4  pm.,
September 30, 1991, to Doneva Daiton, Hearing Reporter,

~ State Water Control Board, P.0. Box 11143, Richmond,

Virginia 23230,

Contact: Mr. David Ormes, State Water Control Board, P.O.
Box 11143, Richmond, Virginia 23230, telephone (8¢4)
527-5197.
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September 4, 1991 - 7 p.m. — Public Hearing
James City County Board of Supervisors Room, Building C,
101C Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, Virginia.

September 9, 1891 - 7 p.m. — Public Hearing

Prince William County Board Room, 1 County Complex,
McCourt Building, 4850 Davis Ford Road, Prince William,
Virginia.

September i1, 1881 - 7 p.m. ~ Public Hearing
Roancke Couniy Administration Center Community Roorm,
3738 Brambleton Avenue, S.W,, Roanoke, Virginia.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the State Water Control
Board intends to adopt regulations entitled: VR
68(-14-88. Tank Vessel Financial Respensibility
Requirements and Administrative Fees for Approeval
The purpose of this proposal is to establish
requirements for financial responsibitity on the part of
operators of tank vessel’s {ransporting or tramsferring
oil upon state waters and fees for approval.

Statutory Authority: §§ 62.1-44.34:16 and 62.1-44.34:21 of the
Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitted until 4 p.m.,
September 30, 1992, to Doneva Dalton, Hearing Reporter,
State Water Conirol Board, P.0. Box 11143, Richmond,
Virginia 23230.

Centact: Mr. David Ormes, State Water Control Board, P.O.
Box 11143, Richmond, Virginia 23230, telephone (804)
527-5197.
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T September 30, 1881 - 7 p.m. — Public Hearing

York County General District Courircom, Alexander
Hamilion Boulevard, Courts and Oifice Center, Second
Floor, Yorkiown, Virginia.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the State Water Control
Board intends to amend regulations entitled: VR
680-16-65. York River Basin Water Quality
Management Plan. The purpose of the proposed
amendment is to remove the wasie load allecations i
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stream segment 812 for American Oil,
James Sanifary District #1, and
wastewater treatment plants.

York and
York Regional

STATEMENT

Bagis; Section 62.1044.15(3a) of the Code of Virginia
authorizes the board to establish siandards of quality and
policies for any state waters congistent with the pgeneral
policy set forth in the State Water Conirol Law, and to
modify, amend or cancel any such standards or policies
established. Section 62.1-44.15(10) authorizes the board to
adopt such regulations as it deems necessary to enforce
the general water quality management program of the
board in all or part of the Commonwealth. Section
62.1-44.153(13) authorizes the board to establish policies and
programs for effective area-wide and basin-wide water
quality control and management.

Purpose: Water quality management plans serve as a
regulatory guide for the State Water Contrel Board in the
imptementation of mandated water quality goals. The
purpose of the proposal is to amend the York River Basin
Water Quality Management Plan (Plan) to remove the
waste load allocatiens in stream segment 98-12 for
American Qil, York and James City SD #1, and York
Regional STP. Since the facilities do not discharge to a
water quality limited segment, inciusion of the waste load
llocations is not required by federal or state laws or
regulations.

Impact; Federal and state laws require that Virginia
Pollutant Discharge Elimination Sysiem permits be in
compliance with appropriate area or basin wide water
quality management plans. The proposed removal of {hese
facilities will have no adverse impact on water gquality,
The quality and quantity of the discharges will continue to
be regulated by the board's Permit Regulation. Without the
proposed amendment, one facility, American Oil, will he
required to comply with the CBODS limits contained in the
plan which will create a financial burden for the facility.

Issues: The issue under consideration is the removal of
inappropriate and unnecessary waste
which were assigned to three facilities in an effluent
limiting sepment of the York River.

Statutory Authority: §§ 62.1-44.15(3a), 62.1-44.15(10), and
62.1-44.15(13) of the Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitted until 4 p.m., October
18, 1991, to Doneva Dalton, Tidewater Regional Office,
State Water Control Board, 287 Pembroke Office Park,
Suite 310, Pembroke II, Virginia Beach, Virginia 23462,

Contact: Robert F. Jackson, Jr., Tidewater Regional Office,
. State Water Control Board, 287 Pembroke Office Park,
... Suite 310, Pembroke II, Virginia Beach, Virginia 23462,
- ‘elephone {804) 552-1840.

load allocations -

BOARD FOR WATERWORKS AND WASTEWATER
WORKS OPERATORS '

T September 2§, 1991 - 10 a.m. — Public Hearing
Department of Commerce, 3600 West Broad Street,
Richmond, Virginia.

Notice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1
of the Code of Virginia that the Board for Waterworks
and Wastewater Works Operators intends to amend
regulations eatitled: VR 675-01-863. Board for
Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operaters
Regulations. The proposed amendments clarify,
reorganize the requirements for education and
operator experience and establish criteria for approval
of specialized training courses,

STATEMENT

Purpose: Pursuant to Virginia Code § 54.1-2300, the Board
for Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators proposes
to promulgate new regulations governing the aclivities of
waterworks and wastewater works treatment plant
operators practicing in the Commonwealth of Virginia. The
proposed regulations will amend, add to, delete from and
reorganize the existing regulations.

Estim Impact:

It is estimated that these regulations will apply directly fe

approximately 4,000 licensed operators in the
Commonwealth of Virginia.

Costs are shown in the regulation in the form of fees for
taking the examinations, licensure by endorsement for out
of state operators and for renewal of license. These fees
were previously esfablished in accordance with the
requirements of § 54.1-113 of the Code of Virginia to
ensure sufficient revenues are generated to cover
anticipated program expenses.

There are no anticipated additional costs to the Board for
Waterworks and Wastewater Works Operators as a result
of the revision of these regulations,

This program is supported through licensing fees.

The legal authority for the Board for Waterworks and
Wastewater Works Operators to promulgate - regulations
governing the activities of operamrs is found in § 54.1-2300
of the Code of Virginia.

The proposed regulations are needed to ensure that any
individual who works in a waterworks or wastewater
treatment plant in the Commonwealth of Virginia is
properly licensed. The proposed regulations have been
revised, amended, and reorganized for clarification.

Clarity and simplicity have been ensured in the drafting of
these regulations by careful revision and the use of short,
concise sentence structure. Requiremenis have heen stated
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in precise &nd direct terms. The amendments were
redrafted several times in order to meet these gealy and
have been reviewed for clarlty and simplicity by
individuals in the department.

Sirce only . Individuals are licensed as
waterworks/wastewater works operators In Virginla, the
proposed regulations will have only minimal impact on
small businesses/treatment plants in Virginla, The
additional requirements of the proposed regulations affect
individuals working ln small gnd large treatment plants to
the same extent. A potentlal problem would exigt If a
small plant had difficulty meeting any of the requirements.
It would mean that the plant may be withoui a licensed
treatment operator for a period of time,

Statutory Authority: §§ 54.1-113 and 54.1-201 of the Code of
Virginia,

Writien commenis may be snbmitted untii Qctober 15,
1981.

Cemtact: Mr. Geralde W. Morgan, Adminigtrator,
Department. of Commerce, 3600 W. Broad St, Richmond,
VA 23230-4817, telephone (804) 367-8534.

STATE BOARD OF YOUTH AND FAMILY SERVICES

August 26, 1991 - 10 amm. — Open Meeting
Virginia Beach Resort Hotel and Conference Center, 2800
Shore Drive, Virginia Beach, Virginia,

A genei'at business meeting,
Comtact: Paul Steiner, Policy Coordihator, Department of

Youth and Family Services, 700 Centre, 4th Floor, 7th &
Franklin Sts., Richmond, VA 23218, telephone - (804)

371-0692.
LEGISLATIVE
JOINT LEGISLATIVE AUDIT AND REVIEW
COMMISSION

" Subcommittee Studying the Administrative Precess Act

i September 9, 1981 - 2 p.m. — Public Hearing
General Assembly Building, Senate Room A, Capitol
Square, Richmond, Virginia.

The mandate for the JLARC study of the

Administrative Process Act,
foilowing issues:

HIR 387, raises the

ethe efficiency and effectiveness of the Act, .

ebuginess community concerng about the
implementation of the provislons of the Act by
members of boards or commissions and their
administrative staffs, and the ecomonic Iimpact of
reguiations upon buginess,

;Ehte meaningfuiness of public participation under the
CL.

In an effort to clarify the nature and substance of
these issues, & subcommilitee of the Joint Legislative
Audit and Review Commission will hold & public
hearing on the Administrative Process Act in
Richmond, on September 8, 1861, at 2 p.m. in Senpate
Room A of the General Assembly Building. Al
interested persons are invited to aitend the public
hearing and to submii written and oral remarks
regarding their experiences and concerns with the
Administrative Process Act. Information received
during the public hearing will be used by JLARC staff
throughout its review of the Administrative Process
Act,

For more information or te register in advance, piease
call Stephen Fox at (804) 786-1258,

Contact: Stephen Fox, telephone (804) 786-1258,

COMMISSION STUDYING THE NEED FOR
AUTONOMOUS SCHOOL OR COLLEGE STATUS FOR
THE FORESTRY AND WILDLIFE

t August 12, 1881 - 10 a.m. — Open Meeting
General Assembly Building, House Room C, 910 Capitol
Street, Richmond, Virginia,

The initial meeting of this Commission will be for
purpese of organization and establishing agenda for
interim meetings. (HIR 447)

Contact: Mark Prait, Research Associate, Division of
Legislative Services, 810 Capitol St., Richmond, VA 23219,
telephone (804) 786-3591.

JOINT SUBCOMMITTEE STUDYING EARLY
INTERVENTION SERVICES FOR HANDICAPPED
INFANTS AND TODDLERS

August 1%, 1331 - 1# a.m. — Open Meeting
General Assembly Building, House Room B, 910 Capitol
Street, Richmond, Virginia. &

This is the first meeting of this subcommitiee
following the 1991 General Assembly Session. Th
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/ subcommittee will continue the work it started in 1890
when i{ was conducied pursuant to HIR 164. (HJR
380)

Contact: Jessica Bolecek, Staff Attorney, Division of
Legislative Services, 910 Capitol St, Richmond, VA 23218,
telephone (804) 786-3581.

JOINT SUBCOMMITTEE STUDYING THE
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT OF OIL AND GAS
DRILLING UNDER THE CHESAPEAKE BAY

Septeraber 19, 1991 - 2 p.m. ~ Open Meeting
General Assembly Building, Sixthk Fleor Conference Room,
910 Capitol Street, Richmond, Virginia.

The joint subcommitice will meet for additional study
of the environmental impact of oil and gas driiling
under the Chesapeake Bay. (HJR 251)

Comtaet: Deanna Sampson, Staff Attorney, Division of
Legisiative Services, 910 Capitol St., Richmond, VA 23219,
telephone (804) 786-3591. '

JOINT HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS AND SENATE
FINANCE COMMITTEES

August 23, 1991 - $:39 am. — Open Meeting
General Assembly Building, House Room D, 910 Capitol
Street, Richmond, Virginia. &l

The purpose of this meeting is to hear the Governor's
report on surplus for the 1990-31 fiscal year.

Contact: John Garka, Division Manager, Division of
Legislative Services, 910 Capitoi St, Richmond, VA 23219,
telephone (804) 786-3591.

JOINT SUBCOMMITTEE TO STUDY INCENTIVE AND
OBSTACLES FACING BUSINESSES WHEN MAKING
LOCATION DECISIONS IN VIRGINIA

t August 23, 1981 - 2 p.m. — Open Meeting
General Assembly Building, House Room C, 910 Capitol
Street, Richmond, Virginia.

The subcommittee will meet to continue with its study
of incentive and obstacles facing businesses when
making location decisions in Virginia. (HJR 448)

Contact: Maria Evereit, Staff Attorney, Division of
Lepgislative Services, 810 Capitol St, Richmond, VA 23219,
tlephene (804) 786-3591. :

LOCAL AND STATE GOVERNMENT INFRASTRUCTURE
AND REVENUE RESOURCES COMMISSION

Special Subcommitiee

Aungust 23, 1991 - 1 p.m. — Open Meeting
General Assembly Building, 5th Floor West Conference
Room, 910 Capiiol Street, Richmond, Virginia. &

A special subcommitiee of the commission will hold a
working session in a continuation of its study of local
and state government infrastructure and revenue
resources. (HIR 205)

Contact: Bethany Parker, Division of Legislative Services,
910 Capitol St, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804)
786-3591.

JOINT SUBCOMMITTEE STUDYING THE EXISTING
MECHANICS LIEN LAWS

t August 13, 13981 - 1 p.m. — Open Meeting
General Assembly Building, Sixth Floor Conference Room,
Richmond, Virginia.

The subcommittee will meet to proceed with agenda
established at organizational meeting, (HJR 418)

Contact: Oscar Brinson, Staff Attorney, Division of
Legislative Services, 910 Capito} St., Richmond, VA 23219,
telephone (804) 786-359%.

JOINT SUBCOMMITTEE STUDYING SCHOOL
DROPOUTS AND WAYS TO PROMOTE THE
DEVELOPMENT OF SELF-ESTEEM IN YOUTH AND
ADULTS

1 August 15, 1991 - 18 a.m. — Open Meeting
State Capitol Building, House Room 4, Richmond, Virginia.

A general meeting.

Contact: Brenda Edwards, Research Associate, Divigion of
Legislative Services, 310 Capitol St., Richmond, VA 23219,
telephone (804) 786-3501.

SUBCOMMITTEE STUDYING THE REGULATION OF
UNDERGROUND INJECTION WELLS IN THE
COMMONWEALTH

September 5, 1981 - 7:38 p.m. - Public Hearing
Circuit Courtroom, Dickenson County Courthouse,
Street, Clintwood, Virginia.

Main

The subcommittee will hold a public hearing
concerning the regulation of underground injection
wells in the Commonwealth, (HIR 310)
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Contact: John Heard, Staff Attorney, Division of Legislative
Services, 910 Capitol St, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone
(BG4) 786-359L.

VIRGINIA CODE COMMISSION

1 September 4, 1991' - 8:45 a.m. — Open Meeting
1 September 5, 1981 - 8:45 a.m. — Open Meeting
The Tides Inn, Irvington, Virginia. '

The Commission will begin its work on the revision of
Title 28.1 (Fish, Oysters, Shellfish, etc.) and conduct
general business.

Contact: Joan W, Smith, Virginia Code Commission,
General Assembly Building, $10 Capitol Street, Richrmond,
VA 23218, telephone (804) 786-3591.

STATE WATER COMMISSION

t August 22, 1881 - 1 p.m. — Open Meeting
Roancke City Courcil Chambers, City Hall, 215 Church
Avenue, Roanoke, Virginia.

The commission will receive comments and
-recommendations from the public on the formulation
of a State Water Policy. ‘

Cortact: Martin G. Farber, Research Associale, Division of
Legislative Services, 910 Capitol St, Richmond, VA 23218,
telephone (804) 786-3591. '

LABOR & COMMERCE SUBCOMMITTEE STUDYING
HOUSE BILL 1813 RELATING TO WORKER'S
COMPENSATION AND PNEUMOCONIOSIS

August 22, 1981 - 1 p.m. — Open Meeting
State Capitol, House Room 2, Capitol Square, Richmond,
Virginia. &

The subcommitiee will meet {6 review House Bill
1813, as originally iniroduced, relating to worker's
compensation and pneumoconiosis.

Contact: Arlen K. Boistad, Staff Attorney, Division of
Legislative Services, 810 Capitol St., Richmond, VA 23219,
telephone (804) 786-3581.

JOINT SUBCOMMITTEE STUDYING THE WORKER'S
COMPENSATION SECOND INJURY FUND

August 22, 1991 - 10 a.m. — Open Meeting
- State Capitol, House Room 2, Capitol Square, Richmond,
Virginia.

The joint subcomimniftee will meet for additional study
of the worker's compensation second injury fund.

(HIR 312).

Centact: Arlen K. Bolstad, Staff Attorney, Division of
Legislative Services, 810 Capitol St, Richmond, VA 23219,
telephone (804) 786-3591. .

YOUTH SERVICES COMMISSION

t August 21, 1991 - I p.m. — Open Meeting

T September 13, 1981 - 14 a.m. — Open Meeting

General Assembly Building, 5th Floor West Conference
Room, Richmond, Virginia. €l

General commission meeting.

Comtact: Mary Simmons, Youth Services Cominission,
General Assembly Building, 910 Capitel St, Suite 5178,
Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804) 371-2481.

CHRONOLOGICAL LIST
OPEN MEETINGS

August 12
Arts, Commission for the
1t Autonomous School or Coliege Status for the
Forestry and Wildlife, Commission Studying the Need
for
Barbers, Board for

August 13
Architecis, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors and
Landscape Architects, Board for
- Board for Professional Engineers
Arts, Commission for the
Auctioneers Board
Commerce, Department of
Nursing, Board of
- Special Conference Committee
Virginia Resources Authority

August 14
Education, State Board of
Social Services, State Board of
Transportation Board, Commonwealth

August 15
t Biceniennial of the United States Constitution,
Virginia Commission on the
t General Services, Department of
- Advisory Commission on Mapping, Surveying and
Land Information Systems
Geology, Board for
Real Estate Board
t Scheoi Dropouts and Ways to Promote the
Development of Self-Esteem in Youth and Adults, Joint
Subcommittes Studying
Secial Services, State Board of

Virginia Register of Regulations

3690



Calendar of Events

Transporiation Board, Commonwealth
Waste Management Board, Virginia

August 16

T Building Code Technical Review Board, State
1 Conservation and Recreation, Departmeni of
- Juvenile Justice System Advisory Board
Geology, Board for
Medicine, Board of
- Informal Conference Committee
+ Residential Facilities for Children, Interdepartmental
Regulation of
- Coordipating Commiitee

T Incentive and Obstacles Facing Businesses When
Making Location Decisions in Virginia, Joint
Subcommitiee to Study
Land Evaluation Advisory Council, State
Local and State Government Infrastructure and
Revenue Resources Commission, Special Subcommittee
of
Medicine, Board of

- Advisory Board on Physxcai Therapy

- Advisory Committee on Physician's Assistants
Nursing, Board of

- Special Conference Committee

t Substance Abuse and Sexual Assault on College
Campuses, Governor’s Task Force on
MEETING CANCELLED

Augnst 19 '
Early Intervention Services for Handicapped Infants
and Toddlers, Joint Subcommittee Studying
Emergency Planning Committee, Local - County of
Prince William, City of Manassas, and City of
Manassas Park
Local Government, Comimission on

t Mechanics' Lien Laws, Joint Subcomrnittee Studymg . _
the Existing Marine Regources Commission

Nurse Midwives and Obstetric Care. Task Force to 1 Medicare and Medicare, Governor's Advisory Board
' on
Study _

August 28
Compensation Board
t Migrant and Seasonal Farmworkers Board
Real Estate Board
Waste Management, Department of

August 2§
1 Agricultural Council, Virginia
Lottery Board, State
Nursing, Board of
- Special Conference Committee
Outdoors Foundation, Virginia
Youth and Family Services, State Board of

August 27 _
Health Services Cost Review Council, Virginia

August 20
t Health Professions, Board of
- Task Force on Managed Health Care
Historic Resources, Department of
- State Review Board
+ Housing Development Authority, Virginia

Local Government, Commission on August 29

Game and Inland Fisheries, Board of
Angust 21

Chesapeake Bay Local Assistance Board
Corrections, Board of
Historic Resources, Board of
Optometry, Board of
Treasury Board
1 Youth Services Commission

August 30
Game and Inland Fisheries, Board of

September 3
t Higher Education for Virginia, State Council of
Hopewell Industrial Safety Council

September 4
Child Mental Health, Interagency Consortium on
1 Code Commission, Virginia
t Higher Education for Virginia, State C_ounc11 of
t Nursing Home Administrators, Board of

August 22
Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors and
Landscape Architects, Board for
t Fire Services Board, Virginia
Nursing, Board of
- Special Conference Committee
t Real Estate Board
1+ Water Commission, State
Labor and Commerce Subcommittee Study House Bill
1813, as Originally Introduced, Relating io Worker’s Virginia Board of Directors and the Middle Virginia
Compensation and Pneumoconiosis Emergency Planning Committee, Local - Chesterfield
Worker's Compensation Second Injury Fund, Joint County
Subcommititee Studying Nursing Home Administrators, Board of

September 5
1 Code Commission, Virginia
t Community Corrections Resources Board, Middle

August 23 September 4
House Appropriations and Senate Finance Committees, Medicine, Board of
Joint . - Advisory Board on Physical Therapy
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September 7
Military Institute, Virginia
- Board of Visitors

September 9
Land Evaluation Advisory Council, State

September 11
t Corrections, Board of
Emergency Response Council, Virginia
} Historic Preservation Foundation, Virginia

September 12
t Architects, Professional Engineers, Land Surveynrs
and Landscape Architects, Board for
1 Corrections, Board of
- Liaison Comimittee
1 Waste Management, Department of

September 13
Medicine, Board of :
- Advisory Coemmitiee on Optometry
1 Youth Services Commission

September 16
Emergency Planning Cominittee, Local - County of
Prince William, City of Manassas, and City of
Manassas Park

September 17
Real Estate Appraiser Board

September 18
t Conservation and Development of Public Beaches,
-Board on
Conservation and Recreation, Department of
- Virginia Soil and Water Conservation Board
t Transportation Board, Commonwealih

September 19
0it and Gas Drilling Under the Chesapeake Bay, Joint
Subcommittee Studying the Environmental Impact of
t Transportation Board, Commonwealth
Voluntary Formulary Board, Virginia

September 20
t Social Work, Board of

September ZI
T Social Work, Board of

Sepiemnber 25
1 Education, Board of

September 26
t Aging, Department for tne
- Long-Term Care Omibudman Program Advisery
Council
Compensation Board
1 Education, Board of
t Transportation Safety Board

Cctober 3
Emergency Planning Commitiee, Local - Chesterfield
County
t Community Corrections Resources Board, Middie
Virginia Board of Directors and the Middle Virginia

QOciober 30 _
t Education, Board of

Octeber 31
1t Education, Board of

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Aungust 13
Health, Department of
- Office of Planning and Regulatory Services

August 15
t Aris, Commission for the
- Task Force on the Promotion of the Aris

Apgust £8
Nurse Midwives and Obstetric Care, Task Force tio
Study

August 20
Local Government, Commission on

Auvgust 29
Voluntary Formulary Board, Virginia

September 4
Environment, Council on the
Water Contrel Beard, State

September 5
Environment, Council on the
Underground Injection Wells in the Commoswealih,
Subcommittee Studying the Regulation of

Sepiember 8
1t Administrative Process Act, Joint Legislative Audit
and Review Commission (JLARC) to Study the
Housing and Community Development, Department of
Water Control Board, State

September 10
Housing and Community Development, Department of

September 11
Housing and Community Development, Department of
Water Control Board, State

September 12
Housing and Community Development, Department of

September 13
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